902-420-9287
. 450 Cowie Hill Road
({({/ Halifax P.O. Box 8388 RPO CSC
Halifax, Nova Scotia
Water Canada B3K 5M1
June 11, 2021

Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair
Halifax Water
Halifax, NS

The regular meeting of the Halifax Water Board will be held virtually on Thursday, June 17, 2021 beginning
at 9:00 a.m. Visit www.halifaxwater.ca to register to attend the public portion of the meeting.

AGENDA

In Camera Reports ‘

1C Approval of Minutes of the In-Camera Meeting held on Thursday, March 25, 2021
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the In-Camera minutes of March 25, 2021.

2C Business Arising from Minutes
a)

3C-I  Land Matter (20 minutes)

‘ Information Item |

4C-1  Land Matter (10 minutes)

‘ Information Item |

5C-I Health & Safety Matter (10 minutes)
‘ Information Item |

Regular Reports

1. a) Ratification of In-Camera Motions (2 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board ratify the In-Camera Motions.

b) Approval of the Order of Business and Approval of Additions and Deletions (2 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the order of business and approve additions and deletions.

2. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on Thursday, March 25, 2021 (2 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the minutes of the March 25, 2021 regular meeting.

3. Business Arising from Minutes
a)

et | STRAIGHT from

el [ the SOURCE



Page |2

Financial

4.1 Financial Statements for the Year-Ended March 31, 2021 (30 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the financial statements of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission for the year ended March 31, 2021.

4.2 Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Audited Financial Statements for the Year
Ended December 31, 2020 (15 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the audited financial statements of the Halifax Regional Water
Comission Employee’s Pension Plan (the “Plan”) for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Capital Projects

5.1 Capital Expenditures for the fiscal year-end March 31, 2021 (10 minutes)

Presentation

Other Business

6. Corporate Balance Scorecard — 2020/21 Results (20 minutes)

‘ Presentation of Final Results ‘

The items in this section are the reports ordered to be filed by Halifax Water with the Nova Scotia Utility and Review
Board by June 30, 2021. These reports are being provided for information purposes.

7. Cost Containment Report 2020/21

8. 2020/2021 Lead Service Line Replacement Program

9. Capital Cost Contribution Areas — Financial Status Report for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2021

Information Reports

1-l Operational Performance Information Report
2-| Halifax Water Collection Processes
34 Halifax Water Compliance Statement — Quarterly Certification
4-| Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Financial Report, First Quarter, 2021
5-| 2020 Annual Report — Pension and Benefits Advisory Committee
6- 2021/22 Communications Plan and Approach
7-1 Diversity, Equity & Inclusion
8- Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust Investment Performance, First Quarter 2021
He|d| gicgtjgll)érsigned by Heidi
Schedler  osiosowo0.
Heidi Schedler
Secretary

vm 'STRAIGHT from ‘(I’([/
@— Lt . [ the SOURCE ll{l

alifax
/ater

-~

e

Mova Scotia's
Top Employers




‘(J(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4.1

l l Water Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Waler Commission June 17, 2021

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Board

H Digitally signed by Louis
LOUIS de de Montbrun

SUBMITTED BY: Montbrun a0
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services/CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: Lot O 1% 06

12:19:29 -03'00"'

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: June 11, 2021
SUBJECT: Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
ORIGIN

Operational and Regulatory Requirement.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Halifax Regional Water Commission Board approve the financial
statements of the Halifax Regional Water Commission for the year ended March 31, 2021.

BACKGROUND

Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water) is required to submit audited financial
statements, approved by the Halifax Water Board, to the Halifax Regional Municipality (HRM)
by June 30, 2021 and the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (NSUARB) within 180 days of
the fiscal year end.

At the June 3, 2021 meeting of the Audit and Finance Committee (the Committee), the Committee
reviewed the financial statements and the report by Grant Thornton on audit results. At the
meeting, the Committee approved the following motion:

“The Audit and Finance Committee recommend that the Halifax Regional Water Commission

Board approve the financial statements, as adjusted, of the Halifax Regional Water Commission
for the year ended March 31, 2021.”

Page 1 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

DISCUSSION

Attached are the financial statements for Halifax Water for the year ended March 31, 2021, with
comparative figures for March 31, 2020. The auditor has indicated that they are prepared to issue
an unqualified Auditor’s Report.

Halifax Water is a fully regulated government business enterprise, falling under the jurisdiction of
the NSUARB. The NSUARB requires that Halifax Water file financial statements and rate
applications with them based on the NSUARB Water Utility Accounting and Reporting Handbook
(NSUARB Handbook). The Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) requires rate regulated entities
to conform to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Halifax Water maintains the
financial records in IFRS for the purposes of the annual audit and consolidation of the financial
statements with those of HRM.

The following discussion of the operating results reflect direct operating costs by department and
allocations among water, wastewater and stormwater for common costs shared across all the
services provided by Halifax Water. The schedules to the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the NSUARB Handbook.

Statement of Financial Position - Page 3 of financial statements

Key indicators and balances from the Statement of Financial Position are provided in the following
tables. An analysis of the changes in assets is as follows:

Table 1:
From Prior Year
March 31 (in thousands) 2021 2020 $ Change % Change
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,228 $ 49,953 $ (1,725) (3.5%)
Receivables
Customers charges and contractual 17,155 18,405 (1,250) (6.8%)
Unbilled senice revenues 18,246 17,367 879 5.1%
Halifax Regional Municipality 2,71 3,668 (957) (26.1%)
Inventory 2,003 1,736 267 15.4%
Prepaids 1,570 1,002 568 56.7%
89,913 92,131 (2,218) (2.4%)
Intangible assets 20,588 18,951 1,637 8.6%
Capital work in progress 30,908 18,104 12,804 70.7%
Utility plant in senice 1,280,283 1,281,010 (727) (0.1%)
Total assets 1,421,692 1,410,196 11,496 0.8%
Regulatory deferral account 2,620 2,812 (192) (6.8%)
Total assets and regulatory deferral account $ 1,424,312 $§ 1,413,008 $ 11,304 0.8%

Page 2 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances held within financial
institutions reduced by outstanding cheques. They have decreased $1.7 million from the
prior year due to lower earnings, lower debt issued in the current year, and payment of
payables from the prior year end, offset by lower spend on capital. The details of changes
are outlined in the statement of cash flows on page 6 of the attached draft financial
statements.

Customer charges and contractual receivables have decreased $1.3 million from the prior
year. The change in receivables is driven by the timing of billing cycles and increase in the
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Unbilled service revenues have increased $0.9 million due to the annual stormwater site
generated service revenue having been invoiced in full by March 31 of the prior year, but
not invoiced in full until after year end. This was primarily due to the finalization of the
Stormwater impervious area update.

HRM receivable has decreased from the prior year $1.0 million due to an increase in the
amount Halifax Water owed HRM for its share of costs for capital projects which is offset
by an increase in the Regional Development Charge (RDC) that HRM has collected on
behalf of Halifax Water but not yet paid, and invoices Halifax Water had issued HRM for
its share of capital project costs.

Inventory has increased $0.3 million primarily due to a large purchase of meters in the
current year as the vendor indicated their prices were increasing.

The increase in prepaids of $0.6 million is a result of a deposit for land purchased to be
held until the Burnside facility is completed and a software license for the new payroll
system.

The $1.6 million increase in intangible assets relates to additions of $3.5 million less $1.9
million of amortization. Current year additions to intangible assets consist mainly of the
Corporate Flow Monitoring program.

The $12.8 million increase in capital work in progress relates to expenditures during the
year of $60.4 million, plus funding received of $3.6 million, reduced by $51.2 million
transferred to utility plant in service and intangibles. The top five projects remaining in
capital work in progress at year end are detailed below:

Page 3 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Table 2:
Capital Work in Progress
Cumulative
'000
Bedford South Reservoir $ 2,988
Romans and Federal Avenues Sewer
Separation 2,705
Wastewater System Trenchless Rehabilitation 1,931
Pump Station Control Panel/Electrical Replacement 1,512
Infrastructure and IT Operations Governance 1,309
10,445
All other projects:
Water 10,056
Wastewater 9,049
Stormwater 1,358
20,463
Capital work in progress $ 30,908

e Utility plant in service assets total $1.28 billion, a decrease of $0.7 million from the prior
year. The decrease is a result of total additions of $47.7 million less depreciation expense
of $48.4 million and disposals during the year. Utility plant in service assets were expected
to increase in the current year. Total capital spend was affected by delays in projects
integrated with HRM, challenges in acquiring land necessary for projects, timing of
NSUARB approvals and project scope and design changes.

The top five projects capitalized during the year are outlined in the following table:

Table 3:
Additions to Utility Plant in Service and Intangibles
Cumulative
'000
Port Wallace Transmission Main $ 5,913
New Operations Facility Land Purchase 4,824
Fairview/Clayton Park/Bridgeview
Inflow/Infiltration Reduction 2,263
Corporate Flow Monitoring Program 1,776
Bennery Access Road Upgrade 1,481
16,257
All other projects:
Water 16,759
Wastewater 12,746
Stormwater 5,453
34,958
Total additions $ 51,215

Page 4 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

The changes in liabilities are presented below:

Table 4:
From Prior Year
March 31 (in thousands) 2021 2020 $ Change % Change
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
Trade 12,644 21,947 (9,303) (42.4%)
Non-trade 6,192 5,384 808 15.0%
Interest on long term debt 2,065 2,139 (74) (3.5%)
Contractor and customer deposits 2,115 1,622 493 30.4%
Current portion of deferred contributed capital 14,580 14,488 92 0.6%
Current portion of long term debt 20,559 21,184 (625) (3.0%)
Unearned revenue 561 760 (199) (26.2%)
58,716 67,524 (8,808) (13.0%)
Deferred contributed capital 883,916 879,460 4,456 0.5%
Long term debt 204,106 197,962 6,144 3.1%
Employee benefit obligation 73,796 63,365 10,431 16.5%
Total liabilities 1,220,534 1,208,311 12,223 1.0%
Equity
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (29,682) (26,453) (3,229) 12.2%
Accumulated surplus 233,460 231,150 2,310 1.0%
Total equity 203,778 204,697 (919) (0.4%)
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,424312 $ 1,413,008 $ 11,304 0.8%

e Trade payables and accruals have decreased $9.3 million as a result of accruals for
completion of capital projects being lower than the prior year due to timing of capital spend.

e Non-trade payables and accruals have increased $0.8 million due to the timing of payroll
remittances.

e Customer and contractor deposits have increased $0.5 million due to an increase for
deposits made on new accounts, overpayments on existing accounts, and billing
adjustments.

e Current portion of long term debt has decreased $0.6 million due to no balloon payment
required in the coming year and an increase in the payment due next year on new debt.

e Deferred contributed capital increased $4.5 million due to contributed assets additions of
$7.4 million, collection of RDCs and interest earned on RDC balances of $16.0 million,
offset by amortization of $18.8 million.

Page 5 of 14



ITEM #4.1
Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021

e Long term debt increased $6.1 million offset by the decrease in the current portion of $0.6
million. Since March 1, 2020, new debt of $25.0 million was issued in July 2020 and long
term debt repayments have been $19.5 million. Halifax Water received the fall 2020
debenture issue in the amount of $20.0 million at the end of May 2021. See Schedule B of
the financial statements for additional details.

Table 5:
Net change in Long Term Debt (full fiscal year)
Total Water Wastewater Stormwater
New long term debt $ 25,000 $ 12,000 $ 7,400 $ 5,600
Long term debt repayments (19,484) (4,937) (13,536) (1,011)
Change in current portion 625 (425) 1,330 (280)
Change in long term debt $ 6,141 $ 6,638 $ (4,806) $ 4,309
Table 6:
Long Term Debt
Total Water Wastewater Stormwater
Opening debt $ 220,075 $ 67,585 $ 135,656 $ 16,834
New long term debt 25,000 12,000 7,400 5,600
Long term debt repayments (19,484) (4,937) (13,536) (1,011)
Less debt issue costs (926) (369) (434) (123)
Total long term debt 224,665 74,279 129,086 21,300
Less current portion (20,559) (5,362) (13,906) (1,291)
Closing long term debt $ 204,106 $ 68,917 $ 115,180 $ 20,009

e The employee benefit obligation increased $10.4 million due to a couple of factors:

o Improvement of the fair market value of plan assets;

o Decrease in the discount rate used to measure the obligation;

o Additional information, including the actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring
the employee benefit obligation, is described in Note 4 of the financial statements.

Debt servicing ratio is a function of total interest and principal payments (including accrued
amounts) plus the amortization of debt issue costs divided by total operating revenue per service.
Debt servicing ratio by service as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Table 7:

Debt Servicing Ratio by Service

Water
Wastewater
Stormwater
Combined

2020/21 2019/20
13.12% 11.70%
25.08% 24.14%
27.57% 22.39%
20.29% 18.91%

Page 6 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

e The debt servicing ratio for each service has increased from the prior year as a result of the
issuance of new debt and lower revenue growth as a result of the impact of COVID-19.

e The debt servicing ratio of 20.29% is below the maximum 35.0% ratio allowed under the
blanket guarantee agreement with HRM.

Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Earnings - Page 4 of financial statements

Key indicators and balances from the Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Earnings are
provided in the following tables:

Table 8:
Summarized Comprehensive Earnings
2020/21 2019/20
'000 ‘000 $ Change % Change

Operating revenues $ 136,569 $ 137,750 $ (1,181) (0.9%)
Operating expenditures 141,973 139,040 2,933 2.1%
Loss from operations before financial and other

revenues and expenditures (5,404) (1,290) (4,114) 318.9%
Financial and other revenues 19,773 20,236 (463) (2.3%)
Financial and other expenditures 11,867 12,611 (744) (5.9%)
Earnings for the year before regulatory deferral

account depreciation 2,502 6,335 (3,833) (60.5%)
Regulatory deferral account depreciation (192) (192) - 0.0%
Earnings for the year 2,310 6,143 (3,833) (62.4%)
Other comprehensive (loss) earnings (3,229) 14,756 (17,985) (121.9%)
Total comprehensive (loss) earnings for the year $ (919) $ 20,899 § (21,818) (104.4%)

e The total comprehensive loss for the year is $0.9 million, a decrease in the surplus of $21.8
million from the prior year. The following is a discussion of factors influencing the change.

Page 7 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Operating revenues are presented below, broken down by type:

Table 9:

Operating Revenues

2020/21 2019/20

'000 ‘000 $ Change % Change

Consumption revenue $ 84,539 $ 86,054 $ (1,515) (1.8%)
Base charge revenue 33,544 33,399 145 0.4%
Wastewater rebate (847) (1,041) 194 (18.6%)
Metered sales total 117,236 118,412 (1,176) (1.0%)
Stormwater site generated charge 5,127 5,361 (234) (4.4%)
Stormwater right of way 3,835 3,835 - 0.0%
Public fire protection 7,336 7,074 262 3.7%
Private fire protection 1,001 881 120 13.6%
Other operating revenue 2,034 2,187 (153) (7.0%)
Operating revenue total $ 136,569 $ 137,750 $ (1,181) (0.9%)

Operating revenues have decreased $1.2 million as compared to the previous year. Key items of
note include:

e Water consumption is down 1.85% on a volumetric basis as compared to the previous year.
This is due to reduced consumption in the industrial, commercial and institutional (ICI)
sector affected by the COVID-19 pandemic offset by an increase in the residential sector.
Consumption had been budgeted to remain consistent with the prior year. Wastewater
discharge 1s directly correlated to water consumption but is not metered.

e Stormwater site generated charge revenue is $0.2 million less than the prior year. The
decrease relates to an adjustment to revenue billed.

e Public and private fire protection revenue has increased by a combined $0.4 million from
the prior year due to an approved increase by the NSUARB effective October 1, 2020.

Page 8 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Operating expenditures are presented below:

Table 10:
Operating Expenditures
2020/21 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change

Water supply and treatment $ 9,987 § 9,573 § 414 4.32%
Water transmission and distribution 12,031 10,843 1,188 10.96%
Wastewater collection 14,467 13,963 504 3.61%
Stormwater collection 4,762 4,808 (46) (0.96%)
Wastewater treatment 20,623 20,633 (10) (0.05%)
Engineering and information senices 8,281 8,436 (155) (1.84%)
Regulatory senvices 3,981 3,781 200 5.29%
Customer senvices 5,081 5,167 (86) (1.66%)
Administration senices 7,067 7,044 23 0.33%
Pension senices 7,086 8,382 (1,296) (15.46%)
Depreciation and amortization 48,607 46,410 2,197 4.73%

$ 141,973 $ 139,040 § 2,933 2.11%

Key items to note:
e Operating expenditures of $142.0 million are $2.9 million higher than the prior year.
e Compared to the prior year, expense categories with the largest increases in costs are:

o Water supply and treatment has increased $0.4 million due to higher salaries and
benefits ($112k) and an increase in both chemical costs ($153k) and electricity
costs ($172k).

o Water transmission and distribution has increased $1.2 million mainly due to higher
salaries and benefits ($573k), including the creation of a new full time position, and
the internal allocation of fleet costs ($420Kk).

o Wastewater collection has increased $0.5 million mainly due to higher salaries and
benefits ($861k), including the creation of two new full time positions, and an
increase in materials and supplies purchases ($180k) offset by the internal
allocation of fleet costs ($366k) and lower electricity ($116k).

o Pension services saw a decrease of $1.3 million as a result of lower accrued pension
expense based on actuarial valuation and the elimination of special contributions
by Halifax Water which reduces the overall salary and benefits costs.

o Depreciation and amortization have increased $2.2 million as a result of additions
to utility plant in service and intangibles.

Page 9 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Table 11:
Salaries and Benefits
2020/21 2019/20

‘000 '000 $ Change % Change

Water supply and treatment $ 2,852 $ 2,740 % 112 4.09%
Water transmission and distribution 7,332 6,759 574 8.49%
Wastewater collection 7,825 6,964 861 12.37%
Stormwater collection 2,301 2,459 (159) (6.45%)
Wastewater treatment 5,219 5,362 (142) (2.66%)
Engineering and information services 5,415 5,333 81 1.53%
Regulatory senices 3,450 3,246 204 6.27%
Customer services 3,444 3,577 (133) (3.71%)
Administration services 4,167 4,075 92 2.27%
Pension senices 7,087 8,382 (1,295) (15.45%)
$ 49,093 § 48,897 § 196 0.40%

The overall increase in salaries and benefits is a result of annual wage rate increases due to union
contracts, net three new positions. The increases and decreases in the table above are affected by
allocations of staff between services as demonstrated by the decrease in stormwater collections
and the larger increase in wastewater collections. This has been offset by the current year decrease
In pension expense.

Financial and other revenues are presented below:

Table 12:
Financial and other revenues
2020/21 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Interest $ 215 $ 512 $ (297) (58.00%)
Amortization of contributed
capital 18,810 19,025 (215) (1.00%)
Other 748 699 49 7.00%
$ 19,773 $ 20,236 $ (463) (2.00%)

Key items to note:

e Interest is lower than the previous year due to a lower cash balance and a decrease in
interest rates.

e Amortization of contributed capital has decreased due to fewer additions in the current
year.

e Otherrevenues include various un-regulated activities such as tower lease revenues, energy
generation revenues, consulting activities and contracted service revenues.

Page 10 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Financial and other expenditures are presented below:

Table 13:
Financial and other expenditures
2020/21 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Interest on long term debt $ 7,118 $ 7,144 $ (26) 0.00%
Amortization of debt discount 209 187 22 12.00%
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 5,951 5,078 873 17.00%
Other (1,411) 202 (1,613)  (799.00%)
$ 11,867 $ 12,611 $ (744) (6.00%)

Key items to note:

e The dividend/grant in lieu of taxes (dividend) increased $0.9 million due to additions to
utility plant in service and a new 3-year agreement with HRM to also pay a dividend of
0.25% on wastewater and stormwater rate based assets.

e Other expenditures have decreased $1.6 million over the prior year due to the gain on sale
of property sold during the year.

Other Comprehensive Earnings

e Other Comprehensive Earnings (OCI) is a function of the change in the liability for
employee benefits, including the Pension Plan. The OCI adjustment at year-end was a loss
of $3.2 million due to the actuarial extrapolation and valuation.

Results under International Financial Reporting Standards as compared to NSUARB
Handbook

As arate regulated utility, the AcSB requires Halifax Water, to report financial results using IFRS.
The NSUARB requires Halifax Water to report in accordance with the NSUARB Handbook. The
table below reconciles the results between IFRS and the NSUARB Handbook:

Table 14:
Reconcile IFRS to NSUARB
2020/21 2019/20
'000 '000
IFRS comprehensive (loss) earnings $ 919) $ 20,899
Add non-cash pension expense 7,086 8,382
Subtract debt principal payments (20,379) (18,719)
Add depreciation expense on contributed assets 18,810 19,025
Subtract amortization of contributed capital (18,810) (19,025)
Add various depreciation adjustments 1,100 2,634
Add (subtract) OClI loss (gain) 3,229 (14,756)
NSUARB loss $ (9,883) $ (1,560)

Page 11 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Operating revenues are the same under both [FRS and the NSUARB Handbook.

The main differences relate to reporting requirements surrounding the recognition of various
expenditures as follows:

e Non-cash pension expense represents the accrual of unpaid contributions to the pension
plan and is not considered an expense for NSUARB Handbook reporting purposes.

e The principal payments on long term debt are recognized as an expense for NSUARB
Handbook reporting purposes but are not an expense under IFRS.

e Depreciation expense on contributed assets is not an expense for NSUARB Handbook
purposes, however, it is offset by the removal of the amortization of contributed capital.
IFRS requires contributed capital to be treated as a long term liability and amortized,
resulting in higher long term liabilities and lower equity on the statement of financial
position.

e The various depreciation adjustments include the add back of gains on the disposal of
utility plant in service and IFRS requires componentization of assets and shorter useful
lives resulting in higher depreciation than under NSUARB Handbook reporting.

Schedule C (pages 25 to 27) of the draft audited statements presents the Statement of Earnings
under the NSUARB Handbook and contain the adjustments referenced above.

Table 15:
Operating Results by Service
Budget Actual Actual 2020/21 2020/21
2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 Budget/Actual Budget/Actual
'000 '000 '000 $ Variance % Variance

Water $ (4,275) $ 495 § 5,205 $ 4,770 (111.58%)
Wastewater (7,845) (7,958) (5,035) (113) 1.44%
Stormwater (3,833) (2,420) (1,730) 1,413 (36.86%)
Loss $ (15,953) $ (9,883) $ (1,560) $ 6,070 (38.05%)

Key items to note:

e Water Services earnings of $0.5 million are $4.7 million more than budget due to the
following factors:

o Current year revenue was $0.1 million less than budget. Consumption revenue
was lower as a result of lower usage by ICI customers and lower late payment and
interest charges as a result of COVID-19 relief measures, offset by an increase in
fire protection revenue and a new meter reading fee.

o Lower operating expenditures of $2.2M due in part to reduction in training costs,
deferral of sludge removal services, savings in chemicals resulting from process
optimization, and lower depreciation.

Page 12 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

o The actual bank balances and interest rates where high than the assumptions used
in preparing the budget. As a result, financial and other revenues are higher than
budget by $0.3 million. An increase in energy generation revenues also increased
the variance.

o Lower financial and other expenditures of $2.4 million due to lower debt
servicing costs resulting from less debt acquired than budgeted.

e Wastewater Services loss of $8.0 million is $0.1 million less than budget due to the
following factors:

o Current year revenue budget was $1.0 million less than budget. Consumption
revenue was lower as a result of lower discharge by ICI customers, lower late
payment and interest charges as a result of COVID-19 relief measures, and
reduced contract services revenues primarily a result of lesser need for airline
effluent treatment.

o Lower operating expenditures of $0.2M due to a reduction in training costs,
deferral of regular equipment maintenance, reduced flows at facilities resulting in
fewer chemicals required, and lower depreciation.

o Lower financial and other expenditures of $0.6 million due to lower debt
servicing costs resulting from less debt acquired than budgeted.

e Stormwater Services loss of $2.4 million is $1.4 million better than budget due to the
following factors:

o Lower stormwater site generated flow revenue of $0.9 million due to an
adjustment to revenue billed for the impervious area update and lower late
payment and interest charges as a result of COVID-19 relief measures.

o Lower operating expenditures of $2.0M due to a reduction in training costs,
deferral of regular equipment maintenance, reduced flows at facilities resulting in
fewer chemicals required, offset by higher depreciation.

o Lower financial and other expenditures of $0.4 million due to lower debt
servicing costs resulting from less debt acquired than budgeted.

To fund the current year deficit for Wastewater Services, the NSUARB approved a transfer of up
to $5.04 million from reserves. These funds were transferred from HRM in 2007 as part of the
transfer of Wastewater and Stormwater Services. As per the request from the Audit and Finance
Committee, the disclosure in Schedule E of the financial statements was improved to better reflect
the use of the reserve and the remaining balance.

Schedule D (pages 28 and 29) of the audited statements presents the Statement of Earnings

segregated between Regulated and Unregulated activities in accordance with the NSUARB
Handbook.

Page 13 of 14



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Table 16:
Results by Activity
Budget Actual Actual 2020/21 2020/21
2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 Budget/Actual Budget/Actual
'000 '000 '000 $ Variance % Variance

Regulated activities $ (16,259) $ (10,710) $ (2,260) $ 5,549 (34.13%)
Unregulated activities 306 827 700 521 170.26%
Loss $ (15,953) $ (9,883) $ (1,560) $ 6,070 (38.05%)

Key items to note:

Regulated activities loss of $10.7 million is $5.5 million less than budget due to the
factors discussed within the previous sections.

Regulated activated loss of $10.7 million has increased from the prior year by $8.5
million due to the following factors:

o Decrease in consumption as a result of lower usage by ICI customers.

o Increase in operating expenditures mainly due to depreciation of new assets and
higher salaries and benefits including the creation of new positions.

o Decrease in financial and other revenues due to lower interest as a result of a
lower cash balance and a decrease in interest rates compared to the prior year.

o Increase in financial and other expenditures due to higher debt servicing costs
compared to the prior year and an increase in the dividend/grant in lieu of taxes
paid to HRM.

Unregulated activities include leasing of land for telecommunications and wind turbines
and in-line turbines generating electricity in the water system. The most material lines of
unregulated business are treatment of septage from waste haulers dealing with private
septic systems and treatment of airline effluent. These unregulated activities earned $0.8
million and have increased $0.5 million more than budget due to savings in operating
costs for the leachate and dewatering facilities as a result of lower usage.

Unregulated activities earnings have increased $0.1 million from the prior year due to a
decrease in revenue for airline effluent offset by a decrease in operating costs for the
leachate and dewatering facilities.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021

2. Presentation to the Audit and Finance Committee by Grant Thornton

H Digitally signed by Alicia
AIICIa Scallion
Report prepared by:  Scallion Bale: 2021.06.10

Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA, Manager, Accounting, (902) 497-9785

Page 14 of 14




ITEM # 4.1

(J,(.I/ 1:f, Halifax Water Board
“dlﬂﬂd\ June 17, 2021

l l water ATTACHMENT 1

Financial Statements

Halifax Regional Water Commission

March 31, 2021



(I(I/Ilalil'a\
l 1 Water

Contents

Independent auditor’s report 1-2
Statement of financial position 3
Statement of earnings and comprehensive earnings 4
Statement of changes in equity 5
Statement of cash flows 6
Notes to the financial statements 7-20
Schedules
A Schedule of utility plant in service
Water 21
Wastewater 22
Stormwater 23
B Schedule of long term debt 24
C Schedule of earnings
Water 25
Wastewater 26
Stormwater 27
D Schedule of earnings
Regulated activities 28
Unregulated activities 29

E Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board information 30



Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton LLP
Nova Centre, North Tower
Suite 1000, 1675 Grafton Street

Independent auditor’s report

T (902) 421-1734
F (902) 420-1068
www.GrantThornton.ca

To the Members of the Board of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission

Audit | Tax | Advisory 1
© Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd



° Grant Thornton

Audit | Tax | Advisory 2
© Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Statement of financial position

March 31 (in thousands) 2021 2020
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,228 $ 49,953
Receivables (Note 8)
Customer charges and contractual 17,155 18,405
Unbilled service revenues 18,246 17,367
Halifax Regional Municipality 2,711 3,668
Inventory 2,003 1,736
Prepaids 1,570 1,002
89,913 92,131
Intangible assets (Note 10) 20,588 18,951
Capital work in progress 30,908 18,104
Utility plant in service (Note 11) 1,280,283 1,281,010
Total assets 1,421,692 1,410,196
Regulatory deferral account (Note 5) 2,620 2,812
Total assets and regulatory deferral account $ 1424312 $ 1,413,008
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
Trade $ 12,644  $ 21,947
Non-trade 6,192 5,384
Interest on long term debt 2,065 2,139
Contractor and customer deposits 2,115 1,622
Current portion of deferred contributed capital (Note 12) 14,580 14,488
Current portion of long term debt (Note 13) 20,559 21,184
Unearned revenue 561 760
58,716 67,524
Deferred contributed capital (Note 12) 883,916 879,460
Long term debt (Note 13) 204,106 197,962
Employee benefit obligations (Note 4) 73,796 63,365
Total liabilities 1,220,534 1,208,311
Equity
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (29,682) (26,453)
Accumulated surplus 233,460 231,150
Total equity 203,778 204,697
Total liabilities and equity $ 1424312 $ 1,413,008

Contingent liabilities (Note 3)
Commitments (Note 6)

Approved by the Board

Commissioner

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Commissioner



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Statement of earnings and comprehensive earnings

Year ended March 31 (in thousands) 2021 2020
Operating revenues
Water $ 47,631 $ 47,918
Wastewater 69,605 70,494
Stormwater 8,962 9,196
Public fire protection 7,336 7,074
Private fire protection 1,001 881
Other operating revenue 2,034 2,187
136,569 137,750
Operating expenditures (Note 14)
Water supply and treatment 9,987 9,573
Water transmission and distribution 12,031 10,843
Wastewater collection 14,467 13,963
Stormwater collection 4,762 4,808
Wastewater treatment 20,623 20,633
Engineering and information services 8,281 8,436
Regulatory services 3,981 3,781
Customer services 5,081 5,167
Administration services 7,067 7,044
Pension services 7,086 8,382
Depreciation and amortization 48,607 46,410
141,973 139,040
Loss from operations before financial and other
revenues and expenditures (5,404) (1,290)
Financial and other revenues
Interest 215 512
Amortization of contributed capital 18,810 19,025
Other 748 699
19,773 20,236
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 7,118 7,144
Amortization of debt discount 209 187
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 5,951 5,078
Other (1,411) 202
11,867 12,611
Earnings for the year before regulatory deferral account
depreciation 2,502 6,335
Regulatory deferral account depreciation (192) (192)
Earnings for the year 2,310 6,143
Other comprehensive (loss) earnings
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to earnings:
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans (3,229) 14,756
Total comprehensive (loss) earnings for the year $ (919) $ 20,899

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Statement of changes in equity
Year ended March 31 (in thousands)

Balance, April 1, 2019

Earnings for the year

Other comprehensive earnings
Comprehensive earnings for the year

Balance, March 31, 2020

Earnings for the year
Other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive earnings (loss) for the year

Balance, March 31, 2021

Accumulated
other

comprehensive Accumulated

income (loss) surplus Total
$ (41,209) $ 225,007 $ 183,798
- 6,143 6,143
14,756 - 14,756
14,756 6,143 20,899
$ (26,453) $ 231,150 $ 204,697
- 2,310 2,310
(3,229) - (3,229)
(3,229) 2,310 (919)
$ (29,682) $ 233,460 $ 203,778

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Statement of cash flows

Year ended March 31 (in thousands) 2021 2020
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Operating
Comprehensive (loss) earnings for the year $ 919) $ 20,899
Depreciation and amortization 31,592 29,183
Employee benefit obligation 10,431 (8,965)
Loss (gain) on disposal of utility plant in service (1,481) 135
39,623 41,252
Change in non-cash operating working capital items
Receivables, customer charges and contractual 1,250 (998)
Receivables, unbilled service revenues (879) (355)
Receivable from Halifax Regional Municipality 957 (2,805)
Inventory (267) 321
Prepaids (568) 64
Payables and accruals, trade (9,303) 4,818
Payables and accruals, non-trade 808 391
Payables and accruals, accrued interest on long term debt (74) 88
Contractor and customer deposits 493 44
Unearned revenue (199) 253
(7,782) 1,821
31,841 43,073
Financing
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt 26,700 36,500
Contributed capital and interest 15,952 12,712
Debt issue costs 3 (87)
Principal repayment on Halifax Regional Municipality long term debt (6,500) (6,500)
Principal repayments on long term debt (14,684) (18,208)
21,471 24,417
Investing
Proceeds from sale of utility plant in service 1,576 203
Purchase of capital work in progress (23,031) (13,775)
Purchase of utility plant in service and intangible assets (33,582) (55,568)
(55,037) (69,140)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,725) (1,650)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 49,953 51,603
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 48228 $ 49,953

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

1. Nature of operations

The Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water) is a public utility owned and controlled by the Halifax Regional
Municipality (HRM). Halifax Water is responsible for the supply of municipal water, Wastewater and Stormwater Services to
the residents of HRM. Halifax Water’s principal place of business is 450 Cowie Hill Road, Halifax, Nova Scotia. Halifax Water
is exempt from income tax.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Commissioners on June 17, 2021.
(b) Basis of measurement

Halifax Water’s financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments measured
at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand.
The financial statements are presented in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial
Statements.

(c) Regulation

In matters of administrative policy relating to customers, rates and other charges, capital expenditures, depreciation rates and
accounting matters, Halifax Water is subject to the jurisdiction of the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (NSUARB). Rates
and other charges charged to and collected from customers are designed to recover the cost of providing the regulated services.
Halifax Water is required to prepare submissions in accordance with the Water Utility Accounting and Reporting Handbook
issued by the NSUARB. There are differences in the accounting treatment of certain transactions from IFRS including the
accounting of principal debt payments, employee future benefits, depreciation and amortization, gains and losses on the
disposal of utility plant in service, and accumulated surplus.

Regulatory assets represent costs incurred that have been deferred as approved by the NSUARB and will be recovered through
future rates collected from customers. Halifax Water’s regulatory assets are disclosed in Note 5.

(d) Utility plant in service

Utility plant in service (Note 11) is recorded at cost, being the purchase price and directly attributable cost of acquisition or
construction. Losses or gains related to assets retired, demolished or sold are charged or credited to the statement of earnings.

(e) Leased assets
Halifax Water makes use of lease arrangements for office space and equipment and assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease at the inception of the contract. A lease conveys the right to direct the use and obtain substantially all of the economic

benefits of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At lease commencement date, Halifax Water assess whether the recognition of a right-of-use asset and lease liability would
have a material impact on the financial statements.



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Leased assets (continued)

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which is comprised of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease
payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). A right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation or impairment losses and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability. A lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, Halifax Water’s incremental borrowing rate.

Halifax Water has elected to apply the practical expedients available under IFRS 16 for short-term leases and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. Short-term leases and low value leases are expensed in the period incurred.

Halifax Water maintains very few lease arrangements and management will assess future leases as they arise to determine
whether the impact of the recognition of a right-of-use asset and lease liability on the statements of financial position, where
Halifax Water is acting as a lessee, is material to the financial statements. All existing leases have been assessed and
recognition in the financial statements has been deemed immaterial.

(f) Deferred contributed capital

Contributions for capital expenditures are treated as deferred contributed capital on the statement of financial position and
amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets (Note 12). Deferred contributed capital is initially measured at cost,
being the value of contributions received by Halifax Water for the acquisition of utility plant in service. Contributions for capital
expenditures are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets and show as a reduction in the amortization of utility
plant in service.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and cash balances managed by HRM that are held within financial
institutions.

(h) Depreciation of utility plant in service
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The estimated useful lives for the major classifications of utility plant in service are as follows:

Office equipment and furniture and

transportation equipment
Supervisory control and data acquisition
(SCADA) equipment
Meters
Pumping equipment
Tools and work equipment
Culverts
Purification and treatment equipment
Services and laterals
Hydrants
Structures and improvements
Water, Wastewater and Stormwater mains

3 to 10 years

510 25 years
20 to 25 years
510 30 years
510 30 years
25 to 50 years
20 to 50 years
50 to 60 years
50 to 80 years
50 to 100 years
50 to 100 years



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Depreciation of utility plant in service (continued)

Depreciation commences in the year an asset is placed into service and ready for its intended use. In the year of acquisition,
depreciation is calculated at 50% of the above rates unless a project is significant, in which case depreciation is prorated for the
number of months the asset was in use. Halifax Water does not maintain a depreciation fund per regulatory reporting
requirements. Halifax Water has received NSUARB approval for exemption from setting up a depreciation fund as long as net
depreciable additions to utility plant in service exceed the depreciation charged.

(i) Inventory

Inventory is comprised of direct materials and supplies. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value with
cost being determined on the weighted average cost method.

(j) Revenues and expenditures

Halifax Water recognizes revenue in a manner that depicts the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration Halifax Water is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services rendered.

All revenues and expenditures are recorded on an accrual basis. Revenues relating to supplying water, Wastewater and
Stormwater Services are recorded based on cyclical billings and include an accrual for estimated amounts not yet billed. Fire
protection revenue is recorded based on approved rates. Other revenues are recorded at the time services are performed, the
amount can be measured reliably, and collection is reasonably assured.

(k) Long term debt
Debt issue costs are deferred and amortized over the term of the debt to which they relate.
U] Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

In preparing Halifax Water’s financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the period. Significant estimates and assumptions include the
following:

e At year end, unbilled service revenues from water, Stormwater and Wastewater Services have been earned, but not yet
billed due to the timing of the billing cycles. Management estimates the unbilled service revenues accrual based on historic
billing trends.

e Management assumptions are used in the actuarial determination of employee benefit obligations, such as standard rates
of inflation, mortality, discount rates, and anticipation of future salary increases.

o Useful lives of utility plant in service are reviewed at each reporting date based on expected patterns of usage and historical
information.

o Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies.

Actual results could differ from these estimates.
(m) Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when Halifax Water becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognized
when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value and adjusted for transaction costs, where applicable. Financial
instruments are classified as: those measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (assets only),

or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Halifax Water has classified its financial instruments as follows:

Asset/Liability Classification

Cash and cash equivalents Amortized cost
Receivables Amortized cost
Payables and accruals Amortized cost
Long term debt Amortized cost
Contractor and customer deposits Amortized cost

The classification is determined by both the Halifax Water business model for managing the financial instrument and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial instrument.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the assets meet the following conditions, and are not designated as FVTPL:

e they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash
flows; and

¢ the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Discounting
is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets
Impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognize expected credit losses, the expected credit loss
(ECL) model. Financial assets that are subject to the ECL model include cash and cash equivalents and receivables.

(n) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when Halifax Water has a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation.

(o) Impairments

At the end of each reporting period, Halifax Water reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is an indication of an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is
estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of any asset is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the impairment test is carried out on the asset’s cash-generating unit (CGU), which is the lowest group of assets to which
the asset belongs for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets. Halifax Water has three CGU’s (water, Wastewater and Stormwater) for which impairment testing is performed.

10



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Impairments (continued)

If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in earnings. When an impairment loss is
subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

(p) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land rights, water removal rights, studies, and capital master plans. These are recorded at cost less
accumulated amortization. Land rights include payment for easements and right of use over land and have an indefinite useful
life. Intangibles with finite useful lives are amortized annually over the estimated useful lives. The expected useful lives are as
follows:

Intangible assets 10 to 30 years
(q) Employee benefit obligations
Halifax Water accrues annually, the estimated liabilities for pension and other employee benefits.

Pension benefits
Halifax Water provides employment, post-retirement and pre-retirement benefits through defined benefit plans and supplemental
retirement plans.

The cost of pension benefits for the supplemental retirement plans are expensed at the time active employees are compensated.

The defined benefit plan sponsored by Halifax Water determines the amount of pension benefits employees will receive on
retirement by reference to length of service and salary levels. Obligations associated with the defined benefit plan reside with
Halifax Water, even if plan assets for funding the plan are set aside.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for the defined benefit plan sponsored by Halifax Water is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.

Management estimates the defined benefit obligation annually with assistance from an independent actuary using the projected
unit credit method. The defined benefit obligation uses estimates for inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, and anticipated
salary levels. The discount factor used to present value estimated future cash flows is determined with reference to high quality
corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Gains and losses resulting from re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability are charged to other comprehensive income
in the period in which they arise. Service costs are recognized immediately into earnings.

Net interest cost related to pension obligations and returns on plan assets are included in salary and benefits on the statement
of earnings.

Halifax Water is responsible for funding the employer share of contributions to the HRM pension plan for certain employees that
transferred from HRM as of August 1, 2007. HRM administers this defined benefit pension plan and Halifax Water reimburses
HRM for the pension costs related to Halifax Water’s proportionate share of the employees covered under the plan. Due to the
nature of the plan, Halifax Water does not have sufficient information to account for the plan as a defined benefit pension plan;
therefore, the multi-employer defined benefit plan is accounted for in the same manner as the supplemental retirement plans.
An expense is recorded in the period when Halifax Water is obligated to make contributions for services rendered by the
employee.

1"



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations that are due to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees rendered the related service are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided.

(r) Regulatory deferral account

The regulatory deferral account is recognized and measured at historical cost less depreciation. Management continually
assesses the likelihood of recovery of regulatory assets. If recovery through future rates is no longer considered probable, the
amounts would be charged to the results of operations in the period that the assessment is made.

3. Contingent liabilities

As a condition of sale in 2004 of a property, Halifax Water indemnified the purchaser from claims or actions resulting from
migration of halocarbons. The environmental risk is assessed to be low and the likelihood of any related liability is not
determinable.

Halifax Water is currently reviewing environmental risk factors at other owned properties to determine whether there is an
obligation for reclamation. As of the date of issue of the financial statements the likelihood of any related liability is not
determinable.

Halifax Water has been named in lawsuits that are ongoing and a liability has been accrued for legal fees and the insurance
deductible.

There are other active claims against Halifax Water; however, the likelihood of actual liability is not determinable at this time. If
Halifax Water's defence of active claims is unsuccessful, the potential exposure would be $1,000 - $2,000.

4. Employee benefit obligations

Retirement benefit plan — employees transferred from HRM

For employees that transferred from HRM, Halifax Water records an expense for the employer share of the contributions to the
HRM pension plan in the period when Halifax Water is obligated to make contributions for services rendered by the employee.
During 2021, Halifax Water funded $543 (2020 — $555) in contributions to the plan. The number of employees included in this
planis 55 (2020 — 57) and this number is reducing over time. As former HRM employees retire, they are replaced with employees
in the Halifax Water pension plan.

Supplemental retirement plans sponsored by Halifax Water

For employees who participate in the supplemental retirement plans, the cost of pension benefits are expensed at the time active
employees are compensated. During 2020, Halifax Water funded $23 (2020 — $15) in contributions to the plans. The number
of employees included in the plans is 7 (2020 — 5).

Defined benefit plan sponsored by Halifax Water and other long term employment benefits

For all other employees, Halifax Water maintains a defined benefit pension plan and offers post-retirement health and insurance
benefits. The defined benefit pension plan provides pensions based upon length of service and best seven years’ earnings. The
defined benefit pension plan is funded by employer and employee contributions with employees contributing 10.34% of regular
employee earnings, and Halifax Water matching employee contributions. The defined benefit pension plan assets are managed
by the HRM Pension Committee.

12



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

4. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Employees, who retired prior to July 1, 1998, have extended health benefits coverage for life and drug coverage until age 65.
Employees, who retired after July 1, 1998 and before December 31, 2008, have coverage for drug, extended health, dental and
life insurance until age 65 on a 50/50 cost shared basis and a 100% basis for employees who retired after December 31, 2008.
Extended health coverage for these retirees and their spouses after the age of 65 is available on an optional basis at 100%
retiree cost and drug coverage is available through the provincially managed drug program.

Halifax Water has a non-funded pre-retirement benefit that is accrued annually, and is payable on retirement, termination or
death of the employee. For individuals who elected to defer receipt of their benefit until the time which they leave employment,
their individual benefit equates to approximately three days’ pay for each year of completed service.

Completed service for unionized employees was frozen as at June 7, 2019 for the purposes of determining their pre-retirement
benefit. Pre-retirement benefits accrue to a maximum of six months’ salary and can be taken as a lump sum payment at the
time of retirement in lieu of pre-retirement leave.

Information about Halifax Water’s plans, based on an actuarial extrapolation of the defined benefit pension plan and pre-
retirement benefits and based on actuarial valuation of the post-retirement benefits as at March 31, 2021, is as follows:

Defined benefit pension plan Post-retirement benefits Pre-retirement benefits Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Change in accrued benefit obligation

Balance, April 1 $ 195904 $ 198962 $ 460 $ 380 $ 1,536 $ 4,195 $ 197,900 $203,537
Current service cost 11,036 12,197 - - 91 143 11,127 12,340
Interest cost 7,549 6,891 15 10 57 88 7,621 6,989
Benefit payments (5,514) (4,780) (53) (50) (106)  (3,025) (5,673)  (7,855)

Re-measurements — actuarial (gains)/
losses from changes in
financial/experience assumptions 18,597 (17.366) (27) 120 140 135 18,710 (17.111)

Balance, March 31 227,572 195,904 395 460 1,718 1,536 229,685 _ 197,900

Change in fair value of plan assets

Balance, April 1 134,535 131,207 - - - - 134,535 131,207
Investment income 5,129 4,486 - - - - 5,129 4,486
Administrative expenses (69) (112) - - - - (69) (112)
Actual return on plan assets 15,362 (2,611) - - - - 15,362 (2,611)
Benefit payments (5,514) (4,780) (53) (50) (106) (3,025) (5,673) (7,855)
Contributions: Employee 3,287 3,505 - - - - 3,287 3,505
Employer 3,159 2,840 53 50 106 3,025 3,318 5,915

Balance, March 31 155,889 134,535 - - - - 155,889 _ 134,535
Accrued benefit liability, March 31 $ 71683 § 61369 $ 395 § 460 $ 1718 $ 1536 $ 73,796 $ 63,365

13



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

4. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
Included in the statement of earnings and comprehensive earnings is pension expense of $10,903 (2020 - $11,940).

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring Halifax Water's accrued benefit obligations are as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Defined Defined
benefit benefit Post- Post- Pre- Pre-
pension Pension  retirement retirement  retirement retirement
plan plan benefits benefits benefit benefit
Discount rate 3.40% 3.80% 2.75% 3.45% 2.90% 3.60%
Expected return on plan assets 3.40% 3.80% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 3.75% 3.75% N/A N/A 3.75% 3.75%
Expenses for life benefits as a % of claims N/A N/A 9.36% 10.00% N/A N/A
Health benefit trending per year N/A N/A 6.26% 6.50% N/A N/A
Dental benefit trending per year N/A N/A 4.00% 4.00% N/A N/A

The measurement date used to determine the plan assets and the accrued benefit obligation was March 31, 2021. The most
recent valuation was completed January 1, 2019. The next review is scheduled for January 1, 2022.

The estimated employer contributions expected to be paid to the pension plans for the next fiscal year are $3,291.
5. Regulatory deferral account

In 2011, the NSUARB granted Halifax Water approval to defer depreciation charges on certain assets transferred in 2010 from
HRM relating to the Halifax Harbour Solutions Project (HHSP). Depreciation of $2,078 was deferred in each of fiscal 2011 and
2012. As a result, Halifax Water recognized a $4,156 regulatory deferral account. In absence of rate regulation, this regulatory
deferral account would have been expensed as depreciation in fiscal 2011 and 2012. In 2012, the NSUARB granted approval
of the depreciation of this deferral account over the remaining useful lives of the underlying assets, beginning in 2014. The
expense recognized in 2021 is $192 (2020 - $192).

2021 2020
Balance, April 1 $ 2812 $ 3,004
Depreciation (192) (192)
Balance, March 31 $ 2620 $ 2,812

6. Commitments

A new agreement with HRM for the dividend/grant in lieu of taxes (dividend) for fiscal years 2020/21 to 2022/23 was signed
during the fiscal year. Dividend payments are approved as part of revenue requirements by the NSUARB. For the Water
System, the dividend for fiscal years 2020/21 to 2022/23 is expected to be equal to 1.56% of Halifax Water's rate base assets
allocated to the Water System at March 31 of the previous fiscal year. Starting September 1, 2020, for the Wastewater System
and Stormwater System, the dividends for fiscal years 2020/21 to 2022/23 are expected to be equal to 0.25% of Halifax Water’s
rate base assets allocated to the Wastewater System at March 31 of the previous fiscal year, plus 0.25% of Halifax Water’s rate
base assets allocated to the Stormwater System at March 31 of the previous fiscal year.

For 2021/22, the dividends will be capped at 1% more than the dividend amounts for 2020/21 that would have been payable

had the new Wastewater and Stormwater dividends commenced on April 1, 2020. The dividends payable for 2022/23 will be
capped at 1% more than the dividends payable in the preceding fiscal year.

14



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

7. Capital management

Halifax Water’s objective when managing capital is to ensure sufficient liquidity to support its financial obligations and execute
its operating and capital plans. Halifax Water monitors and adjusts its capital structure through additional borrowings of long
term debt which are used to finance capital projects.

Halifax Water considers its total capitalization to include all long term debt and total equity. The calculation is set out as follows:

2021 2020
Long term debt $ 224,665 $ 219,146
Equity 203,778 204,697
Capital under management $ 428,443 $ 423,843

Halifax Water has obtained regulatory approval for all borrowings during the fiscal year. Halifax Water is not subject to financial
borrowing covenants other than as outlined in Note 9.

8. Financial instruments and risk management

Halifax Water applies a three-tier hierarchy framework for disclosing fair value of financial instruments, based on whether the
inputs into the various valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable techniques reflect market data
obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect management assumptions. Changes in valuation
techniques of financial instruments may result in transfers of assigned levels. The hierarchy of input is as follows:

Level | Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level Il Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 1l Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The carrying values of current assets and current liabilities approximate their fair value due to the relatively short period to
maturity of these financial instruments. The fair value of fixed rate long-term debt is assumed to approximate its carrying value
given the limitations where Halifax Water can obtain long-term debt.

There were no transfers between classes of the fair value hierarchy during the year.
Halifax Water is exposed to risks as a result of holding financial instruments. Management considers and evaluates those risks

on an on-going basis to ensure that the risks are appropriately managed. These potential risks include credit risk, interest risk,
market risk and liquidity risk.

15



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

8. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that Halifax Water's customers may experience financial difficulty and be unable to fulffill
their obligations. Halifax Water's maximum exposure to credit risk corresponds to customer charges and contractual
receivables. However, Halifax Water's customers are numerous and diverse, which reduces the concentration of credit risk.

Halifax Water makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for receivables and records the loss allowance as lifetime ECL.
These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point during the life of
the financial instrument. In calculating, Halifax Water uses its historical experience, external indicators and forward-looking
information to calculate the ECL using a provision matrix. Halifax Water includes 75% of the balance of closed accounts in the
allowance and 1% of active accounts. Halifax Water assesses impairment of receivables on a collective basis. As receivables
possess shared credit risk characteristics, receivables have been grouped based on the days past due.

An analysis of Halifax Water’s receivables and continuity of Halifax Water’s provision for impairment losses on receivables is
as follows:

2021 2020
Receivables
Customer charges, contractual, and unbilled service revenues $ 38,654 $ 38,464
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (3,253) (2,692)

$ 35,401 $ 35,772

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired are assessed with reference to historical information
and includes the following considerations; new customers, existing customers and payment pattern history.

Interest risk

Interest risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will cause Halifax Water a potential loss. Halifax Water’s
long term debt has been acquired with a variety of fixed rates and has staggered maturity dates which mitigates the interest
rate risk.

Market risk

Market risk arises from the possibility that the value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
These changes could affect the market value of the investments in Halifax Water's employees’ pension plan and consequently
the plan’s surplus. The risk is mitigated by the pension plan diversifying the types of investments in its portfolio.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility of Halifax Water not being able to meet its cash requirements in a timely and cost-
effective manner. Halifax Water manages this risk by closely monitoring the cash on hand in comparison to upcoming cash
commitments.

16



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

9. Related party transactions
The immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of Halifax Water is HRM.

Halifax Water is obligated to make payments on debt, held in the name of HRM, associated with Wastewater and Stormwater
assets which were transferred to Halifax Water in 2007 and subsequent years.

Amounts receivable from HRM have normal credit terms.
Halifax Water had the following related party transactions with HRM:

e Halifax Water recorded revenue for provision of water, Wastewater and Stormwater Services in the amount of $4,808 (2020
- $4,943).

e Halifax Water recorded public fire protection revenue $7,336 (2020 - $7,074).

e Halifax Water paid a dividend of $5,951 (2020 - $5,078).

e Halifax Water paid operating expenses of $1,694 (2020 - $1,785).

e The debt issued by Halifax Water was covered by a blanket guarantee from HRM subject to Halifax Water maintaining a
debt service ratio of less than 35%. The debt service ratio at March 31, 2021 is 20.29% (2020 — 18.91%).

Compensation of key management personnel
Members of the Board of Commissioners and Executive Management team are deemed to be key management personnel. It
is the Board of Commissioners and Executive Management team who have the responsibility for planning, directing and

controlling the activities of Halifax Water.

The following is compensation expense for key management personnel:

2021 2020
Regular compensation and benefits $ 1,428 $ 1,474
Post-employment benefits 163 113
Total compensation $ 1,591 $ 1,587

17



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Notes to the financial statements

March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

10. Intangible assets 2021 2020
Cost
Balance, April 1 $ 25933 $ 20,798
Additions 3,565 5,135
Balance, March 31 29,498 25,933
Accumulated amortization
Balance, April 1 6,982 5,380
Amortization 1,928 1,602
Balance, March 31 8,910 6,982
Net book value, March 31 $ 20588 $ 18,951
11.  Utility plant in service
Structures Treatment Distribution Tools
and and network and collection and work
Land improvements equipment network equipment Total
Cost
Balance, April 1, 2020 $ 21603 $ 263,360 $ 271,047 $ 934692 $ 33,892 $1,524,594
Additions 4,386 4,925 5,477 23,981 8,881 47,650
Disposals - (49) (194) - (9,281) (9,524)
Balance, March 31, 2021 25,989 268,236 276,330 958,673 33,492 1,562,720
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, April 1, 2020 $ - $ 62,646 $ 71,773 % 94691 $ 14474 $ 243,584
Depreciation - 10,120 15,104 17,792 5,266 48,282
Depreciation retired - (42) (111) - (9,276) (9,429)
Balance, March 31, 2021 - 72,724 86,766 112,483 10,464 282,437
Net book value, March 31, 2021 $ 25989 § 195512 § 189564 $§ 846,190 $ 23,028 $1,280,283
Structures Treatment Distribution Tools
and and network and collection and work
Land improvements equipment network equipment Total
Cost
Balance, April 1, 2019 $ 21603 $ 235615 $ 250,944 $ 896,065 $ 28,835 $1,433,062
Additions - 27,745 21,949 38,627 6,001 94,322
Disposals - - (1,846) - (944) (2,790)
Balance, March 31, 2020 21,603 263,360 271,047 934,692 33,892 1,524,594
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, April 1, 2019 $ - $ 52,737 $ 58,807 $ 77,046 $ 11,032 $ 199,622
Depreciation - 9,909 14,474 17,645 4,386 46,414
Depreciation retired - - (1,508) - (944) (2,452)
Balance, March 31, 2020 - 62,646 71,773 94,691 14,474 243,584
Net book value, March 31, 2020 $ 21603 $ 200,714 $ 199274 $ 840,001 $ 19,418 $1.281,010

18



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

12. Deferred contributed capital

Balance, April 1
Assets contributed during the year
Contributions and interest
Amortization

Balance, March 31

Less: current portion

2021 2020

$ 893,948 $ 881,648
7,406 18,613

15,952 12,712
(18.810) (19,025)
898,496 893,948
(14,580) (14.488)

$ 883,916 $ 879,460

Deferred contributed capital is comprised of contributions received by Halifax Water for the acquisition of utility plant in service.
Contributions for capital expenditures are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

13. Long-term debt

Payable to Municipal Finance Corporation (MFC)
Water
HHSP
Wastewater
Stormwater

Payable to Halifax Regional Municipality
Wastewater/Stormwater

Less: debt issue costs

Less: amount payable within one year

Interest rates

0.678% t0 4.221%
2.015% to 2.561%
0.678% to 3.614%
0.678% to 3.614%

1.200% to 5.940%

2021 2020

$ 74648 $ 67,586
5,850 6,500

97,670 96,657
21,423 16,832
199,591 187,575
26,000 32,500
225,591 220,075

(926) (929)

224,665 219,146
(20,559) (21,184)

$ 204106 $  197.962

During the year Halifax Water acquired $25,000 in new debt with a ten year term and twenty year amortization period.

Additionally, $1,700 of debt was refinanced for ten years.

The debentures are repayable in fixed annual principal instalments plus interest payable semi-annually. Interest paid during the
year was $7,118 (2020 - $7,144). Principal instalments for the next five years are as follows:

2021/22 $ 20,559
2022/23 $ 45,272
2023/24 $ 41,951
2024/25 $ 32,065
2025/26 $ 22,417
Thereafter $ 63,327

19



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

14. Operating expenditures by nature

Salaries and benefits

Training

Contract services

Electricity

Operating supplies

Professional services

Chemicals

Depreciation on assets allocated to departments
Depreciation and amortization

15. Impact of COVID-19

2021 2020

$ 49,093 § 48,897
325 644

13,182 13,426

6,868 6,535

10,672 10,974

5,650 4,806

5,973 5,742

1,603 1,606

48,607 46,410

$ 141973 § 139,040

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Halifax Water did not charge interest on overdue accounts, fees for dishonored
payments were waived, and disconnection for non-payment of service was suspended. These measures were in place until
August 31, 2020. The impact of COVID-19 on Halifax Water’s credit risk has been factored into the estimates for the allowance
for doubtful accounts; however, it is not expected to be material to the financial statements. The duration of the COVID-19

pandemic remains unclear at this time.

20



%4

"uoneloaldap 1o} SaAl| [njesn Ul Seouslayip pUe slesse UIeuao Jo uojeziuauoduwlod ‘sjesse a|qibuelul jo Uoisnjoxe 0} anp JoogpueH gyYNSN Y} Woly sisyip Sy 4| Jepun aoiaes ui jueid Alnn

"(oogpueH gYVYNSN) doogpueH Bupoday pue Bulunoddy Aynn Jeyep GHYNSN SUl Yim 0UEpIode Ul pajuasald S|y 9inpayos

GG/'80S $ 6S9CL $  lev'9 $ €99 $ ZL2€L $ e6lL'eE $ eesv0e $ 16S'9  $ 906 0§ /18T $  €99'08 $ owcoL $ 0202 ‘L€ udJepy ‘anjen 300q 318N

065'661 £6€'0C 129°€ 098% 780G IvE'8 70876 Sov'y 66981 698 70G°L€E - 0202 ‘L€ uoten
‘uoljeloaidap pajeinwnooe [ejo ]
(¥921) (216) - - (zs9) - - - - - - - paJias uoieroaidag
6vL'cl 162 6ee 9ee 18 102 020'S 758 8zL'L €62 8L - uoperoaidaQ
G0z'88l 710'61 882'c ¥2s'y 180G 9v9', ¥8.'68 €50'v 12S'L) 9/G'L 799'62 - 6102 '} Iudy ‘9ouEleg
co_um_om‘_awu pale|nunddy
GvE'80. 810'ce #50'0L 16V'12 66.'8l 9vS'L¥ 1€5'66€ 966'01 S11'I2 989'01 /91'8L1 0vz'9l 0202 ‘L€ UdJey\ ‘aoueleg
(60€2) (216) - - (z6€71) - - - - - - - slesodsiq
9zl'Ls 6EE'Y - 698 601'E v9'L l1z'el 68¢€'S 9/8 €8l 10Z'le - suonippy
825659 $ lc9'ec $  vS0'0L $  8€90z $ /8291 $ 6686E $ Oce98e  $ L09G $ 66892 $ €050l $  096'96 $ ovzol $ 180D
6102 ‘| Iudy ‘eoueleg
180D
6L0°12S $ /9GSl $ G809 $ w229l $ €2'€l $ 10 $  les'lle $ Oovb'9 $ 69e'8  $ 86T $ 7668 $ cev'sl $ 1202 ‘L€ YaJey ‘anjeA jooq }aN

¥9€°202 569'9L £96'¢ ale's ¥18'S 180'6 200'00L 1€6'Y €98'61 /91'8 2.S'ee - 1202 ‘L€ Yyolen
.co_ym_om._amu paje|nwnode |ejo |
(r29'9) (¥55'9) (1) - (€01) - - - (@) - (r1) - pajes uoleroaidaq
svb'vl 958'C 1€€ 9g¢ G568 €L 861'S 92s 99L'L 862 280'C - uojjeroaldaQ
065661 £6£'02 129'¢ 098y 780°'S 1E'8 708'v6 Sov'y 669'8lL 698'L 705°L€ - 020z ‘I Iudy ‘eoueleg
uoljern OLQQU pajeinuinddy
£8€'82. z9L'ce 87001 066°LC 716l 8GL'ey €eS LIy LI€°LL 7€2'8¢C Sv.'0L ¥95'12L £EY'8lL 1202 ‘L€ YdJe|y ‘@duejeq
(¥96'9) (865'9) (9) - (v61) - - - (L1) - (6¥71) - slesodsiq
20022 2LL's - €617 s zL9'L 966'L | Gl€ 1244 65 9vs'e €612 suonippy
Gve'80L ¢ 8v0'ee $  vS0'0L $  6¥lc $ 66L8L $ 9vSly $ les66€  $ 966°0L $ G2 $ 989'0L $ 918LL  $ ovgoL § 10D
0202 ‘1 |udy ‘@ouejeg
10D

lejol jawdinba swia)sAs sjuelpAq SIEIEN EEBIINET suew juawdinbe wawdinbe wawdinba sjuswenoidwl  pueT
Yiom llews pue uopnquisip vavos uopeoyund  Buidwing pue
pue sjoo] yosjousy pue saunpnis
uolssiwsuel |

19)e

(spuesnouy ur) |.Z0Z ‘L€ YOIe\ Papua Jea
991AJ8s ul jue|d Ajji3n jJo anpayoss

V 9|npayoss uoISSIWLWOY J3)Je\A [euoiBay xejljeH




44

‘uopeloaldap 10} SBAI| [NJBSN Ul S8oUBIBYIP PUe S}9sSe Ulelad Jo Uojeziuauodwod ‘sjasse a|qibuelul Jo Uoisnjoxa 0} anp yoogpueH gyvNSN 8l Wolj siayip SY4| Jepun soiaes Ul jueld Aynn

"YoogpueH gYYNSN @4} Yim aoueploode Ul payussald S|y 8inpayos

€08'16S $§ 6/9C¢ $ 28€8 $ 806.L $ T6C9C $ veE€C9c $  €9v'zk $  99520L $ €9l $ /8906 $ 62€S  $ 0202 ‘1€ Yyotep ‘enjen 300q 1N

oLL'ovz 857’61 0ty zes 996'C 09902 86C'¢C S612. /76'8 25219 - 0202 ‘1€ uoten
‘uoneroaidap pajeinwnode [ejo |
(ov2) (z¢) - - - - - (r12) - - - pauel uoneroside
GG1'€T ¥80'¢ 62y Lee 995 LIS 018 10.'8 £v8 riv'y - uoperoaida(
L0z'eee 90%'91 €16'C 102 00¥'c 68099 881’ 20.'€9 ¥01'8 8£8'65 - 6102 ‘| Iudy ‘soueleq
co_um_om._nm_u palenwinady
€15'8¢€8 1E1°CY ¥8.'C1 ovv'8 852’62 ¥66'2€€ 192'Gl 19.'v11 oll'ze 6E6'1761 62€'S 0202 ‘L€ Uolen ‘@oueleq
(18v) (ze) - - - - - (671) - - - slesodsi@
9G6'0€ 76L'S - 601'e €L 099'9 961'G Mg €9 260't - suonppy
8e0'808 $ 1/€9¢ ¢ v8LCL $ 1e0s $ Gges9c ¢ vee'oce $ S9s0L $  69L%TLL $ L9vle $ Liv8'OBL 0§ 628G 0§ 1800
610z ‘| Indy ‘eoueleq
1800
209's8S $ Sh0Gc $ 696.L $ 008, $ ¢S8/Cc $ 2ZeCloz $ cell $ 96S'S6 $  6Sk'El $ ¥E8lcL $ €80 § 1202 ‘1€ YdIe ‘anjeA yooq 3aN

868892 ¥09'02 Gl8'Y €96 18G'E 282'S. zze'y €v0'18 ¥18'6 ¥.G'89 - 1202 ‘1€ YoIen
_cozm_ow._amb pajejnwnade [ejo |
(ev9'2) (v05°2) - - - (z1) - (1e) (o) (19) - paupas uonerosideq
1£8'%2 089°c ely LeY GL9 629t 26 6.8'8 168 £8e'y - uoneroside
oLL'9ve 85’61 o'y z€s 996'C 099'0L 862'€ G61'2L 116'8 25279 - 020Z ‘| Iudy ‘@oueleg
:O_«N_ow._n_wn. paje|nuNddy
00S 'S8 6v9'SY ¥8.'C1 £9/'8 eey'Le ¥15'9¢e€ ¥G6'Gl 6£9'9/ ) €/2'¢C 807'96 ) €80'L 1202 ‘L€ Yd24e\ ‘@2ueleg
(1ve'e) (115°2) - - - (01p) - (er1) (221) (o) - siesodsiq
8z¢'6l £20'9 - gze GLlL' 0€6' €61 166'L ove'l 66S'L ¥SL'L suomppy
€ls'ge8 $  eley ¢ ¥8LZL $ ovk'e  $ 8szez $ veé'ZEE  $ L9LGL $ 19Lv/L $ Oll'ez $ ee6veL  $ 628G $ 1800
020Z ‘| Iudy ‘@ouejeg
3s09

|ejol juswdinba swie)sAs SIEEN] sleJsje w)sAs wawdinba juswdinba wawdinba sjusweroidwl  pueT
ylom |lews pue uonos|j0) vYavos juswieal ] Buidwng pue
pue s|oo | yosjolay salnonis

19]eMa]Sep

V 9Inpayos

(spuesnouy ur) |.Z0Z ‘L€ YOIe\ Papua Jea
991AJ8s ul jue|d Ajji3n jJo anpayoss

uoISSIWLWOY J3)Je\A [euoiBay xejljeH




1574

"uoneroaidap J0j SOAI| [NJOSN Ul SPOUBIBYIP PUB SIOSSE UIeLIdD JO uoieziusuodwoo ‘sjesse ajqibuelul J0 uoISnjoxa 0} anp YoogpueH gyYNSN dY} Wols S1ayip Sy4| Jopun 8aiaues i jueld Annn

"YoogpueH gYYNSN @4} Yim aoueploode Ul payussald S|y 8inpayos

/PL'0EE L $  68G'62C $  €08'L6S $  GG/'80G 0202 ‘L€ Y24e|\ ‘anjeA }ooq }aN
6lS'vEE’L $ 868°L2C¢ $  Z09°G8S $ e6L0les 1202 ‘LE Y24eN ‘anjeA yooq }aN
|ejol l3)jemuio}g  13)emajsepy 13)e 991A19s ul jueld A3 pn aanenwWN)
685'622$ 890'¢ $ €65'Y veL'Liz $ 00.'0L $ 123 0202 ‘L€ Y2UE "anfeA 3004 JeN

0v.'6S 69Y'C 165 20L'vS 2.6l - 0202 ‘L€ yoien
‘uoijeroaldap pajeinwinaoe [ejo |
- - - - - - padJnjel uoneloaldaq
vze'L 285 201 62¢'9 Lz - uoneroaideq
91s'zs 188°L S6v €/8'8y 192°L - 610z ‘L [Hdy ‘oueleg
uoljeloaidep pajeinwnody
62£'68C 1€G°S 06L'S 968'59¢ 2.9'CL e 0202 ‘L€ YyoIe ‘ooueeg
- - - - - - sjesodsiq
0€8'LL G00'L vl sec'yl ovP'e - suonippy
667'122$ zes'y $ ov0's 199'lsz $ 9zz'oL $ e 100
610z ‘'L udy ‘2oueleg
1800
868°,22$ 0L'e $ 119V €/1'60c  $ G/t'0L $ cly L20Z ‘L€ Ud4e\ ‘@njeA 3o0d }aN

€60°29 0/6'C €0/ zLe’L9 802'C - 1202 ‘L€ Yyosen
.:o_«m_om‘_amﬁ paje|nwnode |ejo |
(ove) (0g2) - (o1) - - paual uoneroaideq
€65°L LeL 901 02s'9 9eT - uoneroaideq
ov.L'es 69Y'C 165 20L'vS 2.6l - 020z ‘| IMdy ‘eoueeq
:o_um_owhaov paje|nuinNddy
166'V62 9/0'9 v.€'S §8€'0./C €89'CL VA4 1202 ‘L€ YdJe\ ‘@ouejeg
(0zs) (0g2) - (062) - - slesodsiq
z8lLe 69/ 8l 6LL'Y L 6ey SuonIppY
62£68¢$ 1€G'G $ 06l'G 968'G9z  $ z.9'Tl $ ve 100
020z '} |udy ‘@oueleq
3so)

lejo L SWIB)SAS |lews s|eJaje] wa)sAs sjuswanodwl pue’
pue yosjolay uopo8||0D pue
saJinjonus

Jlajemwiols

V 9Inpayos

(spuesnouy ur) |.Z0Z ‘L€ YOIe\ Papua Jea

ao1AJ9s ul jueld Ajin jo anpayosg
uoISSIWLWOY J3)Je\A [euoiBay xejljeH




Halifax Regional Water Commission

Schedule of long term debt
Year ended March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

Schedule B

Interest rate
Payable to Municipal Finance Corporation
Water

Debenture 30 A 1

Payable to Halifax Regional Municipality
Wastewater/Stormwater

Debenture 24 B 1
Debenture 34 B 1

Less: debt issue costs

Less: amount payable within one year

1.330% t0 2.979%

Debenture 31 A 1 1.630% to0 4.221%
Debenture 32 A 1 1.636% to 3.480%
Debenture 32 C 1 1.510% to 3.160%
Debenture 33 A 1 1.330% to 2.979%
Debenture 33 B 1 1.285% to 3.614%
Debenture 34 B 1 1.200% to 3.190%
Debenture 35 A 1 1.040% to 2.894%
Debenture 36 A 1 1.150% to 2.925%
Debenture 36 B 1 1.150% to 2.506%
Debenture 37 A 1 1.734% to0 3.073%
Debenture 38 A 1 2.060% to 3.295%
Debenture 38 B 1 2.490% to 3.389%
Debenture 39 A 1 2.015% to 2.561%
Debenture 40 A 1 0.678% to 1.879%
Wastewater
Debenture 30 A 1 1.330% to 2.979%
Debenture 32 A 1 1.636% to 3.480%
Debenture 32 B 1 1.380% to 3.156%
Debenture 32 C 1 1.510% to 3.160%
Debenture 33 A 1 1.330% to 2.979%
Debenture 33 B 1 1.285% to 3.614%
Debenture 34 A 1 1.245% to 3.347%
Debenture 34 B 1 1.200% to 3.190%
Debenture 35 A 1 1.040% to 2.894%
Debenture 36 B 1 1.150% to 2.506%
Debenture 37 A 1 1.734% to 3.073%
Debenture 38 B 1 2.490% to 3.389%
Debenture 39 A 1 2.015% to 2.561%
Debenture 40 A 1 0.678% to 1.879%
HHSP
Debenture 39 A 1 2.015% to 2.561%
Stormwater
Debenture 33 A 1 1.330% to 2.979%
Debenture 33 B 1 1.285% to 3.614%
Debenture 34 B 1 1.200% to 3.190%
Debenture 35 A 1 1.040% to 2.894%
Debenture 36 B 1 1.150% to 2.506%
Debenture 37 A 1 1.734% to 3.073%
Debenture 38 B 1 2.490% to 3.389%
Debenture 39 A 1 2.015% to 2.561%
Debenture 40 A 1 0.678% to 1.879%

2.840% to 5.940%
1.200% to 3.190%

Final Maturity

2020
2021
2022
2022
2023
2023
2024
2025
2026
2026
2027
2028
2028
2029
2030

2020
2022
2022
2022
2023
2023
2024
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

2029

2023
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

2024
2024

Balance Remaining

2021 2020

- $ 175

150 300
400 600
6,440 6,977
6,573 7,079
4,818 5,189
9,571 10,254
10,100 10,774
1,200 1,400
3,471 3,688
2,975 3,150
1,100 1,300
5,400 5,700
10,450 11,000
12,000 -
- 1,870

1,438 1,558
19,200 20,800
2,757 2,987
10,959 11,802
7,080 7,625
3,898 4177
6,010 6,439
10,583 11,288
1,450 1,541
5,185 5,490
5,760 6,080
14,250 15,000
9,100 -
5,850 6,500
351 378
1,715 1,847
4,132 4427
2,423 2,584
722 766
340 360
2,340 2,470
3,800 4,000

5,600 -
199,591 187.575
22,000 27,500
4,000 5,000
26,000 32,500
225,591 220,075
(926) (929)
224,665 219,146
(20,559) (21,184)
204,106 $ 197,962

24



Halifax Regional Water Commission Schedule C

Schedule of earnings
Year ended March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

Water
2021 2020
Operating revenues
Water $ 47,631 $ 47,918
Public fire protection 7,336 7,074
Private fire protection 1,001 881
Other operating revenue
Bulk water stations 318 300
Customer late payment fees 155 207
Miscellaneous 204 162
56,645 56,542
Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment 9,987 9,573
Water transmission and distribution 12,031 10,843
Engineering and information services 3,654 3,230
Regulatory services 1,091 859
Customer services 2,614 2,520
Administration services 3,620 3,536
Depreciation and amortization 10,879 9,818
43,876 40,379
Earnings from operations before financial and other
revenues and expenditures 12,769 16,163
Financial and other revenues
Interest 127 222
Other 572 544
699 766
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 2,028 1,828
Repayment of long term debt 5,331 4,722
Amortization of debt discount 74 64
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 5,498 5,078
Other 43 32
12,974 11,724
Earnings for the year $ 494 § 5,205

Schedule C is presented in accordance with the NSUARB Handbook.

25



Halifax Regional Water Commission Schedule C
Schedule of earnings
Year ended March 31, 2021 (in thousands)
Wastewater
2021 2020
Operating revenues
Wastewater 69,605 70,494
Other operating revenue
Leachate and other contract revenue 416 453
Septage tipping fees 486 514
Over strength surcharge 1 14
Airplane effluent 33 98
Customer late payment fees 118 123
Miscellaneous 163 141
70,822 71,837
Operating expenditures
Wastewater collection 14,467 13,963
Wastewater treatment 20,623 20,633
Engineering and information services 4,187 4478
Regulatory services 1,385 1,432
Customer services 2,189 2,277
Administration services 2,965 3,024
Depreciation and amortization 15,019 14,038
60,835 59,845
Earnings from operations before financial and other
revenues and expenditures 9,987 11,992
Financial and other revenues
Interest 55 191
Other 176 155
231 346
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 4,405 4,706
Repayment of long term debt 13,242 12,522
Amortization of debt discount 117 110
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 386 -
Other 26 35
18,176 17,373
Loss for the year (7,958) (5,035)

Schedule C is presented in accordance with the NSUARB Handbook.

26



Halifax Regional Water Commission Schedule C
Schedule of earnings
Year ended March 31, 2021 (in thousands)
Stormwater
2021 2020
Operating revenues
Stormwater site generated service $ 5127 $ 5,361
Stormwater right-of-way service 3,835 3,835
Other operating revenue
Customer late payment fees 38 81
Miscellaneous 102 94
9,102 9,371
Operating expenditures
Stormwater collection 4,762 4,808
Engineering and information services 440 728
Regulatory services 1,505 1,490
Customer services 278 370
Administration services 482 484
Depreciation and amortization 1,512 1,222
8.979 9,102
Earnings from operations before financial and other
revenue and expenditures 123 269
Financial and other revenues
Interest 33 99
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 685 610
Repayment of long term debt 1,806 1,475
Amortization of debt discount 18 13
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 67 -
2,576 2,098
Loss for the year $ (2420) $ (1,730)

Schedule C is presented in accordance with the NSUARB Handbook.

27



Halifax Regional Water Commission Schedule D
Schedule of earnings
Year ended March 31, 2021 (in thousands)
Regulated activities
2021 2020

Operating revenues
Water
Wastewater
Stormwater
Public fire protection
Private fire protection services
Other operating revenue

Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment
Water transmission and distribution
Wastewater collection
Stormwater collection
Wastewater treatment
Engineering and information services
Regulatory services
Customer services
Administration services
Depreciation and amortization

Earnings from operations before financial and other
revenues and expenditures

Financial and other revenues
Interest
Other

Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt
Repayment of long term debt
Amortization of debt discount
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes

Loss for the year

Schedule D is presented in accordance with the NSUARB Handbook.

47,631 $ 47,918

69,605 70,494
8,962 9,196
7,336 7,074
1,001 881
1,061 1.085

135,596 136,648
9,970 9,541

12,031 10,843

14,421 13,939
4,762 4,808

20,060 19,892
8,281 8,436
3,981 3,781
5,026 5,128
7,029 7,007

27,392 25,060

112,953 108,435
22,643 28,213
215 512

88 143

303 655
7,118 7,144
20,379 18,719
209 187
5,951 5,078
33,657 31,128
(10.711) $ (2,260)

28



Halifax Regional Water Commission Schedule D
Schedule of earnings
Year ended March 31, 2021 (in thousands)
Unregulated activities
2021 2020
Operating revenues
Septage tipping fees 486 % 514
Leachate treatment and contract revenue 416 453
Airplane effluent 33 98
Other operating revenue 38 37
973 1,102
Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment 17 32
Wastewater treatment 563 741
Wastewater collection 46 24
Customer services 55 39
Administration services 38 37
Depreciation and amortization 18 18
737 891
Earnings from operations before financial and other
revenues and expenditures 236 211
Financial and other revenues
Other 660 556
Financial and other expenditures
Other 69 67
Earnings for the year 827 $ 700

Schedule D is presented in accordance with the NSUARB Handbook.

29



Halifax Regional Water Commission Schedule E

Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board information
Year ended March 31, 2021 (in thousands)

Return on rate base 2021 2020
Rate of return on rate base for water Service 1.99% 3.15%
Rate of return on rate base for Wastewater Service 3.09% 3.87%
Rate of return on rate base for Stormwater Service 0.09% 0.50%

Return on rate base is calculated based on earnings from operations before financial and other revenues and expenditures
divided by the net book value of funded utility plant in service.

Special purpose reserves

Regional Regional
Wastewater Development Development
and Charge Charge Other
Stormwater Water  Wastewater Capital 2021 2020
Reserves Reserve Reserve Reserves Total Total
Reserve, April 1 $ 7,004 $ 2350 $ 36,239 $ 408 $ 46,001 $ 45,150
Contributions and interest - 775 14,491 200 15,466 12,495
Expenditures (5,040) - (2,371) - (7,411) (11.644)
Reserve, March 31 $ 1964 $ 3125 $ 48,359 $ 608 $ 54,056 $ 46,001
Summarized consolidated operating results 2021 2020
Operating revenues $ 136,569 $ 137,750
Operating expenditures 113,690 109,326
Earnings from operations before financial and other
revenues and expenditures 22,879 28,424
Financial and other revenues 963 1,211
Financial and other expenditures 33,726 31,195
Loss for the year $ (9.884) $ (1,560)

The NSUARB approved a transfer of up to $5,040 to cover the current year deficit within Wastewater Services. These funds
were transferred from HRM in 2007 as part of the transfer of Wastewater and Stormwater Services.

Schedule E is presented in accordance with the NSUARB Handbook.
30



m 1 woo'}B e0@IunH eoIucIsA 3
¥90¢ 061 06 L1
|jediould

VI ‘VdD ‘JUnH ed1uoiapn

_ ! woo16-eo@Aemyooig wo] 3
1l 18LL L6 C06 L
74 Jauued juswabebu]

VO ‘vd9D ‘Aemyd0.g woy

2oz ‘e aunp

sjnsal jipny
99)ILUWIOY 8dURUI4 pUR JIpNy 8y} 0] Joday

1202 ‘L€ YoJe\ papus Jeak sy} Jo

UoISSIWLIWOY) 19)eAA [euolbay xejijeH

_Yimoub Joj 1ounsul uy

¢ INJIWNHOVLLlVY

1202 ‘L)L dunp uojuioy] juelis) o

pleog Jajepn xejljeH
L'V # INTLI



4

1202 ‘L€ YoJep\ papus 1eah ay) 104 | uoissiwwoD Joje) [euoibay xeylleH
S}|nsal JIpny — 99)IWWIOY doUBUI4 pue JIpny ay) 0} Hoday

Jaye| uojejussaldal Juswebeue Yelq — g xipuaddy

Hodail s Joyipne juspuadapul yelq — Y Xipuaddy

s9dipuaddy

N 0 © ~

sybiybiy — seyepdn |eoluyos |

sJepew a|qenodal JayiQ

SJUSWISIBISSIW Pa}0a1IoduN pue sjuswisnipy
S})|NsaJ pue sysu Ipny

Arewiwns aAnoox3

SJUajuU09



1202 ‘1€ YoIep papus Jeak ay) o4 | uoisswwo) 1ejep) [euoiboy xejeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

1202 ‘21 Auenuga4 uo noA 0} ouspuadapul JNO PaWLIJUOD DM dDUIS doudpuadapul
0} 109dsaJ ypm snjejs ano o} sabueyd ou usaq aAey aiay) 1ey) WIU0D SN

aouapuadapu|

‘palinbau uaym ‘Ayjedpiunyy [euoibay xejeH jo Jpne Jidy) Joy Joypne jusuodwod se
9|04 Jno Buipiebal HNGH 0} SuUoiedIuNWWO [eul Jno 8)3|dwod Im am Ajjeuonippy

1202 ‘21 Alenuga4 uo aapwwo) ddueUl4 pue }ipny ay} o} pajuasaid
ue(d ay} yym aouepiodoe ul Abajess jipne Jno pajnaaxa A||nyssaoons aney apn

sjuena Juanbasqns Buipiebel seuinbui eul{ e

SJBUOISSIWWOY JO pieog Yy} Ag sjuswiale)ls [eloueul 8y} jo [eacsddy e
(seo1puadde ay ui

payoeye usaq sey Jelp e) Jona| uoneuasaidal Juswabeuew paubis jo 1di90dy

sosuodsas Auinbui |ebo| jo 1di9ody e

Aue 1 (1202
‘1z Rep\ Joye sabueyo [eul Aue Joy) sjuswale)s |ejoueul pajepdn jeul jo 1di9oay

11202 ‘€ aunr e se Buipueysino
alom jey) swal Buimoj|o) 8y} Jo uonnjosal uodn podal Jno azjjeuly [IM SAA

"podau sy} Ul pepnjoul 8Je Jpne Jey) JO SHNsal 8y} pue Jsjepn
XBJI|BH JO SIUSWJe)S [BIOUBUL B} JO HPNE Ino pajejdwo Ajjenuelsqns aAey i

JIpNe INo JO sn)e)s

120z ‘e sunr s)nsal pue ABajes;s Jpne Jo uoiedIuNWWOo)

120 'L} aunp SjusLle)s [eloueull LZ0Z ‘L€ YdJe) 8y} Uo odey

1202 ‘2L Aeniged Bujuueld Buipiebal sSUOEOIUNLLLLIOD PUE SUOISSNOSIg

Bujwi] a|qelanllag

:s9|geJanldp Buimoloy ay) apinoid o) pabebus aiom apn

‘sojued payoads asay) uey) Joyjo suoAue
Aq pasn Jo panquisIp 8q 0} papudul JOU SI }| "99ILIWIOD SdUBUIH PUB JIPNY 8y}
JO SN pue uojjew.oul a8y} Joy A|9|0S papualul S| JUBWNJ0P SIY} Ul UOHBWIONI BY ]

"SI9)jew JBY)0 pue sajew|}sod
aAnIsuas ‘sajoljod Bupunodoe jueoyubis ‘SJUBSWSIE)SSIW UO SJUSWWOD SapN|oul
pue sainpadoud Jipne Jo s}nsaJ 8y} Buipueisiapun Ul 99)ILIWOYD JUBUIH PUB JIpNY
B} 1SISSE ||IM UOIBDIUNWWOI SIYL 1202 ‘L€ YdJe\ papua Jeak ayy Joy (,Jarepn
Xejl|eH,) UoISSIwwo) Jae) [euoibay Xejl[eH 4O Sjuswale)s [ejoueul) 8y} Jo Jpne
ano BuipseBas noA ypm anbojelp uado ue uy abebus o} s| podal siy} jo asodind ay

adoos pue Jodau Jo asodind

Alewwins aAIlN2axg



1202 ‘1€ YoIep papus Jeak ay) o4 | uoisswwo) 1ejep) [euoiboy xejeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

‘sjosse

pPaINQUIUOD BY} JO 81| 8Y} JBA0 8WooUl Ul pazjubooal pue [e)ded painguuod
pauisyap se pajussaid ale uoneoidde syj uj paOUSISS] SOAISSAI

|eloads ay] "painoul s}s09 |enjoe pue pableyo sajel wolj paziuboosl
sjunoLWe 8y} Ul pajosjal Se Uey) Jaylo sjuswialels [ejoueul) sy uo joedw ou
pey uonesidde ay; jo edw sy} ‘Buipodal [ejoueuly SY4| Jo sasodind Jo4

*/002 Ul Je)ep\ XejljeH 0} sjesse |NYH JO Jajsuel) sy} oy pajesio

sonI9sal [e1oads Jo asn ayy ybnodayy 1.z0z/020g 104 Hoyap Buipuny uol|jiw

G$ pejoadxe ayj Jonod 0} }senbai e se [[om Se S}S02 Jayjo pue ‘[ejded ‘s3soo

uonesado ul uononpai psuueld pspnjoul gYYNSN @y} 0} uoneoldde sy

‘Hodal 0} sbuipuly ou aney S

NHH

"sjuswWwiale)s [eloueUl 8yj Ul papnjoul 10 sjuapisal 8y} uo ojwepued ayy jo Joedwi 8y} Jo uoubooal Ul 1Z/0202

s|NPayYos GYVYNSN Pale|al pue sjuswae)s [eloueul ay) uo g9vYNSN [eosl Jo} Sajel JojeMa}Sem Ul 8Sealoul ou pue (zz/1.20Z Pue 12/020Z

ayy 0} uonesdde ayy jo yoedwi ayy pasapisuod pue ojwapued 6L-AIAOD [eOsl) sJeak g 1o} sajel Jajem U] sesealou| ajel ou aq a1ay} jeyl g4VNSN
ay} jo Joedwl ay) 0} Bune|al saINsojosIp s jusWwiabeuew paulliexa 9\ 9y} O} PaPUSWIIODS JBJEA XeylieH ‘Oiwapued 61-ajAOQD 8U} JO }Nsal e sy 61-dIAOD jo 1oedw]|
sBuipuiy pue asuodsai anQ 195N SNJ0j JO Baly

sasuodsal pue sysu Jpne uo joedwi gL-4IAOD

"SNo0} JO seale Jaylo pue saonoeld Buunoooe ‘suooesuel) JUedyubls ‘sesuodsal pue sysi Jipne uo syoedwl 6L-QIAQD 0 10adsal ul sBuipul yueoyiubis Jno ybiybiy apn

s}|nsaJ pue SysLl Jipny



€

1202 ‘1€ YoIep papus Jeak ay) o4 | uoisswwo) 1ejep) [euoiboy xejeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

"Hoda. 0} sBulpul ou eAeY SN

“Jeak ayy Bulinp palnoul
suolppe 10} Joddns Jayjo 10 SB2I0AUl PaUIWEeXS ‘SISed }s8) B UQ  °

‘sjosse
[eyded 0} suonIppe JOA0 S|0JjU0D JO SSeudAloaye Bunelado ay) peyse]

:Buimojjoy sy} pswiopad apn

'sjo09(oud |eydeo
paje|dwoo pue Bujobuo o} suopippe paseyaind ul uoliw GG$ Ajejewixoidde
pue Buiobuo syosfoid |eyded Jueoyubis pey Jejepn xejieH ‘Jesk ayy buung

s108foid [eyiden

‘Woda. 0} sBuipul ou eAey 9\

‘uonesodio)
aoueul [ediounpy B1309S BAON 8y3 pue Ajjediounyy jeuoibey
XejlleH yum igap Buipue}sino Jayjo |le yum Buole seduejeq sy} pawliuo) ©

‘JusWwaalbe ainjuagep Mau 8y} paulwexy o

:Buimojjoy sy} pawiopad apn

--sy08foid 8y jo uone|dwod

[enue)sqns Jaye eolAles i jueld Ayjin 0} suonippe L.z0z/0Z0g dup jo uotuod
e punj 0} pue ainjusgep snojasad e uo juswAed uoojeq e Bupueuy-al Jo
asodind 8y} Jo} uol|jiw £ 9Z$ JO JUNOLWE 8y} Ul NSS| 8INJUSJSP UOISSIWLWOD
soueuld [ediounjy ayy ui pajedioned Joje A\ XeylieH ‘020Z UoJeN Ul

198p MaU JO 8ouenss|

sBuipuyy pue asuodsai anQ

191)eN

SN20j JO Baly

suoloesuel) Jueoyiubig



4

1202 ‘1€ YoIep papus Jeak ay) o4 | uoisswwo) 1ejep) [euoiboy xejeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

‘Hodau 0} sbuipuly ou aney o

"ploysauiyy Ayjeusyew
118y} pue Aienjoe s Jajep\ XejljeH Jo 8ouapuadapul 8y} pawliuo) ©

pue !yI0M Ji1ay}
J0 @ouewuopad ayy ur Aienjoe ey Aq pasn ejep auj jo bupyse) pawiopsd °

‘UOJJeWLIOU| }o¥IeLl pue suolje}oadxe 0} paseduwod
se uopeniea ay} ur pasn suopdwnsse Jo Ajjiqeuoseas passassy

‘9}2IN00. BIE SJUBWIBIE)S
|eloueUl S JoJe A\ XeleH Ul pasojosip pue papodal sjunowe paylap

‘Aenjoe
juspuadapul sJeiep) XellleH Aq pasedaid podal uonenjea ayy paujwexy e

:Buimoljo} sy pawopad apn

"1202 ‘L€ yoIepy e se pajejodesixe
s)insal 8y} Yim g10Z ‘L Aenuer je pswlopgad Sem Uopen|ea |} v

‘[101Aed JO % e 0 SeINqUIuU0 JSJe AN XejlleH

‘sBujuies sieak uenss 3seq pue 99jAI8s Jo Yibus| uodn paseq suoisuad
sopinold uejd uoisuad ay] "S}yOUSQ 82UBINSU] PUB Y}[eay Jusialfel
-1sod siayjo pue ueld uoisuad JiJsuaq pauliep e sulejulew Jalep XeHeH

suonebiqo euaqg aakojdwg

‘Hodal 0} sbuipuly ou aaey S

“Jeak ayy Bulnp palnoul
suolppe 10} Joddns JByj0 10 SB2I0AUl PaUIWEeXS ‘SISed }s8) B UQ °

"99IAI8S Ul Jueld AN pue ssaibold ul Yo Buipnioul ‘sjesse
[eyded 0} suonIppe JOAO S|0JJu0D JO SSeuaAloaye Bunelado ayj peyse] °

:Bumol|o} sy} pawopad SN

*0}0 ‘SOAI| |NJOSN JO UONKBLISS ‘SI9SSE JO UoledlIsse[o punole suawbpn(
SOAj0AUl 891A18S Ul Jued Ayin Joy Bununodoe se aandadsiad Bupodal
[BIOUBUI} B WO POAJOAUL YSU B S| 81ay] “Jeak ay) Jnoybnouy) sjosfoid |eyded
Bujobuo Auew pue jueid Aypn ul 8oueeq Juediubis e sey Jajep) xeeH

sointes Ul jueld Ajinn

"Hodal 0} sBuipulj ou eAey 9

‘uopebiseaul
JBYIN} 104 pPNely 10 101D JO BAIeDIpUl 89 ABW jey) suonenionyy Ayiuspl
0} paziuboosl anusAal J1aA0 sainpacold [eonAjeue sAjueISqNS paullopad ©

‘Buisseo0id pue uoio9||09 ElEP
Jajow pue dn j8s Jawoisno Buipnioul ‘paziubooal anusAsl JO 89us.INd20
pue Aoeinooe ayj JOAO S|0J3U0D JO SSBULBANOaYS Bunelado ay) peysa] °

:Buimojjoy sy} pawiopad apn

‘onoadsiad Bupodal [eroueul e woly ysu juedyubls e 0} spes)
yolym sseoo.d b 8} Ul suopoesuel) Jo Jaquunu Juedylubis e aie alay]

snusAsy

sBujpuyy pue asuodsai 1nQ

191)eN

SN20j JO Baly

"99J)ILIIOY SdUBUI4 PUE JIPNY 8U} O} 8}EDIUNWIWIOD O} 8Yi] PINOM M sBuIpuly PUB SIB)jeW pajejal 8y} PUe ‘Snooy Jo seale Jo Arewwns e si Buimo)jo) eyl

SN20J JO sealy



[+ 1202 ‘1€ YoIep papus Jeak ay) o4 | uoisswwo) 1ejep) [euoiboy xejeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

"slajjew 2INsSojosIp JO SjuaLBleISSIW [elAL}-UOU pajsnipeun Aue Ajjuspl jou pip Jpne InQ

sJe)jew aInsojosIp Jo Alewwng

‘SjusWale)s
(Z1) $ 9 $ (96) $ 101 $ [eouBUY By} Uo papodal Jou sasea] 9] Sy Jo uondope o pedu)
sbujuieg Anb3 saiger sjossy uopduoseqg

10948 awodu| }93ys aouejeg (s000, u1) (-19) / 1@

"MO|9q PaJOU SJUSWD)B)SSIW [BIAL}-UOU pajsnipeun ay} payiuspl Ipne InQ
Sjuswaje]Ssiw paloaliodun)
"sa4npa20id JIpNe INo JO NSl B Se sjuswalelssiw pajsnipe ou aiem aisy |

sjuswisnipy

sjuawaje}ssiw
pajoaliooun pue sjuawisnlpy



9 1202 ‘1€ YoIep papus Jeak ay) o4 | uoisswwo) 1ejep) [euoiboy xejeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

"SUOIIBAIBS]O Bjgenodal Aue Ayjuapl Jou pIp @M ‘JPNE INo JO S}NSaJ 8y} Uo paseq

"|oJ3u0d [eusdlul Uo aduelnsse apiaoid 0} paubisap Jou S| JIpNe Juswalels

[BloUBUY B ‘JOASMOH JUBDIIUBIS JOPISUOD M SBIDUSIOIBP 9SOY} 93))IIIWOD
9dUeUl{ PUE }IpNY 8y} 0} S)edIUNWIWOD O} SN a1inbaJ spiepuels Bupipne ay)
‘Buiodal [eloueuly JOAO [0JJU0D [BUIBIUI INOA Ul ADUBIOISP B JO S1emE SW099( oM |

"[0J3UO0D |BUIB)UI JO SSBUDANDBYS ay} uo uojuido ue ssaidxa Jou op am ‘A|Buipioddy
"}JOM JNO JO JUdIXd pue Bujwi) ‘8injeu ay} sulwIS}ep 0} pue jJipne ayy ued o}
Aiessadou jJuaxa ay) 0} Buiodal [ejoueuly JOAO [04U0D [euldlul Jo Bulpuelsiopun ue
uIe}qo ap\ ‘sjuawajle)s [ejoueuly 8y} uo uojuido ue ssaidxa o} paubisap s| Jpne ay |

|0JJUOD |BUIB)U|

sia)jew a|qeliodal 18y3i0



L

1202 ‘1€ YoIep papus Jeak ay) o4 | uoisswwo) 1ejep) [euoiboy xejeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

120z ‘21 Auenuga4 uo podas Buluue|d sy yym sapiwwo) ayy
0] pajuasald asoy) jJdooxa ‘Jeak Jualind ay) ul J9)ep) XeleH uo joedwi Juedyiubls
e aAeY pinom ey} splepue)s Bunipne ul sabueyd Aue usaq jou aAey aiay |

2ouRINSSY

‘uondope uodn uoneoydde
9AOBO0J}BI B1InNbal 0} A|9Y1| SI ‘Jonamoy ‘plepue)s [eul Sy} JO 9Sea|al dy} JO djep
BY} WO} S1edA OM} [I3UN 10848 O} Ul SWOD 0} pajoadxa Jou S| pJepuE]S PasIAdL By

‘Juawubije 10} saunuoddo pue sjuswalinbal

Buiuodal ayy 0} sebueyd |enusjod uo a)jeloqe||09 01 GYVYNSN Y} Yim

abebus 0} Ayjunuoddo ue apinoid osje Aew piepuels papuswe ay) Jo dsed|al 8yl
‘pJepuUB}S By} JO UOHEeZI[BUl J1BY} Ul pJeog spiepuels Bujunoddy [euojeulaju)

ay) 0} indu; apinoad 0} SI8Y10 pue sIasn ‘siapjoyaye)s 4o} Ayunuoddo

ue sapinoid pue Lzoz ‘0€ Aine ybnoayl syjuswiwod 1oy uado sulewal sjunoddy
[easajoq Alore|nbay 11 SY4| pepuswe ay) 4o} Yelp ainsodxd panss| Ajjuaodal ay

"L20e

‘Z1L Adeniga4 uo Bujuued Jpne uo suoneduNWWOoD 8y} Jo Jed se aapiwwo) ay)
0] pajasald asoy) jJdooxa ‘Jeak Jualind ay) ul J8)e A\ XeleH uo joedwi Juedyiubls
e 9ABY p|nom jey} spiepue)s Bununodoe ul sebueyd Aue uaaq jou aaey aiay |

Bununoooy

sjybiybiy — sajepdn jeoiuyos)



8 1202 ‘L€ YoJep\ papus 1eah oy 104 | uoissiwwoD Jjep) [euoibay xeylleH

S}nsal JIpny — 99RIWIWIOY doUBUI4 pue JIpny ay) 0} Hoday

'sseo0.1d Buuodal [eloueuly
sJalep\ xejlleH Buieasieno Joj ajgisuodsal ale aoueusanob yum pabieyo asoyl

"0S Op 0} }NQ SAjeuId)|e J1is||eal oU Sey JO
‘suonjelado asead 0} 10 Ja)e A\ Xell|eH dlepinbi| 0} spuajul Jayjie Juswabeuew ssajun
Bununoooe jo siseq uiaouod Bulob ayy Buisn pue uisouod Buloh o) palejas siepew
‘a|geolidde se ‘Buisojosip ‘uJeouod Buiob e se anupuod o) Ayjige sJolepn XelleH
Buissasse lJo} a|qisuodsal si Juswabeuew ‘syjuswalels |epueul ay) Buuedaid uj

*JO1I9 JO pnelj 0} aNp Jaylaym ‘Juslusielssill [elsie Wolj 991y
ale jey) sjuawale)s |eoueul Jo uopeledaid ay) a|qeus o) AlesSseosu SI SaUILLIBIOP
Juswabeuew Se [0JiUOD [eulalul Yons 10} PUB ‘SY 4| YlIM 80UBpIOdOE Ul SJUSWS)e]S
[eloueul 8y} Jo uonejussald Jiey pue uopeledaid sy} Joy o|qisuodsal S| Juswabeuel

sjusawale)s jeidueuly a9y} 10j ddULuI9A0b
yym pabieys asoyj pue juswalbeuew jo sanijiqisuodsay

"120Z ‘1€ yoJep\ papus pouad 8y} Jo) pue je Se 9|0Yym B Se Sjusawiale)s [eloueul)
ay} jo upne ay} jo asodind sy Joj paydde sainpaocosd Bupipne ayy o} payoalgns
ua@ag Sey uoljewlojul yong joogpueH bBuipoday pue Bupunoddy Aljnn J81epn pleogq
M3INDY pue AJ|IN ENodS BAON 8yl UIm aoueptodde ul pajuasald ale 3 ybnoly)
V S9|Npayos ‘SY4| Yyum aodueplodoe ul paiedald se sjoym e Se uaye] Sjuswalels
[eroueul 8y} uo uojuido ue Bujwloy jo sasodind 8y} 40} PAIONPUOD SEM JIpNE INQO

sa|npayoss [ejusawajddns - 1233W IBY}O

‘uojuido uno Joy siseq e apinoid 0y sjeudosdde pue

JUSIDIYNS SI PBUIEIJO DABY SM SDUSBPIAS JIPNE dY} Jey} dA3119q 9\ ‘Sluawalinbal
9S8Y) YiM 9oUBpIOdR Ul Sapjiqisuodsal [EDIY1S JOY}0 N0 Pa||i}in) SABY M pue
‘epeue) Ul SjusWale)s |eldUBUL BU) O }IPNE JNO 0} JUBAS|SJ dJE Jey) sjuswalinbal
[BDIY}® SY} Y}IM DUEBPIOIIE U] B} A\ XBJ[BH JO Juspuadapul aie ap) ‘podal

JNO JO UOII09S SjuUBWIe)S |BIOUBUL BU} JO JIPNY By} Joj sailjiqisuodsay SJ0)pny ay}
Ul paquosap Jayuny a1e spiepue)ls 8soy) Japun sanljigisuodsal InQ ‘spJepuels
Bunipne paydaooe Ajjesauab ueipeue) yym adUeplodde Ul Jipne Jno pajonpuod apA

uoiuido 10} siseg

‘(SY4|) splepue)g Bunoday [eloueul jeuoneulalu]

UlM 80UBPIODO. Ul PapUD USL) Jeak aUj} Joj SMOJ} YSeD S}l pue aouewliopad [ejoueul
S}l PUB ‘LZ0Z ‘L€ YoJe Je se Jajep) XejljeH Jo uoiisod [efoueul ay) ‘sjoadsal
[euajew |le ul Aiey Juasald sjuswa)e)s [eloueul Buikuedwoooe ay) ‘uojuido Ino uj

"sooljod Bununoooe jueoyubis Jo Alewwns e Buipnioul ‘Sjuswale)s [elouBUl U}

0} S8J0U pUE ‘papus Uay} Jeak 8y} Jo} SMojy Yysed pue Aunbe uj sebueyo ‘sbBujuies
aAIsuayaldwoo pue sBujuies Jo sjuswalels ay) pue ‘1zZoz ‘LS YoJel e se
uonisod [eloueul JO Juswa)e)s oy} asudwod yolym ‘(Io}e ) XeyleH,) uoissiuwo)
Jaje ) [euoibay xejljeH Y} JO SlUBWale)s [eloueUl. 8y} pajipne aAeY S\

uoiuidQ

UOISSIIWOY JaJe A\ [euolbay xelleH
8y} Jo pJeog 8y} Jo sIoquialy 8y} 01

JJodau s ojipne Juapuadapul yeid

Vv Xipuaddy



6 1202 ‘L€ YoJep\ papus 1eah oy 104 | uoissiwwoD Jjep) [euoibay xeylleH

S}nsal JIpny — 99RIWIWIOY doUBUI4 pue JIpny ay) 0} Hoday

2oz “ZL sunp

SJUBJUNODDY |BUOISSBJ0.d paIsleyd epeue) ‘xeyl|eH

‘Hpne

Jno Buunp Ajlauapi om Jey) [043U0D [BUISIUI Ul SBIDUSIOLAP Juedyiubis Aue Buipnjoul
‘sBuipuly ypne jueopiubis pue jipne ay) jo Buiwn pue adods pauued ay) ‘siepew
J9y)0 Buowe ‘Buipiebal aoueusanob yim pabieyd asoyl Ylim a1ediunwiuiod SN

‘uonejuasaid Jjey

SOASIYOE. Jey) Jouuew e Ul SJUSAd pue suonoesuel) BulAgepun ayy Juasaidal

SJUSWIAJE]S [BlOUBUY BY} JBYIBYM pUB ‘SBINSOISIP dy} Buipnjoul ‘sjuswa)els
[BIOUBUL BY} JO JUSJUOD PUE 84NJONU)S ‘uofjejuasald |[BJOAO By} d)enjens e

"uJaou0d Bulobh e se anuRuod 0} 9SEdI 0}

J9)BAN\ XBJI[BH @SNEd Aew SUORIPUOD U0 SJUBAS a4njny ‘19AemoH "Jodal s Joypne
Ino jo a)ep ay} 0} dn paule}qo 0UdPIAS }IpNE By} U0 pPaseq aJe SUoISNjouod
JnQ ‘"uojuido Jno Ajipow 0} ‘@)enbapeul aie SaINsojoSIp Yons 4l ‘10 Sjuswale)s
[eloUBUL BY) Ul SBINSO|ISIP pajelal ay) 0} Modal s,Jojipne Jno uj uopuaye

Melup 0} palinbal a1e om ‘S}SIXa AJUIeLIDOUN [BLSJEW B ey} 9pNjou0d m

J| "Uleou02 Buloh B Se anuRuod 0} AJljiqe S.JaleA\ XeleH uo ignop Jueoyiubis

1se0 AeW }ey} SUOIIPUOD IO SJUBAS 0} paje|al S)sIXe Ajulepaoun jeusiew

e Jayjaym ‘paulejqo a0UapIAS HpNne 8y} Uo paseq ‘pue Buiunoooe Jo siseq
uJoouoo Buloh sy jo asn sjuswebeuew jo sssusjeudoidde ayy uo spnpuUo) e

‘Juswabeuew
Aq apew sainso|osip pajejal pue sajewn}sa Buunodoe Jo Ssaud|qeuoseal
ay) pue pasn sajoljod Bununoooe jo ssausjeudoidde ay) ajenieag e

"|oAU09 [eulB)UI
s Jo)e\\ XejlleH JO ssauaAnoaye ay) uo uoluido ue Buissaidxs Jo asodind sy
J0J JoU INg ‘saoueIswNo.D ay) ul eyerdoidde ale jey) sainpaooid jipne ubisep
0} J9pJo Ul JIpne 8y) 0} JUeAS|aJ [0JJUOD [eulSlUl JO Bulpue)siopun Ue ulejqQ) e

"|0J]UOD [BUJBIUI JO BPIIIBAO Y} JO ‘suolejuasaidalsiu ‘SUOISSIWLIO

|euonuajul ‘Asabloy ‘uoisn|jod aAjoAul Aew pnelj se ‘Jo41e wody Buiynsal

auo Joy uey} Jaybiy si pnelj wouy Bunnsal Juswajelssiw [euslew e Bunosep

Jou Jo 3su ay] "uojuido no Joj siseq e apiroid o0} ajeldosdde pue jusions

S| 1By} 90USPIAS JIPNE UIB}qO pUe ‘SYSid 8soy} 0] aAlsuodsal sainpaosold

yupne wiopad pue ubisap ‘Jo4Id JO pnely 0} NP JaYldym ‘SjusWalels
[BIOUBUL} BU]} JO JUSWIA]RISSIW [BlIB}EW JO SYSI B} SSOSSE pue Ajjuap| e

:0S[e 9\\ “JIpne 8y} Inoybnouy)
wsiondeys [euoissajold ulejuiew pue Juawbpn| [euoissajold asiojaxa em ‘Spiepue)s
Bunipne paydeocoe Ajjeisusb uelipeue) yym aouepIoode Ul Jipne ue jo Led sy

"sjuslle)s |eloueUl 9S8U) JO siseq 8y} Uo UaXe)

S19SN JO SUOISIDBP JILIOU0DD By} 8oUBN|Ul 0} pajoadxa aq A|qeuoseal pinoo Aay)
‘a)efa.bBe sy} Ul o Aj[enpIAIpUl ‘}l [elIs}el PaIspISU0D a1e pue Jolld IO pnel) Woly
9SLie UBD SJUaWaleISSI)\ "SISIX® }l UBUM Juslualelssiw [eusiew e j0a)op skeme

[Im spepue)s Bunipne paydeocoe Ajjessusb ueipeued Ylim 8oUepI0do. Ul PE}ONPUod
Hpne ue jey) eajuelenBd e jou sijng ‘@oueInsse Jo [9A9] YBIY e S| aoueinsse
a|qeuoseay ‘uoluido Jno sepnjoul jey} Lodal s ojipne Ue anss| 0} pue ‘oo

JO pneJj 0} 8NP Jaylaym ‘JusLus}elssiW [eLslew Wolj 991} 818 9|0UM B Se SjUSLD)e)s
[BIOUBUL B} JOY}OUM JNOde aoueINsSe 9|qeuoseal Ulejqo o} ale saAloalqo JnQ

sjuswajels
leloueuyy ay3 jo Jpne ayj 1oj SaRIIqisuodsal s opny



"SaLewWNS ay) Ul
papN|oul 8Je SUOROe 930D pue pJeod Juediiubls || 'noA o) papiroid ussaq
aAey paltedaid usaq }aA 10U BABY S8INUIW YOIYM 10} sBuijeawl Juadal Jo suoloe

JO sellewiwng "Juswabelus JIpne 8y} Jo Swis) 8y} Ul paalbe se ‘siojoalip
JO S93)IWIWO0D pue ‘SI008IIp ‘SIap|oyaleys Jo sbunasw ay} Jo sanuiw
[le pue ejep paje|as pue spIodal [eloueUl [[e NOA O} 9|ge|leAe Spew aAeY 9\ 'S

uoljeuwLiojul Jo ssauajajdwon

‘syuswaJinbal Buiuodal [eioueul Jisy) Builesw Joj Sjuswiale)s [eloueul) sy}

asn [|m siasn asay] uswabeuew pue (NYH) Aujediounyy jeuoibay xeylleH
‘SJOUOISSIWIWIOD JO pJeog ay) JO SIaquisly ‘pJeog mainay pue A)jiN enoos
BAON :SJasn Buimojjo} oy} 4o} pasedaid usaq aney sjuswalels [eloueul 8yl g

‘Juswabebus Jpne ay} Jo swWia) ay)

ul 0} pealbe se ‘spiepuelg Buioday [eloUBUIH [BUOHREUISIU] UIM 80UBPIODDE

Ul papusa uay} Jeak 8y} o} SMOJ} USeD s} pue suopelado s)i Jo s)nsal

8y} pue LZ0zZ ‘L€ YyoJep 1e se Ajus sy jo uonisod [eroueul ay) ‘sjoadsal
[euajew |e ui ‘Alie} Juasald anoge 0} PalIoel SJUBWSIE]S [ejoueuly 8yl |

sjuawaje)s jeidueuly

‘Jipne anoA Buunp noA 0} spew suopejuasaidal Buimo|oy
3y} ‘120z ‘/1 aunr jo se ‘ja1|aq pue abpaimous| JNo JO }1$8q dY} 0} ‘WJHUOD DA

"sjuswiale)s |eroueul 8y} uo Buikjas uosiad ojgeuoseal e JO UOISIoap Y} aouanjjul
PINOM SjUSWIB)E}S [BIOUBUI) U} Ul JUSWS)L)SSIW JO WO} UoIsSIWo s) jey) a|qeqoid
S| 41 ‘anjeA Alejouow syl Jo ssa|piebal ‘[elia}ewl paIspisuoo s Wa) Uy ‘[elajew ae
jey} siepew o) paywi| Buleq se paquosep ale Jaya| Iy} Ul suoejussaidal uleps)

‘1sIxa Aue pjnoys ‘sane|nballl 18Yjo pue siole ‘sebenoys

‘pnely ‘aso[osip 0} pajoadxa aq Ajessaoau JI ueod Jou ‘Apyuapl o} paubisep jou

S1)1 ‘S90URISWNDIID By} Ul A1IBSS909U PalapISUOD NOA Juaixe ay) 0} elep paje|al pue
S|0J1U0D [BUIB)UI ‘WBYSAS BunuNodoe By} JO UOHBUIWIEXD UB SOPN|OUl YJOMm Jn0A ajiym
1ey} puejsiapun ap\ ‘sjuawalels |eoueuly 8y} uo uojuido ue ssaidxa o) noA ajqeusd
0] se 0s (SyVy9D) spiepuels Bunipne paydedoe Ajjesauab ueipeued yum aduepiodde
Ul paonpuod pue pauue|d sem uoneuiwexa JNoA jey} abpamouyoe am ‘Jayun4

"MO| 8q 0} SH YONS pauiwid}op dABY PUB ‘pned) JO }NSal B Se pajelssiw A|lelalew
9q Aew sjuswale)s [eIDUBULY BY) Jey} YSH By} POSSOSSE 9ABY 9\ "101IS pUB pnel}
109)9p pue juanaid 0} S|0Jlu0D |eusalul jo uopeuswsaldwi pue ubisap 8y} Joj pue
spJepuels Buipoday [eloueuld [BUOIBUISIU| U}IM SDUBPIOIJE U| SJUSWSIR)S [BIoUBUl
ay} jo uoiesedaid ayy Jo} sajIgiIsuodsal IN0 paj|IyNs DABY oM Jey} aBpajmousoe apn

‘splepuels Buiuodey [eloueul{ [BuoljeUIBIU|

UlIM 90UBPJI0DJE Ul JBJBAA XBHIEH JO SMOJ) USeD pue ‘suonelado Jo synsad ‘uonisod
[eloueul 8y} ‘syoadsal [euajew |je ul ‘Alie) Juasald sjuswa)els |eloueUl 8y} JaYlaym
0} se uojuido ue Buissaidxa jo asodind ay) 4o} ‘papud uay) Jeak ay) Joj pue

'120T ‘L€ UdIe| JO se (JIBYepn Xeyl|eH,) uoiSsiwwOog Jajep\ [euoiBay xejjeH auy) jo
SJUSWIALE]S |BIOUBUL BU} JO JIPNE JNOA YlM UoROauu09 Ul Japa) siy) Buipiaold aie ap

IS JeaQ

VO ‘VdO “Aemyooig woy I\ :uonuaPy
630 rcd SN ‘xejijeH
19211 UOYRID G/9]

0001 SYNS ‘JOMO] YLON ‘2.Jud) EAON
d77 uojuioy ] Juein

2oz ‘L1 sunp

Ja))9| uonejuasaidal Juswabeuew el

q xipuaddy



"sjuswsle)s |eloueUl 8y} Jo
G 9)J0U 0} J9joy "SjusW)e}s [elouBUl 8y} Ul pajoajal Ajejeudoldde usaq aney
pue g4vNSN 8yl Aq panoidde usaqg aAey sapijigel] pue sjesse paje|nbal ajey

"SOAI| [NJosn s)asse ay) 109)a. Ajadoud
Aoy} 8insud 0} passasse uaag aAeY Sajel uolezuowe pue uojepaldag

‘Juswuiedwi yusuewJsad

B U99( Sey aJay} a1aym sjunodoe ay) ul papiaoad st uoisinold ssoj| ayeudoidde
ue pue ‘paljedw usaqg aAey Aay} 10U JO JBY}BYM BUIWIBISP O] 9|qelaA0Dal

aq jou Aew junowe Buiklied ay) pajeolpul S8duUe}swnalI ul sabueyo

10 SJUBAD JaABUBYM pajen|eAa aie A}jua ay} Jo s)0ooq 8y} uo sajqibuelul Auy

“Jeak sy} BuLNp palindo0 Jey) SUOHEBUIGUIOD SSBUISNJ OU 21oM 818y

"sjusWale)s [eloueUl BY) O} [eLidjew aq pinod abueyo ay) Jo joaye

8} pue wua} Jeau sy} Ul 9Bueyd [Im ajewnse ay) Jey) ajqissod Ajgqeuoseal

S| )1 8Jaym Sajewnsa |[e Buipnjoul ‘Sjuswa)e)s [BIoUBUL 8} Ul paSO|osIp
Alejedoidde usag sey sajuiepaoUN JUsWINSESW [ELISJEW [[e JO 8injeu 8y

‘sjuswale)s [eloueul ayj ul
paso|osip pue painseaw Ajgiendoidde usaq aney suonoesuel) Aued pajejal |y

"ainyn} 8 Ul paziieyded ag 0} pasu pjnom Jo pazijeyded ussq Apealje
10U 9ARY Jey) JajepA XellleH o) BuiBuojeq sjesse |eyded sjqibue) ou aie aiay |

‘SjuaW)e}S |eloueUl) By} Ul
pa1o9|jal ‘[BlouBUL-UOU pUE [BloUBUY Y}og ‘SaRi|Iqel| PUB S}9SSE JO UOIIBOlISSe|d
10 anjen BujAiied ay) 108k Ajleusiew Aew jey) suonuaiul Jo suejd ou aney ap\

"seoue)swnolIR ay) Ul sjeudoidde pue ajgeuoseal
aJe ‘SJUsLWILI.]S [BloUBUL BY) Ul POSO|DSIP PUB paInNseaw Se sjuawnisul
[eloueUl JO san|eA Jiey 8y} je BulALe ul pasn asoy) Buipnjoul ‘sejewse

Bununoooe Bupjew uj sn Aq pasn suondwnsse jueoiubis ay) 1ey) aAd1[@q A

R4

K44

%4

‘0¢

61

‘8l

L

9l

Gl

2INso|oSIp pue Judwainseaw ‘uoniuboosay

"9|0UM B Se Uaye) sjuswisie)s [eloueul ay) o} ‘ejebalbbe ay) ul pue
AllenpiAlpul yioq ‘[el@jewwl a1e s)nsal Jipne — 890 80UBUIH pue Hpny
8y} 0} Loday 8y} Ul papn[oul S8iNpPayds 8y} Ul pazuewwnsS sjuaisie)ssiw
JUSWIS)E)S [eloURUL) PO)OSLIOOUN BU) JO S}OBYS BU) 1BU) 9AdII9q DA\

Vi

‘pned} 108)9p pue JusAaid 0} |0JJU0D [BUISIUl JO BOUBUS)UIEW
pue uonejuswa|dwi ‘ubisep sy} Joy Aljigisuodsal Jno aBpajmouNoe s

"SJ19Y)0 JO sloje|nbal ‘sishAjeue ‘soakojdwa
JauwLo} ‘seakojdwa Ag pajesiunwiwod sjuawale)s |eloueul s AU ayy
Bunoaye pneuy pajoadsns 1o pnely Jo suonebaje Aue Jo abpajmouy ou dAeY SN

‘'SjuawWale)s [eloueuly
3U} UO }08}40 [BIALJ-UOU B 9ABY PINOD PNEl) 8y} 949YM ‘SI8Y}0 JO {|0Jju0d
[eulajul Ul sajoJ Juedlubis aaey oym seakoldwa ‘Juswabeuew BuiAjoAul

Anus ay) Bunosye pneuy pajoadsns 10 pnedj Jo a6pajmous] ou aaey SAA

€l

K1’

N

J0119 pue pneld

"sjuswialels
[eloUBUL BY} JO § B)OU U] POSO|OSIP SB ‘UOIIBIBPISUOD OU JO} SUOROBSURI) pue
suopoesuel} Aiejauow-uou ‘sesjuelend ‘sjuswobuelie Buises| ‘seoiAIes pue
solljigel| ‘sjasse Jo slajsuel) ‘sueo| ‘saseyoind ‘ssjes Buipnjoul ‘suonoesuel)
Aued pajejas pue saied pajejal UMoUY [[e NOA 0} payiuapl aAeY S\

‘aleme ale am Yolym Jjo Bupodal |eioueul JOAO [0JjU0D [BUISIUI
10 uonelado 1o ubisap By} Ul SBIoUBIDOP UMOUY |[B NOA O} PaSO[OSIp 9ABY SN

"$S0| Juabunuod e BuIpIodal JO Siseq aY} Se JO Sjuswalels
[BIOUBUL BY) U] 8INSOOSIP IO} PIBPISUOD 8q PINOYS YdIYM JO S}oaye ay)
suolje|nBaJ Jo sme| Jo suone|oIA 8]qissod Jo SUOH.|OIA AUB JO lemeun aie S\

‘sjuawalinbals Burodal [eloueuly
J1oy) Buipnpoul ‘sanuoyine [eluswuidnob 1o Aioye|nbal jo syuswalinbas ayy
yum aoueldwod-uou Jo saouejsul 9jgeqold Jo umouy Aue Jo alemeun ale dp\

‘uonjew.oul aAlesedwod ay) Joaye ey} sjuswsale)s |eoueul pouad Joud
3} Ul JUBLIS]BISSIW [BLB)EW B 1091100 O} 9peW SjUdWale)sal OU a19m alay |

*Aljua 8y} JO SY00q By} Uo paplodal

aq |Im pue sn Aq panoidde aie noA Agq pasodoud uaaq aney yoiym saljud
jeusnol Bupsnfpe ay] -sjuswajels |eloueul ay) BuliApuapun spiooas Bununoooe
8y} u1 paplooas Apadoid usag Jou aABY Jey} SUOiIOBSURI) [BLIS)EW OU dJE 49y

"90UBPIAD JIpNE Ule}qo 0} AIesSa0au ) pauiwIa}dap NOA Woym Wwo.y
Ajua ay} ulyym suosiad 0} ss820. pajolIsaIun yum nok papinoid aney app

0k



Bupunoooy ‘Jabeuepy
V9 ‘VdD ‘uol|jeas elly

049 / s@dInleg 8jelodio) “1032811Q
VO ‘VdO ‘Uniquoly ep sino-

JabBeuel Jesauan)
a-aodl ‘vood ‘vdod ‘VdlN ‘©[001.0 a1yied

‘Ainuy A1an sinoA

‘NOA 0} PSO[OSIP 10U DABY BM Jey)
Buisuie siepew jueolubls paje|al JaYjo ou ale a1ay] "A|Buipioooe sjuswale)s
[BIOUBUL BY) Ul S2INSO|OSIP JUBIoIyNs papiroid aAeY pue Jojep XeleH uo

1oedw pue ojwepued gL-QIAQD U} JO suonedlduwl 8y} paIspISU0D 8ABY B\ €

"JUspIAS

2Je SUOJIPUOD 10 SJUSAS UYONS OU ey} POPN|OUOD SABY PUB uI182uod Buiob

e se anujuoo o] AJljige s Jele A\ XelleH uo 1gnop 1ueoiiubis 1seo Aew yoiym
1SIXD SUOI}IPUOD JO PBLINOD0 DABY SJUSAS JOU IO JSU}OYM PBISPISUOD SABY AN €S
Lyjo

"S9J0U paje|al pUe SjuBWSle)S [eloueUl)
2s0y} 40 Juswisnipe asnbal pjnom jey) sjuswalels [epueul aAesedwod

3} JO 8)ep 8y} 0} Jusanbasgns SJUBAS OU Usaq 9ARY 8Jay) ‘I8yun4 "SjusWwa)e)s
[eloUBULL BY) Ul 8INSO[OSIp 10 Uoiiubooal alinbal pjnom jey) Joaiay ajep

8y} 0} dn 8jep Jo8ys aoue(eq 8y} 0} Juanbasgns SjUBAS OU Uaa( dABY 818yl "ZE

"Buiunoddy — | ed xoogpueH (epeued YdO)

epeue) JO SjUBJUNOJDY [BUOISSBJ0Id Pataley) ay) Jo siyauag aakojdwg

61 SV| 0 sjuswaiinbas 8y} yym aoueplodde Ul pasO[ISIp PUE JO} PBIUNOIJE
‘paulwlialep udaq aAey suoebl|qo pue ‘s}asse ‘s)sod Jeuaq ainjny 8akojdwg

"919]dwoo pasapisuod ale Aua ay) Aq

papJo2al sjunowe a|geAleoal/Aljiqel 1SH pue 1S9 ayl "suone|nbal jejouiroid
pue |elapa} ay} Yim aoueplodoe Ul ale A)jus ay) Aq paplooal suonoesuel)
(1LSH) xel sajes paziuowleH pue (1S9) Xe] S82IAI8S pue Spoos) ay]

"SjUBsWaE)S [BloUEBUL
8y} Ul g 8|Npayog 0} 4oy ‘1gep Buipuelsino e jo sjuswalinbal Jayjo Jo
SUOIIPUOD 'SJUBUBAOD |[B Buipnjoul ‘eoueljdwoo-uou 4O JUBAS 8y} Ul Sjuswalels
[BIOUBUIL BY) UO J08118 [BLISJEW B SABRY PIN0D Jey) sjuswaaibe |enjoeuod

10 sjoadse ||e ‘yum palidwod sey Aljus ay) pue ‘noA o) paso|osip 8ABY S\

‘|eJaje| |02
se pabpa|d usaq Aue sey Jou s}asse s AIud 8y} U0 SSIUBIGUINDUS JO SUdI| OU
ale aJay) pue ‘sjosse ||e (ul }salajul 9se9| J0) 0} a3} Auojoeysies sey Aius ay

"sjuawiale)s |eroueuly
oy} ul ‘ejendoidde se ‘pasojosip pue painseaw uaaq 9ABY SJUSWHWWOD (9

pue !sjuswalels |eloueul ay) ul ‘ereudoidde se ‘pasojosip
pue painseaw ‘paziubooal usaqg aney salouabunuod Jo sapijigel] (g

‘noA 0} paso|osIp uaaq
Apealje jou aney jey) serousburuod Jo senijigel ou a1em aiay) ‘pus Jeak e (e

'SJa)BW [BJUSWUOIIAUS 0] 108dsal YIAA

‘pus-1eah L zoz ‘LE YoJe ay) Jo} paziubooas usag aney sjuauiedu

ON 'pus JeaA Buodal [eroueul yoes je Juasaid aie juswliedw JO SI0jedipul
Aue J| sossasse Jojep\ XejlleH "9|qeJanodal 8q jou Aew sjasse panl-buoj ayy
10 Junowe BulALIeD 8y} Jey) a1edIpul S9OUBISWINDIID Ul seabueyd J0 Sjuaaa uaym
‘uawuiedw| o} pamalnal aJe sa|qibueiul paAll 8)iul pue s}asse paal| Buo

‘SjuBWa)e)S [eIoUBUL BY) Ul Paoa|jal
Aj91eudoidde aue pue noA 0} pasojosIp usaq aAeY ‘|elo JO USHLIM JBY}aym
‘soajuelenB yum pajeloosse asoy) Buipnjoul ‘saiousbunuoo pue sanijigel| ||V

"SJUBWIS)E]S [BIOUBUL BU) Ul € 0N O} 19joy "SJUSW)e)s [eloueul 8y} Ul
pajosjas Ajgiendosdde ale pue noA 0} pasojosIp usag aAey ‘[9sunod [eba| yum
passnos|p uaag aAey Aay} Jou Jo Jayldaym ‘swield a|qissod pue Buipuelsino ||y

e

0€

‘6C

'8¢

P4

‘9¢

per4

e



J(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4.2

l l \\EJ l(ﬁ']‘ Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission June 17. 2021
9

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board, as Trustees of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan

Digitally signed by Louis

de Montbrun
SUBMITTED BY: X2 To— Dete 2210610

14:00:23 -03'00"

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services / CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: w&/ &be g‘aTtZ:Olzeom .06.10

12:52:55 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager
DATE: June 3, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31,2020

ORIGIN
The Halifax Regional Water Commission Board (the “Board”), as Trustees of the Halifax

Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan (the “Plan”), approves the audited
financial statements for the Plan annually.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Board approve the audited financial statements for the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan for the year ended December 31,
2020.

BACKGROUND

Annually, the Plan’s financial statements are prepared by staff and audited by the
Commission’s auditors, currently Grant Thornton LLP.

The Audit and Finance Committee of Halifax Water, in its meeting of June 3, 2021,
approved the following motion:

Page 1 of 5



ITEM # 4.2

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

“The Audit and Finance Committee recommend that the Halifax Regional
Water Commission Board approve the financial statements for the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan for the year ended
December 31, 2020.”

DISCUSSION

Attached are the audited financial statements of the Plan for the year ended December 31,
2020, with comparative figures for 2019. Page numbers and notes referenced in this report
refer to the audited financial statements.

The auditor has indicated that they are prepared to issue an unqualified auditor’s report.
The auditor’s report, on Page 1, indicates that the financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Plan as at December 31, 2020, the
changes in net assets available for benefits, and changes in pension obligations in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for pension plans.

The statement of financial position for the Plan is reported on page 3 of the financial
statements, and the highlights are summarized in Table 1 below. The surplus as at
December 31,2020 of $13.2 million compares favourably to the surplus reported the prior
year of $8.7 million, representing an increase of $4.5 million. This is the result of higher
reported values at year-end for net assets available for benefits relative to pension
obligations. Net assets available for benefits as at December 31, 2020 amounted to $155.0
million compared to $141.6 million the prior year, an increase of $13.4 million or 9.4%.
Pension obligations increased $8.9 million or 6.7% to $141.7 million as at December 31,
2020, up from $132.8 million in 2019.

Table 1:

Statement of financial position
December 31

Change

2020 2019 | $ | %

Net assets available for benefits (note 4)  $ 154,956,157  $141,579,814  $13,376,343 9.4%

Pension obligations (note 5) 141,762,849 132,840,559 8,922,290 6.7%

Surplus $ 13,193,308 $ 8,739,255 § 4,454,053  51.0%

Page 2 of 5



ITEM # 4.2

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

The statement of changes in net assets available for benefits are reported on page 4 of the
financial statements, with highlights summarized in Table 2 below. As stated previously,
net assets available for benefits as at December 31, 2020 are reported as $155.0 million,
compared to $141.6 million the previous year, representing an increase of $13.4 million
or 9.40%.

Table 2:
Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits
December 31
Change
2020 2019 | $ | %

Revenue $ 12,199,236 § 14,083,715 $ (1,884,479) (13.4%)
Expenses 5,363,136 5,397,997 (34,861) (0.6%)
Increase in Net Revenue 6,836,100 8,685,718 (1,849,618) (21.3%)
Contributions (note 7) 6,540,243 6,435,466 104,777 1.6%
Increase in net assets available for benefits $ 13,376,344  § 15,121,184  $ (1,744,840) (11.5%)

Of the $13.4 million increase in net assets available for benefits in the current year, net
revenue accounted for $6.8 million, with contributions of $6.6 million representing the
remaining balance. Revenue consists of changes in the fair value of investment assets of
$8.6 million, and net investment income of $3.6 million. Compared to 2019, the change in
the fair value of investment assets was lower by $2.0 million, and net investment income
increased $0.2 million. Assets of the Plan are invested as part of the Halifax Regional
Municipality Master Trust, and represent 6.4% (2019, 6.3%) of the Master Trust’s assets.
The Plan’s gross fund rate for 2020 was 7.7% (2019, 10.4%), and the net fund rate after
expenses was 7.4% (2019, 10.1%).

Contributions also factor into the increase in net assets available for benefits. Combined
contributions from employees and Halifax Water are reported at $6.5 million in 2020,
representing a net increase of $0.1 million or 1.6% compared to 2019. The increase is
reflective of new hires, as well as associated increases in remuneration of existing
employees, either through normal pay increases or movements within individual bands.
Required contributions for employees in 2020 and 2019 were 10.34% of pensionable
earnings, with Halifax Water matching employees’ contributions. Further details with
respect to contributions can be found in Note 7 (page 14) of the financial statements.

Page 3 of 5



ITEM # 4.2

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Expenses reduce net assets available for benefits, with retirement benefit payments being
the main driver, representing $4.6 million of the $5.4 million reported in 2020. Retirement
benefit payments increased $0.4 million compared to 2019, and is attributed to 3 (2019,
15) new retirements in 2020, in addition to increases with respect to annual indexing.
Termination benefit payments are also included in expenses and represent $0.7 million of
reported expenses in 2020, representing a decrease of $0.3 million compared to 2019.
Termination benefits were paid in 2020 to 17 former employees (2019, 14). Termination
benefits vary year-over- year, with changes not only related to staff turnover levels, but
also the pensionable service of terminating employees.

The statement of changes in pension obligations is reported on page 5 of the financial
statements and summarized in Table 3 below. The valuation of pension obligations as at
December 31, 2020 was an extrapolation from the actuarial valuation performed January
1,2019.

Table 3:
Statement of changes in pension obligations
December 31
Change
2020 2019 | $ | %

Pension obligations, beginning of year $132,840,559  $124,371,400 $ 8,469,159 6.8%

Interest accrued on benefits 7,738,600 7,248,500 490,100 0.8%
Benefits accrued 6,413,400 6,407,700 5,700 0.1%
Benefits paid (note 8) (5,229,710) (5,187,041) (42,669)  0.8%
8,922,290 8,469,159 453,131 5.4%

Pension obligations, end of year $141,762,849  $132,840,559 $ 8,922,290 6.7%

Pension obligations increased to $141.8 million in 2020 compared to $132.8 million the
prior year, an increase of $8.9 million or 6.7%. Increases to pension obligations came
from two (2) sources, benefits accrued of $6.4 million and interest on accrued benefits of
$7.7 million. Reductions to pension obligations totaled $5.2 million, and represent
expenses related to retirement and termination benefit payments in 2020, described
previous in this report. Further details with respect to pension obligations including
assumptions can be found in Note 5 (page 13) of the financial statements.

Solvency funding is not required as the Plan received a solvency funding exemption
effective June 1, 2015. Currently the ratio of solvency assets to solvency liabilities is
greater than the “solvency concerns” threshold of 85%, under Nova Scotia pension
legislation. Under legislative effective April 1, 2020, should the solvency ratio fall

Page 4 of 5



ITEM # 4.2

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

below the 85% threshold, a full actuarial valuation report would be required every 3
years, and a cost certificate annually. The Superintendent may require a valuation sooner
than the 3 years if deemed warranted. The next actuarial valuation is scheduled for
January 1,2022.

With the outbreak of COVID-19, global equity markets experienced significant volatility
and weakness during the first quarter of 2020. The value of the Plan’s investment assets
declining by approximately 5.1% as at March 31,2020 as compared to December 31, 2019.
Markets recovered steadily during the remainder of 2020, with the Plan’s investment assets
ending the year at $155.0 million., During 2020, the Plan did not experience a significant
impact to operations, or its ability in making benefit payments.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

There are no budget implications associated with the audited financial statements of the
Plan. Budget implications arise from the actuarial valuations.

ALTERNATIVES

None

ATTACHMENT

1. Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Financial
Statements as at December 31, 2020.

2. Report to the Audit and Finance Committee by Grant Thornton.

Digitally signed by Allan

Report Prepared by: MQ ﬁ,&ﬁ,ﬂbfd@ Bate, 2021.06.10

12:56:39 -03'00'
Allan Campbell, B. Comm, CPA, CMA
Manager, Finance (902) 266-8655

Page 5 of 5




ITEM # 4.2

° G ra nt ThOI’ﬂtOﬂ Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021
ATTACHMENT 1

Financial Statements
Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees' Pension Plan

December 31, 2020



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Contents

Independent auditor’s report

Statement of financial position

Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits
Statement of changes in pension obligations

Notes to the financial statements

Page

1-2



Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton LLP

Nova Centre, North Tower
Suite 1000, 1675 Grafton Street
Halifax, NS

B3J OE9

T(902) 421-1734

Independent auditor’s report R

To the Board of Trustees of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees' Pension Plan

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension
Plan, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statements
of changes in net assets available for benefits and changes in pension obligations for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the
financial position of Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan as at
December 31, 2020, and its changes in net assets available for benefits and its changes in pension
obligations for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for pension
plans.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Halifax Regional Water
Commission Employees’ Pension Plan in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for pension plans, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Halifax Regional
Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan’s financial reporting process.

Audit | Tax | Advisory 1
© Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd



o GrantThornton

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’
Pension Plan's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Halifax, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
Date

Audit | Tax | Advisory 2
© Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan
Statement of financial position

December 31 2020 2019
Assets
Investment assets $ 154,762,753 $ 141,509,795
Contributions receivable 223.912 97,120
154,986,665 141,606,915

Liabilities
Payables and accruals

Trade 30,508 27,101
Net assets available for benefits (note 4) 154,956,157 141,579,814
Pension obligations 141,762,849 132,840,559
Surplus $ 13,193,308 $ 8,739,255

On behalf of the Board of Trustees

Trustee

Trustee

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Halifax Regional Water Commission

Employees’ Pension Plan

Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits

Year Ended December 31 2020 2019
Revenue
Net investment income (note 6) $ 3,568,646 $ 3,441,506
Changes in the fair value of investment assets 8.630,589 10,642,209
12,199,235 14,083,715
Contributions (note 7)
Participants 3,310,113 3,463,328
Sponsor 3,230,131 2,972,138
6.540.244 6,435,466
Expenses
Benefit payments (note 8) 5,229,710 5,187,041
Administrative (note 9) 133.426 210,956
5,363,136 5,397,997
Increase in net assets available for benefits $ 13,376,343 $ 15,121,184

Net assets available for benefits, beginning of year
Increase in net assets available for benefits

Net assets available for benefits, end of year

$ 141,579,814

13,376,343

$ 126,458,630

15,121,184

$ 154,956,157

$ 141,579,814

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Statement of changes in pension obligations
Year Ended December 31 2020 2019

Pension obligations, beginning of year $ 132,840,559 $ 124,371,400

Change in pension obligations

Interest accrued on benefits 7,738,600 7,248,500
Benefits accrued 6,413,400 6,407,700
Benefits paid (note 8) (5,229,710) (5,187.041)
8,922,290 8,469,159

Pension obligations, end of year $ 141,762,849 $ 132,840,559

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

1. Description of the Plan

The Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan (the “Plan”) is registered
under the Pension Benefits Act of Nova Scotia (Registration Number 0344614). The following
description of the Plan is a summary only. For more complete information, reference should be
made to the Plan agreement restated as at January 1, 2011 as amended and consolidated, in
addition to Amendment #9 and Amendment #10, both effective January 1, 2016, Amendment
#11, effective retroactively to June 1, 2015, and Amendment #12, effective retroactively to
January 1, 2019.

(@) General

The Halifax Regional Water Commission maintains a contributory defined benefit pension plan
for all employees, and participation in the Plan is compulsory for full-time and part-time
employees. The pension plan provides pensions based upon length of service and best seven
consecutive years’ earnings.

The employees who transferred to the Halifax Regional Water Commission on August 1, 2007
with the transfer of the wastewater/stormwater operations have remained members of the
Halifax Regional Municipality Pension Plan. The Halifax Regional Water Commission is
responsible for funding the employer share of the contributions for these employees. All new
employees hired after August 1, 2007 join the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’
Pension Plan.

(b) Funding policy

Employees’ required contributions in 2020 were 10.34% (2019 — 10.34%) of pensionable
earnings with the Halifax Regional Water Commission matching employee contributions. Basic
contributions from employers and members due to the Plan at the end of the year are recorded
on an accrual basis. Pensionable earnings are capped temporarily to a maximum of $140,945
through 2023 and will be indexed at a rate of 1% per annum thereafter.

In addition, the Plan and the Pension Benefits Act of Nova Scotia require that the Halifax
Regional Water Commission, from time to time, make contributions to the Plan of such amounts
which are required as special payments in accordance with the provisions of the Plan as
determined by the actuary (see note 5).



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

1. Description of the Plan (continued)
(c) Retirement benefits

Employees are entitled to annual pension benefits of an amount equal to 2.0% of their best
earnings averaged over the highest seven consecutive years of earnings for each year of
credited service up to the maximum permitted by the Canada Revenue Agency. For credited
service prior to January 1, 2016, the best average earnings cannot be less than the best
average five consecutive years of earnings paid to an employee prior to 2016.

Benefits are adjusted each year. Adjustments are based on the increase in the Consumer Price
Index over the previous calendar year to a maximum of 2% for benefits earned prior to
January 1, 2016, and to a maximum of 1% for benefits earned after December 31, 2015.

(d) Disability pensions

Disabled employees continue to accrue credited service without having to continue their
contributions. The employer and employees fund the actuarial cost of the pensions for disabled
employees annually. Disabled employees are eligible for a pension if they meet the following
criteria:

a) they have completed 10 years of continuous participation in the Plan;

b) they are not in receipt of a salary continuance benefit under an insured plan to which
the Halifax Regional Water Commission contributes; and

c) they are totally and permanently disabled as certified by a medical practitioner.
(e) Death benefits

In the event a pensioner dies after the commencement of their pension payments, the death
benefit will be in accordance with the normal or optional form of pension elected at the time of
retirement.

In the event a member dies before their retirement date, a survivor pension is payable to the
member’s surviving spouse at the rate of 60% of the member’s pension credits accrued prior to
June 1, 1998. The beneficiary of a single employee who dies before retirement will be entitled to
the member’s contributions and interest up to the month preceding death during that same
period. In respect of pension credits accrued after June 1, 1998, the commuted value of the
normal retirement benefits shall be paid to the member’s surviving spouse, beneficiary or estate
For pension credits accrued between January 1, 1988 and May 31, 1998 whereby a survivor
pension payable to the member’s surviving spouse is calculated as the greater of: 1) 60% of the
survivor pension, or 2) the commuted value of the normal retirement benefits. The beneficiary or
estate of a single employee who dies during this same time period, January 1, 1988 and May
31, 1998, would be entitled to the commuted value of the normal retirement benefits.



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

1. Description of the Plan (continued)
(f)  Termination of employment

Subject to any statutory limitations, Plan members become vested immediately upon joining the
Plan. Vesting previously occurred after two years of Plan membership. Members may elect to
receive one of the following options upon termination:

a) a paid-up deferred pension commencing on the member’s normal retirement date in
an amount equal to the pension accrued to date of termination; or

b) transfer the value of benefit to the member's new employer’s pension plan, a
Retirement Savings Plan, or purchase a deferred annuity.

(9) Voluntary contributions

Members of the Plan may make additional voluntary contributions up to the deductible limit
provided under the Income Tax Act. The non locked-in additional voluntary contributions may be
withdrawn from the Plan by a member prior to termination or retirement, either in the form of a
lump sum cash payment or transferred directly to the member’s Retirement Savings Plan.

Members of the Plan may transfer non locked-in or locked-in benefits from a previous employer.
Non locked-in benefits are administered as outlined in the previous paragraph. Locked-in
benefits can be withdrawn within ten years of the normal retirement date. Upon retirement, the
locked-in and non locked-in contributions may be used to purchase an annuity.

(h) Income taxes

The Plan is not subject to income taxes since it is a Registered Pension Trust as defined by the
Income Tax Act.



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

2. Statement of compliance with Canadian accounting standards
for pension plans and summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
pension plans in Part IV of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA)
Handbook, Section 4600 — Pension Plans. Section 4600 provides specific accounting
guidance on pension obligations and investments, with investments complying with
international financial reporting standards (“IFRS”) in Part | of the CPA Canada Handbook. For
accounting policies that do not relate to either investments or pension obligations, the plan must
consistently comply with either IFRS or Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises
(“ASPE”) in Part Il of the CPA Canada Handbook. The Plan has elected to comply on a
consistent basis with ASPE. To the extent that ASPE is inconsistent with Section 4600,
Section 4600 takes precedence.

(@) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Plan becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are
transferred.

A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Fair value is an
estimate of the amount of consideration that would be agreed upon in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured as described below:

Investment assets

All investment assets are measured at fair value at the date of the statement of financial
position in accordance with IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement Part | of the CPA Canada
Handbook. Fair values of investment assets are determined as follows:

e Pooled funds are valued at the unit value supplied by the Master Trust administrator and
which represent the Plan’s proportionate share of underlying net assets at fair value
determined using closing bid prices.

Transaction costs are not included in the fair value of investment assets either on initial
recognition or on subsequent re-measurement. Transaction costs are included in the statement
of changes in net assets available for benefits as part of expenses incurred in the period.

Investment income, excluding changes in the fair value of investment assets, is presented in
the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits.



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

2. Statement of compliance with Canadian accounting standards
for pension plans and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(@) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

(b) Pension obligations

The Plan is a defined benefit plan established for members. The pension obligations
recognized in the statements of financial position are the actuarial present value of accrued
pension benefits determined by applying best estimate assumptions and the projected benefit
method prorated on services.

(¢) Netinvestment income

Income from investments is recognized on an accrual basis and includes dividend income
(recognized on ex-dividend date), interest income, and is net of investment manager fees.

(d) Changes in the fair value of investment assets and liabilities

This includes both realized gains or losses on sale of investments and unrealized gains or
losses on investments.

Realized gains or losses on sale of investments are the difference between the proceeds
received and the average cost of investments sold.

Unrealized gains or losses on investments represent the difference between the carrying value
at the year end and the carrying value at the previous year end or purchase value during the
year, less the reversal of previously recognized unrealized gains and losses in respect of
disposals during the year.

(e) Contributions

Required employee and employer contributions are recorded the month following when the
payroll deductions are made. Employee and employer contributions, as well as special
payments due to the Plan at the end of the year are recorded on an accrual basis. Cash
received from pension plan transfers or members for service purchases are recorded when
received.

10



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

2. Statement of compliance with Canadian accounting standards
for pension plans and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()  Benefits

Benefit payments to retired members, commuted value payments and refunds to former
members are recorded in the period paid. Accrued benefits are recorded as part of the accrued
pension benefit obligation.

(9) Estimation uncertainty

When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements,
estimates and assumptions about recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses. The actual results are likely to differ from the judgments, estimates and
assumptions made by management and will seldom equal the estimated results. Information
about the significant judgments, estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
effect on the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are
discussed below:

Fair value of financial instruments

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments,
where active market quotes are not available. Details of the assumptions used are given in the
notes regarding financial assets and liabilities. In applying the valuation techniques,
management makes maximum use of market inputs, and uses estimates and assumptions that
are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in
pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best
estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date.

Pension obligations

Management estimates the pension obligations annually with the assistance of an independent
actuary; however, the actual outcome may vary due to estimation uncertainties. The estimate
of the pension obligation of $141,762,849 (2019 - $132,840,559) is based on assumed rates of
retirement, mortality, breaks in service and contributory hours. Discount factors are determined
at or near year-end to reflect the long-term expectation of investment returns that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension obligation.

11



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

3. Investment assets

The investment in the Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust (the “HRM Master Trust”) is
recorded at its fair value. The Plan’s interest in the HRM Master Trust represents 6.39%
(December 31, 2019 — 6.32%) of the HRM Master Trust units. The remaining units are held by
the Halifax Regional Municipality (‘HRM”). The co-mingling of investments does not affect the
actuarial liabilities or the net assets available for benefits of the Plan.

The fair value of the investment in the HRM Master Trust is determined as at the date of the
statements of financial position as described in note 2(a). The fair value of the investment in
the HRM Master Trust is categorized as a Level 2 investment under fair value hierarchy
measurement.

Section 67 (3) of the Pension Benefits Act Regulations requires disclosure of each investment
asset that has a fair value greater than two percent (2%) of the fair value of all the investment
assets of the Plan. The following schedule reports all investments having a fair value greater
than 2% of the fair value of all investment assets of the Plan.

Market
Investment Asset Class value
Wellington Management Global Total Return Fund ~ Foreign Bonds' $ 7,065,663
Putnam Canadian Fixed Income Global Alpha Fund Canadian Bonds' 4,972,698
Wellington Emerging Markets Local Equity Fund Emerging Market Equities’ 4,142,521
UBS (UK) Real Estate Funds Selection Global Ex Limited Partnership 3,667,980
Canada, L.P.
Minto Multi-Residential Income Partners |, L.P. Limited Partnership 3,544,797
Blackrock Active Canadian Equity Fund Canadian Equities 3,344,200
Trinetra Emerging Markets Growth Fund Emerging Market Equities! 3,232,962
1 — Denotes Pooled Fund $ 29,970,821
4, Net assets available for benefits 2020 2019
Allocation of net assets available for benefits
To pension plan $ 154,221,503 $ 140,959,340
To extra voluntary contribution benefits 469,448 373,648
To individual locked in amounts 265,206 246,826

$ 154,956,157 $ 141,579,814

12



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

5. Pension obligations

An actuarial valuation of the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
was performed as at January 1, 2019.

The actuarial value of accrued benefits, determined periodically by the Plan’s actuary, is the
amount that results from applying actuarial assumptions to adjust the Plan benefits to reflect the
time value of money between the valuation date and the expected date of payment. The
significant actuarial assumptions used include:

a) 40% of members will retire at the age of 65, and 60% will retire at the earliest date of
eligibility for an unreduced pension;

b) interest rate assumption of 5.80% per annum (2019 — 5.80%);
c) salary scale assumption of 3.90% per annum (2019 — 3.90%); and

d) life expectancy of participants based upon the CPM-2014 Combined mortality table,
with Scale CPM-B (post retirement), no mortality in pre-retirement.

As a result of the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation, special payments in respect of going
concern liabilities are no longer required. The next actuarial valuation for the Plan is required to
be performed no later than January 1, 2022.

6. Net investment income 2020 2019
Income from investment funds $ 3,763,614 $ 3,644,079
Investment manager fees (194.968) (202,573)

$ 3,568,646 $ 3,441,506

13



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

7. Contributions 2020 2019
Participants’ contributions
Required $ 3,230,131 $ 3,393,051
Voluntary 79,982 70,277
$ 3,310,113 $ 3,463,328
Sponsor’s contributions
Required $ 3,230,131 $ 2,972,138
8. Benefit payments 2020 2019
Retirement benefit payments $ 4,552,474 $ 4,226,855
Termination benefit payments 677,236 960,186
$ 5229710 $ 5,187,041

During 2020, there were 17 termination benefit payments (2019 — 14). Termination benefits are

paid out as described in note 1(f).

9. Administrative expenses

Actuarial and consulting fees
Audit and accounting fees
Bank custodian fees
Insurance

Miscellaneous

Professional fees
Registration fees

2020 2019

$ 42,143 $ 118,659
8,648 8,530

30,479 28,636

9,636 8,760

16,724 20,610

23,151 23,261

2,645 2,500

$ 133,426 $ 210,956

10. Related party transactions

The Halifax Regional Water Commission, the Plan’s sponsor, collects the Plan’s contributions
and pays certain expenses on behalf of the Plan. These items are then credited or charged

back to the Plan.

14



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

11. Financial instruments

Financial instruments risk exposure and management

The Plan is exposed to various risks in relation to its investment in the HRM Master Trust,
consisting of investment assets. The Plan’s financial assets are categorized in Level 2. The
main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Plan’s risk management policy is derived from the HRM Master Trust in which the Plan
holds units. The HRM Master Trust has formal policies and procedures placed upon it that
establish an asset mix among equity and fixed income investments, required diversification of
investments within categories, a set limit on the size of exposure to individual investments, and
a requirement to use A-rated counterparties.

The Plan does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Plan is exposed are
described below:

(@) Market risks

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. For purposes of this disclosure, the Plan
segregates market risk into three categories: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk.

i.  Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the fact that the value of the Plan’s assets is affected by
changes in nominal interest rates and equity markets.

ii. ~ Currency risk
The Plan’s functional currency is Canadian dollars and all of the Plan’s transactions are
carried out in Canadian dollars.

iii. -~ Other price risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual investment or factors affecting all securities traded in the market.

All investments have a risk of loss of capital. The maximum risk resulting from the
investments is determined by the fair value of the instruments, which total $154,762,753
at December 31, 2020 (2019 - $141,509,795). A one percent change (1%) in market risk
(holding all variables constant) will impact the fair value of these instruments by
approximately $1,548,000 (2019 - $1,415,000).

15



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

11. Financial instruments (continued)
(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk on financial instruments is the risk of financial loss occurring as a result of default or
insolvency of a counterparty on its obligations to the Plan. The Plan’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to the underlying assets of the HRM Master Trust. Credit risk is mitigated through
the management of the HRM Master Trust assets with generally accepted parameters of safety
and prudence, using a diversified investment program. Investments in the HRM Master Trust
must adhere to specific limitations as outlined in the Halifax Regional Municipality’s Statement
of Investment Policies and Procedures for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan (“the Statement of
Investment Policies and Procedures”).

(c)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of not being able to meet the Plan’s cash requirements in a timely and
cost-effective manner. Liquidity requirements are managed through income generated from
investments and monthly contributions made by members and participating employers. The
sources of funds are used to pay pension benefits, make additional investments and fund
operating expenses. The Plan’s primary future liabilities include the accrued benefit obligation
of the Plan. The Plan’s main asset, the investment in the HRM Master Trust, is liquid as cash is
available to make required payments.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Payments due year ending December 31, 2020

Less than After
Total 1 year 1-3years 4-5years 5 years
Payables and
accruals $ 30,508 $ 30,508 $ $ $

Payments due year ending December 31, 2019

Less than After
Total 1 year 1-3years 4-5years 5 years
Payables and
accruals $ 27,101 $ 27,101 $ $ $

16



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

11. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value disclosure

The financial instruments recognized at fair value on the statement of financial position must be
classified as one of three fair value hierarchy levels. This hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the significance of inputs used in measuring the fair value of
the financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the
lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement. The financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into the fair
value hierarchy as follows:

Financial assets at fair value as at December 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Pooled fund $ $ 154,762,753 $ $ 154,762,753

Financial assets at fair value as at December 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Pooled fund $ $ 141,509,795 $ $ 141,509,795

There were no transfers between the three levels between December 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2020.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting period.

17



Halifax Regional Water Commission
Employees’ Pension Plan

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2020

12. Capital management

The Plan defines its capital as the deficiency of the Plan, as determined annually based on the
fair value of net assets and actuarial liabilities, provided by the actuarial valuation prepared by
the Plan’s independent actuary (note 5).

The overall objectives in investing the assets of the Plan are to ensure sufficient liquidity to
support its financial obligations, to continue to provide benefits in the best interest of its
members, to remain financially self-sufficient and to preserve and enhance the value of capital
through adequate diversification in high quality investments and achieve the highest investment
return that can be obtained with the assumption of an acceptable degree of risk. The Plan
holds units with the HRM Master Trust which has formal policies and procedures that establish
asset mix, require diversification within different categories, set a limit on the exposure to
individual investments and provides a requirement to use A-rated counterparties.

18



1102°16°e0®@)UNH BOIUCISA woo'16'eo@Aemyo01g wo |
. ¥90¢-16¥-C06 18./-16¥-C06 1
, - jediourg Jauned uswebebug
% a‘ VO ‘VdO ‘JuUnH edluouap VO ‘VdO ‘Aemydoig wo
LZoz ‘¢ sunp
synsai JIpny
7 1 { [/ N 9”JJllwo) adueul{ pue lipny ayj O] toamm_
A
7
0202 ‘1€ Joaqwiada(g papus Jeah ay) 10
ue|d uoisuad ,s9alojdwi3
UOISSILIWOY Jd)eAA [euolbay xejl|leH
¢ INJINHOVL1LlV
1Z0Z ‘2L aunp d..r_ts,o._m 104 Jouljsul uy
vousiouLeso



0202 ‘1€ Joquiaoaq papud Jedk ay) 104 | ue|d uoisuad ,Seakojdwg uoiss|iwwoy) Jojep) |[euoibay xepeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

Jape| uonejuasaldal Juswabeuew yeiq — g xipuaddy

Wodau s Joyipne juspuadapul jjeiq — Vv xipuaddy

s9dipuaddy

s1ybiybiy — seyepdn |eo1uyoe) pue sisnew ajqeuodal JeyiQ
SJUBWISIRISSIW PB)081I00UN pUE sjusw)snlpy
s}insal pue sysu Jipny

Arewwns aAnoox3

SJUaju09



0202 ‘1€ Joquiaoaq papud Jedk ay) 104 | ue|d uoisuad ,Seakojdwg uoiss|iwwoy) Jojep) |[euoibay xepeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

"Lcoe
‘Z1 Auienuga4 uo noA 0} souspuadapul JNO paWILUOD DM dDUIS ddudpuadapul
0} 108dsaJ ypm sniejs Jno 0} sabueyd ou uaaq aAeY 18y} Jey} WIILUOD AN

aouapuadapu|

"120Z ‘Z1 Alenige4 Uo @8)wwo) 8dUBUI4 pue }IpNy 8y} 0} pajuasald
ueid ay} Yym 2oueploooe Ul ABajelis Jipne Jno pajnoaxa A|jnjsseoons aAey oA

sjuaAe jJuanbasqgns Buipiebas sauinbul jeui4 e
s99)snl] Jo pieog ay) Aq Sjuswaje)s [eloueul) 8y} Jo [eacsddy e
(seo1puadde ay) ul payoene
uaaq sey }elp e) Ja)9| uonejuasaidal Juswabeuew paubis Jo }diooay e
(Lzoz ‘L2
Keyp\ Jaye sabueyo |euly Aue Joy) sjuswalels |epueuly pajepdn [eul Jo 1di9oay e

"120g ‘g aunr je
se Buipue)sino swa)l Buimo||o} 8y} Jo uonnjosal uodn podal INo azijeul [[IM DA

‘podal sy} Ul papn[oul aJe Jipne Jey} Jo synsal sy} pue
ue|d 8y} O sjuslale)s [eloueuly 8U) Jo Jipne Jno paya|dwoo Ajjenueisqns aaey apn

JIpNe INo Jo sniejs

120z ‘21 sunp SjuswWale}s |eloueull 0Z0Z ‘L€ J1oquiadag ayy uo Hoday

1202 ‘S aunp SHNSeJ pue JIPNe JO UOREDIUNWWIOD

1202 ‘21 Aenige4 Bujuue|d Buipiebas suoedIuNWWOD PUB SUOISSNISIg

snjeyg/Buiwy a|qesanlfaq

:sa|qeJanlep Buimo||o} 8y apiroid 0} pabebua alom ap)

"saled paijoads asay) uey) Joyjo suokue
Aqg pasn Jo painguisip 8q 0} papUSIUI JOU S| }| "98RIWWO0D 9ouULUI4 PUB JIpNY 8y}
JO @SN pue UoljewIOojUl 8} Joj A[9]0S papusiul S| JUBWN0P SIY} Ul UoeWIOoUl 8y 1

‘slopew
JBYJ0 pue sajewnsa aApisuas ‘saloljod Buiunoooe jueoyubis ‘sjuswa)e)ssiw
UO SjUBWIWIOD SapN|oUl pue salnpadsold Jpne jo synsal sy} Buipue)siapun

U1 99)IWWO0D 9oUBUl4 PUB }IpNY 8y} ISISSE ||IM UOIEDIUNWIWOD SIYL

‘0202 ‘1§ Jlequiada papus Jeak ay) Joj (,ue|d. 8Y}) ue|d uoisuad ,soako|dw3
UOoISSIWIWIOYD JB)e A\ [euoiBay Xejl|eH JO SJUSLWa)e]s [eloueUl 8y} JO Jipne Jno
Buipiebas noA yum anbojeip uado ue ul abebus 0} s| podal siy) jo asodind ay |

adoos pue Jodau Jo asodind

BWWNS 9AI}N29X]



0202 ‘1€ Joquiaoaq papud Jedk ay) 104 | ue|d uoisuad ,Seakojdwg uoiss|iwwoy) Jojep) |[euoibay xepeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

"Hodal 0} sBuipul} ou aAey S\

'S8INSO|9SIp pajeje. Jo sssusjeudosdde
painsua pue pus Jeak 0} Juanbasgns sjuaLLle)S JUBLWISaAU] paulelqO  *

pue ‘sjuswalels
[eloueUl NYH PB}PNE UO paseq seoue|eq JO AOBINDOE [BOLOISIY PBILBA *

‘sjuswiysaAul Jo Buise) uoen|ea pawlopad ©

'SjuaLLle)s JUBLIISaAU| O} sjunowe paalby ° €61°291V51$
:Buimojoy ayy pawiopiad s JO 90uBle(q JUSW}SAAUl PUB SPIoY Ueld 8y} 0Z0Z ‘L€ Jequieda( e sy SjuswysaAu|
‘paja|dwoo
"Hodal 0} sbulpuly ou aney app uofjen|eA Juadal }sowW 8y} Jo }nsal e se Jeak ay) Buunp saniiqel|
‘ploysaiy) Ajijeusiew ulaouod Bulob jo Joadsal uj sjuswAhed [eroads palinbal ou aiem alay
pue Aienjoe s ue|d 8y} JO suofjeolijenb pue aouspuadsapul 8y} pawIuo) *
ESUETIEIES
pue YJIoM Jiay} o ~ e
10 souewopad ay) ul Atenjoe ayy Aq pasn ejep ay) jo Bunse) pawioped [eloueul 0Z0Z 8t Ul papodal 8OE'E6L € LS JO SNIdINs Buj Je dAlLe
LONBLLIOU JO}IBW PUE SUOHE]0adXe O} peledco 0} opelw aJem sjuswisnipe uiena) "008'¥09°L 1 $ JO Ssedxe uieouod Bulob
Se uonen|ea ayj uj pasn suondwnsse Jo Ajljiqeuoseal sy} pessessy  ° papunjun ue papodal Uolen|eA [eLenioe 8y} 0Z0Z ‘€ Jaqueda( je sy
‘Arenjoe yuspuadapul ayy Aq paiedaad podas uoneniea sy} paujwexy :0202 L€ Jaquiaoa( 1e se pajejodenxs synsal
:Bumoyjoy ayy pauniopad apn 3y} Yum 6102 ‘| Adenuer je pawiopad sem ueld ayj Jo uolen|ea |nj v uoneBbiqo uoisuad
sBuipuy pue asuodsai anQ 19eN SN20} Jo eauy

"93)}IWILI0D 9oUBUIH PUE JIPNY 8U} 0} 8120IUNWIWOD 0} 81| pjnom am sBulpull pue siajew pajejal 8y} pue ‘snooj Jo seale jo Alewwns e si Buimo|o} 8y

SNo0J JO sealy

s}|nsaJ pue SysLl Jipny



[ 0202 ‘1€ Joquiaoaq papud Jedk ay) 104 | ue|d uoisuad ,Seakojdwg uoiss|iwwoy) Jojep) |[euoibay xepeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

"SIS)JEW SINSOOSIP JO SJUBWIB)B)SSIW [BIAL}-UOU pajsnipeun Aue Ayuspi jou pip Jpne inQ

sJe)jew aInsojosIp Jo Alewwng

‘podal 0} sjuswslelssiw pajsnipe ou aA_Y SN

sjuswisnipy

Sjusuwiaje}ssill
poj}oallodun pue w”—CQE”—wS.:u<



4

0202 ‘1€ Joquiaoaq papud Jedk ay) 104 | ue|d uoisuad ,Seakojdwg uoiss|iwwoy) Jojep) |[euoibay xepeH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

“Jeak Juainod 8y} Ul ueld 8y} uo joedwi ueoiubis
e 9ABRY p|noMm Jey} spiepue)s Bunipne ul sebueyo Aue usaq Jou aAey 18|

aoueINsSsy

N xAr4

‘z1 Aleniga4 uo Bujuueld jipne Uo SUOKEDIUNWWOD 8U) Jo Led se 8apIuwWo)
8y} 0} pajuasald asoy) }deoxa ‘Jeak Jua.lind By} Ul ue|d 8y} uo 1oedwi juesiiubis
e 9ABY PINOM Jey) spiepue)s Buiunoooe Ul sebueyo Aue usaq jJou aAey 818y

Bununoooy

[ealuyoda) pue s.ia

*9)]B0IUNWILIOD
0} paJinbal a1e am Jey} [0JJUOD [BUIBIUI Ul SBI0UBIOBpP AUe Ajjuspl 10U pIp 9 A

"|0J3UOD [euIBU

uo soueinsse apiroid 0} paubisap Jou S Jipne JUSW)e)S [elouBUl) B ‘I9ASMOH
"JUBDLIUBIS JOPISUOD 8M SBIOUBIDNLEP 8SOY) 99)ILIWIOYD 8doUBUIH pue IpNY 8y}
JO SIaquis)\ 8U} 0} 8)edIUNWIWIOD 0} SN aJinbal spiepuels Bupipne sy ‘Buioda.
[BIOUBUL JOAO |04}U0D [eUla)Ul INOA Ul AOUSIOLSP B JO S1eME BU003(] oM ||

‘|o1uoo

[eulalul JO SSaUBARDDYS 8y} Uo uoluido ue ssaidxa Jou op am ‘A|BUIpJodY “Yiom
JINo JO JuS)xe pue Buiwy ‘einjeu sy sujuwLla}ep 0} pue Jipne 8y} ued o} Alessaosu
Jus)xe a8y} 0} Buptodal [eloueBULL J9AO [0JJUOD [BUISIUI JO Bulpue)siapun Ue uiejqo
9\ "Sjuswiaje)s [eroueul 8y} uo uoluido ue ssaidxae 0} paubisap si Jipne ay ]

|0JIUOD |euJB)U|

sybijybiy — sajepdn
Jew ajgejodal 18yl



[+ 0zZ0Z ‘L€ Jequaoa( papus Jeak ay) 104 | ue|d uoisuad ,soakojdw3 uoiss|iwwoy Jajep [euoibay xejlleH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

:0s[e 9\ "Mpne 8y} Jnoybnouy)
wsiondeys [euoissajold ulejuiew pue Juawbpn| [euoissajoid 8s|0Jaxe oM ‘Spiepue)s
Bunipne peydeocoe Ajjessuab UelpeuR) YUM S0UEPIODOE Ul Jipne ue jo ued sy

"sjusWale)s |eloueUly 9Say) JO siseq

BUj) U0 UdYE} SJasn JO SUOISIOap OJWOU0Dd 8y} aduanjul o} pajoadxe aq Ajgqeuoseal
pinoo Aayy ‘eyeBeibbe ayy ul Jo A[lenplAlpul ‘)i [ellslew palopisuod ale pue Iolle
JO pnelj Wolj asiie Ued sjuswiajeissiyy "SISIXe } UsUM JusLusielssiW [elisjew e 1oa)ap
shemie M spiepuels Bunipne pajdeooe Ajjeisuab ueipeuE) UM 90UBPIODDE Ul
pa1oNpUOD }ipne Ue jey} @sjuelenB e Jou siing ‘aoueinsse Jo [9A9] YBiy e sl aoueinsse
a|qeuoseay "uoluido Jno sepnjoul jey} uodal S.Jojpne Ue 8nss| 0} pue ‘IoLid
JO pnelj 0} 8NP Jaylaym ‘Juslus}e)ssiW [elLis}elll WoJ) 991} 818 9|0UM B Se SjUsWD)e)s
[eloUBUL U} JOUldYM JNoge oueInsse 9|geuoseal UIe)qo 0} ale SaAnoalqo JnQ
sjuawaje}s [eloueuly 8y} JO Jipne ay} Joj sanjiqisuodsal s Joypny

"ss900.d Buiiodal [eoueul s,Ue|d UoISUad ,SeaAojdwg UoISSILIWOY) IS}
[euoibay xejlleH Buleesiano Joj a|gisuodsal ale soueusanob ypm pableyo asoyl

"0S Op 0} }NQ SAjeUIS)|e dlis||eal ou sey Jo ‘suonelado
9SE80 0} J0 Ue|d UoIsuad ,soa/kojdwT uoissiwwo) Jajep) [euolbay xejlieH ayepinbi
0} spuajul Jayye Jusweabeuew ssajun Bupunodoe Jo siseq UJdU0d Buloh ayy Buisn
pue ulaouod Bulob o) pajejal siepew ‘s|qeodrdde se ‘Buisojosip ‘uleouod Bulob e se
anupuod 0} Alljige s,ue|d uoisuad .seakojdw uoISSIWWO) JBleAA [euoibay xeylleH
Buissasse Jo} a|qisuodsal si Juswabeuew ‘syuswalels |epueul ay) Buuedald uj

*J0JJ9 JO pnelj 0} 8NP JBYByM ‘Jusis)ie)ssiw

[eLUS)EW WOJ} 991 oJe ey} Sjuswalels [elpueuy jo uojeledaid 8yy s|qeus
0} Aless@0aU S| ssulwlialep juswebeuew Se [0JJUOD [BUIBJUI Yons Joj pue ‘sueld
uoisuad Joj spJepue)s BuuNoooE UeIpEUBD UNIM 90UBPIODOE Ul SJUSWS)E)S [eloueul)
asay} jo uonejussaid lJiey pue uonesedaisd oyy Joj ojqisuodsal si juswabeuep
sjuawaje)s [eloueuly

8y} Joj asueusanob yum pabieys asoy} pue Juswabeuew jo sapijiqisuodsay

‘uojuido

Jno Joj siseq e apinold oy ajeudoidde pue juaons S| paulelqo dABY 9M SJUBPIAD
1pne ay} 1ey} aAdljaq A\ ‘Sjuawalinbal asayl yum aouepiodde ul sanjjiqisuodsal
[BDIY}® JBUJO JNO Pa3|[I4|N} DABY M pue ‘epeue) U| SjusWwa)le]s |eloueuly 8y} Jo lpne
INO 0} JUBA®|2J 2Je JBYl Sluswalinbal [BdIy}d 8y} YlIIM 92UBpIODD. Ul Ue|d uoisuad
.s99hojdwg uoissiwwo) Jajep) [euoibay xejlleH jo juapuadepul aie ap) uodal
JNO JO UOIO8S SJUBWIBJEIS [EIDUBUIH BU} JO HPNY By} Jo} sanljiqisuodsay sJolpny
By} Ul paquosap Jayuny ale splepuels asoy} Jepun sanljiqisuodsal InQ ‘spiepuels
Bunipne pajdaocoe Ajjelauab ueipeue) yym 92UEPIOIJE Ul JIPNE JNO PA}ONPUOD SN
uojuido 10} siseg

"sue|d uoisuad Joj spiepue)s Buunoooe uelpeue) Yjm
20UBP.J022E Ul PapUa Uay} Jeak ay) Joj suoiebijgo uoisuad uj sebueyo s)i pue sjiyauaq
Jo} 9|qe|ieAe s}osse Jau Ul sebueyo s}l pue ‘0zZ0g ‘L€ Jequeoa( je se ue|d uoisuad
.seafojdwg uoissiwwo) Jajep) [euoibay xejljeH Jo uonisod [eloueuly sy ‘sjoadsal
[eusjew |le ul Aure) jussaid sjuswale)s [ejoueul) BuiAuedwoooe ay) ‘uojuido Ino uj

‘sa101j0d Bupunoooe jueoyubis jo Arewwns e Buipnjoul ‘s)JuUsWale]s [eloUBUl BU}

0] S8JOU pue ‘papua uay} JeaA ay} Joj suonebijgo uoisuad ul sebueyo pue sjyauaq
10} 9|gejieAe s)asse }au ul sabueyo jJo sjuswalels ay) pue ‘0Zoz ‘L€ Jequedag
1e se uoijsod |ejpueuy Jo Juswale)s ay} asudwod yoiym ‘ue|d uoisuad ,seakoidw3
uoISSIWWOo) Jajep) [euolbay XejljeH jO SJUBWS)E]S |BIDUBUL BY} pajipne aAeY A
uojuido

ue|d uoisuad ,seakojdwg
UOISSILIWOY J3)e A\ [euolbay xejljeH
8y} Jo s@d)snl] Jo pJeog ay} 01

J1odaua s dojipne Jusapuadapui

v Xipuaddy



9

0zZ0Z ‘L€ Jequaoa( papus Jeak ay) 104 | ue|d uoisuad ,soakojdw3 uoiss|iwwoy Jajep [euoibay xejlleH
S]|Nsel IpNY — 991D 8duBUl4 PUB 1PNy 8y} 0] uodey

120z ‘21 aunp
SJUBJUNODJY [BUOISSB}0.d palaley) epeue) ‘xejljeH

‘Hpne
Jno Buunp Apuapl am jey) [04U0D [Bulalul Ul saiouaiolyep jueoyiubls Aue Buipnjoul
‘sBuipuly ypne jueopiubis pue jipne ay} jo Buiwn pue adoos pauueld ay) ‘siepew
Jayjo Buowe ‘Buipiebos aoueulsonob yym pabieyo 9SOyl Yim 3)1edlunwiwod apA

‘uonejuasaid
Jle} S9ASIYDE By} JOUUBW B Ul SJUBAd pue suolnjoesuel} BulAjzepun ay) juasaidal
SJUBWIAJE]S [EIDUBUL BY} JOYIdYm pue ‘Sainsojosip 8y} Buipnjul ‘sjuswalels
[BIOUBUIL BU} JO USIUOD pue ainPniis ‘uonejussaid [[BI9AO By} d)enjeAg e
"ul1aou09 Bujob e se anuuod 0} 8SEAD 0} UB|4 UOISUD
s9ahojdw3 uolssiwwoy) Jajep) [euolbay XejeH asned Aew SuopjIpuod Jo
SJUaA® a1nyny ‘JonamoH ‘podal s Jojipne Jno Jo d)ep ay} 0} dn paule}qo aouapIAS
}pNe 8y} uo paseq ale suolsniouod JnQ ‘uoluido uno Aypow 0} ‘@yenbapeul
9JB S2INSO|ISIP UONS JI ‘IO SJUSWSIE)S [BloUBUY dY} Ul SBINSOISIp paje|al
3y} 0} yodai s Joypne JNo uj Uojudjje MeJp 0} palinbai ale am ‘s}sixa Ajuieuaosun
[elalew e jey} apnjouod am J| ‘uidouod Bulob e se anupuod o} Ajjige s,ueld
uoisuad ,saakojdwg uoissiwwo?) Jajep) [euoibay xejeH uo jgnop juesyiubis
}seo Aew }ey} SUOIIPUOD JO SJUBA® O} pajejdl S)sIxd Ajuiepsoun |eusjew
B Jayjaym ‘paulejqo 9ouapiAe JIpne a8yl uo paseq ‘pue Bujunodde Jo siseq
uI1aou09 Bujob ayy jo asn s uswabeuew jo ssaudjeudoidde ay) uo apnouoy e

Juswabeuew
AQ epew sainsojosip paje|as pue Sajewnss BuiunNodde JO sSaud|geuoseal
ay} pue pasn sapiod BHBupunoooe jo ssausjeudosdde oy oleneaz e

"|oJju0d |BUJIBIUl S,UB|d UOISURY ,S99A0|dw 3 UOISSIWIWOY JS)EAN
|euoibay xejljleH JO SSauaAioayd ay) uo uoluido ue Buissaidxs jo asodind ayy
J0J J0U Inq ‘saoue)jswnou ay) ul aieudosdde ale jeyy sainpadsold jipne ubisap
0} J9pJO Ul }pne 8y} O} JuBAd|aJ |0J)UOD [euldlu] Jo Bulpuelsiepun ue ulelgqO e

"|0J3UOD |BUIB}UI JO BPLIIBAO By} JO
‘suonejuasaldalsiw ‘suoissiwo [euoualul ‘A1ab.0) ‘UoISN||0D 9A|0AUI ABW pneuy
se ‘Jodlo wouy Bupnsal suo 1oy ueyy Joybiy S| pnedy wody Bunnsal Juswajelssiw
|eldyew e Bunosiap jou Jo ysu ay] "uoluido ano Joj siseq e apinoid 0} ajeldosdde
pUB JUBIOINS S| JBY) SOUSPIAS }IpPNE UIe}qO pue ‘Sysi 9SOy} 0} aAlsuodsal
sainpaoold jipne wiopuad pue ubisap ‘Jo1id JO pnelj 0} SNP JBYIdYM ‘sjuswale)s
[BloUBUY BU} JO JUSWASJBISSIW |EelId)eW JO SYSHU By} SSsasse pue Ajjusp| e



0202 ‘1€ Joquieoa( papue Jeak ay) 104 | ueld uoisuad ,seako|dwg uoIssIWoD 191e ) [euoibay xejeH
S)|Nsal JIpNy — 98)1IWW0Y 9oUBUI4 PuUB 1PNy 8y) 0} oday

‘SallewIwnNS 8y} Ul papn|oul

aJe SuUoIO. 29)ILILIOD pue 93)snJ) Juedyiubis ||y 'noA o) papiaoid

udaq aney paledaid uaaq }oA J0u BABY SB)NUIW Yd1ym 40} sBunsaw

JU92a1 JO suoljoe JO sauewwng ‘Juswabebus Jpne sy} JO Swid} 8y} Ul 0}

paaibe se ‘seapwwod pue saa)sni) Jo sbupsaw ay) Jo SaNUIW || pue
elep paje|a pue Spi0dal [e|oUBUL [|B NOA 0] 9|ge|leAE Spew dABY DA\  'Z

uoneuuoyul Jo ssausjaidwod

‘Juawabebus Jipne sy} Jo swis}

ay) ul 0} paaibe se ‘suejd uoisuad 1o} spiepuels Bupunodoe ueipeue)

U}IM 90UBpIOdJE Ul papud uay) Jeak ay) Joj suonebiqo uoisuad

ul sabueyd pue sjyeuaq Jo} 9|ge|IBAB S}aSSE }au Ul sabueyd ay} pue

‘0202 ‘L€ Joqwaoa( e se uopisod [eloueul Jo Juawalels ay) ‘syoadsal
[euaew |le ui ‘Ajuie) Juasaid aA0ge 0) paliael SjJusWale)s [eloueul 8yl ‘|

sjuawiaje}s [eloueul

‘1pne unoA Buunp noA o} apew suonejuasaidas Buimojoy ay}
‘1L.20Z /1 aunr jo se ‘ja119q pue abpajmouy JNo JO 1S8g By} 0} ‘WIILUOD DA\

"sjuswWale)s [eloueul ay) uo Bulkjal

uosiad a|geuOSEal B JO UOIS|Oap 8} 90Uanjul pjNnoMm SjusWale)s [ejoueul)
BUj} Ul JUBWS)B)SSIW JO WO} UoIsSIWo s) jey} ajqeqoud s} 4 ‘anjea Aleysuowl
S)I Jo sso|pJebal ‘[elsjew palapIsuoD S| W) Uy ‘[elislew ale jey) siajew
0} pajiwi| Buieq se paquosap ale Jays| SIy) Ul suolejuasaidal ueua)

1sixa Aue
pinoys ‘sanuenballl 18Yjo pue sioild ‘sebeuoys ‘pnely ‘asojosip 0} pajoadxa

aq Ajuessaoau }| Ued Jou ‘Ajyuapl 0} paubisep Jou S| I ‘SEoUBISWNIIID

3y} Ul A1ESS99U PaISPISUOD NOA JUBIXd SY} O} BJEpP Paje|dJ PUE S|0JJUO0D
[eusdlul ‘walsAs Buiunodoe ay) JO UOIIBUIWEXS UB SBPN[OUl YIOM JNOA 3jIym
1By} puejsiapun 9\ “Sjuawale)s [eloueuly 8y} uo uoluido ue ssaidxe 0} noA
9|geua 0} se o0s (SYV9) spJepuels Bunipne paydadsoe Ajjessuab ueipeue)
UM 90UBPI0DDE. Ul Pa}ONpuUod pue pauueld Sem UojeuUIWEXS JNOA Jey)
abpa|mousoe am ‘Jaynng ‘Mo| 8q 0} }SH YONs pauiwia}ep aAeY pue ‘pnedj Jo
}InsaJ e se paje)ssiw Ajjelsajew ag Aew SJUSWAJE]S [BloUBUL SY} JBU) 3SI dY)
posSasSe aABY 9\ 'JOLIS PUE pnel} J03)ap pue JuaAaid 0} S|0JJU0D |EUIBIUI
J0 uoneyuswa|dw pue ubisap ay) Joj pue sue|d uoisuad 1o} spiepuels
Buiunoooe ue|peUB) UM SOUBPIODIE Ul SJUSWSJE]S |B[OUBUY BY) JO
uonesedaid ayj Joj sanijiqisuodsal INO pa|N} 9ABY am Jey] abpajmounoe apn

(,ddSYV,) sue|d uoisuad 1oy spiepue)s Bupunoodoe

uelpeued Yym asueplodoe ul suoiebliqo uoisuad ul sebueyo pue sjyauaq
10} 9|ge|ieAe s}asse 1au ul sabueyd ‘uonisod |eoueuy ay) ‘syoadsal [eusjew
[1e ul ‘Aiey Juasaud sjuswale)s [eloueul) 8y} JBYdym o} se uojuido ue
Buissaidxa jo asodind 8y} 1o 0Z0Z ‘L€ Joquiadaqg papus Jeak ay} Joj ueld
uojsudd .seahojdwg uoissiwwo) Jajep) [euolbay xejleH JO Sjuswale)s
[eloueUl BU} JO JIPNE JNOA YIM Uoioauu09 Ul Ja)a] siy) Buipinold ale app

:Remxooig "I\ Jeaq

630 red SN XejlieH

}oa41S uoyelo G911

JOMO] YUON ‘@liua) eAoN ‘0001 @)NS

d7171 uojuioy] juels
VO ‘YdO ‘Aemyooig wo] I

2oz ‘L1 sunp

Jane| uonejussaldal Juswabeuew el

q xXipuaddy



0202 ‘1€ Joquieoa( papue Jeak ay) 104 | ueld uoisuad ,seako|dwg uoIssIWoD 191e ) [euoibay xejeH
S)|Nsal JIpNy — 98)1IWW0Y 9oUBUI4 PuUB 1PNy 8y) 0} oday

‘sjuswale)s [eloueUl ay) ul pajosyiad Ajsjeudoldde
2Je pue NOA 0} PESO[OSIP USaJ SARY ‘|BIO 1O USJLM Jaylaym ‘saajuelenb
yum pajeroosse asoy) Buipnjour ‘saousbunuod pue saniigel| (v

"SjuUsWId)e)S [BlouUBUL Y} Ul pajosjal Aj@jeudoidde
pue noA 0} pasolosIp Uaag dAeY ‘|@sunod [eba] yyim passnosip
uaaq aAeY Aay} Jou Jo Jaylaym ‘swieo ajqissod pue Buipueisino ||

‘'sjuawale)s [eloueuly
3y} 0} |eldjew ag pjnod abueyd ay} JO 10948 By} pue WId) Jeau ay} ul
abueyod |im ajewnse ay) jeyl ajqissod Ajgeuoseal s )l aloym Sajewnnso
|le Buipnjoul ‘sjuawiale)s [eloueul 8y} ul paso|asip Ajejeudoldde

u99a( Sey Saljuleaoun Juswalnseauwl |eLajew ||e Jo ainjeu ay |

"SJUBWA)B)S [eIOUBUY BY} Ul PASO|ISIp
pue painseaw Aj9jeudoidde usaq aney suopoesuel} Aued pajeal ||y

"sjualWale)s [eloueUl BU) Ul pajoajjal ‘eloueul
-UoU pue [eIoUBUL UlOog ‘Salljige]| pue S}asse O UOIeolISSe|o Jo anjeA
Buikiies ay) Joaye Ajleusjew Aew jey) suonusjul Jo suejd ou aaey SN

Josiesdde
ay} Aq pasn yoeoudde ay} Jo anjeA Jiey 9)ewsa 0} pasn spoylaw
3y} yum Juswaaibe u| ale am ‘saplundas a|qejayew Ajipeal-uou Jo4

"s@oueISWNOID 8y} Ul e)eldoldde pue sjgeuosesl a.e sjuswsiels
[BIOUBUL} BY) Ul POSOJOSIP pue painseall Se sjuswnisul [ejoueul Jo
sen|eA Jiey ay) Je BulALLe Ul pasn asoy) Buipnjoul ‘sejewjse Bununoooe
Buryew ur sn Ag pasn suondwnsse Jueoyiubis ay) Jey) aAsljeg A

24

‘0¢

6l

‘8l

L

9l

Gl

2INSO|2SIP pue JuswWaINseaw ‘uoniubooaay

‘pPne.y 109)ap pue JuaAald 0} [04jU0D [BUIBIUI JO SOUBUSUIEL
pue uopnejuswaldwi ‘ubisap ay} Joj Ayjiqisuodsal uno abpajmouoe apn

"SI9Y)0 JO sioje|nbal ‘sishjeue ‘seakojdwa Jowloy
‘soakojdwa Aq pajeslunwiwod sjuswalels [eoueul s,ueid ayy Bunoaye
pneJj payoadsns Jo pnelj jo suonebaje Aue jo abpajmouy ou aaey SN

‘'sjuawale)s [eloueuly
3} UO 1098 |BIAL}-UOU B 9ABY PINOJ PNElj Sy} 949YM ‘SI9Y}0 JO {|0JjJuU0d
[eusajul Ul sajod Jueoyubis aney oym saakojdws fjuswabeuew Buiajoaul

ue|d ay) Bunoaye pnes) payoadsns Jo pnely Jo abpaimouy ou aAeY SN

v

€

K4

Jolla pue pneiq

‘sjuswale)s [eloueuly Yyons Joj Ajigisuodsal

1deooe pue ‘sjuswiaie)s |eloueUl aU) J0 Ssaua}a|dwod pue Aoeindoe ay)
a)jen|eAs o} abpajmouy ay} aAey ‘suonouny Jusweabeuew || pawiopad
pue suolisioap juswabeuew |e apew aABY am Jey} WU dM ‘92IAISS
JPNE-UOU SIY} Y}IM UOROBUUOD U| ‘SSJ0U Paje|a. pue sjuawale)s [eloueuly
ay) Buiyelp yum sn Bunsisse Aq 921A18S Jipne-uou e papinoid NoA

‘UOIJBISPISUOD OU JO} SUoioBSURI] pUB suonoesuel) Alejouow

-uou ‘sagjuesend ‘sjuswabuelie Buises| ‘saIAISS pue sanljigel|
‘sjosse JOo sJajsuel) ‘sueo| ‘saseyoind ‘sajes Buipnjoul ‘suonoesuel)
Aued pajejal pue salued pajeas umouy ||e NOA 0} paljiluapl dABY SN

‘aleme
ale am yoiym jo Buiodal [eioueul) JOAO [0J4JU0D [BuIS)UI JO uonelado
Jo ubiIsap 8y} Ul SBIDUBIDBP UMOUY ||B NOA 0} PasO|ISIp dABY S\

"$S0| Juabuuoo e Buiplodal JO SiSeq Sy} Se JO S)UsWa)e)s [eloueul 8y}
Ul 8INSO[OSIP 10} PaIaPISUOD 8g P|NOYS YoIyMm JO S}odye 8y} suoie|nbal
JO SMme] JO SUONE.|OIA B]gissod Jo suone[oIA AUe Jo aiemeun ale A\

‘sjuswalinbas Burodal [ejoueuly Jiayy Buipnjoul
‘sanuoyine [eyuswulanob Jo Aiojeinbal jo syuswalinbal ay) yim
aoueldwoo-uou Jo saouelsul 9|qeqold Jo umouy Aue JO alemeun ale dp\

"uoljewIoU
aAesedwod 8y} 1084 Jey) sjuswaje)s [eloueul polad Joud ay)
Ul JUSWaleISSIW |eLis)jewl B J02.1100 0) 9pew SjuaWIa)e)sal oU alom sy

‘sjuawajlels |eloueul ayy BulAlispun spiooal Buiunoodoe ayy Ul
papJooal Apadoud usaq jou aAey Jey) SUOOeSUEl) [BLIS}EW Ou ale alay]

‘noA 0} papinoid aiem Josuods

ue|d ayy pue ue|d ayj Joj Atenjoe ay) Aq pasedaud suodal Jayjo pue
suodal |elen)oe ||e a|qe|ieAe apew aABY OM [[dM SY '610Z ‘/ 1990100
JO se sem JuawnJjsul uejd ay} 0} JUSWpPUSWE }se| 8y] ‘Sme| |gedidde
yum Aj[dwod o} sjuswpuawe Aue Buipnjoul ‘JeaAk ay) Buunp oju paiajus
S}oeJu09 doueInsul Aue pue Juswsalbe }sni) ay) ‘0}818y} Sjuswpuswe
ue|d Aue pue juswnusul ue|d ay) 9|qejieAe dpew 0S|e dAeY S\

"90USPIAD JIpne ule}qo 0} AIeSSa0au )| paulwlalep noA woym woly Aynus
By} ulyym suosiad 0} ssao0e pajolsalun Yyum nok papiroid aaey app

T

0t

v

€



0202 ‘1€ Joquieoa( papue Jeak ay) 104 | ueld uoisuad ,seako|dwg uoIssIWoD 191e ) [euoibay xejeH
S)|Nsal JIpNy — 98)1IWW0Y 9oUBUI4 PuUB 1PNy 8y) 0} oday

aoueul{ ‘Jabeuep
VIND ‘VdD “wwo)’g ‘|laqdwe) ue|ly

049 / s@21n8g djelodio) J0joaaig
VO ‘VdO ‘UnNIqUOy dp sinoT

JabBeuel [esauan)
a-adl ‘'vodd ‘vddd ‘val ‘910010 31yied

‘Ainy AJ9A SINoA

‘'noA 0} pasoosIp Jou aAey am ey} Buisue siepew
weoliubis paje|al Jayjo ou ale alay] ‘A|Buiploooe sjuswale)s [eloueUl
8U} Ul S24NSOJOSIP JudIoINS papiroid SABY pue Jajep) XejijeH uo joedw

pue ojwapued g-QIAOD Y} 10 suoneoidwi 8y} paopisuod aAey S

"JUapING Ble

SUORIPUOD IO SJUSAS YONS OU Jey} papnjouod aAeY pue uiaouod Buiob e
se anunuod o} Ayjige s,ue(d 8y} Uo Jgnop JuediIubIs }Sed Aew YoIym Isixe
SUOJIPUOD 10 PaLINO20 SABY SJUSAS JOU IO JOY}SUM PaIapISU0D SABY S

GE

Ve

1PYI0

"ue|d @y} 8}euIlLIB) 0} SUOIUS)U| OU DABY DA

JaY3| sIy} Jo ajep
ay) pue ajep uopelodel)xa [euenjoe ay) usamiag suolsiroid ueld (q)

'SJUSWIB)E)S [BIOUBU DY} Ul PESO[OSIP JO POPIODDI
syunowe Buienojes ui pasn suopdwnsse 1o spoyiaw [euenjoe ay) (k)

:u1 sebueyd ou usaq aney a1y

‘syjeuag ainn4 aakojdw3g

Z2917€ UOII09S YHM 92UBPIODI. U] SBOIAISS UO pajelsosd poyjew jyeusq
payosloid ay) pue suondwnsse ajewnss }soq buifidde Aq pauiwisap
sjyauaq uoisuad panJooe Jo anjeA Juasald |elen}oe ay) Se painseawl
Aj@1eudoidde s ued uoisuad ay) jo uonebijqo Jeuaq paulyap ayl

€€

4

3>

‘Aenjoe s,ue|d ay) Jo AlAoalgo Jo aouapuadapul ay) pajoedul

aAey ey} siapew Aue jo aieme Jou ale am pue ‘ejep BuiAjuspun

3} WoJj paje|ndled aq p|noys uopen|ea ay} moy o} }oadsas yum Asenjoe
s.ue(d ay} 0} ‘uaAlb ag 0} suononisul Aue asned Jou ‘suoponsisul Aue
aAIB Jou pIp DAA “s@ouesWNoIID 8y} Ul ejeudoiddeur ale suondwnsse
JO spoylaw yons jey) jaljaq Jo abpamouy ou aAeY pue sjauaq

ue|d pajejnwnooe Buluiwialap Jo} pue sasodind Buipuny Joy Azenjoe
ay} Aq pasn suondwnsse pue spoyiaw [euenioe ay} Yim aaibe apn

‘sjuswale)s [eloueul ayj ul
sjunowe paujwialap Ajjleuenioe Jayjo pue syjeuaq ueld paje|nwinooe Jo
anjea Juasaid |elenyoe ay) bujuiwislap jo asodind ayy Joy Asenyoe s,ueid

ay} 0} papinoid ejep sjuedioiied ay) WO SUOISSILIO OU SJOM B8y |

"S9J0U PaJE|a. puUE SjUBWSIL.]S |BIOUBUL 9SOU) 4O Juswisn(pe

alinbaJ pjnom jey) sjuswalels |eloueul aAlesedwod ay) Jo a)ep 8y}

0} Juanbasqgns SJUBAS OU UBS(J BABY 8JBY) “I8yLNL "SlUBWSLe)S [elouBUl
8y} uj 81nsojosIp Jo uopiubooal alinbal pjnom jey) jJoalsy ajep sy}

o} dn ejep }98ys @oue|eq 8y} 0} Jusnbasgns SJUBAS OU US8(J SABY 8oy L

‘opew ueaq aAey soouabe
aendoidde ayy yym spuawinoop (3snJy) ueid ayy jo Buiy palinbal v

‘ue|d ay} Aq pajdope uaaq aney
sobueyd yons Aq palinbai sjuswpuswe ||y uejd ay} jo uonelado sy} ul
sobueyd Aq paJinbau 1o ‘suone|nbal Jo sme| ul sebueyd Aq pajelissaosu

sjuswpuawe ueld jo uoneiedaid ayy Jo} o|qisuodsal aie o N

109[gns si ueid ay} yoiym oy Aouaby
anuaAay epeue) 8y} pue SUoIsuad Jo Juapuajuiladng ay) Jo 8010
B1}00S BAON 8y} JO suolje|nbal pue sajni ay) yim paydwoo sey ueld ay

‘sjuawalels
[elouBUl BY) Ul 8INSO|IsIp Jo uoniubooal aiinbal pjnom jey) joasay ajep
ay) 0} dn ajep pud Jeak ay} 0] Juanbasgns SJUBAS OU USd(Q SABY 34y L

"Jgop Buipue)sino ||e Jo sjusWwaiINbal Jayjo JO SUOIIPUOD ‘SJUBUSAOD
[le Buipnjoul ‘@oueldwod-uou JO JUSAS BU} Ul Sjuswale)s [eloueul)

3} UO J09y)d |eld)jew B d9ABY P09 jey} sjuswaaibe |enjoesuod jo
sjoadse |e ‘yum pajdwod sey ue|d ay) pue ‘noA 0} pasojosip aney SN

‘leJaye||00 se pabpa|d usaq
Aue sey Jou sjesse s,ue|d oy} U0 SBOUBIQUINOUS JO SUSI| OU 8Je 818y}
pue ‘sjesse |[e (Ul }saiajul ases) Jo) o} oy Alojoeysies sey ue(d ay |

0€

‘6C

'8¢

P4

‘9¢

R4

Ve

€¢

K44



‘(J(J/ Halifax ITEM #5.1

l l Water Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Waler Commission June 17, 2021

TO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Board

H Digitally signed by Reid
Reld Campbell
Date: 2021.06.10

Campbell 17:02:57 -0300"

Reid Campbell, M.Eng., P.Eng.
Director, Engineering and Technology Services

. Digitally signed by Louis
LOU|S de de Montbrun

Date: 2021.06.10
Montbrun 16:57:14 -03'00"

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

o &be O'Toole
W Date: 2021.06.10

APPROVED: 17:04:24 0300
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: June 11, 2021

SUBJECT: Capital Expenditures and Forecast for the twelve months ended March 31,
2021

ORIGIN

Capital expenditure and forecast reporting.

BACKGROUND

The Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water) Board is required to review periodic
financial information throughout the year.

DISCUSSION

The Engineering and Technology Services department has been actively updating forecasted
capital expenditures to the end of the 2020/21 fiscal year based on actual expenditures year to date
and knowledge of project timelines and contract pricing. Below is the breakdown by asset class
and project status for the twelve (12) months ending March 31, 2021.

Page 1 of 3



ITEM # 5.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Capital Expenditure and Forecast Report

Total
Total Remaining Forecasted
Expenditures Expenditures Budget Total Forecasted Expenditures Remaining
Total Budget Expenditures to April 1, 2020 to  to March 31, Available as of Expenditures to to the End of Budget
Budget Category Available March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 the Project Available
Active
Water $ 45,704,169 $ 4,881,924 § 10,266,766 $ 15,148,690 $ 30,555,479 $ 20,287,860 $ 33,399,623 $ 12,304,546
Wastewater 36,168,444 4,158,513 11,346,655 15,505,168 20,663,276 15,017,694 23,358,167 12,810,277
Stormwater 5,428,230 164,604 1,164,080 1,328,684 4,099,546 1,281,546 4,223,993 1,204,237
87,300,843 9,205,041 22,777,501 31,982,542 55,318,301 36,587,100 60,981,783 26,319,060
Pending
Water 19,698,440 - - - 19,698,440 45,000 11,387,440 8,311,000
Wastewater 28,158,000 - - - 28,158,000 1,260,000 8,779,000 19,379,000
Stormwater 784,238 - - - 784,238 4,000 4,000 780,238
48,640,678 - - - 48,640,678 1,309,000 20,170,440 28,470,238
Closed
Water 28,644,388 6,537,208 22,107,180 28,644,388 - 29,706,585 31,960,112 (3,315,724)
Wastewater 14,843,534 2,942,443 11,901,091 14,843,534 - 15,402,650 16,911,601 (2,068,067)
Stormwater 4,040,876 335,274 3,705,602 4,040,876 - 4,220,300 4,422,300 (381,424)
47,528,798 9,814,925 37,713,873 47,528,798 - 49,329,535 53,294,013 (5,765,215)
$ 183,470,319 $ 19,019,966 _$ 60,491,374 $ 79,511,340 $ 103,958,979 $ 87,225,635 $ 134,446,236 $ 49,024,083

The Total Budget Available of $183.5 million represents total approved budgets for pending and
active projects as at the end of March 31, 2021.

Total Expenditures to March 31, 2021 of $79.5 million include expenditures of $19.0 million
incurred prior to April 1, 2020 and expenditures of $60.5 million in the current fiscal year. This
results in a Remaining Budget Available as of March 31, 2021 of $104.0 million.

Project Managers had forecasted that total expenditures to the end of the 2020/21 fiscal year would
be $87.2 million.

The Total Project Forecast represents the total expenditures on capital projects expected by the
time of project completion. For multi-year projects, expenditures relating to future year budgets
are excluded.

Remaining Budget Available is the Total Budget Available less the Total Forecasted Expenditures
to the End of the Project. Halifax Water is forecasting to be underspent on capital projects relative
to the approved budgets. In the Active project category, there is approximately $26.3 million that
may be able to be reallocated to existing projects or used to fund future projects. In the Pending
project category, there is $20.2 million that is awaiting approval and $28.5 million that have been
deferred or cancelled. For projects that are deferred or cancelled, there will be funding available
that could be reallocated to existing projects, if required, or used to fund future capital budgets. A
strategy is currently being developed to reallocate this funding.

As projects are completed, they will be moved to the closed category. This will occur throughout
the year, however, most projects are closed in the last quarter of the fiscal year.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM # 5.1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

ATTACHMENT

Project details by category and status

HPa Digitally signed by Alicia
AIICIa Scallion
Report prepared by:  Scallion Bata: 20210610

Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA, Manager, Accounting, (902)-497-9785

Page 3 of 3



196png Bujuleway

pu3 ayj} 0} sainjpuadxgy
pajsesaio [ejo)

youaep o} sainjipuadxy
pajsesalo [ejo]

YdJep JO SE 3|gejieay
196png Buiureway

sainypuadxy jejo|

‘L 1udy saunyipuadxgy

yoaep 03 sainyipuadxgy

¥0°€80'7Z0 67 TV'9EC OV VEL 68'7€9'G2C L8 16'816'856 €0} 67 0P LIS 6L 86°€LE L6V 09 159966106} 9761 0L €8 [e101 puei

(08'712'59L'S) ¥6°C10V62°€S 297€S'62€ 67 (00°0) v1'86L°825" LY LO'EL8'ELLLE €1'526'718'6 71'86.°825" LY 1e301 }2-Paso|Q

(21'8827221) 00'000'685 00°000'6%2 000 €8'11Z°19Y LE'€0L29Y (8y'167'1) €8'1L1C'L9Y s100[04d 9121000 - JBJEMULIOIS

08°168'LEL 000 00°000°ZE} 000 08'168'LEL (90°€12) 98'v01'ZE} 08°168'LEL S8INJONIS - JOIEMLUIOIS

(€8'6v1°€C2) 00'000'7€S' 00°000°0€5'C 000 £1°0S8°0LET €9°0EL6LLT vS6LL1L6L £1°0S8°0LET S8UOYA/SHOAIND - JOIEMULIOIS

(86°22£291) 20'00€'66Z L 20°00€'60€'L 000 ¥0'226'9E}’L 1G186ETL L €S0V6'CL ¥0°'Z26'9E}’L sedid - Jelemwiols|  MS

80°092'655 00'000°0€}'E 00°000°6€0°€ 000 80°09¢'689°€ 29°L29'789°E 9r'2E9Y 80°092°689°¢ 510901 81e10dI0D - IBjEMBISEM

£V ¥8L°LS LEILY'GY LE9LY'TSY 000 08'009'20Z LE'158°LZS €v'672°08) 08'009'20L yuswdinb3 - Jejemelsem

ov'LELL 00'000°00% 00°000°00% 000 0F' LEL'LOY 86'997'65¢C v v99'LyL OF LEL'LOY Runoss - isjemesem

(85°190°6Y) 18'950'69¢€ 18'950'vvE 000 62'G66'61€ 0€°'956'652 66'8£0'09 62'566'61€ ABiouz - ielemsise

(ev'621°0€9) 89'/21'S80°€ 9€9/181LLC (000) G2'866'7SS'C zL65Terr'e €G'8€LTL) GZ'866'7SS'C Auioed juswea.] - 191ema}sem

(€0°'660°7LE) 00°000°G9ZL 00°000°G¥Z'L 000 £6'006'056 26'689'GLY S0'LLZ6LY 16'006'056 S8INONAIS - JBJeMBISEM

(89'25€'86L°L) 00'000°2L0'8 00°000'70Z'L 000 2€LY9'8LC'9 08'8€C°LSCY 25'807'196'L 2€LY9'812'9 WidISAS UORDBI0D - JOIEMBISEM | MM

000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ABojouyos) uonewoyuj - sjesodiod

(28'22r'or6'L) 00'v¥E'L6L'6 00'918°256'L 000 €1°126'05¢'L 0S'€61°G50'€ €9'/2.'G6L'y €1'126'05¢'L sjo0f0id @jei0dioD - iBjlem

(v2°1€0°06€) 00°000°L¥L'E 00°'000'695°€ 000 92'896'05€ '€ 89'908'925°C 85'191'vZ8 92'896'0S€'E swdinb3 - 1eje M

(18'7¥9'S) 00°00082 00'000'8Z 000 61'G5€CL 61°G5€°CL 000 61'G5€CL Runoss - isjem

(000000 1) 00°000°0Z} 000 000 000 000 000 000 ABiauz - serem

(y2221€) 00°000'222 00'000°€82 000 652¢2'G6) 65222'S6) 000 6522’6 SN0 JUBUIEDIL - JBJE N

(L2°0v0°2¥0°L) 00'892°Z18°Ch 00'69L°€SETH 000 6CLTL'SOL'LL 1182520} 81'661€6€’} 62'.2L°G9L'} L S2INPNAS - JjeM

€€'660'655 00'000°€6L'E 0000029’ 000 €€'660°25EY vS'GLeLST Y 6.°€28°00) €€'660°25EY uopNquIsIq - J8jeM

(09°506°€82) 00°000°'L¥6'L 00°000°€0Z'}L 000 0F'¥60°259'L 0€'86L'EEY’L 01'96Z'€C OF'¥60°259'L UOISSILUSUBIL - 18JB A\ M 1Z2-paso|)

00'8€2°0.v'82 00°0v¥'02L'02 00°000°60€"} 00°'829°079°8% 000 000 000 00°829°079°8% 1e301 Buipuad

00°000°0€ 000 000 00°000°0€ 000 000 000 00°000°0€ s1os8f01d 8je10dI0] - IBJEMULIOIS

00'000°€6 000 000 00°000°€6 000 000 000 00'000°€6 SRINPNAS - JOJEMWIOIS

00°000°082 000 000 00°000°082 000 000 000 00°000°082 S8UDNA/SHOAIND - JOIEMLUIOIS

00'8€T'LLE 00°000'% 000007 00°8€Z°1.8€ 000 000 000 00'8€Z'1.8€ sadid - JBlEMWIOIS|  MS

00°000°'G 000 000 00°000°S 000 000 000 00°'000°'S spoefoid ejeiodio] - 1sjlemalsem

00°000°05 } 000 000 00°000°0S 000 000 000 00°000°0S} yuswdinb3 - 19EMISEM

00°000°00} 000 000 00°000°00} 000 000 000 00°000°00} Anoeg - 1sjlemelse

00'00S°Z19'L 00°000°05 000 000052991 000 000 000 00005299} ABisuz - ieremelsem

00°00S'2€2°9 00°000°8EL'L 000 00°00S'G26°2 000 000 000 00'005'G/6'L Auloed Jusuies.] - JelemeIsep

00°000'729°L 00°000°000°€ 000 00°000°729°0} 000 000 000 00°000°729°0} SBINPNIAIS - JOIEMBISEM

00°000°09 000 000 00°000°09 000 000 000 00°000°09 SUIBWSDI04 - JJEMBISEM

00°000°075°€ 00°000°166°C 00000092k 00°000°1€5°Z 000 000 000 00°000°+€S'L WielsAS UOROB|[0D - JIBJBMBISBA | MM

0000987 '€ 000¥r ZLY'L 000 00°0¥0°995 ¥ 000 000 000 00°'0¥0'995'¥ speloid ejeiodiog - sjlem

(00°000'S¥) 00°000'S¥ 00°000°G 000 000 000 000 000 wswdinb3 - 18je M

00°000'6Z} 00°000°0€€ 000 00°000°GSY 000 000 000 00°000'G5Y ABiauz - selem

00'000'6€S'¥ 00°000°0Lt'y 000 00°000°600°6 000 000 000 00'000°600'6 SN0 JUBUIEDIL - JBJEAN

00°000°00€ 00°000°000°C 000 00°000°00€C 000 000 000 00°000'00€'Z S2INPNAS - JBJeM

(00'000'721'}) 000 000 (00°000°7211) 000 000 000 (00000'v2}H'L) uonNqgUIsIq - 41 M

00°00%'LEZ'L 00°000°529°C 000 00°00%'ZL6°E 000 000 000 00°00%'ZL6'E UOISSILUSUBIL - I8JB A\

00°000°0€E} 00°000°0S¥ 000 00°000°085 000 000 000 00°000°08S PUET - IBle M M Bujpuad

¥8'650'61L£92 8v°€8.°186'09 1Z°001°285°9¢€ 16°00€'8LE'SS GETrS'Z86LE 16°005'2..22 8€'L¥0°S0Z 6 ZEEY8 0028 1EJ01 BAOY|

(Z2°0€0°0VE) 00'9v0CrY 00°9%5°162 (S¥'8eL2he) 89°€51PPE 89°€SLTPE 000 €2°G10C0L s1alold 8jeiodio - 1BJeMILIOlS

(00°000°}) 00'000'6/Z' 00°000'8Y €7°002'502°C 15'66L'2L LT6YY'6Y 0€'0SE'€T 00'000'8/2°2 S2INONIS - JISJEMULIOIS

00000795 00'000252 00°000°659 62°21.9°002 12'/8€'G19 95'/60°CSS G1'062°€9 00'000°9LE"L S8URYIA/SHOAIND - JOIEMULIOIS

€1'892°1.86 00°L¥6'0S2 00°000°€8Z 00Z/8°GEY'L €L EVE'96T €2'6LE'81C 06'€96'2L EL'GLTTEL'L sedid - Jelemwols|  MS

000 00°000°S¥ 61'88L'LE 18hLTL 6188L°LE 000 6188L°LE 00°000°GY pajeinbaiun - 18jemaisem

98'G0Z°€60°C 00°009'92.'L 00°000°0Z€ 99'1€1229'C 0T 729'26) [ 99ZhL'9L 98'G08'618'E spoefoid ejeiodio] - isjlemalsem

65'6€C'LC 17'09.282 81'9€5°66 €9'209°59¢ LE LBE'6Y G619 Tr'SSL'8Y 00°000°G € yuswdinb3 - 19eMeISEM

000 000 000 (21-z06) L1206 11206 000 000 Anoeg - 1sjlemelse

000 00°000°6€} 1G'86Y'GS vLVELT8 92'G92'95 €E6L5°L €6'GrL'8Y 00°000°6€E} ABisuz - iejemelsem

16'996°220°L L0°L08'LSY'Y £0°208'880°€ €5/Tr'SZL'E SY'OVE'BYET 95°€69°02L°L 68'259'829 86'€LLYIV'S Ailoed Jusuwies.] - J81emM8ISep

(z82Ly'SL) 00'000°L€}'9 00°000°L€Z'Y v9'€20rr0'E vS€0S'L10°E €57,98°€E8"L LO'9E9LLL'L 81°,25'G50'9 SBINPNIAIS - JOIEMBISEM

00°000°08% 00°000°02 00°000°04 vL€8L'8SY 98'918'L6 01°00£'8L 9L9LL'EL 00°000°0SS SUIBWSDI0H - JBJEMBISEM

68'9€€'LLL'8 00'000Z6¥'0L L1'¥90'760°L LE¥88°LLS6 85°25r'169'6 68'LVL€95°L 69v0L°L2)T 68'9€€'69C'6 1 WiBISAS UOBI0D - JBIEMBISE

00°000°G8Y 00°000°G } 00°000°GL 80'6.6'08Y 26'020'6L 26°020°6L 000 00°000°00S SIBMaS juni] - JBJemMeIsEM | MM

GE'9E8'8SL Y 00'260'GeL'E} 002ES9LL'8 1262€'925"} 1 71 709°256'9 96292121y 8L'9EE'9E8T GE'EE6'EBY'BL 510901 81e10di0) - Isje

8v'/9v°082'L 00°000°18Y'E 9E'678'0S0C 68'766'1L9LC 65'TLY'666 | TSELOVEE'L L0'66L'%99 87'.9¥'19L'y swdinb3 - 1eje M

000 000 000 (rS'600°%1) ¥S'600'7 ) ¥S'600 7L 000 000 Ayinoas - islem

00°000°L€E"L 00°000°L6Y'L 00°000'72S 66'665959°C 10'00v'G9} 10°00%'G9} 000 00'000'228'C OB JUBWEDIL - JBJeM

00'7GS'€S8°C 00'9vy'828'0L 6L'8LY'08Y'L 99'12€°251'6 vEBLIVLSY GE'T06'Tr6E 66'GLL629 00°000°CEL'E} S2INPNAS - I M

8E'¥8S'LSTT 00°080°20%'L 00°'000'G.E 09°'09€'8LE'E 8.'€0€'98C 18'G55°1.82 6LV 8€'799'799'€ uopnquisiq - Jejem

(91-968°09) 00'000'920'2 00°000°06Z° L vZ 0EE'816 09°€LL'90}°L €9'201°899 16'G99'8EY ¥8°€01'G20C UOISSIWUSUBIL - 18]\

(00°000°92 1) 00°000°} ¥E 00°000°L 7€ 8Z'1SG'0LL TL8YY Ty (86°671'€92) 04°865°L0€ 00'000'G}Z puET - IBle M ARy
a|qejieAy 103l01d 3y} Jo 1202 ‘L€ 1202 1€ 1202 ‘L€ Ud4eN 0} 1202 ‘L€ Ud4eN 0} 0Z0Z 020z ‘1€ a|qeneny 3abpng [ejoL Aiobaje) jessy EEIVEN snjeis




'(J(J/ Halifax Hanfa,} \TVE:‘MB#g

l l Water June 17, 2021

Halifax Regional Water Commission

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Board

Digitally signed by Cathie

= O'Toole
SUBMITTED BY: M(MJ &0‘6 Date: 2021.06.10

16:04:25 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: June 8, 2021
SUBJECT: Corporate Balanced Scorecard — 2020/21 Results
ORIGIN

Annual Corporate Performance Measurement.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Halifax Regional Water Commission Board approve the
Organizational Award Program tied to the outcomes of 12 Organizational Indicators, as
detailed in the attached presentation.

BACKGROUND

Halifax Water has been utilizing a corporate balanced scorecard (CBS) to measure
performance since 2001. With the merger in 2007, Halifax Water developed an expanded CBS
to include wastewater and stormwater measurements. As well, this provided an opportunity to
refine measurements related to water service delivery. The final 2020/21 results are presented
for information.

DISCUSSION

The mission of Halifax Water is “fo provide world-class services for our customers and our
environment”. The statement is simple and recognizes the connection between customers and
the environment with the ”one-water” mandate. The mission places the responsibility on
employees to make Halifax Water a world class utility, a responsibility they take personally
and seriously.

Page 1 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

The vision statement for Halifax Water is:

*  We will provide our customers with high quality water, wastewater, and stormwater
services.

*  Through adoption of best practices, we will place the highest value on public health,
customer service, fiscal responsibility, workplace safety and security, asset
management, regulatory compliance, and stewardship of the environment.

*  We will fully engage employees through teamwork, innovation, and professional
development

The vision statement expanded on the values and principles of a world class utility in fulfilling
its mission and captures the medium to long-term aspirations of Halifax Water. With the vision
statement developed, staff then selected the Critical Success Factors (CSFs) that support the
mission, and through an interactive process, settled on the following:

High Quality Drinking Water
Service Excellence

Responsible Financial Management
Effective Asset Management

Safety and Security

Regulatory Compliance
Environmental Stewardship

ol A A o

Motivated and Satisfied Employees
There are Organizational Indicators (Ols) established for each CSF to enable performance

measurement and establishment of targets. Each year, the Ols are reviewed and refined based
on operational objectives and approved budgets.

CBS Results for 2020/21

The following lists the CSFs and corresponding results for the organizational indicators under
each category.

Page 2 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

High Quality Drinking Water

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result

High Quality Drinking Water
Adherence with 5 objectives of Water Quality Master Plan

. L 80 - 100 76
for all water systems - Percentage of sites achieving
targets
0 0
Bacteriological tests - Percentage free from Total Coliform 99.3% e
Customer satisfaction about water quality - Percentage 80 - 85% 84%

from customer survey

Under the category of High Quality Drinking Water, we are continuing to seek adherence to
five key objectives associated with our Water Quality Masterplan. Performance was measured
through our ability to maintain a disinfection residual throughout the distribution system,
control disinfection byproducts like trihalomethanes(THMs) and haloacetic acids(HAAs),
ensure particle removal through our filtration systems, and ensure corrosion control in the
distribution system, as measured by the level of lead at the customers’ taps. Our results in these
five categories scored 0.76, out of a total maximum score of 1.00, a decline from last year’s
result of 0.82. This year’s results were impacted by a combination of the phenomenon of source
lake recovery and algal blooms (impacting THM and HAA) and a significant change in
customer consumption patterns due to COVID-19 restrictions, namely a decrease in
consumption in our Bennery system which serves the airport, and in the Burnside industrial
park.”

As for water safety, our bacteriological test results continue to be excellent at 100% this year,
compared to a target of 99.3% of samples free of total coliform.

Results from our annual customer survey indicate that 84% of customers were satisfied or very
satisfied with water quality, down slightly from last year’s result of 87%, but within the target
range of 80%-85%.

Service Excellence

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result

Service Excellence

Customer satisfaction with service - Percentage from 90% 96%
customer survey *See Note 1 in the attached Summary
Water service outages - Number of connection hours/1000

) 200 3612.62
customers *See Note 2 in the attached Summary
Wastewater service outages — Number of connection 8 0.92
hours/1000 customers
Average speed of answer — Percentage of calls answered 70% 71%

within 20 seconds.

Page 3 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Under the Service Excellence CSF, the annual customer survey indicated that 96% of our
customers are satisfied or very satisfied with our overall service, on par with 96% last year and
surpassing the target of 90%.

Service reliability on the water side was significantly impacted in 2020/21 by water main
breaks at Cobequid Road. Service outages for water were 3,612 connection hours/1,000
customers compared to a target of 200 connection hours. Wastewater results have continued to
improve with outages of 0.92 connection hours per 1,000 customers compared to 1.64
connection hours per 1,000 customers last year , and well below the target of 8 connection
hours per 1,000 customers.

Customer Care Centre performance is monitored as another important component of Service
Excellence. The percentage of calls answered within 20 seconds in 2020/21 was 71%,
compared to 32% last year, and the target of 70%. This represents a significant improvement
in Customer Care Centre performance which was achieved during a period of great change
resulting from Customer Care Centre staff shifting to working remotely due to COVID-19;
on-going operational changes that cause increased call volumes such as the general rate
hearing; COVID-19 relief measures; the enhanced lead service line program; and the
implementation of the customer portal.

Responsible Financial Management

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result
Responsible Financial Management
Operating expense/revenue ratio percentage 83.8% Sl
Annual cost per customer connection — Water $522 $498
Annual cost per customer connection — Wastewater $721 $724

Under Responsible Financial Management, the expense to revenue ratio, which is a Gateway
Indicator for the Organizational Performance Award program, was recorded as 0.815,
compared to the benchmark of 0.838 for the fiscal year. Also tied to the theme of Responsible
Financial Management is the annual cost per connection for water and wastewater service. For
water, the annual cost per connection increased to $498 compared to $469 in 2019/20, but was
less than the target of $522.

For wastewater, the annual cost increased to $724 from $718 per connection and slightly
exceeded the target of $721.

Page 4 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Effective Asset Management

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result
Effective Asset Management

Water leakage control — target leakage allowance of 160 160-170 e
litres/service connection/day *See Note 3 in the attached
Summary
|&I reduction - Number of inspections to identify private 450 1316%*
property discharge of stormwater into the wastewater
system *See Note 4 in the attached Summary
Peak flow reduction from wet weather management 34-38 1/sec 70 I/sec*
capital projects *See Note 5 in the attached Summary
Percentage of time GIS and Cityworks are available 96-98% 100%
Capital budget expenditures - Percentage of budget spend 80-90% 30.78%
by end of fiscal year *See Note 6 in the attached Summary approved

The leakage performance measure for 2020/21 was 193 compared to 176 litres per service
connection per day in 2019/20 and was above the target range of 160-170 litres per connection
per day. It should be noted that this target was adjusted to be more aggressive in 2018/19,
where the previous target was 180 - 190 litres per connection per day. The water loss control
program is being reviewed to determine what improvements can be made, and whether the
160-170 target is realistic recognizing there is a point at which there will be diminishing returns
as the economic level of water loss control is achieved.

On the wastewater side, reduction of inflow and infiltration is a key measurement of
performance. A record number of 1316 inspections were carried out on private property,
compared to 1086 inspections on private property last year. The target in 2020/21 was 900
inspections per year. At the March 2020 Halifax Water Board meeting the Board approved
lowering this target to 450 inspections as it was anticipated there would be increased difficulty
securing appointments due to sensitivity around COVID-19.

In recognition of the importance of keeping extraneous flows out of the wastewater system, a
new OI was introduced in 2019/20 targeting peak flow reductions in the Clayton Park/Fairview
sewershed where a concerted effort is being made to reduce inflow & infiltration into the
wastewater system. The new Ol has a target range reduction of 34 — 38 1/sec. This target was
exceeded in 2020/21 as peak flow reduction of 70 I/se ¢ were achieved. No results were
reported in 2019/20 as the capital project was not approved by the NSUARB in time to
implement within that fiscal year.

Updating and maintaining the GIS database is crucial to our Asset Management Program. With
the GIS database now considered to be in a mature state, at the March 28, 2019 Halifax Water
Board meeting, a new OI was approved based on the percentage of time GIS and CityWorks
is in service on a 24/7 operational protocol. The target range was set at 95% - 97%. For
2020/21, GIS and CityWorks were in service 100% of the time, which exceeds the target range

Page 5 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

of 95-97%. Having this level of system reliability and availability is critical to assisting
operational crews as they undertake daily maintenance and planned or emergency repair
activities.

Also under Effective Asset Management is Capital Budget Expenditures, recognizing that we
need to maximize spending of the annual funds approved by the NSUARB. The target for this
Ol is 80%-90%. Halifax Water completed $51.2 million in capital projects in 2020/21, but the
percentage of the 2020/21 capital budget that was spent was only 30.78%. This is a significant
decrease compared to prior years and will be a focus area for improvement. $6.3 million in
capital projects were delayed due to HRM related projects; $8.2 million were associated with
delayed NSUARB approvals; $3 million resulted from protracted land acquisition; $9.1 million
was a result in differences in anticipating planning or timelines; $8.2 million was as a result
of projects being re-scoped; and $1.3 million was related to delays caused by COVID-19.

Workplace Safety and Security

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result
Workplace Safety and Security
Average score on internal safety audits 85-95% A
NS Labour and Advanced Education compliance - # of 0-2 0
Incidents with written compliance orders
Lost time accidents -Number of accidents resulting in lost time 2.0-3.0 0.59
per 100 employees
Safe driving - Number of traffic Accidents per 1,000,000 km 4 5.5
driven (maximum of 5)
Training - Number of employees trained or 80-90% 59%*
recertified before due date *See Note 7 in the attached
Summary
Percentage of completed safety talks 80-90% 86%

In recognition that the safety program had reached a more mature and stable state, at the March
28,2019 Halifax Water Board meeting, a revised Ol was approved based on the average score
of internal safety audits. The target range for this revised Ol is 85% - 95%, and in 2020/21 an
average score of 94.5% was achieved, and increase from the 2019/20 average score of 89% on
internal safety audits.

Halifax Water had no infractions in 2020/21 resulting in a written warning from NS Labour
and Advanced Education, consistent with the prior year and achieving the target range for this
Ol of 0-2.

Page 6 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

With regard to lost-time accidents, which is a key indicator for workplace safety, the
organization saw 0.59 accidents per 100 employees as compared to a target of 2.0-3.0 per 100
employees. This is an improvement compared to the 2019/20 result of 1.6 lost time accidents
per 100 employees. This Ol is a Gateway Indicator for the Organizational Performance Award
program.

Halifax Water has a large fleet to deliver its services. Accordingly, the organization tracks the
number of traffic accidents per million kilometers driven. For 2020/21, 5.5 traffic accidents
per million km were recorded, a slight increase compared to the 4.2 recorded in 2019/20 and
outside the target range of 4 (maximum of 5). This will be an area of focus for improvement
in 2021/22.

Regulatory Compliance

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result

Regulatory Compliance

Percentage of public health and environmental 0-2 e

regulatory infractions resulting in a summary offense
ticket *See Note 8 in the attached Summary

Percentage of WWTFs complying with NSE approval 95-100% 93%
permits (Project for 20/21 at end of February)

Under the critical success factor of Regulatory Compliance, there were no public health and
environmental regulatory infractions resulting in summary offense tickets.

Also under regulatory compliance, the percentage of wastewater treatment facilities meeting
discharge requirements of their operating permits was 93%, an improvement from 91.2% last
year but less than the target range of 95-100%. This target was not achieved in 2020/21 due to
some on-going process changes and equipment replacement at the Dartmouth Wastewater
Treatment Facility and process issues identified at Mill Cove, North Preston and Springfield
Lake WWTFs. The target of 95-100% is aggressive, but achievable and demonstrates our
level of commitment to stewardship of the environment. Remaining compliant with permits
issued by Nova Scotia Environment and achieving federal wastewater system effluent
regulations [WSER] for facilities not operating under transitional operating permits is a key
aspect of our strategic plan.

Page 7 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Environmental Stewardship

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result
Environmental Stewardship

Number of ICl properties inspected by Pollution . 440 356
Prevention each year *See Note 9 in the attached recommended
Summary target
Energy management kwh/m3 reduction associated 3% +8%
with capital projects
Bio-solids residual handling - % of sludge meeting bio- 92-97% 98.6%

solids concentration targets

During the 2020/21 fiscal year, the Pollution Prevention division of Regulatory Services
inspected 356 businesses in the Halifax municipality, a decrease from the 501 inspected in
2019/20, and below the target of 440 inspections. The target number of inspections for 2020/21
was initially 500 and was revised to 440 at the March 2020 Board meeting based on the
anticipated impact of COVID-19. The target for 2021/22 is set at 500.

There is also continued focus on energy management associated with our water and wastewater
treatment facilities with an energy reduction of 8% achieved in 2020/21. A fabulous result
compared to the 4.67% achieved last year and the target of 3%. As one of the Utility’s largest
expenses, these on-going energy reductions represent real savings on the capital and
operational sides of the business, as well as continued reductions in our environmental
footprint. The energy reductions in 2020/21 are primarily as a result of equipment replacement
and repairs at wastewater treatment facilities.

Under biosolids residuals handling, 98.6% of the biosolids residuals met the desired solids

concentration in 2020/2021, compared to 99.2% last year, and still exceeding the target of 92-
97%.

Motivated and Satisfied Employees

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result
Motivated and Satisfied Employees

Number of arbitrations divided by total number of 0 0
grievances
Percentage of jobs filled with internal candidates 80% 75%
Employee satisfaction survey result A B+
Average number of days absenteeism <7 5.88

Page 8 of 10




ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

There are several organizational indicators under this category, including filling jobs with
Halifax Water incumbents. For the 2020/21 fiscal year, 75% of jobs were filled from within, a
significant increase from the 65% achieved last year, but less than the target of 80%. The
target of 80% has never been achieved and Halifax Water has been working on a new approach
to employee development as part of a broader Talent Management initiative. A new employee
development guide was introduced in 2020/21 with more information on career planning,
career paths, and job profiles to help employees identify what education, competencies and
experience are required for various positions. Halifax Water has programs in place to help
employees obtain additional training and education to further their career with the utility.

To promote harmonious labour management relations, an organizational indicator was chosen
to recognize the number of grievances resulting in arbitrations throughout the fiscal year. The
2020/21 result was 0, and improvement from the 0.07 reported last year, and meeting the target
of zero.

The Corporate Balanced Scorecard also includes an indicator of employee satisfaction which
is derived from a survey that is carried out in the fall of the year. The 2020/21 survey resulted
in a B+ which is consistent with prior year results. The target for this Ol is an A-. The response
rate was 71%, and a number of metrics reached the highest levels yet, indicating that the target
of A- should be achievable with continued focus and concentrated effort.

The number of days of absenteeism for employees is also a measure of satisfaction and
motivation. Accordingly, the average number of days that an employee was absent this year
stood at 5.88 down from 7.54 in 2019/20 and well beneath the target of less than 7 days. This
result is better than most public sector organizations and compares favourably with the private
sector.

Organizational Award Program

Consistent with past practice, 12 organizational indicators were incorporated into an
Organizational Award Program. The selected organizational indicators are determined to be
the most objective and outward looking to the customers and environment we serve.

The following is a summary of our organizational indicators and corresponding award point
values for the 2020/21 fiscal year:

Page 9 of 10



ITEM # 6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Organizational Indicator 2020/2] Results

Water Quality Master Plan Objectives 0.0
Customer Water Quality Survey Results 0.0
Customer Service Survey Results 1.0
Operating Expense/Revenue Ratio (Gateway Indicator) 1.0
Water Loss Control Reduction 1.0
Inflow & Infiltration Reduction 1.0
Percentage that GIS is Operational 1.0
# of Lost Time Accidents per 100 Employees (Gateway Indicator) 1.0
# of Accidents per 1,000,000 kms driven 0.0
Percentage of WWTFs Compliant with NS Environment Permits 0.0
Energy Management - Water & Wastewater 1.0
Biosolids Residuals Handling 1.0
*TOTAL SCORE 8.00

*The maximum attainable score is 12.0, which equates to a 31,000
award.

In accordance with the Organizational Award Program criteria, eligible employees will receive
$700 each in recognition of the exceptional performance.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

With the operating expense-to-revenue ratio less than the target, funds were available within
the 2020/21 operations budget for the Organizational Award Program.

ATTACHMENT

1. Summary — 2020-21 Corporate Balanced Scorecard — Final Results, June 17, 2021
2. Presentation — Corporate Balanced Scorecard 2020/21 Results — June 17, 2021

Digitally signed by Cathie

. O'Toole
Report Prepared by; W &b@ Date: 2021.06.10

16:42:19 -03'00"
Cathie O"Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager
902-490-4840
Louis de gig:\tﬂa”ytsigned by Louis

1 1 1 . Date: 2021.06.10
Financial Reviewed by: Montbrun 169125 .0300"

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services / CFO
902-490-3685 Page 10 of 10




ITEM#6
Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

ATTACHMENT 1
Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21 2021/22
Target Result Target
High Quality Drinking Water
Adherence with 5 objectives of Water Quality 80-100
Master Plan for all water systems - Percentage of e 80
sites achieving targets
Bacteriological tests - Percentage free from Total 99.3% 100% 99.9%
Coliform
Customer satisfaction about water quality - 85% 84% 85%
Percentage from customer survey
Service Excellence
Customer satisfaction with service - Percentage 90% 96% 95%*
from customer survey *Note 1
Water service outages - Number of connection
hours/1000 customers *Note 2 200 361262 200
Wastewater service outages — Number of 8 0.92 4
connection hours/1000 customers
Average speed of answer — Percentage of calls 70% 71% 70%
answered within 20 seconds.
Responsible Financial Management
Operating expense/revenue ratio percentage 83.8% s 82%
(gateway indicator)
Annual cost per customer connection — Water $522 $498 $543
Annual cost per customer connection — Wastewater $721 $724 $758
Effective Asset Management
Water leakage control — target leakage allowance of 160-170 193 160-170
160 litres/service connection/day *Note 3
1&I reduction - Number of inspections to identify 450 1316* 900
private property discharge of stormwater into the
wastewater system *Note 4
Peak flow reduction from wet weather management 34-38 |/sec 70 I/sec* 5-10 I/sec*
capital projects *Note 5
Percentage of time GIS and Cityworks are available 96-98% 100% 96-98%
Capital budget expenditures - Percentage of budget 80-90% approved 30.78% 70-80%
spend by end of fiscal year *Note 6
Workplace Safety and Security
Average score on internal safety audits 85-95% s 85-95%
NS Labour and Advanced Education compliance - # of 0-2 0 0-2
Incidents with written compliance orders
Lost time accidents -Number of accidents resulting in 2.0-3.0 0.59 1.5-2.0
lost time per 100 employees (gateway indicator)
Safe driving - Number of traffic Accidents per 4 53 4
1,000,000 km driven (maximum of 5)
Training - Number of employees trained or 80-90% 59%%* 80-90%
recertified before due date *Note 7
Percentage of completed safety talks 80-90% 86% 80-90%

. |STRAIGHT from|

.*. |the SOURCE|



Regulatory Compliance

Percentage of public health and environmental 0-2 0 0-2

regulatory infractions resulting in a summary
offense ticket *Note 8

Percentage of WWTFs complying with NSE approval 95-100% 93% 95-100%
permits (Project for 20/21 at end of February)

Environmental Stewardship

Number of ICI properties inspected by Pollution . 440 356 500
Prevention each year *Note 9 recommended

target

Energy management kwh/m3 reduction associated 3% +8% 3%
with capital projects
Bio-solids residual handling - % of sludge meeting 92-97% 98.6% 92-97%
bio-solids concentration targets

Motivated and Satisfied Employees
Number of arbitrations divided by total number of 0 0 0
grievances
Percentage of jobs filled with internal candidates 80% 75% 80%
Employee satisfaction survey result A B+
Average number of days absenteeism <7 5.88 <7

Notes:

1.  The Customer Satisfaction target is recommended to increase from 90% to 95%. Maintaining the current level of customer satisfaction of
96% will be challenged by stormwater service expansion, a cost-of-service hearing, and a potential rate application.

2. Water service outage hours for 2020/21 were exceeded due to the significant Cobequid Road water main breaks in 2020.

3. Water leakage index for 2020/21 was impacted by some significant water main breaks (Cobequid Road) . There was also some additional
flushing to maintain water quality in the distribution system in areas where flows were lower than normal due to the impact of COVID-19
on water demand and changed consumption patterns. The COVID-19 related flushing was removed from the final calculation.

4. 1&I reduction target was lowered in 2020/21 as it was thought that COVID-19 might impact the number of inspections on private property.
This was not the case, and there was a record setting number of inspections of private property discharge of stormwater entering the
wastewater system.

5.  Peak Flow Reduction 2020/21 Projected Result: The data from WWMP15AB demonstrated a reduction in the range of 70 I/sec (in a
significant 6 km portion, of the total 7.4 km lined sections). Data was compromised for 1.4 km of the lined section, therefore that data is
not included. 2021/22 New Target: Crescent Ave East 1.5 km Sewershed CIPP Lining — Target 5-10 L/sec peak flow reduction

6. Capital budget expenditures (2020/21) were impacted by the timing of Cogswell redevelopment, deferral of some integrated projects with
the municipality; delays in securing land, or necessary approvals.

7.  The number of employees trained and re-certified before due date was impacted by availability of training as some training could not be
conducted due to COVID-19.

8.  The target percentage of public health and environmental regulatory infractions has been simplified to focus on infractions resulting in a
summary offense ticket. It formerly included written Ministerial Orders (Warnings or Directives) or Prosecutions. The rule set and
process for summary offense tickets is clearly defined.

9.  The target for ICI properties inspected by Pollution Prevention was lowered in 2020/21 as it was thought that COVID-19 might impact the
number of inspections.

%@fmf'.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.. 'STRAIGHT from ‘(J(.I/Ilali[’a.\'

Lttt e e e s ete a e v h s [the SOURCE| B 8 Water




ITEM#6

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021
ATTACHMENT 2

‘Ll(l/llalil’ax
l 1 Water

Corporate Balanced
Scorecard
2020/21 Results

Presented to Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Cathie O'Toole
General Manager

[STRAIGHT from|
[the SOURCE

www.halifaxwater.ca 1 t{t.l/ ! \l.\l ifa

History of Corporate Balanced Scorecard
at Halifax Water

Halifax Water started a Continuous Improvement Program in 1999

* In 2000, Halifax Water looked for methodology to measure
organizational performance that was meaningful

In 2001, the Halifax Water Board approved a Corporate Balanced
Scorecard [CBS], and an Organizational Award Program on March
28,2002

» CBS ensures all employees are focused on strategic outcomes

« Critical success factors [CSFS] are developed in support of the
mission

Organizational indicators [Ols] are used to measure performance




The Mission & Vision of Halifax Water

Halifax Water’s mission is to provide world class services
for our customers and our environment; and the vision of
how this will be accomplished is threefold:

» We will provide our customers with high quality water,
wastewater and stormwater service.

» Through the adoption of best practices, we will place the
highest value on public health, customer service, fiscal
responsibility, workplace safety and security, asset
management, regulatory compliance and stewardship of the
environment.

» We will fully engage employees through teamwork, innovation
and professional development.

www.halifaxwater.ca 2 L{"l/ W

www.halifaxwater.ca 3 L{"l/ W

Critical Success Factors

+ High Quality Drinking Water

» Service Excellence

* Responsible Financial Management
» Effective Asset Management

» Workplace Safety and Security

* Regulatory Compliance

* Environmental Stewardship

» Motivated and Satisfied Employees

6/10/2021



www.halifaxwater.ca 4

Organizational Indicators

» The OI's are organizational, not individual measures.

» The OI's provide both a detailed clarification of the CSF and
allow a target or goal for performance to be established and

tracked.
4

www.halifaxwater.ca 5 t{t-}“ {falifax

Organizational Performance Award Program

» Based on a subset [12] of our strategic OlI's which are the most
objective.

» Program pays for itself by meeting operating expense to revenue
ratio target; ratio is reduced from approved budget to
accommodate the award program potential.

* It is not a given; a threshold of 7.0 in scoring must be reached in
a given year, and the gateway indicators must be met.

+ To be eligible for the award, employees must work a minimum of
nine months during the fiscal year [April 1st to March 31st]

5

6/10/2021



www.halifaxwater.ca 6

CSF: High Quality Drinking Water

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target ES

High Quality Drinking Water
Adherence with 5 objectives of Water Quality
Master Plan for all water systems - Percentage of
sites achieving targets
Bacteriological tests - Percentage free from Total
Coliform
Customer satisfaction about water quality -
Percentage from customer survey

80-100

99.3%

85%

76

100%

84%

www.halifaxwater.ca

CSF: Service Excellence

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target ES

Service Excellence

Customer satisfaction with service - Percentage
from customer survey *Note 1

Water service outages - Number of connection
hours/1000 customers *Note 2

Wastewater service outages — Number of
connection hours/1000 customers

Average speed of answer — Percentage of calls
answered within 20 seconds.

90%

200

8

70%

96%

3612.62

0.92

71%

6/10/2021



www.halifaxwater.ca 8

CSF: Responsible Financial Management

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 | 2020/21
Target Result

Responsible Financial Management

Operating expense/revenue ratio percentage 83.8% 81.5%
Annual cost per customer connection — Water $522 $498
Annual cost per customer connection — Wastewater $721 $724

» The operating expense/revenue ratio is a gateway indicator. If it is not
achieved, no organizational award is paid out.

www.halifaxwater.ca 9

CSF: Effective Asset Management

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result

Effective Asset Management

Water leakage control — target leakage allowance 160-170 193
of 160 litres/service connection/day *Note 3
1&I reduction - Number of inspections to identify 450 1316*

private property discharge of stormwater into the
wastewater system *Note 4

Peak flow reduction from wet weather 34-38 |/sec 70 |/sec*
management capital projects *Note 5

Percentage of time GIS and Cityworks are available 96-98% 100%
Capital budget expenditures - % of budget spent by 80-90% 30.78%

end of fiscal year

6/10/2021



www.halifaxwater.ca 10 dldll alifax

CSF: Workplace Safety & Security

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result

Workplace Safety and Security

Average score on internal safety audits 85-95% 94.5%

NS Labour and Advanced Education compliance — 0-2 0

# of Incidents with written compliance orders

Lost time accidents - # of accidents resulting in lost 2.0-3.0 0.59

time per 100 employees

Safe driving - # of traffic Accidents per 1,000,000 km 4 5.5

driven (maximum of 5)

Training - # of employees trained or 80-90% 59%*

recertified before due date *Note 7

% of completed safety talks 80-90% 86%
10

www.halifaxwater.ca 11 dldf Water

CSF: Regulatory Compliance

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target ES
Regulatory Compliance

Percentage of public health and environmental 0-2 0
regulatory infractions resulting in a summary
offense ticket *Note 8

Percentage of WWTFs complying with NSE approval
permits

95-100% 93%

6/10/2021



www.halifaxwater.ca 12

CSF: Environmental Stewardship

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 2020/21
Target Result

Environmental Stewardship

Number of ICI properties inspected by Pollution 440 356
Prevention each year *Note 9

Energy management kwh/m3 reduction associated with 3% 8%
capital projects

Bio-solids residual handling - % of sludge meeting bio- 92-97% 98.6%

solids concentration targets

ier

www.halifaxwater.ca 13

CSF: Motivated and Satisfied Employees

Organizational Indicators 2020/21 | 2020/21
Target Result

Motivated and Satisfied Employees

Number of arbitrations divided by total number of 0 0
grievances

Percentage of jobs filled with internal candidates 80% 75%
Employee satisfaction survey result A B+
Average number of days absenteeism <7 5.88

dl"ll Halfa

6/10/2021



Organizational Performance Award Program

» Based on a subset [12] of our strategic Ol’'s which are the
most objective.

* Program pays for itself by meeting operating expense to
revenue ratio target; ratio is reduced from approved budget to
accommodate the award program potential.

* Itis not a given; a threshold of 7.0 in scoring must be reached
in a given year.

* To be eligible for the award, employees must work a minimum
of nine months during the fiscal year [April 1st to March 31st].

www.halifaxwater.ca 14 L{t.}” 1“\4:\\:..\\

14
www.halifaxwater.ca 15 ‘{"}/ {allax
Employees Organizational Award
The highest possible score is 12.0 [1.0 for each Ol]. If HRWC performs
well, then everyone should be rewarded as follows:
Total Ol Score OP Award Amount
>11.0 $1,000
10.0 $900
9.0 $800
8.0 $700
7.0 $600
<70 $0
These values will be pro-rated if a score falls between them.
Example: For the total OP Award score of 8.5, each employee will get
an organizational award of $750.
15

6/10/2021



16 ‘Ll(.{’ \\\th 1X

www.halifaxwater.ca aler

Based on 12 Ols which are the most objective:

Organizational Indicator Max. Score m

Water Quality Master Plan Objectives 1.0 0.0
Customer Water Quality Survey Results 1.0 0.0
Customer Service Survey Results 1.0 1.0
Operating Expense/Revenue Ratio [Gateway] 1.0 1.0
Water Loss Control Reduction 1.0 1.0
Peak Flow Reduction 1.0 1.0
Percentage of Time GIS and CityWorks are Operational 1.0 1.0
# of Lost Time Accidents per 100 Employees [Gateway] 1.0 1.0
# of Traffic Accidents per 1,000,000 km 1.0 0.0
% of WWTFs Compliant with NS Environment Permits 1.0 0.0
Energy Management — Water & Wastewater 1.0 1.0
Biosolids Residual Handling 1.0 1.0
TOTAL MAXIMUM SCORE 12.0 8.0

L{L}' I\\‘m.“.\\

www.halifaxwater.ca 17 Vater

Summary

» The track record of the CBS at Halifax Water has been very positive;
it drives performance.

« Staff obtains Board approval of the Organizational Award Program
on an annual basis.

» Organizational Award Program funding is available by meeting the
Operating Expense to Revenue Ratio Target.

» The Organizational Award Program is not a given; the organization
must score at least 7.0 to have an award, and the gateway indicators
must be achieved.

» Financial targets are based on the approved operating budget.

* CBS results must be submitted to Halifax Council as part of the
annual Accountability Report.

6/10/2021



6/10/2021

e

(.}’]L.‘:MI.\\
Waler

www.halifaxwater.ca 18

Questions or

Comments?

-----------------------------------
-----------------------------------

10



NSUARB ITEM #7
d(} %al l faX Halifax Water Board
ater June 17, 2021

Halifax Regmnal Walter Commission

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA,
Chair and Members of the Halifax Regional Water Commission
Board

Louis de gz
SUBMITTED BY: Montbrun e g

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA

Director, Corporate Services/ CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: M'IJ &bta g;aTtg:()lzeom 06.10

17:28:30 -03'00'
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: June 9, 2021

SUBJECT: 2020/21 Cost Containment
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

e The Cost Containment Process as approved by the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board (the “Board”), October 3, 2013.

e April 14, 2015, Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (NSUARB) Decision -
HRWC General Rate Application (M06540).

BACKGROUND

The process for cost containment as approved by the Board on October 3, 2013, called for
the implementation of several recommended actions that would assist Halifax Water in
addressing the NSUARB request for a more rigorous approach to cost containment. One
key recommendation was the establishment of a reporting structure whereby, “on a
quarterly basis, the monthly financial report of the Board will also include an update on
Cost Containment Initiatives”.

Page 1 of 4



NSUARB ITEM #7

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

In the Decision on the 2015 Rate Hearing, the NSUARB directed Halifax Water to file
annual reports on its efforts to contain the operating costs of the utility, with this report to
be filed no later than June 30 of each year.

DISCUSSION

A summary report of cost containment initiatives for the 2020/21 is attached. The report
shows cost containment initiatives effecting operations for 2020/21 for new initiatives
implemented during the year, along with amounts of an ongoing nature from fiscal years
2013/14 to 2019/20 inclusive. The inclusion of initiatives and amounts from prior years
reflects an intentional focus on sustainable results over the long term. The estimated cost
savings to 2020/21 is $7.7 million, as outlined by category in Figure #1 below:

Figure #1

Procurement Strategies $1,298,141 16.8%
Human Resource Strategies $3.941,594 51.2%
Information Technology Strategies $108,700 1.4%
Facilities/Process Strategies $2,206,239 28.6%
Reduce Paper and Printing Costs $38415 0.5%
Technology and Business Process Changes $112,138 1.5%

$7,705,227 100.0%

As shown above, cost containment initiatives are impacted most in the areas of Human
Resource, Procurement, and Facilities/Process Strategies. Under Human Resource
Strategies, the effects of the pension plan re-design initiated in 2015/16 is one of the main
contributors to cost containment savings for the current year. Annual savings related to
pension plan re-design approximates $1.7 million, which represents 43% of the savings
within Human Resource Strategies, and 22% of the total projected savings for 2020/21.
An actuarial valuation performed on the pension plan January 1, 2019 resulted in the plan
experiencing its first surplus since the year 2000. As a result, Halifax Water was no longer
required to make special payments to cover the unfunded liability, creating a savings of
$0.8 million annually. This represents savings within Human Resource Strategies of 21%,
and 11% of the total projected savings for 2020/21. The next actuarial valuation is January
1,2022.

Facilities/Process Strategies contain initiatives of varying nature, however a main
contributor in this category is Halifax Water’s Energy Efficiency Program. Projects under
this program represent approximately $1.1 million or 48% of savings reported within the
Facilities/Process Strategies, and 14% of the total projected savings for 2020/21. Some of

Page 2 of 4



NSUARB ITEM # 7

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

the prominent initiatives under the program related to energy savings include the annual
shutdown of the ultraviolet disinfection systems ($0.2 million) at the Harbour Solution and
Eastern Passage plants, heat recovery processes ($0.1 million) at the Harbour Solution
plants, and lighting upgrades at various facilities.

New cost containment initiatives implemented during 2020/21 resulted in one-time and
ongoing cost savings amounting to $1.2 million. These initiatives are highlighted for ease
of reference in the Summary Report — Cost Containment Initiatives attached. Cost savings
resulting from these new initiatives fall within the following categories, ranked in order of
magnitude:

e Human Resource Strategies $0.5 million
e Procurement Strategies $0.4 million
e Facilities/Process Strategies $0.3 million

Significant initiatives during 2020/21 were:

1. Human Resource Strategies - $0.5 million
Many of the cost containment savings realized in 2020/21 were the result of
COVID-19 and associated safety restrictions and protocols enforced throughout
year. A reduction in recruitment costs and hiring deferrals accounted for an
estimated $0.3 million in savings.

2. Procurement Strategies - $0.4 million
Pursuant to the Municipal Auditor General’s 2019 fleet audit and actions taken by
Halifax Water’s Fleet Utilization Management, estimated savings totaling $0.1
million resulted from the disposition in 2020/21 of 16 vehicles, and associated
repair costs to maintaining those units.

Like Human Resource Strategies in the preceding section, another $0.1 million or
31% of the cost savings realized within Procurement Strategies was associated with
COVID-19. Contract and professional services were affected, including the
cancellation of promotional activities such as the SHED, and internal audits for
procurement and the DRO process.

3. Facilities/Process Strategies - $0.3 million
The deferral of sludge removal at both Pockwock and Lake Major water plants to
2021/22 resulted in savings of approximately $0.1 million.

From a capital perspective, the following initiative resulted in savings during 2020/21:

e As the AMI metering project was concluding, Halifax Water had the opportunity
to purchase AMI meters from the vendor in bulk, to take advantage significant price
discounts offered within the project contract. Knowing pricing was expected to
increase at the end of the contract, estimated cost savings would be in the range of

Page 3 of 4



NSUARB ITEM #7

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

28%. There was capacity to inventory a bulk purchase of meters to meet
requirements associated with new installations and/or replacements over a 2-year
period. The decision was made to purchase 5/8” and 3/4” meters to cover the 2-year
period, with projected savings of $74 thousand per year, or $150 thousand in total.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

Available information on cost containment initiatives were taken into consideration when
the 2020/21 budget was developed. Initiatives that impact future fiscal periods will be
incorporated into future periods.

ATTACHMENTS

Summary Report — Cost Containment Initiatives

Digitally signed by Allan

Report Prepared by: jﬂ@ﬁ%fa&, Dates 2021.06.10

17:30:59 -03'00"
Allan Campbell, B. Comm, CPA, CMA
Manager, Finance, (902) 490-4288

Page 4 of 4




Halifax Water
Summary Report - Cost Containment Initiatives

ITEM#7

Halifax Water Board

2020/2021
Fiscal Year June 17, 2021
ATTACHMENT
09-Jun-21
2020/21
Year Cost
# |Initiative Comments Initiated Savings
1 General Budget Strategies
Sub-total $0
2 Procurement Strategies
Insurance adjustment services - sole source relationship ~ Halifax Water (HW) participated in a joint tender with Halifax Regional 2013/14 $5,460
over a 10 year period Municipality(HRM). Costs will be approximately 20% lower.
Standardized uniforms and clothing Issuance of a bulk tender; centralization of purchasing and distribution function; 2013/14 $20,000
possible policy change to "as required” rather than a quota system
Standardized boots Issuance of a bulk tender; centralization of purchasing and distribution function; 2013/14 $5,000
possible policy change to "as required” rather than a quota system
Customer account collections Coordination of collection services related to closed customer accounts in 2014/15 $10,000
conjunction with the Provincial Public Procurement Act, rather than outsourcing to
private organizations
Lab Testing Savings as a result of contract tendering 2013/14 $60,000
NSPI rate reclassification Eastern Passage Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) 2014/15 $16,000
NSPI rate reclassification Duffus Street Pumping Station 2015/16 $15,000
Chemical purchasing Able to purchase a corrosion inhibitor with a higher concentration of active 2015/16 $400,000
ingredient, thus foregoing additional costs that would have resulted under current
dosage requirements
Replacement of wireless headsets for Customer Care staff Wireless headsets were not performing as expected, therefore a switch was made 2015/16 $1,500
to wired headsets which resulted in savings on a per unit cost basis, and also
savings regarding the frequency and cost of replacement associated with the wired
headsets.
Mobile devices - switched supplier and carrier HW leveraged the mobility contract of the Province of Nova Scotia 2016/17 $48,000
Garbage collection - JD Kline Plant A request for proposal (RFP) was put out to consolidate the garbage collection, 2016/17 $1,370
which resulted in a cost savings with respect to internal man-hours and use of HW
Utilizing HW staff to setup excavations sites Using trained HW staff as TWS for job sites, unless outside traffic control personal 2016/17 $50,000
are required
RFP for biosolids transport As a result of a recent RFP, the is expected to be an approximate 33% cost 2017/18 $220,000
reduction related to transporting biosolids from the Halifax, Dartmouth, Herring
Cove and Eastern Passage WWTF
Traffic control Using trained HW staff for the purposes of traffic control while working on HW 2017/18 $50,000
excavations sites will result in cost savings of $750/day. This is based on an 8 hour
day, including setup costs typically paid to the contractor.
Insourcing (Halifax Water's Annual Report) The ability to perform in-house graphic design work versus contracting this work 2018/19 $9,200
outside created savings with respect to the 2018 report of approximately $100/page.
Recurring annual savings will fluxuate depending on the size of the report in
subsequent years.
Equipment calibration Internal staff are now able to calibrate fixed gas detectors instead of outsourcing 2019/20 $3,000
this to a MSA technician service provider.
Reduction in sampling Reduced the amount of lab testing over the year as greater reliance and confidence 2019/20 $5,000
was placed on the new, in-line analyzers.
Implementation of the new telephony platform With the implementation of the new telephony platform, Customer Care was able to 2020721 $45,000
transition from the use of landlines.
Discounted parts offerings from a vendor As a result of supply/demand, a vendor was offering significant savings (40%) 2020721 $2,043
toward the purchase of Rotork actuators. This was a limited time offer, good until
November 30, 2020. As a result, the Mill Cove WWTF was in need of an actuator
and was able to take advantage of the offering.
Elimination of a customer satisfaction survey HW performs 2 customer surveys annually, the Forth Quarter Urban Report and the 2020/21 $5,319
Atlantic Quarterly Survey. Upon review it was determined there was a redundancy
in question asked between the 2 surveys therefore, it was decided to consolidate
the questioning into the Forth Quarter Urban Report.
Equipment rental West Water Operations rented a single axle hydro-excavation unit for 5 months 2020721 $30,000

rather than hire an hydro-excavation contractor during 2020. The unit had several
uses including service box replacements, lead service investigations, and water
main repairs. Rental for the unit was $45,000; the cost to hire a hydro-excavation
contractor would have been $75,000 for comparable work.



Halifax Water

Summary Report - Cost Containment Initiatives
2020/2021

Fiscal Year

Contract service deferral

Board meeting logistics

Professional services

Drain covers

Implementation of the new telephony platform

Proceeds on the disposition of fleet assets

Reduction in fleet repair costs

Sub-total

3 Human Resource Strategies

Heavy Truck and Equipment Service

Beeper Pay

Accessing on-line training opportunities
Background Checks

Workload, labor force assessment

Pension plan re-design

Re-structuring within the organization to create a new
"Corporate Services" sector
Workload, labor force assessment

Workload, labor force assessment

Overtime reductions

Change in benefit provider

Actuarial Valuation - January 1, 2019

Modifications to the Pre-Retirement Leave Program

Elimination of "Option 1" mileage reimbursement

Due to restrictions resulting from COVID-19, promotional initiatives related to the
SHED were postposed in 2020/21.

Open, in person Board meetings were suspended/ deferred during the year and
delivered on a virtual platform.

Engaging professional services in several areas were deferred in 2020/21 including:
1) procurement audit (~$20,000), 2) audit of the DRO process (~$20,000), and 3)
consultation related to corporate culture and customer service strategy (~$25,000).

The cost of drain covers at the Mill Cove WWTF seemed excessive. After checking
to ensure there were no regulation or design requirements related to the drain
covers, a impermeable and flexible gasket material was sourced which enabled the
replacement of 13 large (36"x 36") covers.

Halifax Water was able to negotiate a discount related to quality issues experienced
with the vendor.

As a result of the Municipal Auditor General's audit of fleet in 2019, Fleet Utilization
Management for Halifax Water authorized the sale of 16 units that did not meet the
minimum fleet utilization standards.

Savings associated with the removal of 16 units from the fleet as a direct result of
the Municipal Auditor General's audit of fleet in 2019, and subsequent action taken
by Fleet Utilization Management for Halifax Water, for units that did not meet the
minimum fleet utilization standards.

the addition of a new Heavy Equipment Technician provides in-house maintenance
service capabilities for the HW fleet.

Elimination of an inconsistency between Water and Wastewater Services, as Water
Services staff do not receive beeper pay. This involves 10 non-union staff in total.

More use of on-line training versus the traditional methods, including WHMIS and
TDG renewals

Out-sourced background checks to a new contractor.

A reduction in number of staff in Development Approvals. The volume of work did
not warrant 6 planning technologists, and as a result this number has been reduced
to 4.

Through the collective bargaining process, HW was able to negotiate pension plan
re-design to make the plan more sustainable. It is estimated the employer's share
contributions will decrease from the current 12.95% to 9.85% effective January 1,
2015.

January 1, 2016 saw the elimination of two (2) full time positions and a re-design of
several other jobs.

January 1, 2016 saw the elimination the administrative assistant within Regulatory
Services.

November, 2016 saw the elimination of a Compliance Sampling position as a result
of a reduction in sampling requirements.

Overtime has been reduced at the Harbour Solutions Plants with respect to sick
leaves, vacation, etc. when weather conditions allow and operational needs are
met. Also, Halifax WWTF staff are responding to after hours calls at the Dartmouth
and Herring Cove facilities in an effort to minimize the need for overtime call-outs.

The selection of a new benefit provider for life and long term disability (LTD)
resulted in significant cost savings over the next three (3) years...2018-2021

The actuarial valuation performed January 1, 2019 reported a surplus for the
pension plan. As a result, special payments by Halifax Water to fund the unfunded
liability are no longer required for at least 3 years when the next valuation is to be
performed..

In June 2019, employees were given the opportunity to withdraw their accrued
benefit under the Pre-Retirement Leave Program in the form of a lump-sum
payment, rather than continuing to accrue a benefit under a modified program. The
Pre-Retirement Leave Program had been closed to new, non-union employees
hired after March 31, 2018, and is now effectively closed for all other employees
hired after June 7, 2018.

Halifax Water previously offered two options to employees for the reimbursement
mileage travelled while conducting business on behalf of the utility. Upon manager
approval, "Option 1" reimbursed employees traveling in excess of 1,200 kilometers
per year at a rate of $0.24/kilometer, plus a monthly allowance of $215, "Option 2"
reimbursed employees at a rate of $0.52/kilometer up to 5,000 kilometers, and at
$0.46/kilometer thereafter. Option 1 was eliminated May 15, 2020.

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2013/14

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16
2015/16

2015/16

2015/16

2015/16

2016/17

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

$51,000

$20,000

$65,000

$3,250

$10,000

$105,500

$41,500

$1,298,142

$100,000

$75,000

$2,241

$654
$140,000

$1,700,000

$35,000

$57,000

$81,966

$40,000

$125,000

$825,200

$260,000

$33,469



Halifax Water

Summary Report - Cost Containment Initiatives
2020/2021

Fiscal Year

Shortened employment terms

Hiring deferral

Hiring deferral

Hiring deferral

Event cancellations

Reduction in external recruitment costs

Sub-total
4 Information Technology Strategies
Xerox managed print solutions
Network
Telephone land lines
Sub-total

5 Facilities/Process Strategies
Chlorine Utilization - Pockwock

Lab Testing

Pumper Truck Utilization

Waste oil boiler system - Herring Cove WWTF

System sampling for HPC's
NSE system assessments

Decommissioning of the Bedford South pumping station

Lighting upgrades - Bennery Lake WSP

Insulation upgrades - Bennery Lake WSP

Lighting upgrades - Eastern Passage WWTF
Lighting upgrades - Dartmouth WWTF

Lighting upgrades - Herring Cove WWTF

Lighting upgrades - Halifax WWTF

Lighting upgrades - Aerotech BPF

HVAC upgrades - Eastern Passage WWTF

HVAC upgrades - Roach's Pond pumping station
MCC 190 cooling and heat recovery - Halifax WWTF
Aeration system upgrades - Eastern Passage WWTF
Orchard Park in-line turbine project

Wind farm - Pockwock WSP

Biogas CHP system - Mill Cove

Disposal of water treatment plant solid residual material

Advanced investigative tool for leaks and structural
condition of pipes

E-delivery
Change in Recycling Pickups

Highway #7 Booster Station Upgrade
Dartmouth WWTF - UV Channel Isolation
Halifax WWTF - Fixed Compressed Air Leaks
Halifax WWTF - UV Channel Isolation

The employment terms of 2 employees were shortened by 10 months in the
Metering/Billing department as a result of modified work during the pandemic.
Savings of salary and benefits were realized.

Hiring of the Enterprise Risk Management Program Manager was delayed to the
end of the fiscal year. Savings of salary and benefits were realized..

Hiring of a Records Analyst was delayed to the end of the fiscal year. Savings of
salary and benefits were realized

Hiring of the Administrative Assistant in Legal Services was deferred for at least two
years. The position became vacant in May 2020, and savings of salary and benefits
were realized.

Several HR related events were cancelled in 2020/21 including the annual awards
banquet, NAOSH week, the children's Christmas party and the Take-Your-Kid to
work Day. Also the Lunch and Learn Program was suspended during the year.

A deliberate decision was made to forego external recruitment costs related to
Executive recruitment.

Rationalization and replacement of photocopiers and printers
Change in cost model by Eastlink, giving HW the new pricing

Rationalization of services and eliminate duplication of resources as required

Discontinuation of the pre-chlorination process

Price benefits from purchasing product from a different source mainly affecting the
Harbour Solution Plants

pilot project to be scheduled initially for stormwater customers only as a test

new system to allow the use of waste oil from Metro Transit as an alternative
heating source

sampling was reduced from weekly to monthly
Assessment reports are being completed in-house rather that being outsourced

The developer driven system expansion will permit the use of gravity and pressure
reduction rather than the pumping station

A new location for the disposal of the residual material was found

The current program has been halted as a cost containment initiative and as a result
of the information received.

Transitioning from traditional billing methods to e-delivery

By changing the schedule for recycling pickups from bi-weekly to every three (3)
weeks, the anticipated annual savings will range from $2,500 to $2,700.

Expected energy savings
Expected energy savings
Expected energy savings

Expected energy savings

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2013/14
2013/14
2013/14

2013/14
2013/14

2013/14
2014/15

2014/15
2014/15
2014/15

2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15

2014/15
2015/16

2015/16
2015/16
2015/16
2015/16

$148,333

$87,750

$65,625

$63,105

$41,250

$60,000

$3,941,594

$20,000
$80,000
$8,700

$108,700

$40,000
$105,000

$130,000
$13,250

$8,025
$25,000
$15,000

$4,793
$36,000
$7,880
$22,542
$13,744
$29,845
$19,109
$20,711
$13,500
$13,164
$76,382
$28,007
$130,399
$86,000
$36,000
$150,000

$20,000
$2,700

$14,300
$59,460

$2,293
$62,115



Halifax Water

Summary
2020/2021

Report - Cost Containment Initiatives

Fiscal Year

Herring Cove WWTF - MCC 190 Cooling/Heat Recovery

Sampling

Staff utilization

Process alternative

Process change

UV disinfection shutdown - HHSP and Eastern Passage

WWTFs
Halifax WWTF - Carbon Scrubber By-Pass

Tools developed internally

Spruce Hill transmission main

Utilization of industrial water

Cost reductions (material transport)

Herring Cove WWTF - Carbon Scrubber By-Pass

Servicing oxygen monitors in-house

Pumping Station Starters (4160V)

Automated Flushing Stations

Corrosion Sampling

Alternative product

Dosage Optimization

Alternative product

Building maintenance

Polymer optimization

Expected energy savings

Using internal staff at the Mill Cove facility to perform the required daily sampling at
the facility, rather than the compliance staff, limiting their site visits to once a week.

Using trained HW staff for traffic control on HW job sites unless contractors are
required.

A centrifuge was rented for the Mill Cove WWTF (with the option to purchase) on a
trial basis to dewater liquid sludge that typically would be transported to the
Aerotech WWTF. The transport of the liquid sludge resulted overtime costs, as well
as reducing the time available for HW truck to service other facilities. This process
assisted the Aerotech in reaching its compliance goals and reduced overtime costs
by an estimated 50%. This equipment will enable HW proceed with a digester clean
out project, which would otherwise be sub-contracted at a cost of $200,000.

It was decided that flanges for meter sizes greater than 2" would be the
responsibility of the customer, since when meters are replaced, the flanges are not
replaced.

Annual shutdown of UV disinfection system resulted in cost savings associated with
electrical energy savings, peak demand reduction,

Implemented April, 2016

Tools developed internally to install new operating nuts on buried valves. Previously
nuts were lost on buried valves resulting in a need to excavate the valve and install
new nuts. Cost savings are achieved regarding excavation and reinstatement.

Two long term leaks were discovered in the transmission main resulting in cost
savings from the perspective of water loss control.

A new filter system was installed at the Eastern Passage WWTF that provides the
capability to use the current industrial water system rather than potable water to
deliver water to the polymer feed systems.

Modifications to the screening/grit skip eliminated the need to purchase 2 new
screening compactors, which also resulted in the amount of material transported of
approximately 28 metric tonnes.

Implemented April, 2017

Technical Service staff have been trained by the manufacturer to service the fleet of
personal gas monitors in-house, specifically the replacement of the oxygen sensor.
These monitors, 165 in total, are used by all operation and treatment departments
throughout the organization.

The pumping station starters were upgraded to vacuum starters, thus eliminating the
need for annual servicing of the starters to be outsourced. Any maintenance can
now be handled by in-house industrial electricians.

Automated flushing stations are now used to ensure the proper chorine residuals
are achieved in all areas of the transmission and distribution system. Previously this
operation was performed manually on a daily basis from approximately June to
September. As a result labor and vehicle costs have been reduced accordingly.

Corrosion sampling in the distribution system was reduced from bi-weekly to
monthly in June, 2018, since enough baseline data has been collected and there
are no immediate plans to change corrosion control in the near future.

An alternative timing belt was introduced to replace the normal v-belt/sheave
configuration, which reduced slippage between the v-belts and sheaves resulting in
a reduction in power demand. The product has been installed at both the Halifax
and Herring Cove WWTF, with the expectation of implementation at other
wastewater and water facilities.

Desiccant filters were fitted to the polymer totes to prevent warm, moist air from
contaminating the polymer dosed to thicken centrifuge and drum thickener solids.
The polymer no longer reacts early with water before being dosed, thus allowing the
optimization of the dose and preventing polymer waste, leading to reduced
consumption.

The HP biofilter exhaust fan motor belts will be replaced with syncrodrive timing
belts, saving energy (electricity) through the prevention of slippage. Belts and
sheaves have been purchased and will be installed in October, 2019.

Installed new weather stripping in the overhead door in the truck bay at the
AeroTech plant to reduce heating costs

Began polymer optimization in an effort to ensure good quality biosolids as well as
a good quality centrate without having excess amounts of polymer. Were able to
reduce the feed rate from 60% to 21%.

2015/16
2015/16

2015/16

2015/16

2015/16

2016/17

2016/17

2016/17

2016/17

2016/17

201718

2017/18

2018/19

2018/19

2018/19

2018/19

2018/19

2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

$8,496
$4,160

$50,000

$40,000

$4,854

$222,131

$46,946

$20,000

$3,000

$26,000

$2,000

$8,523

$30,000

$1,500

$8,000

$12,600

$40,000

$20,000

$4,500

$1,500

$15,000



Halifax Water

Summary Report - Cost Containment Initiatives
2020/2021

Fiscal Year

Improvements to aeration train

Optimization of polymer dosing (Mill Cove)

Belt drive change-out (Mill Cove)

Upgrading equipment (Mill Cove)

Fan belt/ pulley replacements - Mill Cove WWTF

Fan belt/ pulley replacements - Dartmouth WWTF

Sludge removal

Reduction in landscaping initiatives

Preventative maintenance program established

Sludge disposal

Centrifuge adjustments

Chemical substitution

Reduction in heating fuel costs

Fuel switching

Solar PV - COMFIT/ Renewable Energy Generation

Fan belt/ pulley replacements - Eastern Passage WWTF

Harbour Solution Plants (2020/21) - Ventilation Air Heat
Recovery

Sub-total

6 Reduce Paper and Printing Costs
Electronic HRWC Board Packages
Paperless Office within the HR Department
Stewardship Report
Changes to document archiving
Changes to document archiving

Cost reduction associated with off-site storage

Cost reduction associated with the 23rd Annual Report
(General Manager's office)

Installed a curtain in the aeration train to enable better mixing of the microorganisms

with the chemical, thereby reducing chemical costs and providing better quality
treatment.

By implementing daily jar testing to determine the startup dose setpoint, polymer
dosing was optimized.

Replacing the belt drive with a synchronous chain drive on a 30 horsepower blower
resulted in a cost savings associated with energy consumption.

Upgrading the water flow meter used in the dilution of polymer resulted in lowering
water usage in the process by approximately 20,000 litres per day.

Expected energy savings - based on 12,750 kWh

Expected energy savings - based on 177,980 kWh

The off-site removal of sludge for the Lake Major water supply plant has been
deferred until 2021/22, allowing the sludge to be dyer and have less weight, thus
reducing the financial impact on the 2020/21 fiscal year.

Landscaping initiatives were reduced at the Lake Major water supply plant in an
effort to reduce the financial impact on the 2020/21 fiscal year.

A preventative maintenance program was created in conjunction with HW
operations staff to clean centrifuge centrate lines weekly at a cost of $235.
Clogging of centrate in the centrate lines were being experienced resulting in a
backup in the centrifuge drum and bio-solids bin. Every 2-3 weeks it was costing
approximately $1,000 to remove obstructions by an outside contractor, in
addition to internal staff time and equipment.

Disposal of sludge from the lagoon at the J. D. Kline water supply plant has been
deferred for the 2020/21 fiscal year.

Adjustments to the weir plate on both centrifuges at the dewatering facility
allows more water to escape during the dewatering process, resulting in a
product that is 6% dryer on average. Having a more compacted product results is
fewer trucks going to the N-Viro facility saving on tipping fees. In addition, solids
in the resulting product is now over 28% which is subject to a reduced rate, a
savings of approximately $12/ tonne.

Carbon source (Micro C) is a proprietary compound used as a food supply for
micro-organisms in the denitrification process at the Aerotech WWTF, which is
effective but quite expensive. HW has been able to source beer wort from a local
brewery as a substitute for Micro C. Beer wort is a waste product in brewing beer
which is high in carbon.

The installation of a 18,000 BTU heat pump in the admin area of the Leachate
Facility, coupled with repairs to an existing unit in the lab area, resulted in
heating fuel savings.

During the heating season (November-May), the switch from natural gas to No.2
fuel oil at the Halifax and Dartmouth WWTF resulted in energy savings.

Operational at the Halifax WWTF for the period January - March 2021

Expected energy savings - based on 118,348 kWh

Expected energy savings for the Halifax, Dartmouth and Herring Cove WWTF

Send Board packages out electronically rather than issuing hard copies

Creating electronic workflow

The Stewardship Report will be published electronically only, with no hard copies
Transitioning file storage from outside contractor to public resources
Transitioning file storage from outside contractor to public resources

There has been an effort to reduce the number of boxes (documents) stored in
facilities such as Iron Mountain, by sorting and purging documents in accordance
with the document retention policy of the Commission.

The annual report for the year ended March 31, 2019 saw the number of copies
produced drop from 275 copies in the previous year to 150 copies. This represents
not only a cost savings but also an environmental benefit associated with paper
reduction.

2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2020/21

2015/16

2013/14
2013/14
2013/14
2013/14
2016/17
2018/19

2019/20

$15,000

$14,000

$1,275

$12,000

$1,300

$20,000

$80,000

$1,000

$10,000

$75,000

$15,000

$85,000

$5,000

$7,292

$5,051

$13,366

$91,527

$2,206,239

$7,500
$4,804
$3,000
$3,175
$9,000
$10,000

$936



Halifax Water

Summary Report - Cost Containment Initiatives
2020/2021

Fiscal Year

7 Technology and Business Process Changes

Workload, labor force assessment

Workload, labor force assessment

Sub-total

Sub-total

Through the utilization of technology, such as a Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) system, a budgeted addition (customer service representative)
has been removed.

Re-structuring by management within the advanced metering infrastructure (AMI)
project as a result of technological efficiencies anticipated.

__ $38415
2015/16 $47,605
2015/16 $64,533
__ 112188

$7,705,227



(.ICJ/ Halifax NSUARB ITEM # 8

Halifax Water Board
1 Water

June 17, 2021
Halifax Regmnal Water Commission

TO: Craig McMullen, Chair, and Members of the Halifax Regional Water
Commission Board

Digitally si d b
Susheel Seaton) poma Y
Date: 2021.06.11
SUBMITTED BY: Arora Touhat. 0300

Susheel Arora, P. Eng., Director of Operations

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: W &bg 8;::0;6021 06.10

16:36:02 -03'00'

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, CPA, CGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: June 10, 2021

SUBJECT: 2020/2021 Lead Service Line Replacement Program
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

August 22, 2017 NSUARB Decision - HRWC Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement
Program (M07891).

BACKGROUND

In October 2016, the Halifax Water Board approved a business plan for a new approach to LSL
replacement, consistent with the National Drinking Water Advisory Council (NDWAC)
recommendations to the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). On August
22,2017, the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board issued an order granting Halifax Water
authority to undertake emergency LSL renewals to the water meter at utility cost and to provide
a 25% rebate (up to a maximum of $2500) to homeowners undertaking an LSL replacement.

In October 2020, the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board issued order M09589 granting
Halifax Water authority to pay for private lead service replacements at utility cost (up to
$10,000). The new Halifax Water Get the Lead Out program will replace all lead service
lines within Halifax Water’s lead service line boundary by 2038 as opposed to the
original goal of 2050. Replacements are being coordinated with HRM’s street paving
and renewal schedule to minimize disruption to the community and to be cost-efficient
for ratepayers. A limited number of individual replacements will be completed with
priority given to customers who are most at-risk from lead exposure. Replacements will
be completed at no cost to the property owner (up to $10,000). Halifax Water will
schedule the replacements, which could take place at any time throughout the life of
the program.

Page 1 of 10



NSUARB ITEM # 8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

This report provides an annual update on the LSL replacement program and this will be the
last report on the program established in 2017. In 2021, a new report will be developed
detailing the program approved in 2020 in M09589.

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

Halifax Water’s approach to manage its customer’s exposure to lead is designed to be
consistent with the NDWAC recommendations, which have been endorsed by the American
Water Works Association, to the degree they can be applied in Canada and do not conflict with
local regulatory requirements. The five pillars of the approach and progress made towards this
approach are described below.

1) Lead Service Line Inventory

Halifax Water is actively working to consolidate all existing records pertaining to service line
composition in an effort to identify all lead service lines. There are 25,851 service connections
within the lead boundary area, 17,051 in Halifax (14,459 domestic services where lead could
have been used) and 8,840 in Dartmouth. Consolidating and confirming records is a time and
resource intensive process and involves staff from multiple departments. To date, efforts have
been focused on the following tasks:

e Digitizing existing service card records for electronic access:
There is a total of 17,051 service card records that have been identified in Halifax within
the existing lead service line boundary. This includes commercial and larger services that
are greater than two inches which would not have been constructed of lead. The Water
Quality Department continues to scan and apply quality assurance and quality control
measures (QA/QC) to the remaining records in Halifax, while all service records in
Dartmouth remain to be digitized.

e Creating a LSL Information Database:

In the fall 0of 2018, Halifax Water’s GIS department completed upgrades to Halifax Water’s
existing drinking water service lateral database (Forms) to allow for lead related
information (i.e. replacements, maintenance, inspections, observations, etc.) to be stored
and queried. The next phase of this project began in May 2019. This involves the review
of all service records within Halifax Water’s existing lead service line boundary to ensure
all pertinent information is present for each record. This involves the review of the digital
records and comparing them to existing physical records (i.e. service cards, drawings, etc.),
field identification through the meter replacement project (described below) and corporate
knowledge, with the intent of filling any data gaps to facilitate the determination of service
line material, and ensuring the digital record is the authoritative source for lateral
information, eliminating the need to keep maintaining paper service cards. In order to
achieve the record review, a term position within GIS started working on this project in
May 2019 and it is continuing to work on completing records within the west lead
boundary. Progress on this task is steady and an additional resource was added from
February 2021 until September 2021 to assist with this task.

Page 2 of 10



NSUARB ITEM #8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

e Service Line Material Predictive Modeling via Machine Learning

Understanding where lead service lines exist is critical to the success and ultimate
completion of the LSL replacement program. Even with the efforts being made to digitize
and authoritate records, there are still gaps and many unknowns that require
hydroexcavation to confirm material prior to replacement. To improve records, and reduce
the need to hydroexcavation of every service, Halifax Water engaged Blue Conduit, a
company born out of the Flint water crisis that uses machine learning algorithms to predict
service material based on historical records, property records, past construction practices
and any other information that is available.

In February 2021, A contract was signed with Blue Conduit to develop a machine learning
model for both Halifax and Dartmouth, and Halifax Water service records and open source
data sets were packaged and sent to them to analyze. On March 26, 2021 Blue Conduit sent
a list of service lines where hydroexcavation data is required to train the model and increase
the accuracy of its predictions on whether a service line is composed of lead. Halifax Water
staff will be completing these hydroexcavations throughout the 2021 construction season
with the objective of receiving the first model output late Autumn 2021. This model output
is expected to provide greater certainty in service material, thus reducing the need to
hydroexcavate every service, resulting in cost savings over the life of the project. This
model output will speed up the process for planning replacements in coordination with
HRM paving projects as well as customer initiated or targeted programs.

e (Customer Connect Project:

As part of the Customer Connect Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) project, staff
from our installation contractor, Neptune TG were inside the premise for each of our
approximately 80,000 customers. This project concluded February 2020. Throughout the
AMI project Neptune TG identified a total of 95 private lead services in Dartmouth and
1131 private lead services in Halifax, for a total number of 1226 of private lead service
lines. This is considered to be an underestimate of private side lead as there are situations
where the service line material cannot be seen where it enters the foundation.

e The current inventory of lead and unknown material service lines is shown in Table 1
below. Unknown service lines are treated as lead until confirmed otherwise. The best
guess is based on knowledge of historical replacement practices, known challenges with
the existing inventory, and results from the confirmation activities described in this section
including observation at the meter through AMI, and results of hydroexcavation. Activities
to improve inventory are aimed at reducing the number of unknowns and confirming those
that are lead.

Table 1: summary of current inventory of lead and unknown service lines.

Digital Records Best Guess of
Lead Unknown Total Total Lead
Public 1,395 2,566 3,961 2,500
Private 2,968 7,547 10,515 3,500

Page 3 of 10



NSUARB ITEM #8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

2) Lead Service Line Replacement
Halifax Water is working to increase both public and private replacements by:

e Removing barriers to private replacement, which involves informing the public about the
health implications of lead service lines, simplifying the process for homeowners and
providing financial assistance mechanisms. The new program launching this year will
further remove barriers by paying for the private replacement during planned HRM or
capital work and also through priority-based applications.

e Emergency Full Renewals —There were eight emergency renewals conducted in the
2020/21 fiscal year.

o Six were the result of a leak.
o Two were the result of disturbance due to public sewer replacements.

e Halifax Water is working to reduce the inventory of customers who have a public lead
service line but copper private service line. To make this process more efficient, Halifax
Water now hydro-excavates the service box prior to renewal to confirm material, as past
practice has shown that sometimes copper is found despite lead being shown on records.
This practice reduces costs as it avoids unnecessary excavation and it also eliminates the
possibility of creating an emergency renewal as described above. There are currently
approximately 93 public lead only services remaining in Halifax Water Inventory.

e Halifax Water implemented the LSL rebate program immediately after the NSUARB Order

of August 22, 2018. A summary of the distribution costs for private LSLR since program
inceptions is shown in Figure 1.

96
e 58
30
8 9
. EEREEN

<52,500 (52,500, 54,000] (54,000, 55,500] (35,500, 57,000] (57,000, 58,500] [$8,500, $10,000] > $10,000

120

Mumber of replcecements

Cost of private LSLR

Figure 1 — Histogram showing the distribution of cost for private LSLR based on 259
approved rebates between September 2017 and March 31, 2021.

Page 4 of 10



NSUARB ITEM # 8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

e Figure 2 shows the number of replacements that have occurred as part of the program since
2011/12. This period encompasses the introduction of authorized contractors to replace the
public portion in 2016/17 which allows for the entire LSL to be replaced in a single day,
minimizing public health impacts and simplifying the process for the homeowners. This
figure shows the reduced number of LSL replacements completed in 2020/21 compared to
the two years prior. The reasons for this are largely that those customers for whom the
rebate was enough incentive to replace, did so within the first few years of the program and
outreach for customers with lead service lines during meter replacement through the
customer connect program led to some replacements. The understanding that further
success with the LSL replacement program using only the 25% rebate would continue to
become more difficult in years to come was one of the main driving factors to developing
the new Get the Lead Out program.

Public and Private Lead Service Line Replacements

128 129
115
103
a6
8 g
80 4
£E 59
& e 51
a4 & 43
a
5 2%
22
| 18
| . .l I .
o ..

0my1z 2012/13 201314 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 201718 201819 209/20 2020421

g

Number of Replacements
8

S

=

Fiscal Year

m# Private Replacements m # Public Replacements = & Same-Day Replacements using Authorized Contracton

Figure 2 — Number of public (orange) and private (blue) service lines replaced by fiscal year.
Grey bars indicate residents who used the same day authorized contractor program to renew
both public and private service lines in the same day.

Get the Lead Out Program - Path Forward

Based on the challenges experienced in integrating with HRM paving projects and achieving
uptake in private LSLR, in February 2020, two separate submissions were made to the
NSUARB requesting the ability to conduct lead service renewal from the main to the meter at
utility expense. Both submissions were accepted.

e MO09586: The application was filed on February 11, 2020 and requested the ability to
replace lead service lines from the main to the meter at utility expense for several capital
projects for the 2020 construction season, namely Berlin Street, Drummond Court and
Leaman Street. These streets were undergoing necessary water main renewal, which
requires disconnection of service from the exiting main and reconnection to the new water
main, thus resulting in disturbance to lead service lines. This disturbance is unavoidable
and poses an increased public health risk. On March 12, 2020 Halifax Water received a
decision letter granting approval for LSLR at Halifax Water expense for both the public
and private portions of the service line for these specific capital projects.

Page 5 of 10



NSUARB ITEM # 8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

In the summer of 2020, Halifax Water completed the work in conjunction with HRM on
the Berlin St. project replacing 15 public lead service lines at a cost of $2,742 per service
and 17 private services at a cost of $4,480 per service. Both include net HST and 1.5%
HRM administration fee. The public cost includes a share of asphalt and curb
reinstatement.

The Berlin St. project served as a valuable learning experience for setting up processes
with HRM to complete LSLR for the new program. Drummond Court and Leaman Street
have been pushed by HRM to the 2021 construction season.

MO09589: In September 2020, the NSUARB issued Board Order M09589 which provides
Halifax Water authority to develop a program to conduct LSLR from the main to the meter
at utility expense. This program will allow Halifax Water to coordinate with HRM on
paving projects and group replacements to achieve cost savings through sharing of
reinstatement costs with HRM and economy of scale for larger batch projects. This new
program puts Halifax Water in control of the replacement timeline with a goal of
completing LSLR by 2038. Annual replacements can be scaled to match budget
availability and program replacement goals will be in Halifax Water’s control as opposed
to relying on private uptake with the previous program.

Since the Board Order, Halifax Water staff have been working with HRM to coordinate
replacements for all major street recapitalization projects for the 2021-22 construction
season. Based on current project scope, it is expected that there will be approximately 40
public and 100 private replacements conducted in 2021-22 through this program.

Halifax Water developed and launched the property owner requested lead service line
replacement program in March of 2021 to complete the remaining replacements within
budget for 2021-22. This program prioritizes replacements based on health risk, geography
and integration with HRM’s paving program. A new website was developed
https://www.halifaxwater.ca/get-the-lead-out, to guide property owners through the online
application process for this program. If property owners do not want to wait for Halifax
Water to schedule their replacement, they can continue to replace on their own timeline
and receive the 25% rebate. As of March 31, 2021, there were 53 applications received to
the property owner requested program.

3) Public Outreach

Halifax Water is continually working to increase customer awareness and engagement in the
lead service line replacement program, particularly with respect to health implications of lead
and processes for renewal, including the rebate and loan programs and the new Get the Lead
Out program. The following tasks have been conducted to increase awareness and engagement:

Upon application/inquiry by a homeowner for a LSL renewal, they are contacted by
program staff. Customers are provided information on the new approved program for the
utility to replace their LSL at no expense. If customers choose not to wait for replacement
by Halifax Water, the 25% rebate program and the lateral loan are still being offered. At
this time, they are advised of sampling programs, provided with information on the
renewal, post renewal maintenance and provided with a National Sanitation Foundation

Page 6 of 10



NSUARB ITEM #8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

[NSF] certified pitcher filter for temporary use for cooking and drinking during the period
of increased lead, post renewal. They are also provided with 7 replacement filters.

Table 2 — Number of filter kits provided to residents as part of the LSL replacement

program.
2017/18 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021
Total Filter Kits
Provided 140 176 161 119

e Lead information has been migrated to Halifax Water’s new website,
https://halifaxwater.ca/get-the-lead-out. The existing lead website content was updated to
reflect the new lead program and provide clear and concise content that is accessible to the
reader.

e The web application for customers to search an address to determine if there is a possibility
the service line is composed of lead has been updated. The application is supported by data
on the building such as, service line size, building age, and location in relation to the lead
service line boundary. This application has been posted on the lead website.

e Inthe 2018/19 Fiscal year we received 300 lead inquiries from homeowners or tenants. In
2019/2020 Fiscal year we received 426 lead inquiries from homeowners or tenants. The
number of inquiries spiked in 2019/2020 as a result of a series of news articles were
released in November 2019 across the country. In 2020/2021 we received 333 customer
inquiries.

4) Corrosion Control and Water Quality Monitoring

Halifax Water and Dalhousie University continue to conduct research to optimize and monitor
corrosion control treatment. Outcomes of research have led to greater effectiveness and
reduced cost for corrosion control treatment at both JD Kline and Lake Major treatment plants.
Further research is underway into seasonal optimization of corrosion control and the use of less
expensive, bulk commodity chemicals for corrosion control. Initial research results indicate
that the zinc in the current corrosion control product plays an important role in calcium release
from cement lined pipes. Following is a summary of corrosion control sampling programs.

e Distribution Coupon Monitoring
Since 2002 Halifax Water’s water quality group has maintained ten coupon racks
throughout the Pockwock Lake and Lake Major distribution systems. There are six coupon
racks in the Pockwock distribution system and four in the Lake Major distribution system.
Each rack has a metal coupon for lead, copper, and mild steel, and are sampled quarterly.

e Distribution Corrosion Control Monitoring
Corrosion monitoring has been taking place throughout the Pockwock and Lake Major
distribution systems since 2004. Parameters measured are alkalinity, aluminum,
manganese, iron, zinc, phosphate, o-phosphate, sulphate, chloride, turbidity, pH, free
chlorine, temperature, conductivity, and oxidation reduction potential (ORP), dissolved
oxygen, total organic carbon, heterotrophic plate count, and adenosine triphosphate.

Page 7 of 10



NSUARB ITEM #8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

e Lead Rack Monitoring

In December 2018 Halifax Water began monthly sampling at four “lead racks” in our
distribution system. Each lead rack consists of four segments of lead pipe harvested from
lead service line renewals, configured to permit sampling of the stagnated water in each
pipe running on a six-hour stagnation cycle. The goal of the lead racks is to be able to
monitor full scale response to changes in corrosion control and seasonality of corrosion
control. The racks are located in the Halifax and Dartmouth distribution system, in areas
where lead service lines are known or suspected to exist.

e In December 2020, in preparation for a project that will be undertaken in the Lake Major
system that could see changes to water quality in the distribution system, Halifax Water
doubled the orthophosphate dose to 2 mg/L ad POa.

5) Customer Sampling

Halifax Water has several customer sampling programs for lead in drinking water. These
programs are outlined below:

e Customer Request Lead Sampling

Halifax Water provides complimentary lead testing for customers who have a known or
suspected lead service line, and who live in a house built prior to 1960 within the lead
service boundary, consistent with Health Canada protocols. Results are sent to the customer
once they are available. Figure 3 describes the number of addresses where customer
request kits that have been analyzed since 2016. For the 2020/21 fiscal year 136 were
delivered to customers, however only 68 sample kits were returned and analyzed. This
program was suspended from April to July due to COVID-19. As provincial restrictions
were lifted sample kits were issued with reduced sample kit delivery and pickup dates to
reduce risk to staff.

250
196
200
150
150
100 78 68
) - -
0

2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021

Figure 3 — Customer request lead sample kits analyzed in the last four fiscal year

e Lead Service Line Replacement Monitoring program
This program, carried out in conjunction with Dalhousie University, monitors lead levels
prior to and after a lead service line replacement. Samples are taken prior to replacement
and following replacement at 72 hours, one, three, and six months. Homeowners are
encouraged to participate in the monitoring program following a service line replacement,
as it allows them to have a better understanding of the lead levels in their home. When a

Page 8 of 10



NSUARB ITEM #8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

permit is issued for a private lead service renewal, the homeowner is contacted by email or
phone to encourage their participation in the LSL monitoring program and inform them of
the Filter Program (see Public Involvement above). In 2019/20, there was a total of 18
LSLR participants. This lower number is due to maintenance with analytical equipment at
Dalhousie University. In 2020/2021 due to COVID-19 the Dalhousie Laboratory was not
accepting lead samples, homeowners wishing to sample following their LSLR were offered
sampling at three-month intervals post renewal until results met the Health Canada
Guideline for Lead. 25 customers completed post replacement sampling.

Annual Health Canada Residential Monitoring Program

Halifax Water conducts an annual residential sampling program to monitor the
effectiveness of the corrosion control program by sampling lead and copper levels in
customers’ homes throughout the distribution system as per Health Canada protocol. Once
per year, 100 homes are tested on a volunteer basis.

Financial

Table 3 — Summary of lead program costs from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2021. Public
lead service line replacement is a capital cost and all other costs are operational.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Customer Request Lead Sampling $4,914 $13,305 §$15,092 $5,236
LSL Replacement Monitoring $12.285 $14.636 $6863 $1,925
Program
Pitcher Filter Kits $10,271 $11,759 $10,878 $18,270
Communications $11,900 $2,607 $23.00 $6778
Staff $148,758 $228,016 $246, 988 $211,935
Public Lead Service Line $550,112 $1,124473 | $917917 | $820.801
Replacement Program
Lead Service Line Rebate $14,107 $102,333 $81,111 $52, 600
Total $752,347 $1,497,129 $1,279,682 $1,117,545

2 Includes cost of public replacements as well as hydroexcavations.

Page 9 of 10




NSUARB ITEM #8

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Summary
Table 4 - Summary of statistics of the lead program since inception in 2017.
201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Public replacements 82! 115 103 74
Private replacements 84! 128 128 86’
Rebates 18 105 89 50
Emergency replacements to the ) 7 1’ 3
meter
Lead program inquiries 263 300 426 333
Filter kits issued 140 158 161 119
Customer request lead sample kits 73 150 196 63

analyzed

Average Cost

Average Cost

Average Cost

Average Cost

Public replacement $8,067* $11, 468° $11,648° $10,147°
Private replacement (based on $3.188 $3.940 $3.703 $ 4.343
rebates)
Rebate $738 $974 $911 $1,052
Emergency replacement $14, 860 $11,413.45? $11,443.9° $9340,83
Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost
Public replacement program $550,112 $1,124.473 $917,917 $820,801
Private replacement based on $88,318 $429,52926 |  $324,444 $217,157
rebate applications
Rebate $14,108 $102,333 $81,111 $52, 600
Emergency replacement $29.720 $79,894.18 $125,883.23° $74,726.60

' Numbers are different than report provided to NSUARB in 2018 due to review of historical

records.

% One renewal was the result of issues encountered during an AMI meter replacement. Neptune
covered the cost of the renewal therefore the cost is not included in this table.

3 Based on review of 70 contractor invoices.

4 Based on review of 48 contractor invoices.
5 One renewal was the result of issues encountered during construction from a 3" party (covered
cost of the renewal therefore the cost is not included in this table).

¢ Based on review of 80 invoices

7 Seventeen renewals were part of the Berlin Street project

8 Based on review of 59 invoices, cost of Berlin St. project.

Wendy
Report Prepared by: Krkosek

Digitally signed by Wendy

Krkosek
Date: 2021.06.11
10:09:47 -03'00'

Wendy Krkosek, Water Quality Manager — 902-483-4432

Page 10 of 10




"—}J/ Halifax NSUARB ITEM # 9
l \\EJ lC‘ I’ Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission June 17. 2021
9

TO: Craig McMullin, Chair, and Members of the Halifax Regional
Water Commission Board
Kenda '\Dnigills(illy s.igned by Kenda

SUBMITTED BY: MacKenzie o575 5500
Kenda MacKenzie, P.Eng., Director, Regulatory Services

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: Mb &b!@ g;aTtg?lzeom 06.11

08:46:41 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: June 3, 2021

SUBJECT: Capital Cost Contribution Areas — Financial Status Report for
the Fiscal Year ended March 31, 2021

INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

Halifax Water and NSUARB approval of various capital cost contribution charges.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Halifax Water oversees twelve (12) Capital Cost Contribution (CCC) charge areas for
oversized water and wastewater infrastructure. The Halifax Water Board and subsequently
the NSUARB directly approved eleven (11) area specific CCC charges consistent with our
CCC policy, with one being inherited and endorsed at the time of the
wastewater/stormwater merger in 2007. The overall CCC policy and the specific charge
rates were developed for the equitable facilitation of master water and wastewater
infrastructure within new development areas or new service extension areas.

In accordance with the approved policy, Halifax Water is obligated to provide an
accounting of all funds received and all costs incurred with respect to the infrastructure
improvement. Attached is an annual report showing the cumulative accounting of all CCC
funds received and disbursed as of the end of the fiscal year at March 31, 2021. The format
provides a detailed entry of each individual debit and credit transaction with a cumulative
total to date for each individual charge area from inception to the applicable year-end.

Page 1 of 2



NSUARB ITEM #9

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

As of March 31, 2021, the results show that six (6) charge areas are in a negative cash
position and six (6) are in a positive cash position. Combined, the net current deficit is
$1.7 million with the implementation of $34.5 million in infrastructure projects. The net
cash position of the CCCs have shown steady improvement over the last two years as the
net current deficits at fiscal year end were $2.3 million in 2020 and $2.6 million in 2019.
The CCC program is anticipated to be cost neutral within each charge area and fulfilling
the desired facilitation role within these development areas.

This report will be forwarded to the NSUARB for information in accordance with the
policy requirements.

ATTACHMENT

Halifax Water Capital Cost Contribution Report — Summary to March 31, 2021

Digitally si d b
Heather Heather Britlon
Report prepared by:  Britten O 14 0300

Heather Britten, Quality Assurance Officer, BComm,
902-490-1895

Page 2 of 2




NSUARB ITEM # 9

HALIFAX WATER Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021

Capital Cost Contribution Report ATTACHMENT

Summary to March 31, 2021
Capital Cost Contribution Area Receipts Disbursements Cumulative

Beaverbank $1,336,109 ($1,762,046) ($425,936)
Bedford South - Water $3,090,708 ($2,074,291) $1,016,417
Bedford South - Wastewater $2,300,357 ($1,022,796) $1,277,561
Bedford West - Water $5,605,331 ($5,216,378) $388,953
Bedford West - Wastewater $12,605,120 ($16,868,404) ($4,263,283)
Birch Cove North - Water $2,240,790 ($2,200,334) $40,455
Herring Cove $1,423,973 ($698,579) $754,839
Lakeside Timberlea $967,404 ($1,264,666) ($297,262)
Morris Russell Lake $1,128,095 ($363,291) $764,804
Northgate $585,772 ($788,960) ($203,188)
Sackville Lively $430,254 ($567,455) ($137,201)
Geizer Hill $967,154 ($1,623,241) ($656,087)
Grand Total $32,681,065 ($34,450,440) ($1,739,929)




HALIFAX WATER

BEAVERBANK - WATER

Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 | $1,336,109.32 | ($1,762,045.74)]  ($425,936.42)
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 | $1,336,109.32 | ($1,762,045.74)]  ($425,936.42)

Project Information

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: September 11, 2018
Total Acreage: 1,302.03

Acreage Developed to Date: 804.81 (61.8%)

Acreage Rate: $850/acre

Total Infrastructure Cost: $3,198,896.00

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 0%

Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 34.6%

Infrastructure to be completed: None




HALIFAX WATER

BEDFORD SOUTH - WATER
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 | $3,000,707.95 |  ($2,074,291.42)]  $1,016,416.53
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 | $3,090,707.95 |  ($2,074,291.42)]  $1,016,416.53

Project Information

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: June 19, 1998
Total Acreage: 598.0

Acreage Developed to Date: 498.41 (83.35%)

Acreage Rate: $4,621.00

Total Infrastructure Cost: $6,155,269.00

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 33.4%

Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 42%

Infrastructure to be completed: Reservoir under construction 2020




HALIFAX WATER

BEDFORD SOUTH - WASTEWATER
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 | $2,300,357.05 | ($1,022,795.90)]  $1,277,561.15
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 | $2,300,357.05 | ($1,022,795.90)]  $1,277,561.15

Project Information

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: August 1, 2007
Total Acreage: 624

Acreage Developed to Date: 535.97 (85.89%)

Acreage Rate: $3305.29

Total Infrastructure Cost: $2,273,400.00

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 0%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 100%

Infrastructure to be completed: oversized piping




HALIFAX WATER

BEDFORD WEST - WATER
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description |

Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative

Balance as of March 31/20 |

$5,237,781.31 | ($5,019,666.75)  $218,114.56

Thistle Developments - 2019 reconcillation adjusted CCC payment ($24,105.90)
Thistle Developments - 2019 reconcillation adjusted reimbursement ($31,958.10)
West Bedford Holdings Limited - 2019 reconcillation adjusted reimbursement ($164,752.84)
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 8 (26.273 acres) $116,947.02
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-1 (3.416 acres) $11,164.78
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-2 (25.293 acres) $82,667.10
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 2-6 (11.237 acres) $51,491.04
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Block C-1 (6.584 acres) $21,637.04
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-3A (2.635 acres) $8,718.57
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-3B (26.593 acres) $87,392.76
West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-4 (3.541 acres) $11,636.82

Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals |

$367,549.23 | ($196,710.94)]  $170.838.29

Balance as of March 31/21 |

$5,605,330.54 | ($5,216,377.69)]  $388,952.85

Project Information |
Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: December 2019
Total Acreage: 1579.82
Acreage Developed to Date: 839.071 (53.10%)
Acreage Rate: $3,629.73 (2008)
Total Escalated Infrastructure Cost: $10,516,523
Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 5.93%
Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%
Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 57.07%

Infrastructure to be completed: Proportionate amount of Bedford South Reservoir, PRV's, and Pipe Oversizing




HALIFAX WATER

BEDFORD WEST - WASTEWATER
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative

Balance as of March 31/20 | $12,202,022.87 | ($16,717,442.47)] ($4,515,419.60)
West Bedford Holdings Limited - 2019 reconcillation adjusted reimbursement ($40,458.31)

Thistle Developments - 2019 reconcillation adjusted reimbursement $27,778.51

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 8 (26.273 acres) $88,876.44

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-1 (3.416 acres) $8,484.92

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-2 (25.293 acres) $62,824.67

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 2-6 (11.237 acres) $39,850.78

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Block C-1 (6.584 acres) $16,745.70

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-3A (2.635 acres) $6,747.62

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Phase 7-3B (26.593 acres) $101,212.89

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Easement Acquistion (Invoice # 10278) ($100,908.60)

Benefit to Existing - Easement Acquistion (Invoice # 10278) $14,551.02

West Bedford Holdings Limited CCC - Phase 7-4 (3.541 acres) $36,024.63

West Bedford Holdings Limited - Easement Aquistion (Invoice # 10303) ($9,594.15)

Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $403097.18 |  ($150,961.06)]  $252,136.12
Balance as of March 31/21 | $12,605,120.05 | ($16,868,403.53)] ($4,263,283.48)

Project Information |

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: December 2019

Total Acreage: 1579.82

Acreage Developed to Date: 733.481 (46.43%)

Acreage Rate: $11,236.72 (2008)

Total Infrastructure Cost: $25,714,518

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 14.42%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 74.78%
Infrastructure to be completed: Forcemains, Pumping Stations and Pipe Oversizing




HALIFAX WATER
BIRCH COVE NORTH - WATER
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 | $2,240,789.63 | ($2,200,334.45)] $40,455.18
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 | $2,240,789.63 | ($2,200,334.45)| $40,455.18

Project Information |
Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: September 17, 1999
Total Acreage: 494.0
Acreage Developed to Date: 335.36 (67.89%)
Acreage Rate: $5,060.00
Total Infrastructure Cost: $3,717,646.00
Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 0%
Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%
Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 63%
Infrastructure to be completed: Reservoir and Pipe Oversizing




HALIFAX WATER
HERRING COVE

Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 |  $1,423972.55 |  ($698,578.68)  $754,839.25
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 |  $1,423972.55 |  ($698,578.68)  $754,839.25

Project Information

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: April 10, 2002; Revised: October 26, 2005

Total Acreage: 787.7

Acreage Developed to Date: 321.783 (40.84%)
Acreage Rate: $3,622.00

Total Infrastructure Cost: $4,957,204

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 0%
Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 63%

Infrastructure to be completed: None




HALIFAX WATER
LAKESIDE TIMBERLEA
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 |  $805,862.37 | ($1,264,665.78)  ($458,803.41)
Brunello Estates - Block 6 $144,924.62
Fire Protection: Brunello Estates - Amalfi Way $16,617.01
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $161,541.63 $0.00 $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 $967,404.00  ($1,264,665.78) ($297,261.78)

Project Information |
Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: December 14, 2012
Overall Acerage 277.79
Acreage Developed to Date: 53.013 (19.6%)
Acreage Rate: $14,926.23
Total Infrastructure Cost: $ 8,062,204.55
Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 2.7%
Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%
Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 60.3%
Infrastructure to be completed: Pipe Oversizing




HALIFAX WATER

MORRIS RUSSELL LAKE
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description |

Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 | $1,128,004.67 |  ($363,290.75)  $764,803.92
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 | $1,128,094.67 ($363,290.75) $764,803.92

Project Information |
Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: Interim June 10, 2002
Total Acreage: 1,178.7
Acreage Developed to Date: 574.84 (48.77%)
Acreage Rate: $1,300.00
Total Infrastructure Cost: $2,641,851.00

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 8.2%
Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 54.8%
Infrastructure to be completed: Pipe Oversizing




HALIFAX WATER
NORTHGATE

Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 |  $585,772.08 |  ($788,960.44)]  ($203,188.36)
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 | $585,772.08 ($788,960.44) ($203,188.36)

Project Information

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: September 28, 2008
Total Acreage: 485.4 (plus 16.8 acres of adjacent benefitting lands)
Acreage Developed to Date: 188.9 (38.91%)

Acreage Rate: $1,168.00

Total Infrastructure Cost: $900,041.00

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 13.4%

Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 49.6%

Infrastructure to be completed: Pipe Oversizing




HALIFAX WATER
SACKVILLE LIVELY
Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 |  $430,253.71|  ($567,455.00)  ($137,201.29)
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 |  $430,253.71|  ($567,455.00)  ($137,201.29)

Project Information |

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: October 29, 2007
Total Acreage: 335.5 acres

Acreage Developed to Date: 216.87 (64.6%)

Acreage Rate: $1,253.00 / acre

Total Infrastructure Cost: $567,455

Benefit to Halifax Water Existing Customer: $26,133 (25 acres)
Benefit to HRM through LIC: $50,746 (40.5 acres)

Benefit to HRM Fire Protection: $205,972.71

Total Infrastructure of the Project, including financing: $667,497
Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge:50.2%
Infrastructure to be completed: 0%




HALIFAX WATER
GEIZER HILL

Summary to March 31, 2021

Transaction Description | Receipts | Disbursements | Cumulative
Balance as of March 31/20 | $967,153.88 | ($1,623,240.54)]  ($656,086.66)
Fiscal 2021 Yearly Totals | $0.00 | $0.00 | $0.00
Balance as of March 31/21 |  $967,153.88 | ($1,623,240.54)| ($656,086.66)|

Project Information

Nova Scotia Utility & Review Board Approval Date: December 2019
Total Population: 4,218 people

Population Developed to Date: 1,416 people (33.57%)

CCC charge per person: $255.65

Total Infrastructure Cost: $1,548,000

Benefit to Existing Halifax Water Customer Base - 0%

Benefit to HRM Fire Protection - 37%

Percentage of Total Infrastructure Cost to be recovered through CCC Charge - 63%

Infrastructure to be completed: Water Main Extension



J(J/Hallfax

V\ ater

Halifax Reglonal Water Commission

ITEM # 1-1
Page 1 of 17

Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Board
SUBMITTED BY: Louisde  giemn "
Date: 2021.06.11
Montbrun 04:22:14 -03'00'
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services/CFO
SUSheeI !:‘;’)igithallyI s/igned by
Ao e
10:03:32 -03'00'
Susheel Arora, M.A.Sc., P.Eng. Director, Operations
Kenda '\Dnigitzlly s.igned by Kenda
MacKenzie 753 o500
Kenda MacKenzie, P.Eng. Director, Regulatory Services
DEgitaIIy signed by Cathie
APPROVED: m &b!@ SaTtZ:O|28021 .06.11
06:11:23 -03'00"
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, CPA, CGA, ICD.D, General Manager
SUBJECT: Operational Performance Information Report
INFORMATION REPORT
ORIGIN:
Regular update.

This report provides a high level overview of financial and operational performance for the utility. The
safety statistics results are first, followed by financial results, followed by indicators and statistics for

water and wastewater.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 2 of 17

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

SAFETY STATISTICS — April 1, 2020 thru March 31, 2021 (unless stated otherwise)

Percentage of Lost Time Accidents resulting in lost time per 100 employees 0.59
Number of motor vehicle accidents per 1,000,000 km driven 5.5
Number of workplace inspections conducted 180
Percentage of safety talks conducted 86%
Number of near misses reported 94
Number of employees on accommodation or gradual return to work 9*
Number of WCB claims 14
Number of work refusals 1
Number of incidents with written compliance orders 0
Number of employees trained or recertified before due date 59%

* Period of January 1, 2021 thru March 31, 2021



ITEM # 1-1

Page 3 of 17

Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021

FINANCIAL
HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
APRIL 1, 2020 - MARCH 31, 2021 (12 MONTHS)
'000

Operating Revenues and Expenditures

$145,000
$140,000
$135,000 -
$130,000 -
$125,000 -
$120,000 -
$115,000 -
$110,000 -
$105,000 -
$100,000 -
$95,000 -
$90,000 -
$85,000 -
$80,000 -
$75,000 -

M YTD Actual

M YTD Budget
M Prior YTD Actual

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget

REVENUES $136,569 $138,615 $137,750 98.52%
EXPENDITURES $113,690 $118,111 $109,326 96.26%
$22,879 $20,504 $28,424  111.58%
Revenues by Service
$80,000
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000
B YTD Actual
$40,000
W YTD Budget
$30,000 )
= Prior YTD Actual
$20,000
$10,000
S0
WATER WASTEWATER STORMWATER OTHER

REVENUES BY SERVICE (METERED SALES AND SITE GENERATED CHARGE)
YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget

WATER $47,631 $48,083 $47,918 99.06%
WASTEWATER $69,605 $70,364 $70,494 98.92%
STORMWATER $8,962 $9,882 $9,196 90.69%
OTHER $10,371 $10,285 $10,142 100.84%

$136,569 $138,614 $137,750 98.52%




HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
APRIL 1, 2020 - MARCH 31, 2021 (12 MONTHS)
'000

ITEM # 1-1
Page 4 of 17

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Core Water-WW-SW Expenses

$25,000

$20,000

$15,000

$10,000
$5,000
$0

HYTD Actual
W YTD Budget
M Prior YTD Actual

CORE WATER-WW-SW EXPENDITURES

YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget

WATER SUPPLY & TRTMNT $9,087 $10,590 $9,573  94.31%

WATER TRANS & DIST $12,031 $12,311 $10,843  97.73%

SW COLLECTION $4,762 $5,821 $4,808  81.81%

WW COLLECTION $14,467 $13,499 $13,963  107.17%

WW TREATMENT $20,623 $21,413 $20,633  96.31%

$61,870 $63,634 $59,820  97.23%

Other Department Expenses
(Incl. Dep'n)
$30,000
$25,000
$20,000
$15,000
$10,000
W YTD Actual
$5,000
M YTD Budget
50 W Prior YTD Actual
rior Cctua
O & & S >
o A N N
& & & & &
& & é‘B‘ QSQ‘
& & S
(9 \a

OTHER DEPARTMENT EXPENSES (INCL DEP'N)

YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget

$8,436
$3,781
$5,167
$7,044
$25,078

89.97%
91.33%
93.87%
87.56%
99.93%

ENGINEERING & IS $8,281 $9,204
REGULATORY SERVICES $3,981 $4,359
CUSTOMER SERVICES $5,081 $5,413
ADMIN & PENSION $7,067 $8,071
DEPRECIATION $27,410 $27,430

$51,820 $54,477

$49,506

95.12%




ITEM # 1-1

Page 5 of 17
Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021
Average Daily Water Production
Total System Input Daily Average
29,000,000
28,000,000
27,000,000
26,000,000
ézs.wu.wo
2
B 24,000,000
23,000,000
22,000,000
21,000,000
lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nowv Dec
MNote: The latest graph point is a rolling
average for the current week (Sun-Sat) el 1171 (020 019
Regional Water Main Break/Leak Data Water Accountability
Current 12 Month Rollin
Year Total Breaks/Leaks Total (up to April 2021) - Loss?s per Service Con.ne?tion/Day
(International Water Association Standard)
2020/21 179
2019/20 191 Period Ending March 31, 2021
2018/19 226
201718 206 186 Real L 1193 1it
2016/17 216 eal Losses: itres
Total 1018 CBS Target: 160
Yr. Avg. 203.6




ITEM # 1-1

Page 6 of 17

Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Drinking Water: Bacterial Results
Percentage of Samples Absent of Total Coliform

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

99.7%

99.6%

99%

98%

97%

5F:3i53ziiiiriiiiFasiiig
—— Corporate Balance Scorecard Target 99.3% Absent
Water Quality Master Plan Objectives
2020-2021 Q4
All Sites:
. - 1S eBsc
. Total | % Sites Achieving 90th
Objective . . Awarded
Sites Target Percentile Point
<15 pg/L oS
Disinfection 63 97% - 17
Total Trihalomethanes 25 68% --- 0
Haloacetic Acids 21 100% - 20
Particle Removal 5 99% -—- 19
Corrosion Control 105 - 4.28 20
Summary Total 76
Score: 76/100



ITEM # 1-1

Page 7 of 17

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

In this report each facility is assessed using monthly or quarterly averages, depending on the averaging period
specified in its Approval to Operate.

Wastewater Treatment Facility Compliance Summary
Rolling Averages - February, March, and April 2021
Wastewater CBODs TSS (c]f;li;:tlsi / pH Ammonia | Phosphorous TRC D(i:;;);zd
Treatment (me/L) (me/L) 100mL) (mg/L) (mg/L) (tmg/L) (mg/L) Toxicity Trend
Facilit
Y Iljili Avg. Ejﬁ Avg. Iljilﬁ Avg. Iljilﬁ Avg. Eﬂf Avg. Iljili Avg. Ilj::; Avg. Iljili Avg.
Halifax 50 [ 37 ] 40 | 24 |s000| 0 | 69| 69 - - - NotEesey | Continued
Dartmouth 50 [ 40 | 40 | 36 |s000| 0 | 69 | 67 - - - NotEeuey | Continued
Herring Cove 50 [ 23] 40 | 19 |s000| 0 | 69| 69 - - - Noteeue | Continued
Eastemn Passage | 25 | 10 | 25 | 10 | 200 | 0 | 69 | 7.0 - - - Notsesey | Continued
Mill Cove 25 | 18| 25 | 22 | 200 | 19 ] 69 | 66 - - - Notsewsly [ Continued
Springfield 20 6 20 9 200 14 69 7.7 - - - Continued
Frame 20 5 20 1 200 10 6-9 7.0 - - - - Continued
Middle Musq. 20 6 20 14 200 17 69 73 - - - - Continued
Uplands 20 6 20 6 200 14 6-9 6.7 - - - - Continued
Aerotech s 2| s | oo | o] eo| 73 |%N| 11 [ o] oo 65 | 99 | MUYl Continued
North Preston 10 8 10 29 200 10 69 | 6.6 3 02 L5 11 - - Continued
Lockview 20 5 20 12 200 10 1659 70 | 80S | 50 | 12S| 04 - - Continued
Steeves (Wellington)| 20 5 20 2 200 10 1 659 73 | 144S| 01 | 1.0S| 0.1 - - Continued
BLT 15 | s [ 2o | 9] 20] 10] 6o 6o || 2 [N [ 1 Joorr| om0 - Noteetel | Continued
Avg. of all Facilities 12 15 7.0 1.6 0.5 0.10 9.9
NOTES & ACRONYMS: LEGEND
CBOD:s - Carbonaceous 5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand NSE Compliant

TSS - Total Suspended Solids

NSE Non-Compliant

* TRC - Total Residual Chlorine - Maxxam can only measure 0.10 mg/Lresidual; results 0f 0.1 mg/L are compliant

BDL - Below Detection Limit

W /S - Winter/ Summer compliance limits
NSErequires monthly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter at Dartmouth, Eastern Passage, Halifax, Herring Cove, Mill Cove
NSE requires quarterly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter at Aerotech, Lockview, Mid. Musq., Frame, BLT, Uplands, Springfield Lake
NSErequires annual averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter at North Preston and Steeves

Continued - All parameters remain essentially unchanged since the last report

Improved - One or more parameter(s) became compliant since the last report
Declined - One or more parameters(s) became non-compliant since the last report



ITEM # 1-1
Page 8 of 17

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

No. of CSOs and SSOs - March 2021

102 Total Overflows

40 80

35 70

30 60
£ 25 so E
= =
S 20 - 40 =
o b=
“i 15 - 30 éx
Z 10 - 20

5 - 10

O T T T T T T T T T T T III T IIIIIII-T.I T T T T T T T T I 0

1 23456 7 8 91011121314151617 18192021 222324252627 2829 3031

m Overflows Rainfall (mm)

NOTES & ACRONYMS: CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow

e Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTEF,
e There were twenty-four overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows:

1. March 2: The SSOs at Mill Cove Surge Tank and Roaches Pond PS and the CSOs at Jamieson St PS &
CSO, Lyle St CSO, Maitland St PS & CSO, Melva St PS & CSO and Old Ferry Rd PS & CSO were due
to rain on the previous day.

2. March 3: The SSO at Mill Cove Surge Tank was due to rain on a previous day.

3. March 4: The CSO at Chain Rock PS & CSO was due to the high well level at Pier A PS & CSO, which
shuts down Chain Rock PS & CSO.

4. March 15: The CSOs at Ferguson Rd CSO, Grove St CSO and Wallace St CSO were due to emergency
repairs at Jamieson St PS & CSO.

5. March 21: The CSOs at Lyle St CSO and Park Ave PS & CSO were due to blockages caused by debris.

6. March 30: The SSOs at Mill Cove Surge Tank and the CSO at Maitland St PS & CSO were due to rain on
the previous day. The CSO at Sackville St CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.

7. March 31: The SSOs at Mill Cove Surge Tank were due to rain on a previous day. The CSO at Duffus St
PS was due to a pump restriction from the Halifax WWTF.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 9 of 17

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

No. of CSOs and SSOs - April 2021
143 Total Overflows

40 80

35 70

30 60
£ T
g 25 - 50§
4 =
2 201 40 E
3 15 - L
p &

10 - - 20

5 - 10

0 n T I-_'_.I T T T I-_'_.I T T T IL.II-II T IIII T T T T 0

1234567 8 910111213 14151617 18 1920 2122 23 24252627 2829 30

m Overflows  Rainfall (mm)

NOTES & ACRONYMS: CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow
e Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTE,

e There were twenty-three overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows:

1. April 3: The SSOs at Mill Cove Surge Tank were due to rain on the previous day.

2. April 6: The SSO at Mill Cove Surge Tank was due to rain on the previous day. The CSO at Chain Rock
PS & CSO was due to a maintenance procedure. The CSO at Grove St CSO was due to a blockage caused
by debris.

3. April 8: The CSO at Duffus St PS was due to a pump restriction from the Halifax WWTF.

4. April 9: The CSO’s at Duffus St PS were due to pump restrictions from the Halifax WWTF.

5. April 14: The CSO at Lyle St CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.

6. April 15: The CSO at Lyle St CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.

7. April 20: The CSOs at King St PS & CSO, Maitland St PS & CSO, Melva St PS & CSO, Old Ferry Rd
PS & CSO and Park Ave PS & CSO were due to maintenance at the DWWTF. NSE was notified.

8. April 21: The CSOs at Lyle St CSO were due to blockages caused by debris.
9. April 27: The CSOs at Ferguson Rd CSO, King St PS & CSO, Lyle St CSO, Maitland St PS & CSO,

Melva St PS & CSO and Old Ferry Rd PS & CSO were due to maintenance at the DWWTF. NSE was
notified.



Page 10 of 17

Halifax Water Board

ITEM # 1-1

June 17, 2021

Trend Chart

May 2019 to April 2021

No. of CSOs and SSOs -

1202 BN
120 94
120 uef
0Z0Z %
0Z0T AON
020T 10
0Z0T 3das
oSN sny
oSN Ang
oSN sunf
OSN Ao\
020z dy
0Z0T TN
0207 924
0Z0g uef
6102 22
610T AON
610730
-“. 6102 3das
610T SNy
mSN Ang
610z sung
6107 AN

— e e - e

SMO[JI9A0 JO #

Mill Cove WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

NSE Compliance Limit

i

g a 8 2 8 e &

yjurpy asueypdwo)) SN A UOPEIIUIIN0.) IFedaAy A[PUOY o4

|

Mar-21

1]

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21
ECBOD mTSS mE.coli

Sep-20

Aug-20

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 11 of 17
Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

AeroTech WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart
160

384%

140

1808 %

120

NSE Compliance Limit
100

80

60

Wil

Q22019 Q32019 Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q32020 Q42020 Q12021

% Monthly Average Compliance vs NSE Compliance Limit

=

=

mCBOD mTSS mE.Coli @NH3 = TP

Lower numbers represent better performance.

Springfield Lake WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

10 712 %
848 %
252 %
140
266 %
120
178 %
NSE Compliance Limit
100
80

Q22019 Q32019 Q42019 Q1 2020 Q22020 Q32020 Q42020 Ql 2021
mCBOD mTSS mE.Coli

£

% Monthly Average Concentration vs NSE Compliance Limit
g

[}
(=3

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 12 of 17
Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Middle Musquodoboit WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160

=
=3

3
(=1

NSE Compliance Limit

biidtid

Q22019 Q3 2019 Q42019 Q1 2020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 Q12021

=3
(=1

-
=

[=a)
k=4

£
=

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit
(]
(=

mCBOD mTSS mE. Coli

Lower numbers represent better performance.

Lockview-MacPherson WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160

=

354 %

5
=

NSE Compliance Limit

YL d b

Q22019 Q32019 Q42019 Q1 2020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 Q12021

=
r=3

o«
=

L=a)
k=]

£
=

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit
(]
=

mCBOD mTSS mE.Coli mNH3 =TP

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 13 of 17
Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit

160

=
=3

3
(=1

=3
(=1

Frame WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

NSE Compliance Limit

80

60

40

0

LLLLLLL

Q22019

Q3 2019

Q42019 Q1 2020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 Q12021

mCBOD mTSS mE.Coli

Lower numbers represent better performance.

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit

160

140

120

100

30

60

40

20

North Preston WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

NSE Compliance Limit

Q22019

Q32019

Q42019 Q12020 Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 Q1 2021

s CBOD mTSS mE coli = NH3 = Phosphors

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 14 of 17
Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021

Steeves (Wellington) WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

140

120

100 NSE Compliance Limit

80

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit

Q22019 Q3 2019 Q42019 Q1 2020

Q2 2020

Q3 2020 Q4 2020

mCBOD ®TSS mE. coli = NH3 = Phosphorus

Q12021

Lower numbers represent better performance.

Lakeside-Timberlea WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160

178 %
140

120

NSE Compliance Limit

100

40

% Monthly Average Concentration vs NSE Compliance Limit
g

Q22019 Q32019 Q42019

= CBOD

Q12020
mE.coli

Q22020 Q3 2020
= NH3 = TP

Q4 2020

=TSS = TRC

Q1 2021

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 15 of 17
Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Uplands WWTF
Quarterly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

mCBOD =mTSS mE.coli

160
E 140
e}
g
=
=
= 120
g
o
= NSE Compliance Limit
2 100
-4
=
2
T 80
g
&
< 60
-1
:
=
= 40
=
g
=
® 20 —
0 T T T T T T
Q22019 Q32019 Q42019 Q12020 Q22020 Q3 2020 Q42020 Q12021
= CBOD = TSS mE.Coli
Lower numbers represent better performance.
Halifax WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart
160
286 %
= 140
E
=
b4
g 120
=
&
o NSE Compliance Limit
= 100
z
-
=
£ w0
.
-]
g
g
o %
@
-4
kel
S
a0
=
£
g
2 20
B
0 : : : : : . .
Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1
Page 16 of 17

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Dartmouth WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160
- 188 % 162 % 381 %
120
NSE Compliance Limit
100
0 T T T T T | T

Ang-20 Sep-20 Oet-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

2

2

=

8

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit

mCBOD =TSS mE. coli

Lower numbers represent better performance.

Herring Cove WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

160

140

120

NSE Compliance Limit

Hii“l

Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

% Monthly Average Concentration vs NSE Compliance Limit

mCBOD =mTSS mE.coli

Lower numbers represent better performance.



ITEM # 1-1

Page 17 of 17

Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021

140

120

100

80

60

% Monthly Average Concentration vs. NSE Compliance Limit
=

0

Eastern Passage WWTF
Monthly Compliance Summary - Trend Chart

NSE Compliance Limit

il

Aug-20

Sep-20

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21

mCBOD mTSS mE. coli

Mar-21

Lower numbers represent better performance.



z{({/uanrax o, Wt g
Water June 17, 2021

Halifax Regional Water Commission

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board

H Digitally signed by Louis
Louis de de Montorun

SUBMITTED BY: Montbrun Date: 2021.06.11

08:45:20 -03'00"

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA Director of Corporate Services/CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: WJ &b@ ggt::()lzeom .06.11

08:48:00 -03'00"
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: June 11, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Water Collection Processes
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

NS Public Utilities Act

Halifax Water Regulations
Rate Affordability Studies —2012/13 and 2017/18

BACKGROUND

The NS Public Utilities Act, and Halifax Water Regulations approved by the NSUARB require
that all customers receiving a similar service are billed at the same rate. There is no

consideration of socio-economic circumstances in how rates are set or how customers are
billed.

Utilities can set up customer assistance programs however, as Halifax Water has done for low
income customers through the H20 Program that is administered on our behalf'by the Salvation
Army.

The purpose of this report is to provide the Halifax Water Board with an overview of Halifax
Water’s approach to collection of outstanding accounts. The larger topic of affordability of
Halifax Water’s rates was last examined in 2017/18 and a copy of the report is included in the
reference material provided to the Board. There has been little change in Halifax Water’s rates
for service since April 1, 2016 and the benchmarking Halifax Water conducts indicates that
Halifax Water’s rates remain competitive. At April 1, 2021 the average annual cost for a
residential family in Halifax receiving water, wastewater and stormwater service was $839;
compared to an average of $1,016.03 for the fourteen benchmark cities.

Page 1 of 5



ITEM # 2-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2020

Benchmarking of Estimated Annual Residential
Cost (5/8" - 15mm Meter)

$1,600
$1,400 Halifax

$1,200 $839
$1,000
$800
$600
$400
$200
SO

Annual Bill

* Includes Water, Wastewater and Stormwater; all others are Water and Wastewater
only

Rate affordability will be examined again prior to the next general rate application.

Halifax Water recognizes the delicate balance of keeping the utility on a sound financial
footing, treating customers equitably, but also having a compassionate approach to customers.
It is a challenge, given that Halifax Water has committed to hold the water rates flat for 2020/21
and 2021/22.

DISCUSSION

Halifax Water has a multi-tiered approach to collection of outstanding accounts that
incorporates reminders, then utility industry standard measures such as accrual of interest,
disconnection of service, fees for reconnection, and in some instances also can employ liens.

On average 1% of customer accounts are disconnected for non-payment of service in any given
year. Halifax Water can suspend service after an account is 40 days past due however it is
typically it is much longer before this actually occurs, as the utility tries to work with customers
to prevent this.

The current approach to collection activity and payment arrangements is outlined in the table

below. It is important that employees have some guidelines to work with, to ensure customers
are treated fairly. That being said, we do try to help customers find solutions. Halifax Water

Page 2 of 5



ITEM # 2-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2020

has the authority to refuse service until accounts are paid in full, but historically has taken the
approach of requiring a 50% repayment.

Also, if a customer falls into the low-income category, they are referred to Halifax Water’s
H20 (Help to Others) Program. There is a small discretionary component of funding available
under that program, which can be used to deal with the exceptions to the 50% repayment
requirement noted above and to deal with customers who may not be considered eligible for
the H20 fund. The H2O fund distributes approximately $25,000 in financial assistance each
year and is usually fully utilized. In addition, employees of Halifax Water also contribute to
this fund and Halifax Water matches the employee contribution. The H2O fund is paid for from
un-regulated earnings and employee donations and does not affect the rate base.

The following table shows the number of customers who have been supported through the H20
program since its inception in 2011/12:

2019-20 150
2018-19 135
2017-18 168
2016-17 101
2015-16 71
2014-15 82
2013-14 102
2012-13 55
2011-12 125

Current collection framework is outlined below:
e Quarterly bills are due 30 days from the bill issue date
e 43 days after the issue date, a reminder notice is sent by mail

e 90 days+ after issue date, a notice is delivered by phone, mailed letter or door
card.

The collection approach is as follows:

Collections | Past Due | Notice to Customer Approved Payment Terms

Activity Amount

Phone Call | Upto Reminder of an If the customer requests payment
$200 outstanding balance. arrangements, payment is to be

received within 10 days. If
payment is not received, the
account will move to the next step
in the collections process.

Page 3 of 5



ITEM # 2-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2020

Letter $200 - A Final Notice is provided If deposit or transferred balance

$400 that advises the customer | remains outstanding it must be
that to avoid an paid immediately to secure service.
interruption in service,
payment of the full past Payment of amount 47 days past
due amount is required due or half of the full past due
immediately. balance, whichever is greater, is

required prior to the disconnection

If payment is not received | date on the letter. The remaining
by the date noted on the past due balance is to be paid
letter (generally 10 days within 30 days.
after issue date),
disconnection of service
will take place.

Door Card | $400 A Final Notice is provided If deposit or transferred balance
and that advises the customer | remains outstanding it must be
greater | that to avoid an paid immediately to secure service.

interruption in service,

payment of the full past Payment of amount 47 days past

due amount is required due or half of the full past due

within 24 hours. balance, whichever is greater, is
required within 10 days of the card
delivery. The remaining past due
balance is to be paid within 30
days.

To support customers during the pandemic, collections processes were adjusted. No interest
was charged on overdue accounts, customers that had been disconnected for nonpayment were
reconnected and general collections activity was suspended for an extended period.

As expected, these customer focused measures have had an impact. Firstly, collection
processes have taken time to get back to the pre-pandemic levels. As a result, the timelines
identified above have been extended and customers have had a much longer period to bring
their accounts up to date. Secondly, the accounts receivable balance has become much older.
Currently, over $5m in accounts receivable are over 60 days old which represent approximately
35% of total customer accounts receivable.

Halifax Water continues to identify various means to support customers. One of the challenges
for customers are increased bills due to higher than normal consumption. The implementation
of the AMI technology has provided additional options to support customers. Halifax Water
has been able to use the AMI data to implement the Customer Connect Portal, where customers
can get up to date consumption data, sign up for automatic high consumption notifications and
access their account. Currently over 17% of customers have signed up for the Portal, well
ahead of expectation and the level that other utilities have achieved at this stage of
implementation. Halifax Water has also implemented processes to notify non-Portal customers

Page 4 of 5



ITEM # 2-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2020

if their consumption has increased significantly. The initial phase of this process focusses on
residential customers with a 5/8” meter. These processes are relatively manual and not as cost
effective as the Portal.

Larger quarterly bills can also be more challenging for some customers to pay. To support
customers, Halifax Water has offered monthly budget billing, preauthorized payment,
electronic payment and credit card payment options. These tools have been effective.

Using the AMI data, Halifax Water is preparing to move to monthly billing rather than
quarterly billing. This is a significant transition for the organization and requires changes to
the billing processes, a significant increase in the costs to produce and mail paper bills and a
significant communication initiative with customers. It is anticipated that the number of paper
bills will reduce as more customers sign up for the Portal and for paperless billing.

The change to monthly billing will also require changes to the collection processes. Additional
options are being reviewed to streamline processes to help identify customers who are having
difficulty paying their bills as early as possible. Halifax Water’s goal is to start working with
a customer sooner to develop payment options when the balances are lower and more
manageable.

Halifax Water also utilizes liens as a method to help ensure collection and mitigate financial
risk. Liens can be used when a customer does not have a water account and therefore cannot
be disconnected for non-payment. Halifax Water currently uses liens for Stormwater only
accounts when the account is overdue for more than 77 days. Halifax Water works with
HRM’s Revenue Division to place liens on a customer’s property. Liens are an important tool
to protect the utility and one that may be able to be used more effectively.

Other options being considered include working with landlords to ensure their tenants are
paying their Halifax Water bills, increasing the staff dedicated to collections to be more
proactive in dealing with customers with overdue accounts.

Halifax Water recognizes the delicate balance of keeping the utility on a sound financial

footing, treating customers equitably, but also having a compassionate approach to customers.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

N/A

H Digitally signed by Louis
LOUIS de de Montbrun

Report Prepared by: Montbrun Date: 2021.06.11

08:45:43 -03'00"
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services/CFO
902-490-3685

Page 5 of 5



ITEM # 3-1

Halifax Water Board

June 17, 2021
Halifax Water Compliance Statement

Quarterly Certification

For the period of January 1, 2021 to March 31, 2021

We hereby certify that the Halifax Regional Water Commission is current in making all
statutory remittances for payroll taxes, Harmonized Sales Tax and other remittances as
required under the laws of the Government of Canada and its Provinces (the significant
remittances are noted in the appendix) and that all significant legal claims have been disclosed.

Dl;gi;illél signed by Cathie LOU |S de Digitally signed by Louis
w(&/ &0‘6 gaTte: I2021.06.1 1 M gat“:: 2:)21.06.11

06:10:13 -03'00' Ontbru n 04:24:34 -03'00'
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
General Manager Director, Corporate Services/CFO and

Corporate Treasurer

HRH Digitally signed by Heidi
Heldl Schedler

Schedler &7 000"
Heidi Schedler
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Dated:
June 11, 2021




ITEM # 3-1
Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Halifax Water Compliance Statement APPENDIX I

Quarterly Certification
Appendix I

Significant statutory remittances for payroll taxes, Harmonized Sales Tax and other
remittances as required under the laws of the Government of Canada and its Provinces for the

Halifax Regional Water Commission.

Statutory Payroll Remittances
> Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) - Statutory employee payroll deductions
and employer related contributions for:

o Income Tax
o Canada Pension Plan (CPP)
o Employment Insurance (EI)

> Workers’ Compensation Board of Nova Scotia (WCB) — Employer
remittance based on employee payroll

Other Payroll Remittances
> Northern Trust - Employee payroll deductions and employer contributions to

Halifax Water and HRM defined benefit pension plans

> Industrial Alliance — employer and employee contributions to defined
contribution pension plan

> Medavie Blue Cross & SSQ — employee payroll deductions and employer
related contributions for Health & dental, LTD, and Life benefit coverage, and
payroll deductions for AD&D

> Canadian Union of Public Employees — Employee payroll deductions of

union dues
o CUPE Local 227
o CUPE Local 1431

HST and Other Remittances
> Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) - Harmonized Sales Tax (HST) is filed

online and a refund issued as HST paid is greater than HST collected

> Workers’ Compensation Board of Nova Scotia (WCB) — Remittance for
sub-contractors



ITEM # 3-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Quarterly Remittance Certification

Appendix I1
Period: Jan to Mar 2021

Vendor Vendor # Items Remitted Total remitted Exceptions
Statutory Payroll Remittances

CRA 174 Tax, CPP, EI, WCB $4,225,092.39
Other Payroll

Northern Trust 1215  HW Pension Plan $ 1,478,586.06

Northern Trust 1216 ~ HRM Pension Plan $ 295418.88

Manulife Financial 1171 Bedford Pension Plan $ 1,802.04

Industrial Alliance 2971  DCPP $ 2,445.46

Medavie Blue Cros: 340, 3101 Health, Dental, Life, LTD $ 810,560.64

SSQ Insurance 429 AD&D $ 6,813.59

CUPE 160 Union Dues 1431 $ 35,234.93

CUPE 161 Union Dues 227 $ 8,562.40
Other payroll not noted

United Way, Credit Union, Garnishments (WCB, CRA, Family Court, Sherriff's Office),
Water for People, Salvation Army, Racially Visible Caucus

HST and Other
CRA N/A HST (refunds) $ (2,341,461.45)
Receiver General 210 ‘WCB subcontractors $ 100.46

Exceptions, errors and/or late remittances




J(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4-1

l l \\EJ lC‘l‘ Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission June 17. 2021
9

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board as Trustees of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan

H Digitally signed by Louis
LOUIS de de Montbrun

SUBMITTED BY: Montbrun o

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA,

Director, Corporate Services / CFO
Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: MC‘J a‘b£ 8‘;2:0?021 06.10

17:17:51 -03'00'

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: June 7, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
Financial Report First Quarter, 2021

INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

Financial reporting for the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension
Plan (hereinafter called the “Plan”).

BACKGROUND

The Board is required to review the periodic (quarterly) financial results of the Plan
throughout the year.

DISCUSSION

The attached statement of changes in net assets available for benefits (Appendix A) outlines
the annual budget for the Plan and actual financial performance for the First Quarter
(January 1 to March 31, 2021). Favourable or unfavourable variances reported compare
actual results to pro-rated budget amounts, for the three (3) month period ending March

Page 1 of 3



ITEM 4-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

31%, 2021. Yearend results for 2019 (audited) and 2020 (un-audited until approved by the
Halifax Water Board), are shown for comparative purposes.

As shown on the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, net assets
available for benefits have increased by $2.5 million for the three (3) month period ending
March 31, 2021. The pro-rated budget for the period forecasted an increase in net assets
available of $2.4 million. Actual results for the period of $2.5 million compared to the pro-
rated budget of $2.4 million results in a favourable variance of $0.1 million.

The annual budget forecasted revenue of $8.6 million. Revenue for the period totaled $2.5
million, which when compared to the pro-rated budget of $2.1 million results in a
favourable variance of $0.4 million. Performance of the HRM Master Trust directly drives
the revenue figures reported and change tends to be more volatile compared to
contributions and expenses of the Plan. This variance is attributed directly to the actual
increase in the fair value of the investment assets being higher than expected. The increase
for the period totaled $1.9 million compared to the budget of $1.3 million, a difference of
$0.6 million or 48%. Investment income for the period performed below expectations,
showing an unfavorable variance of $0.2 million or 26%.

Contributions of $1.5 million are below the pro-rated budget of $1.7 million by $0.2 million
or 11%. The unfavourable variance is attributed to timing of staffing increases connected
to new positions approved in the Halifax Water budget.

Expenses of $1.5 million for the period are higher than the pro-rated budget of $1.4 million

resulting in an unfavourable variance of $0.1 million or 7%. The main contributor to this
variance is termination payments which are higher than the pro-rated budget estimate.

SERVICE STANDARDS

Tracking of Regulatory Filing Requirements, Administrative Reporting Requirements and
Service Standards for actuarial calculation requests is ongoing. The reports for Regulatory
Filing Requirements and Administrative Reporting Requirements are attached as Appendix
B and Appendix C respectively, and document administrative compliance within the
various levels of reporting for the period.

Service Standard results for the First Quarter (January 1 to March 31, 2021) have been
attached as Appendix D. The primary purpose of the service standard report is to report on
the administrative compliance with the Pension Benefits Act of Nova Scotia (the “Act”)
respecting the timing of statements or notifications required under the Act, such as:

e Retirement statement to member;
e Notification of options to retiring member;
e Death benefits statement; and

e Statement on termination.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM 4-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

A secondary purpose of the report is to provide performance reporting respecting the Plan’s
actuaries, for required deliverables based on pre-determined standards. These standards are
internal in nature, and mutually agreed upon by the actuary and Halifax Water.

First Quarter results reported in Appendix D show, out of the 3 requests submitted for
retirement estimates (with options), retirement packages were provided to each member
within the prescribed timelines under the Act, 60 days prior to the member’s intended
retirement date. In addition there were 3 terminations during the period, with each
terminating employee provided a termination package (with options) within the prescribed
timelines under the Act, within 60 days after their termination date.

Performance of the actuary, also reported in Appendix D, shows out of 6 requests in total,
the actuary met the pre-determined standards in each instance, with average response times
for retirement and termination calculation estimates of 5 days and 7 business days
respectively. The response time from the actuaries has shown improvement over the last 2
years and is continuously monitored to ensure this level of service is maintained.

ATTACHMENTS

APPENDIX A — Financial Report:
Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, for the three (3)
month period ended March 31, 2021

APPENDIX B — Regulatory Filing Requirements — Q1 2021

APPENDIX C — Administrative Reporting Requirements — Q1 2021

APPENDIX D — Service Standards Report — Q1 2021

Heather  pugtizne®
Report Prepared by: Britten Date: 2021.06.10

17:54:44 -03'00"

Heather Britten, Quality Assurance Officer 902-490-1895

Page 3 of 3



Item 4-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021
Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan Appendix A
Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits
For the three (3) month period ended March 31, 2021
Benchmark 25%
March 31, 2021
Variance Actual Actual
(Audited, if approvaed by
Prorated Actual versus Prorated Budget HW Board Jun 17/21) (Audited)
2021 Budget Favourable (Unfavourable) 2020 2019
Budget Actual 25% $ %
Revenue
Net investment income:
Total investment income $3,700,000 $682,245 $925,000 ($242,755) (26%) $3,763,614 $3,644,079
Investment manager fees ($220,000) ($54,180) ($55,000) $820 (1%) ($194,968) ($202,574)
Increase (decrease) in the fair value of investment assets $5,100,000 $1,887,487 $1,275,000 $612,487 48% $8,630,589 $10,642,209
$8,580,000 $2,515,552 $2,145,000 $370,552 17% $12,199,235 $14,083,715
Contributions
Participants:
Current service (inc AVC's) ' $3,417,000 $756,480 $854,250 ($97,770) (11%) $3,310,113 $3,463,328
Sponsors:
Current service (inc LTD) $3,332,000 $737,686 $833,000 ($95,314) (11%) $3,230,131 $2,972,138
$6,749,000 $1,494,166 $1,687,250 ($193,084) (11%) $6,540,244 $6,435,466
Expenses
Benefit payments:
Benefit payments $4,866,000 $1,146,257 $1,216,500 $70,243 6% $4,552,474 $4,226,855
Termination payments $500,000 $286,401 $125,000 ($161,401) (129%) $677,237 $960,187
Administrative:
Actuarial & consulting fees $55,000 $7,990 $13,750 $5,760 42% $42,143 $118,659
Audit & accounting fees $9,000 $0 $2,250 $2,250 100% $8,648 $8,530
Bank custodian fees $30,000 $6,976 $7,500 $524 7% $30,479 $28,636
Insurance $9,000 $9,636 $2,250 ($7,386) (328%) $9,636 $8,760
Miscellaneous $20,000 $5,770 $5,000 ($770) (15%) $16,724 $20,610
Professional fees $20,000 $15,820 $5,000 ($10,820) (216%) $23,151 $23,261
Registration fees $3,000 $0 $750 $750 100% $2,645 $2,500
Training (Trustees/ Administration/ Pension Committee) $2,000 $0 $500 $500 100% $0
$5,514,000 $1,478,851 $1,378,500 ($100,351) (7%) $5,363,136 $5,397,997
Increase (decrease) in net assets available for benefits $9,815,000 $2,530,868 $2,453,750 $77,118 3% $13,376,343 $15,121,184
Net assets available for benefits, beginning of period $154,956,156 $154,956,156 $141,579,813  $126,458,630
Increase (decrease) in net assets available for benefits $9,815,000 $2,530,868 $13,376,343 $15,121,184
Net assets available for benefits, end of period $164,771,156 $157,487,024 $154,956,156  $141,579,813

For the purpose of this statement, expenses are reported on a cash basis. Comparative years are reported on an accrual basis as that is how they are

reported on the financial statements.

Footnotes
1 AVC = Additional Voluntary Contributions
2 LTD = Long Term Disability

https://insidehrwc.halifaxwater.ca/ou/corporateservices/pension/Pension Plan Financial Statements PPFS/PPFS 2021



‘Apoq Aloje|nbai e 0} sjuswalinbai Buiiodas 0] 198[gns Jou a10jai18Y} palalsifal Jou ale sjuswaalby [BUOIION "/ 102 ‘| Arenuer Jo} alep dA1l08Ye Ue Yim / 10z Buunp pajuswa|dw alem sjuswaalby [BuOllON

sseah (g) 9aiyl Alans wnwiuiw e e palinbal aJe suolien|e A [euenoy

'/ 102 ‘9 1890100 luspusiunadng ay} Aq paaiadal

Aouaby enuanay epeue)

alam ue|d D dY} jo uonelsiBas ayy o} Buiejal sjuswnoop ||y ueld Od B/U pieog ay} Aq panoidde Juswipuawe ayj Jaye skep 09 suoIsuad Jo Juspusjuredng
‘6102 ‘| Arenuep jo uopjenfe [euenioy ayi Aq paleloip 6102 /2 leaquierdeg Kouaby enuanay epeue)
se afueyd ajeJ uoiNGLUIUOD 8y} 0} Juensind sem Juswpuawe
8y 6102 ‘g Joquieideg juspuajuuiedng ey} 0} paRIgns
{6102 ‘0z aunp pseog ayi Aq panoidde g | # Juswpuawy ueld 9ad 6102 ‘/g Jequaides pseog ay} Aq panoidde juswpuswe ay} Jaye sAep 09 SUOISUd( J0 Juspuauiadng sjuswpuswy ueld 9
6102 ‘/2 1oquieides Koueby enuansy epeue)
‘6102 ‘| Arenuep Jo se pajonpuod Sem UOIEN[EA [eLEN}oY 6102 ‘L2 loquedes yiog Jequiaides SUOISUd( J0 Juspuauiadng LUolen[eA [eueny g
020z Ul pajuelb uoisusix3y ueld 0d 0z0z ‘91 Ainp
020g ul pajuelb uoisualxg ueld gd 0202 ‘91 AInp yiog sunp SUOISUd( J0 Juspuauliadng (d1v) suiniey uonewJoju| [enuuy ¥
(0202 u! pajueId
uoisualx3) “Jeak yoea yiog aunp oy Joud Apoq Aiojeinbas ay) 0}
paniwans si Yodau siy | “ueid ayi Jo s|rejep surpad (e Buljielap
uoday [eroueuld e sapiaoid aduel||y [euisnpu| ‘ienamoH “ueid
uoysuad siy} 4o} pasedald Jou are sjusWale]S [eloUBUL PalIPNY ueld O 0202 ‘91 AInp
(0202 ur pajuelB uoisuslx3) ‘0202 ‘YIGZ dunr uo pieog MH oy}
Aq panoidde pue paje|dwod aiam Sjuswalels [eloueUl pajpNy ue|d gd 0202 ‘9 Ainp pus Ieak [Bosl} s,ue|d U} Jo}e syluow 9 SUOISUa JO Juapuajuadng  sjuswale)s [eloueUl4 palipny Ueld Uoisuad €
‘yodai Auauenb ueld uoisuad INYH
WOJ} PaUIe}qo UOIIBWIOU| "JBaA Yoea SuIn}dy Xe| awoodu| €]
8|1y pue aJedeid 0} UBIPOISNO Y} SE 1SN UIBYLON saiinbal 4O ue|d gd 1202 ‘I yorepn 1SLE Yyosep Aouaby anuanay epeue) (g1) uinlay xe| awoou| ue|d uoisuad 2
"UB|d O 8} 40} ‘DOUBI||Y [eLISNPU| ‘DBISNI | BU} Yim Ajoaulp pa|i4 ueld 0d 120z ‘6 Aenuep
‘UB|d gQ @Y} 10} ‘ISni] UIBYUON ‘@8isni] 8yl yim Apoauip paji4 ue|ld gd 1202 ‘62 Aenuep JeaA [eosyy yoea jo Buluuibaq sy Jale sAep 09 suoIsuad 4o Juspusjunedng suonNQUIU0) Jo Alrewwng - € Wio4 [enuuy |

Sjuswwo)

4 XIAN3ddv
L20g ‘L1 dunp
pieog Jajep xejljeH

-y way

P3|y ise| areq

auipeaq buji4

Apog Aiojenbay

uoday

1202 ‘L€ yoiepy 1e se
1202 - sjuawaainbay Buiji4 Aiojenbay

ue|d uoisuad ,saafkojdwig uoissiwwo) Jalep) [euoibay xeyjeH

*x



‘Apoq Aloje|nbas e 0} sjuswaiinbas Buiiodal 0} 108[gns jou alojaiay) passisibal Jou aJe sjuswaalby [BUONON "/ 10 ‘| Alenuep 1o} 81ep aAl0aye ue yim / Loz Buunp pajuswsaldwi a1om sjuawaalfy [euoloN

“Jeak yoea Qg JoqIBaAoN

sauidxa pouad Adijod sy “yels uonessiuiwpe Ag Ajlenuue pamausl pue pamainay ueld 90 0202 ‘GZ 18qWaAoN Ajlenuuy aouelnsu| Aljiger] Areonpl4 9
'SJUBWalels Ueld gd ay} Yim uonounfuod uj Ajjenuue panssi sjuswalels LJuswaa.by [euolioN 0202 ‘gl aunp
‘Buiodal awii-[eal ‘auljuo 0} SS80E SABY OS[e SI9qUIS|\ "SluaWalels ue|ld 0d 0202 ‘gl aunp
ue|d (gq) weuag pauyaq ey} Yim uoiounfuod ul Ajlenuue panssi sjuswalels
‘Y10g aunp Aq Ajlenuue panssi sjuswalels ueld gd 0202 ‘gl aunp yiog aunp SIaquIa)\ O} SUBWIAJEIS UoISUdd [enuuy G
"1 202 ‘G2 Yyotep\ uo panoidde pue pamainal Ise|
SEM pUE Ajjenuue pamainal si (d8dIS) $2Inpadoid %§ SaI01|0d JUSWISAAU] JO JusWalels
‘uoljeluawnoop Bureaw salIWWoY Ue|d uoisuad WY H Aleuenb ayl yum uonounfuod
| ‘51030811 JO pJe0g MH 9U} 40} Jjels uonesisiuiwpe Aq Apepenb pasedaid uodey
(0202 18qWade( - 1890J0Q) JOHEND YHNO4 ueld gd 1202 ‘Ge yoren d8dIS yim soueldwo)
Auapend 2 MOINSY SOUBWIONSd JUSWISOAU|
‘paiinbai jou sjuswalels [eroueUl LJuswsalby [euolioN B/
‘Arenuue JojenBas ay) 0} (YY) uinidy uonew.oju)
[enuuy ayl yum pajy si Lodas jey) pue aouel||y [erisnpul Aq pasedaid si podal [eroueuly
V ‘ueld (D@) uonnquiuo) pauyeq ay} Joy pasedaid jou ase sjuawalels Apepend ue|d Dd B/U
(1202 yoJep - Arenuer) Japend 1sii4 ue|ld 9a 1202 ‘) aunp Apapend SJUSWAJE]S [BIOUBUI4 UB|J UOISUS] €
Juswaalby [euoiioN '/
1202 Jauenp 1sii4 10} Jodas
0} suofdeoxa ou {pud Yjuow Jo SAep Q€ UIYIM 8dUBl||Y [BLISNPU| O} 8NP S8oUBHIWSY ue|ld 0d 1202 ‘g Arenuep
"120g J8ueNp 18l 10}
podas 0} suoldaoxa ou ‘pus Yuow Jo sAep Qg UIYHIM ISni] UIBYHON O} anp SaouepiwaY ueld g4 1202 ‘11 ey Ajyuoy 99)SNJ] 8y} 0} suonNQUIU0) g
1202 k20g ‘| aunp Ayyuopy lloiAed ;siuoisuad |
Japenp 1sd14 8y} Joj Jodas 0} suoidadxa ou fyjuow yoes jo 3| ay} pred e siauoisuad
sjuswiwo) paw.oyiad 29ualInday /euljpeaq buljigy yoday

/P3| ise| djeq

1202 - Sjuawalinbay Bunioday annens

1202 ‘L€ Yol 1e se
nwpy

O XIAN3ddV

1202 ‘L1 dunp
pieog Jalep xejieH
|- wa}

ue|d uoisuad ,saafkojdwig uoissiwwo) Jalep) [euoibay xeyjeH



9 %00} 0 9 Alenjoy o} s|e1o |
sAeq ssauisng G| (sy.LY |oul) pJepuels UoN -
» 61l 2t € L %00k 0 € skeq sseuisng || pIepuels -
suone[noey /serewnsy UoNeuILLIS |
skeq ssauisng G| Hjausg yleaq uswaliiay-ald
sheq ssauisng G| Jal1e7 yieaq luswaliley-1sod
sAeq ssauisng G| suone|noen umopyealg abelep
, 14" 6 € ] %00} 0 € skeq ssauisng || Sajewlisy juswaliley
vdad yim
sAeq aoinieg| sAeq ao1niag|  palejdwon| sAeq 99iInias pJepuels pJepuelg| palgjdwon
SRS abelany [eloL abelany #le1o01 abelany UIYHM % Ised # #le1o1 Plepuels uonoesuell
}e1s MH Arenjoy
(1202 ‘Ge ke 1e se) | 1aenpd
a XIaN3ddv 1202 - Moday spJepuels adIAIeS

120z ‘L1 aunp
pieog Jalep\ xejleH

-y way

ue|d uoisuad ,s9akojdwig uoissiwwo) 191\ [euoibay xejyjeq




o ITEM # 5-1
dd | ld] ifax HRWC Board
l l Wwater June 17, 2021

Halifax Regional Water Commission

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board as Trustees of the
Halifax Water Employees’ Pension Plan

Digitally signed by Allan

SUBMITTED BY: /{00 thce San5ehce o (on behalf of)

17:28:01 -03'00'

Gary McPherson, Chair and Members of the Pension and Benefits
Advisory Committee

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: Lol Co 0% 061

17:18:23 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: June 4, 2021

SUBJECT: 2020 Annual Report - Pension and Benefits Advisory Committee
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

Activities of the Pension and Benefits Advisory Committee (the “Committee”) are reported
to the Trustees (the “Administrator”) annually, in accordance with the Terms of Reference
of the Committee.

BACKGROUND

As defined in the Terms of Reference of the Committee, its objectives and responsibilities
include:

e Monitor the administration of the pension and benefits plans (the “Plans”) to ensure
that the Plans are conducted in a manner consistent with the provisions of the
official pension plan documents, group insurance and other benefit plan documents,
and governing legislation

Page 1 of 5



ITEM # 5-1

HRWC Board
June 17, 2021

e Make recommendations to the Administrator respecting the administration of the
Plans

e Promote awareness and understanding of the Plans on the part of members, and
persons receiving pension or other benefits under the Plans

e Assist with the monitoring of the Plans activities, and provide input in this regard,
through review of audited financial statements, actuarial valuations, key contracts
and agreements, reports on investment performance and other performance metrics

e Review annual communication plans to all stakeholders, which minimally will
include a plan for:

v Annual pension statements

v Newsletters and articles in the Pipeline Post

v" Annual general meeting for pension plan members, and
v" Educational sessions for pre-retirement.

The purpose of this report is to provide a brief summary of the Committee’s activities
during 2020.

DISCUSSION

The Committee met as follows during 2020:

e February 4, 2020 2:00 pm
e May 21, 2020 1:00 pm
e November 20, 2020 1:00 pm

The February 4, 2020 meeting was held at 450 Cowie Hill Road, Halifax NS. All other
meetings were held virtually via MS Teams, due to gathering limits and safety protocols
associated with COVID-19.

Table 1 below provides a summary of attendance at Committee meetings held during 2020.
Of note, Board Chair Craig McMullin held the Board representative position on the
Committee until it was determined, at a December 2019 workshop, that a Board Member
would no longer be required to participate on the Committee as the Board is fulfilling their
governance duties, acting as both Trustees and Administrator of the Plans. The
Committee’s Terms of Reference were updated to reflect this change, and approved
November 20, 2020.

Page 2 of 5



ITEM # 5-1

HRWC Board
June 17, 2021

Table 1

Attendance Report - 2020

Pension and Benefits Advisory Committee

n/a

February May November

Representatives: 4 21 20

Gary McPherson, Chair Local 227 v v v

Allan Campbell, Vice Chair  Non-Union v 7 -

Craig MacMullin HW Board v n/a n/a

Martin Austin Local 227 v - v

Paul Taylor Local 1431 v v v

Chris MacNeil Local 1431 - - v

Cathie O'Toole Management v v v

Louis de Montbrun Management v v -

John Eisnor Non-Union v v v

Cheryl Little Pensioners v v v
Alternates:

John Legge Local 227 v v v

Anna McCarron Local 1431 - v v

Heather Britten Non-Union - v v

Norma Dube Pensioners v v v
Observers:

HR

Rochelle Bellemare Coordinator v v 7

Todd Masters 4 n/a n/a
Administration Support

Amanda Joudrey v v v

Legend: v - Present
- - Absent

- Not a Member of the Committee at the time

Page 3 of 5




ITEM # 5-1

HRWC Board
June 17, 2021

Key issues the Committee addressed during the year included:
e Contribution corrections required for HRM Defined Contribution Plan

e Proposed enhancements to health benefits including:
v Registered Counselling Therapist
v’ Biologic drug Nucala
v’ Diabetic pump supplies
v' Increase in coverage for psychology and psychiatry

e Benefit renewals for health and dental
e Continuing education for Committee members
e New Employee Assistance Program (EAP) provider, Homewood Health Care

e New payroll system; VIP
e Changes to the NS Pension Benefits Act
e Survivor Benefits

Main accomplishments of the Committee for the year were:

1. Through Mercer, Halifax Water was able to successfully negotiate benefit renewals
for health and dental, with no increase for health, and a rate decrease of 5% for
dental. The renewals became effective September 1, 2020

2. Implemented Registered Counselling Therapist as an enhancement to health
benefits

3. The approval of various pension and benefit communication initiatives during the
year prepared by Halifax Water staff, such as newsletters, pension plan budget and
the pension plan financial reports that go to the Administrator quarterly. The
purpose of these initiatives was to provide members:

1.  Updated information regarding the financial health of the pension plan;
ii.  Overview of the pension plan;

1.  Overview of health, dental and other benefits accessible to members

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND FUTURE INITIATIVES

e Benefit plan renewals were approved with effective dates as follows:
v Health and dental, June 1, 2021, and
v' Life and long-term disability, April 1, 2021

Page 4 of 5



ITEM # 5-1

HRWC Board
June 17, 2021

The Committee met to review coverages, and as there were no changes to benefits
and/or rates, recommendations to the Administrator were not required.

e Initiate benchmarking exercise to compare Halifax Water’s benefit plans to other
public sector employers

e Review and provide recommendations as required relating to benefit plan
enhancements

e Continuing education for Committee members, including guest speakers at
scheduled meetings

FORMAL MOTIONS TO THE ADMINISTRATOR

None currently.

Heather Digitally signed by
Report Prepared by: e S

17:56:42 -03'00"
Heather Britten, B. Comm.
Quality Assurance Officer (902) 490-1895

Digitally signed by Allan

g/ Campbell
/&&- L Date: 2021.06.10

17:28:32 -03'00"
Allan Campbell, B. Comm., CPA, CMA
Manager, Finance (902) 266-8655

Page 5 of 5



JJ/ o ITEM # 6-1
Halifax Halifax Water Board
l l Water June 17, 2021

Halifax Regional Water Commission

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board
James gigital'lay ﬁigned by James
ampbel
SUBMITTED BY:  Campbell _ %%57%°

James Campbell, Communications and PR Manager

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: M&J &b@ 8;2:029021 06.10

17:39:04 -03'00'

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: June 10, 2021

SUBJECT: 2021/22 Communications Plan and Approach
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

2021/22 Annual Business Plan

BACKGROUND

Halifax Water’s business plan for 2021/22 was developed with an awareness that many
of the challenges of the 2020/21 fiscal year will continue to impact Halifax Water’s
customers, employees and business partners. Utilizing the One Team, One Water
approach to service delivery, Halifax Water continues to adapt to the evolving realities of
operating during COVID-19 while continuing to deliver reliable, safe and affordable
water, wastewater and stormwater services; maintaining the quality of the service; and
high levels of employee and customer satisfaction.

DISCUSSION

The 2021/22 Communications Plan and Approach reflects the challenges and
opportunities outlined 2021/22 Annual Business Plan and provides an overview of the
main projects, programs and services that will be the focus of communications efforts for
this fiscal year. Along with a number of significant capital projects, Halifax Water will be

Page 1 of 2



ITEM # 6-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

developing a comprehensive community engagement strategy; enhancing its customer
support programs; and work to complete a Diversity and Inclusion Roadmap. Separate,
detailed communications plans have already been developed for a number of the strategic
items listed in the Plan.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 2021/22 Communications Plan and Approach

2. Communications and Stakeholder Engagement — Plan on a Page

Digitally signed by James
James Campbell

Date: 2021.06.10

Report Prepared by: Campbell 19T 000300
James Campbell, Communications and PR Manager, 902-490-4604

Page 2 of 2



=3 54 1 =

2l O ay PN




Table of Contents

COMMUNICATION STRATEGY . 2
1 OVBIVIBW .ttt ettt e e e ettt e e e e s e ettt e e e e e e e ae st neneeeeeaesaan s mraeneaeeesasannne 2
2 RESOUICES.....e et et ettt et e e et et e et e sae et e e saees e eneeaneeneeeneerns 2
3 CommuUNICATIONS ChanNEIS.......c.oiiii ettt et et st s s 3
4 SPECITIC CRAIIENEES e e et e e ettt e e et eeeennneeeaeennsaeaeeanes 4
41 2 =AY o] o] [Tor= ) Lo o -SSR 4
4.2 AILEINATIVE ENEIEY .eeiieiieiiieeeiieee et ee ettt e e ettt e e et ee e e saeeeaaesneaeae s nsaeaeeaasneaeaaannsneaeennsaeaeeanes 5
4.3 Stormwater Service Boundary EXPanSioN .........oieieiiiieeeiiieeeseee e eeeeee e e eneaeee e 5
4.4 Regional DevIopmeNnt Charges ......uo i eiie ettt e e e etae e e et e e e s nneeeeas 6
4.5 CUSTOMET POITAL. .ttt ettt et e et e st e e eane e e saneeeas 6
4.6 Enhanced Lead Service Line Replacment Program ..........cceeeiiiiiiiiieeeee e e e 6
4.7 Community ENGagement ..., 7
4.8 Capital Program CommUNICATIONS.....uuuieiieeeeiiiiiieee e e ececiirre e e e e e esre e e e e e e e s s eneaeeeeeaeeseannes 7
49 Lake Major Clarifier PrOjJEC ... .. uuiiiieei ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e anaae e e ee e e e e ennneneneeas 7

4.10  CUSTOMEr SUPPOIt PrOSIamS......ucuieeeceeceetecte et tettet e st stesre et st ast e sa e et sresns et aesaen e e e nae s saeene e o &

5 PerformManCe INAICATONS c..ooveeiiieei ettt e e e e e e e bbb s e e s s eassbbbbssaeananes 8

6 SUMIMIAIY ittt sre ettt e s e e e s s re e sbe e e beastaaesebaeesasses sanaensbeansnse senssesnssnssssessnnansresnsnsesnsnneanses D)
U"ETeam, 1 __sT_RAIGHTfrom d(}”'ll”"]\
27 0neWater “coieieieieielelelelelele e s, [theSOURCE| [ A Water




COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

1. Overview

Reliable, safe and affordable water, wastewater and stormwater services has never been more
important to customers. The last year has seen Halifax Water work to maintain a consistently high
level of customer service, while managing the many challenges posed by the on-going COVID-19
pandemic. Utilizing the One Team, One Water approach to service delivery has focused staff’s
efforts on the mission “To provide world-class services for our customers and our environment”.

The 2021/22 fiscal year will see the utility continue to work through the challenges of the
pandemic, while implementing the 2021/22 Business Plan with investments in critical
infrastructure and continued innovation and improvement.

Guiding our overall Communications Strategy are the messages that we are in the public health
and environmental-protection business; are providing critical services, as opposed to a
commodity; Halifax Water’s success is integral to our region’s economic success [both short
term and long term]; and we are part of the community. Our messages will reinforce the
underlying themes of support for customers and the communities we serve; environmental
stewardship; providing a valuable service; fiscal responsibility; continuous improvement
through adoption of industry best practices; regulatory compliance; community
engagement/involvement and our long term approach to infrastructure renewal. We will need
to continually articulate the requirement for investment in infrastructure, which is best
explained by the need to look after assets for the environmental and economic benefits they
provide our region; quality of life for current and future generations to enjoy; and a collective
responsibility to pay our way so that our grandchildren will not be overburdened by our neglect.

A number of new and exciting programs are emerging or already underway. The Customer Portal
project; Lead Service Line Replacement Program; Cogswell District Energy; and New Service
Account Compliance, to name a few. A summary of planned communications and stakeholder
engagement initiatives for 2021/22 is attached to this report.

2. Resources

A new Manager of Corporate Communications and Public Relations will join the utility in June 2021
when the current Manager retires. In conjunction with the change in leadership, the organization
structure and job descriptions for all the communications positions will be updated in the first
quarter of 2021/22. Service delivery for internal and external communications is being restructured
to create more capacity for the Manager to deal with strategic communications and stakeholder

engagement.
UI]ETeam '.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'. 2 _s?ﬁﬂiéﬁffrom d(J/“llill\
[]neWater 'the SOURCE 1 Water




Delivery of our communication strategy relies on both internal and external resources. Every
employee of Halifax Water is an ambassador for the utility, as are Halifax Water Board members.
We will seek out and encourage partnerships to get our message out. Groups and organizations
such as universities, colleges, schools, non-governmental organizations, the Halifax Chamber of
Commerce, Greater Halifax Partnership, various area business commissions, Discovery Centre,
Urban Development Institute, Investment Property Owners Association of Nova Scotia, other
trade groups, and Halifax municipality will continue to be approached on an ongoing basis. Many
of these relationships are already well established, and it will be important to further strengthen
those ties.

Where appropriate, we may need to solicit external resources to rollout programs such as our
Community Engagement Strategy. Halifax Water also has an excellent working relationship with
HRM'’s Corporate Communications team. Coordinating with HRM Corporate Communications
will be critical for initiatives such as the Stormwater Service Boundary Expansion.

Halifax Water’s internal three-person Communications Department has significant expertise and
resources that provide the utility the ability to quickly create high quality content for print,
website, social and traditional (radio, TV, print) media and broadcast media. We continue to
enhance our external and internal communications through revamped internet and intranet sites
and social media.

3. Communication Channels

Social media is an important aspect of Halifax Water’s public communications. The utility has
been active on Twitter since 2012 and on Facebook since 2017. Both Twitter and Facebook are
inexpensive, yet powerful social media platforms, that allow for quick messaging and responses
to customers. These platforms also help potentially ease call and email volumes in our Customer
Care Centre. Halifax Water has used Instagram for targeted campaigns such as the Customer
Portal. Expanding social media to include Instagram as a regular Halifax Water social media
channel should be investigated this year.

Direct communication to residents and businesses through community consultation, home
shows, civic events, school visits, The Discovery Centre and direct-to-consumer pieces such as
Water Talk are effective means of reaching the public. Our continued utilization of these media
is critical.

Halifax Water also has a very effective website that is regularly updated to reflect new projects,
programs, PSAs etc.

Halifax Water continues to have success with its website Apps such as the Hydrant and Catch
basin Locater; Where does your Water Come From; Stormwater Boundary Address Locater.
Continuing to expand on these user-friendly platforms helps get the message out and potentially
eases call and email volumes in our Customer Care Centre.

UI]ETeam '.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'. 3 STRAIGHTfrom d(J/“llill\
[]neWater SRS SN SN \theSOURCE “ ter




Though not in use in 2020 or 2021 due to COVID-19, Halifax Water’s Community Water station
program and “The Shed” are very popular in the spring, summer and fall seasons. The Shed
occupies a prime Halifax waterfront location in July and August. It is an excellent direct customer
contact, education and engagement platform.

Spending on radio and TV has all but ceased with the emergence of social media, YouTube,
website etc..., and based on customer preferences for receiving information as seen in our annual
customer survey data. Themed/targeted videos such as those focused on stormwater; FOG [Fat,
Oil and Grease], Wipes; and Lead Service Line Replacement have proven very effective. Halifax
Water now has the in-house capability to shoot and edit videos. This capability will continue to be
expanded over the coming years.

Newspaper ads are utilized periodically in support of specific infrastructure projects that have
direct and recurring customer impacts; as well as NSUARB mandated ads regarding Hearings. As
required, ads are placed in community newspapers to target messaging to a specific community.

The utility has a good working relationship with media outlets. Efforts will be made to expand
outreach to media on issues that affect Halifax Water and its customers. Media coverage is a cost-
effective method of getting our message out, though must be accessed with caution.

To enhance communication with Councillors, Halifax Water links to Councillor’s Facebook and
Twitter pages to ensure timely information is available on projects specific to their district. Project
specific information is currently provided to Councillors via Halifax Water PSAs and
Twitter/Facebook and community newsletters related to specific capital projects. Staff will also
involve Councillors in public information sessions taking place in their community and provide
content for district newsletters where relevant.

4. Specific Challenges

The following Communications Strategy provides an overview of the main projects, programs
and services that will be the focus of communications efforts for this fiscal year.

4.1 Significant NSUARB Applications

It is anticipated that there will be at least three NSUARB applications that will require
communications plans in 2021/22:
e An application to approve the transfer of stormwater assets from the municipality
and expansion of stormwater services (Summer/Fall 2021)
e An application to approve Halifax Water’s portion of the Cogswell Redevelopment
project (replacement of water, wastewater and stormwater infrastructure) and an
application to initiate and approve the capital expenditure for Halifax Water’s

UI]ETeam '.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'. 4 STRAIGHTfrom d(J/“llill\
[]neWater SRS SN SN \theSOURCE “ ter




Cogswell District Energy System.

e A cost of service application in early 2022. This application will not increase rates
or Halifax Water’s revenues, but does impact future rate applications as it will
determine how costs get allocated to different customer classes and rates.

In all these applications, Halifax Water will keep the messages clear, simple, concise, and
consistent.

As with the 2020 Rate Application communications, the emphasis will be on graphics outlining key
concepts such as the extent of Halifax Water’s infrastructure; how service is provided, the cost of
providing the service, how investments benefit customers and the environment, how we compare
to others and how effective we are at delivering service.

Customers want to know that we are aware of the impacts that rates have on their pocket
books; and want to know that we are aware that the service we provide impacts their daily
activities, their property, and the environment.

4.2 Alternative Energy

The Cogswell District Energy program will be a major project for Halifax Water in late 2021/early
2022(dependent on HRM'’s project schedule). This innovative district energy system (heat from
the treated wastewater at the Halifax WWTF) will require public communications for developers,
pending NSUARB rate applications, as well as close coordination with HRM project staff.

The continued development of alternative energy by leveraging utility assets is important in
helping to keep costs down and showing Halifax Water is focused on reducing its environmental
foot print and costs. Projects such as the wind turbines on watershed land, inline turbines, solar
panels installed at various facilities are all programs that help get the message out that Halifax
Water is progressive, innovative and always looking at ways to effectively cut costs and protect
the environment. Linking to HalifACT 2050 will be a part of the alternative energy strategy.

4.3 Stormwater Service Boundary Expansion

In April 2019 municipal staff informed Halifax Water of a potential transfer of roads from the
Province in two areas. In accordance with the 2007 Transfer Agreement, acceptance of roads
from the Province would trigger an expansion of the stormwater service boundary.
Responsibility for operation and maintenance of stormwater service would be delegated to
Halifax Water, subject to Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (NSUARB) approval of the
expansion and the setting of rates. Halifax Water Communications staff have been working
with HRM and provincial Communications staff to ensure messaging is prepared and roles
clear. Both HRM and Halifax Water have developed communications plans for the road
transfer which may be initiated as early as June 2021 through an HRM staff report to Council.

UI]ETeam '.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'. 5 STRAIGHTfrom d(J/“llill\
[]neWater SRS SN SN \theSOURCE “ ter




Halifax Water’s communications plan involves extensive community outreach through in-
person, or virtual (COVID dependent) community information sessions and collaboration with
the area councillors. An extensive revamp of the stormwater pages on our website has already
been completed, including a new video. As has occurred in the past, there will also be direct
communication with customers via letters, and bill inserts for existing customers.

4.4 Regional Development Charges

New Regional Development Charges [RDCs] came into effect in 2021. With the NSUARB ruling
came the requirement for enhanced stakeholder engagement, on a more frequent basis. This
will be incorporated into the overall Community Engagement Strategy. Public messaging around
RDCs will continue to be framed as charges to ensure “growth pays for growth” and Halifax
Water’s support for affordable housing.  Another key message is that RDCs help fund
infrastructure to support new growth, which is becoming increasingly important as supply
decreases and demand increases within the municipality.

4.5 Customer Portal

Coming out of the Customer Connect project was the launch of Phase One of the Customer Portal
in November 2020. The Portal provides two-way digital communication between the utility and its
customers; increased customer service and convenience; allows customers, if they choose, to track
and manage water usage through an online portal; and enables Halifax Water to provide customers
with early leak detection information to reduce customer bills; reduce the utility’s environmental
footprint and fuel costs through decreased vehicle travel; introduce monthly billing; and modernize
business processes to reduce overall utility costs. Phase One has been very successful with over
16% of customer accounts signing up for the online service (the project vendor, Avertra targeted a
5% uptake as a success after one full year). Phase Two of the Customer Portal will launch late
spring/early summer and provide further customer enhancements.

The Customer Portal project will continue to require communications support through 2021/2022,
but should reduce with the formal completion of the project.

4.6 Enhanced Lead Service Line Replacement Program

Reducing the financial burden to getting the lead out is the most significant aspect holding back
most customers from replacing lead service lines. In August 2017 Halifax Water took a bold step
with the introduction of an innovative funding approach to Lead Service Line renewal with a new
subsidy program. The subsidy saw funding in the form of a subsidy of 25% of the renewal cost up
to a reimbursement cap of $2,500.

In March 2021 Halifax Water again became an industry leader with the launch of its enhanced
“Get The Lead Out” program. The program will see Halifax Water replace both the public and
private water service lateral, at the utility’s cost. A complete website and program redesign took

Ineleamy s i e . © 'STRAIGHT from (_}(_l/“{_,m-{_,\

77 OneWater “+i-i-i-ielslslslsllelslneueus, [the SOURCE Water




part as part of the new program. The “Get The Lead Out” program will require on-going
communications support.

4.7 Community Engagement

The coming years will see the need for Halifax Water to increase its community engagement in
support of the pending stormwater service boundary expansion, RDC stakeholder engagement,
Cogswell District Energy, large scale capital projects and other initiatives. This increased level of
community interaction will require the development a comprehensive community engagement
strategy. Preliminary work is underway and will require support from an outside vendor to help
develop, and where necessary, implement the various components of the strategy.

Along with a comprehensive community strategy, Halifax Water will also explore opportunities to
expand our Water Station program, and revamp “The Shed” to focus on key programs/projects.

Halifax Water is working with the municipality on diversity and inclusion and anti-black racism
initiatives. During 21/22 Halifax Water will complete a Diversity and Inclusion Roadmap which
may result in some changes to how Halifax Water engages with diverse or marginalized groups.

4.8 Capital Program Communications

Halifax Water currently has a comprehensive communications program for large scale capital
projects that will impact a community and/or traffic for an extended period. The program, while
comprehensive, does not capture all large-scale capital projects. A process will be established
involving senior water/wastewater/stormwater capital project engineers and Communications
staff to review all large capital projects and determine what level of communications support is
required.

4.9 Lake Major Clarifier Project

In order to provide continued high quality, reliable water service to customers in Dartmouth, Cole
Harbour, Eastern Passage, North Preston and Westphal, Halifax Water is undertaking upgrades to
the Clarifiers at Lake Major Water Supply Plant (LMWSP). The impact to customers could range
from low pressure and discoloured water to a Do Not Use order. A specific communications plan
has been developed for this project to help reach a number of audiences and cover the various
scenarios that could develop as the project progresses. The Lake Major Clarifier project is
currently scheduled to get underway in Fall 2021.

4,10 Customer Support Programs

Halifax Water has a number of support programs for both residential and
industrial/commercial/institutional customers: The H20 Program, Lateral Loan Program,
Wastewater Rebate, Stormwater Credit, and The Landlord-In-Between Program. While some

UI]ETeam '.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'. 7 STRAIGHTfrom d(J/“llill\
[]neWater SRS SN SN \theSOURCE “ ter




programs are well known and utilized, others are less so. Outreach efforts will be made to targeted
groups/organizations to make them aware of programs available to them, the benefits and how to
access them.

5. Performance Indicators

Since 2000 Halifax Water has engaged Corporate Research Associates (rebranded as Narrative
Research), a highly respected local research firm, to compile information on a number of topics
critical to the operation of the utility as it relates to public confidence and perception. The
questions generally focus on customer satisfaction with services and products provided for water
and wastewater/stormwater services and the various programs Halifax Water offers. This data
provides a comprehensive overview of how customers view our products and services,
confidence in our operations of these critical assets, awareness of various public
outreach/communications initiatives, among other parameters.

Halifax Water measures performance through its Corporate Balanced Scorecard. One critical
success factor [CSF] in particular, Service Excellence speaks to the level of satisfaction our
customers have with overall delivery of service.

Media enquiries can also be used as a less data driven indicator of the performance of program
related communications initiatives. Halifax Water has an excellent working relationship with
media outlets and will continue to work to foster and enhance this network.

The utility also utilizes measurements tools such as Google Analytics, analytics through Facebook
and Twitter, Mention media monitoring services and HotJar website analytics. These tools allow
Halifax Water to track and measure the effectiveness of the various programs and services we
offer customers.

Halifax Water is the Canadian representative on the American Waterworks Association — Public
Affairs Committee (AWWA PAC). As an AWWA — PAC member, best practice/benchmark data is
sourced from and shared with utilities represented on the AWWA PAC and wider AWWA family.

6. Summary

Halifax Water has a long history of innovation and stewardship of the environment. With almost
fifteen years operating as a “One Water” utility, much has been accomplished and much more is
on the horizon.

Remaining true to our public health and environment protection mandate and increasing our
community outreach is pivotal to increasing support for the essential services we provide.

It is always difficult to sell the idea of paying more for what some may perceive as receiving the
same thing. We must therefore demonstrate to the public that it is not the same thing. We must

UI]ETeam '.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.'. 8 STRAIGHTfrom d(J/“llill\
[]neWater SRS SN SN \theSOURCE “ ter




reinforce that we are providing critical services, not just selling a commodity. The water that they
are receiving is safer and more secure. Wastewater and stormwater investments and stewardship
efforts show we are actively committed to protecting the environment. Sound infrastructure
facilitates a good quality of life and is good for business. The infrastructure that makes it possible
for residents to turn on their taps, flush their toilets and manage stormwater is continuously
being upgraded. That’s a benefit to all our customers, the communities we serve, and the
economic and environmental future of our region.

A challenging and exciting period lies ahead for Halifax Water. With ever expanding programs and
communications tools, our internal and external communication efforts will increase. In addition,
making our employees well informed ambassadors for our utility will help spread the message as
they interact with customers in the course of their daily work.

As we move ahead, best practice research will be utilized through partners such as the Water
Research Foundation, American Waterworks Association, NSERC and other relevant groups.

Onetemmy ~amis e . O 'STRAIGHT from d(J/ [alifax

L] L] L] . L] L] L] L] L]

N, 58 - i
SAS OneWater “cilcelelelelelelelelete oo -+, [theSOURCE| £ 1 Water




AL | ‘ FOUNOS Y| - - - T T T T Jajlep au(
vmmn—:m—l—% Eo.—h.n—-:w—<mn—-m7 ............................................................... uEmm._.mcm 0°

muwun

[enuey 9JIAIS JO 1S0D) SuOI1ed07 SNoLIeA W RS

9DIAIIS JO S|9AT JoWOISN) o 1e .d3HS ayYl,, ysnoayyr 2 n 3

[1PUNoD ERIIEYET [1]e%9) juawagesu3 Japjoyayels m_ .wu 3

XejileH 03 sue|d ssauisng [esluyda) Apnis Suiuueld uolIssas oo
Je9A-9AI4 § [eNUUY JU3SAUd e« | AJjIDe4 JUSWIIeDU] J91BMIISBAN ¢ | UOIlEWIOU| JOPjOYDYeIS DAY  * “=0

}aue.lul 3Y3 0] sajepdn pue sudaads A1ajes 03 sajepdn ‘suoijesiunwiwod jeusajul yum sasdueyd Aoijod pue ‘swesdoud ‘s3oafoid Suinuoddns

0x

19119|SMaU 150d auljadid Ajyuop m e.w

: PSS e

:8ui03-up m_ _wn m.l.

JedA SaAI1RIIU| m_ ..m.. -

|easi4 Suiwo) Joj sadueyd uoisn|pul 9 AJISI9AIg ‘USD  * IS Do

149uag Jo uonesuadwo) Auy o 19nbueg pJiemy |euoneziuesiQo ¥93M HSOVN  * Bl -

S3|Nsay 92IA13S 99hojdwig R SpJeMy 9DIAI9S 3uo] e s)nsay 93ed e uo ue|d Jesap -
|enuuy ajesiunwwo) e Aanung 9ahojdwig |lenuuy o | pJedalods pasuejeg ajeldoddo) e | Juauun) J10j SIAIJRIMNU| D1391edlS e

‘(3nO pea7 3y3 199) weadoid Juswade|day aul] 321AI9S pea] pue ‘(ueoT [eaje] 3yl ) wea30ldd 9duelsissy

Juswdde|day |esa1e] 91eALd ‘D1e(ay J91eMIISBM 1IPDID) 193eMWIOLS {(pund O2H) 92uUelSISSY |eldueuld :swea3oud J91ep\ xejleH Jo uoijowoud % .“w
219 ‘Y|l 4193eM ‘Sa3ueyd 931A4S ‘suolrdnasip 921A43s ‘syoafoad [ejide) > 3 qno
:8uio8-up e _wn )
<35
suonedi|ddy Aiesing 88K
suoljedl|ddy Aresung [led DDOSN 491eM\ XejlleH e wea3oud s m_. ®
Sunds DDSN 4918 M\ XejlleH e Sulues|d uiseqydied poday [enuuy e 3uiysn|4 uedpAH Sunds . m =
s3Insay AdAJns Jawoisnd R ssaupasedald wWi0lS o poday AJjigeunoddy e S9AI3eI}IU| uoIsSn|du| n 2
|enuuy ajesiunwwo) e Aanuns Jawolsn) [enuuy e Su1193| [e43uUdD [enuuy e R A}ISI9AIQ ‘YSD uo Juoday o
jJuswade|day
Jauae|D Jofey aye] diysiaulsed mu
YINOA 104 uoieanpg s2AD YINOA 104 uoieanpg s2AD 2.3ud) A1an0ds1q Jo ydune] e 3w
uonjedlddy 92IAISS JO1SOD J193epA 9 243ud) Ausnodsiq e J193epA 9 243ud) Ausnodsiq e sadueyd DAy L€ Ael o G B=N=i
193png |e340d J2WOolsn) o |e340d JWOlIsn) o asealdu| S m -
[exded g unpesadQ jenuuy e uoljeonpy walsAs a1ey 191EMISEM 1oL [Udy o IS e.u
ue|d ssauisng [enuuy e J1awWolsn) J91eMWI0}S o A315u3z 1014351Q ||9MS30D) |eniod J,2woisn) e .ph.._. A
uoljeonpy wei3do.ud adueldwo) uoljeonpy wei3do.id Juswade|day W
J1aWwolsn) J91eMWI0ls o UNOJJY dIINIDS MAN  * JawWolsn) J91eMuWIols o 9DIAJIDS ped padueyuy e

(yorew - Axenuer) o (1oquiadaq - 419¢0130) €0 (1oquaydas - AInr) 20 (sunr - pady) 1O

2¢/120z Juawabebu] Japjoyayels @ SuoijealunLuLLog Jajep XejijeH



({({/llalifax o, Wt g
Water June 17, 2021

Halifax Regional Water Commission

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board

JameS gfr:il'la);ﬁigned by James

SUBMITTED BY: Campbell pr gy
James Campbell, Manager of Public Relations and
Communications

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: M&J &b£ 8‘;::0?021 06.10

15:57:37 -03'00"
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: June 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Diversity, Equity & Inclusion
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

Enterprise Risk Management

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide the Halifax Water Board with an overview of on-
going corporate social responsibility and diversity, equity and inclusion related initiatives.
Periodically reviewing and assessing corporate social responsibility initiatives is an
important means of maintaining relevance and helping to ensure Halifax Water reflects the
values and diversity of the community it serves, while maintaining and enhancing a
positive reputation with customers and stakeholders.

Halifax Regional Municipality has a Diversity and Inclusion Framework, and an office
dedicated to Diversity and Inclusion and African Nova Scotian Affairs Integration Office.
Halifax Water is participating in the Diversity and Inclusion Leadership Working Group;
and is using some of the materials and resources developed by the municipality. The
Service Level Agreement (SLA) between Halifax Water and the municipality will be
updated this year, and subject to agreement a new section will be added to enable Halifax
Water to more formally utilize services from the Office of Diversity & Inclusion.

Page 1 of 5



ITEM # 7-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

In 2020/21 Halifax Water met with the municipality to identify opportunities to participate
and collaborate in the Anti-Black Racism Action Plan.

Diversity, equity and inclusion outlines the efforts an institution takes to create a more
welcoming environment for people of less-privileged identities. Halifax Water has many
on-going initiatives which are described in the discussion section of this report. The
planned initiatives for 2021/22 are shown in Attachment A.

The Halifax Water Board has requested that a three year framework for Diversity and

Inclusion activities be developed. This will be presented to the Halifax Water Board by
December 2021.

DISCUSSION

Halifax Water has many programs and initiatives which provide assistance to individuals
or to different segments of the broader community. The results are discussed below for the
fiscal year just completed.

Customer Assistance - Halifax Water has a number of programs that assist low-income
or vulnerable populations; or enhance the equitable application of Halifax Water rates and
regulations.

e The Help to Others (H20) Fund which assists low income customers. The Fund
assisted 98 households in 2020/21 and dispersed $23,866.41.

e Lead Service Line (LSL) replacement program — In 2020/21 86 customers
replaced their private lateral with assistance from Halifax Water that totaled
§$52,600.

e Private Lateral Replacement Assistance Program (PLRAP) — In 2020/21 3
loans were advanced through this program to assist customers with private lateral
replacements.

e Wastewater Rebate Program — In 2020/214 customers participated in the rebate
program and the total value of rebates was $1,072,822.

e Stormwater Credit Program - In 2020/21 4 customers participated in the
stormwater credit program and the total amount credited was $11,262.37.

e Temporary COVID-19 Relief — From April to September 2020 Halifax Water
suspended collection activities on overdue accounts and waived interest on
approximately 31,000 over-due accounts. During the number of overdue accounts
increased by approximately 13% to approximately 35,000 accounts. For these five
months approximately $100,000 in interest revenue was waived.

Page 2 of 5



ITEM # 7-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Corporate donations and sponsorships assist various non-profit groups that align
with corporate objectives.

Employee fundraising activities in support of United Way Halifax, Water for
People, Bryony House, Feed Nova Scotia, Souls Harbour Mission, Hope Cottage,
the Purple Ribbon Campaign, and the Special Olympics. Some fundraising
activities were curtailed in 2020/21 due to COVID-19, however Halifax Water
continued to support these organizations.

Community Water Station program to support special events such as the
Bluenose Marathon and Special Olympics has been in place since 2009. The
program is currently suspended due to COVID-19.

Scholarships - Since 2008 Halifax Water has offered $111,000 in Scholarships for
39 NSCC students, with accompanying work-terms:

Robert T. Peacock Achievement Award = One $2,000 award each Fall - This award
is open to second year students enrolled full-time in the Environmental Engineering
Technology program at NSCC. Preference is given to visible minorities.

First Nations (Jipuktuk etli apatua'timk) Award = One $4,000 award each Spring
and one $4,000 award each Fall - This award is open to First Nations, Metis and
Inuit students who reside in Atlantic Canada and are entering full-time studies in
the Civil Engineering Technology, Environmental Engineering Technology, and
Electronic Engineering Technology programs at NSCC.

Halifax Water Achievement Award = One $2,000 award each Fall - This award is
open to any student enrolled full-time in the Civil Engineering Technology program
at NSCC.

Arnold D. Johnson Sr. Award for Water Resources = One $3,600 award each
Spring - This award is open to Indigenous African Nova Scotian students entering
full-time studies in the Environmental Engineering Technology program at NSCC.

Women in Non-Traditional Careers (new for 2020/21) = One $2,000 award each
Fall. This award is open to women entering one of the following programs at
NSCC: Plumbing, Electrical Construction and Industrial - Diploma, Civil
Engineering Technology, Environmental Engineering Technology, Geographic
Information Systems Advanced Diploma, or Geographic Information Systems
Technician.

Page 3 of 5



ITEM # 7-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Diversity& Inclusion

Halifax Water is committed to ensuring the workplace is civil and respectful to all
employees, and to fostering diversity throughout its workforce. Activities conducted in
2020/21 include:

e Psychologically Safe Workplace training was conducted for all employees.
Maintaining a workplace that is respectful and welcoming is important to support
diversity and inclusion.

e The 2020 Employee Survey included questions around diversity. Results for 2020
indicate 59% of employees agree the workplace reflects diverse cultural
backgrounds, and 60% of employees believe employee policies are applied fairly.
These are two areas that Halifax Water is committed to improving.

e Diversity Moments were incorporated in the monthly Pipeline Post internal
employee newsletter.

e An updated diversity statement was added to all Halifax Water job postings.

e In an effort to increase the number of diverse job applicants, Halifax Water has
developed relationships and started sending postings directly to the following
organizations: ISANS, the Mi’kmaq Native Friendship Centre, Women
Unlimited, the African Nova Scotian Affairs Office, Women in Skilled Trades,
Oftice to Advance Women Apprentices Nova Scotia, and the Black Cultural
Centre for Nova Scotia.

e Halifax Water met with the Presidents of the two Union Locals to work on
diversity and inclusion, and a working group will continue to meet on a regular
basis.

e Halifax Water published information on understanding gender pronouns,
published signature templates, and employees are encouraged to use whatever
pronouns they wish.

e Many different commemorative events and special days are recognized by Halifax
Water throughout the year such as Mental Health — Bell “Let’s Talk™ Day,
African Nova Scotian Heritage Month, LGBTQ/Pride, and International Women’s
Day. In 2020/21 in an effort to try something new, two virtual coffee breaks
were hosted on International Women’s Day.

e Halifax Water had planned to sponsor the North American Indigenous Games in
2020/21 through provision of water stations, however the games were post-poned
as a result of COVID-19.

Page 4 of 5



ITEM # 7-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

Halifax Water has made significant progress over the last few years raising awareness
with staff and management regarding diversity, equity & inclusion issues. The utility
will continue to expand engagement with external stakeholders, the municipality and
staff to help ensure we reflect the values and diversity of the community we serve. It is
an effort that will evolve as our community evolves.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

N/A

ATTACHMENT

Halifax Water CSR and Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Activities 2021/22

Digitally signed by J
James Dighally signed by James
: Date: 2021.06.10
Report Prepared by: Campbell 15:51.00 0300

James Campbell, Manager, Public Relations and Communications
902-490-4604

Page 5 of 5



1918 M\

3DHNOSaY3| .- -T.Te Tt
WOy LHOIVYLS| .°. .".°.°.".

L IR U

(@)
(©)

slelelelelelelel-. 'wiedaup

sjuapisald
uolun yum 3uinasiy Ajuspenp

A393e.41S 3ulualsi
S1uapIsald uolun
yum 3unasiy Ajl4e3iend

A393e.41S 3ulualsi
sjuapisald
uolun yum 3unlas Aj4a1end

S1UapISald uolun
yum 3unasn A4a14end

}aue.ju] 3Yy3 pue sp 1 A1ajes 03 sajepdn ‘SUOIFRIIUNWIWIOD [BUJDIUI YIIM JUSIU0D pue Suluredl A}isiaAlp uljowold
sjusawolN A}isianiqg 1sod auljadid Alyjuo

syea.q 99402 [eniA Suiasoy

R J9JBA\ Ul USWIOAN JO UOIFRIq|DD -
Keq s,UsWOpA [eUOIIeUIDIU| - YD
synsay Aanins

93fo|dw3 [enuuy 3arediunwiwo)

:8uio8-up

soaAojdwa ||e 10} Sulurea )
M40/ 1k 123dsay,, 3dND
fdij0d

3ulaiH Jreq uswajdwy
dewpeoy |9 4edA-€ pue
A391e41S |’9Q 21BDIUNWWOD

saakojdwa

[|e 40} Sulure.] seig sSnoidsuodun
Aanung aakojdw3 jenuuy

9Y3 10} suollsanb [Q MaINY

saAlenlu|
uoisn|auj AysJaAIq 9
uolsnpdul ‘Ysd 2zg/12oe
pauue|d a1e21unWwwo)
SaAIlRI}IU| UoISn|IU|
A11sJ9A1Q 9 UoISNdU|
‘4sD L2/ozoz uo ju0day

WYH YHM A1l WSIDeY Yo

1juy ul pue s3unasw suoidweyd Ajisianiq ul 9redidiyied

sarej ol ui uonnedidipted pue ‘suoijernosse pue sdnou8 AJunwiwod Y3noJy3 uoiIngiiisip Paseaddoul Yiim Juswiiniday

pa1e20] aJe sjue|d A|ddns
J91em Jolew s Ja1epA XejleH 249ym
S31IUNWWOD 3Y3 Ul SJU3AD oddng
yauol A1031SIH SN uediuyy - Adeniqad
suones|ddy

Asesing Suiids DDOSN 4918 M\ XejieH

:8uio3-up

15l 1990120 U0 SsuoI1eaqga|ad
Keq Ayeau] ul uonedidnaed
pue diysiosuods

Aonuo?) soidwA|o jedads

S9IUNWWOD
SN UBDLIJY Y1IM S93ediunuiwod

pue s1oeJalul 91\ XejleH Moy
MB3IA31 0] OIVSNY YlIM HIOM
suoned|ddy

Kresuang Suiids DDSN J491eM\ XejieH

9pld

xejijeH ui uonjeddiued
pue diysiosuods
S9AI1BI}HU| UoISN|du|

g A1SI9AIQ ‘4SO uo J10day

€2/2202 J10J ue|d uoiy ue dojanag
s}nsay

AaAaans uoiyoeysiyes askojdw3

1202 3y} pue s}nsaJ )90 M3IASY

(ysaew - Axenuer) o

£o110d SuiaiH

Jreq e yum Adijod 3uiyels
J91e M\ XejljeH a3epdn
pJieog Ja1ep\

XejijeH ay3 o3 Juasaud
pue Ad1j0d diysiosuods

Q suoljeuoq Ysa.a4ay

(1oquiadaq - 419¢0120) €0

WYH YHM Juawaa.3y

[9A97 21A43S 3y Ul (OIVSNYV) 92140
uoine.3aiu| sileyy eij0ds eAoN
uedLI}y pUe SIJIAIDS UoISNDU| R
A1nsJ1an1qg WYH 3uissady apnjouj
Jaquiaydas ul pieog Ja1ep\

xejljeH ay31 03 Juasaud pue dewpeoy
90 JedA-€ ® A391e41S |9 dojanaq

(1oquaydas - AInr) 20

auljadid
1U3JeL 3y} UIYHM AISIaAIP
Suisealoul pue Juswiiniday

(aunr - judv) 1O

SIIMAIDY
juswasesuz

(7]
-
§
(1)
=
°
-3
()
‘

S31AIDY [eulalu]

SIIMAIDY Jeutanx3

sndod J13aje.1s

22/120Z Saimay uoisnjau| 3 Aunb3 ‘Aysianig pue YsJ Ja1em XejijeH



J(J/ Halifax ITEM # 8-1

l l \\EJ l(ﬁ']‘ Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission June 17, 2021

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board as Trustees of the
Halifax Water Employees’ Pension Plan

H Digitally signed by Louis
Louis de de Montorun
Date: 2021.06.10

SUBMITTED BY: Montbrun 160146 0300

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services/CFO

Digitally signed by Cathie

APPROVED: MC‘J &ba 8;2:0?021 .06.10

16:47:00 -03'0Q"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: May 31, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust
Investment Performance, First Quarter, 2021

INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

The Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust (the “Master Trust”) investment
performance is reported to the Commission periodically throughout the year.

BACKGROUND

None

DISCUSSION

The tables below and the attached Investment Report provide a performance update for the
First Quarter of 2021 (January to March) for the Master Trust, of which Halifax Regional
Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan (the “Plan”) is a part. The fair value of the
investment in the Master Trust is determined and updated at year-end, and the Plan’s share
in the Master Trust at December 31, 2020 was 6.4%, totaling $153.4 million.

The Master Trust returned 1.59% in the First Quarter, which outperformed the policy
benchmark of 0.89% by 0.70%. The return for the 1-year period ended March 31, 2021 is

Page 1 of 2



ITEM # 8-1

Halifax Water Board
June 17, 2021

15.04%, outperforming the policy benchmark of 14.68% by 0.36%. Other historical returns

are provided in Table 1 below.

Table 1 — Returns

Current Since
Quarter 3 -Year 4 - Year Inception
(Jan to Mar)| 1-Year |Annualized|Annualized| (Oct 1999)
Fund Return 1.59% 15.04% 7.38% 7.80% 7.19%
Policy Benchmark 0.89% 14.68% 6.31% 6.37% 5.77%
Excess Return 0.70% 0.36% 1.07% 1.43% 1.42%

The total fund returns are subject to investment management fees and plan expenses.

As at March 31, 2021, the Master Trust was in compliance with the Statement of
Investment Policies and Procedures (SIP&P), and a summary of the asset mix is provided

in Table 2 below:

Table 2— Asset Mix, as at March 31, 2021

Policy
Asset: Actual |Benchmark
Cash & Equivalents 0.5% 0.0%
Canadian Equity 4.3% 4.8%
Global Equity 33.6% 28.5%
Fixed Income 32.7% 38.9%
Minimum Target Return 28.9% 27.8%

ATTACHMENT

2021 First Quarter Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust Investment Report

Heather
Report Prepared by:  Britten

Digitally signed by

Heather Britten

Date: 2021.06.10
17:51:06 -03'00'

Heather S. Britten, Quality Assurance Officer (902) 490 1895

Page 2 of 2




T "ON W1 epuady Juasuo)

1202 1O

}J10d 3y JUBWI}SDAU]

NUld
NOISN3d
LNAWHOVLLV zm I

120T ‘L1 dun{
pIeog Id3)e A\ XeJIel]

I-8 # WA.LI



I es uejduoisuaduwy zo__m,_hmm_

WaH

"9,GZ 9 JO 8)el JUNOJSIP UIBdU0D Bulob B sewnssy "610Z ‘| Joquaoa( e se poday uonen|ep J8pog Jad ,

‘LAl Y3 404 SuanlaJd JeaA sepuajed
9Y3 S9zlJewwns 9pI|S IXaU 9Y3 U0 3|gel Yl ‘%SGZ 9 JO 91eJ JUNOISIP WJ33-3U0| S,ue|d
9y3 SuiwJogiadino ‘pazijenuue %61/ pauJes N @yl ‘(666T 4990310Q) uoildasul 20uUlS .
‘pazijenuue %<y T Ag y4ewyouaq Adljod ay3 Sulwiopadino ‘T¢0C ‘T€
yaJe|Al Suipus poluad JeaA- 9yl JOA0 %0Q°/ JO UiNlaJ pazijenuue ue pauies J|A Yl e
'9%9¢°0 Aq ¥4ewyouaq Adijod ay1 Suiwuojiadino
%t0°ST paudea | A 9yl ‘TZ0C ‘TE YydJelN Suipua poliad JeaA-auo 9yl Jo4
'%0.°0 Aq uiniaJs yJ4ewyosuaq Adljod ayi Suiwioyadino ‘%eS T pauded [N Yl ‘TO U]

(so9} JO 19u) 9duew.0j19d ISnJl 191SeA

« AI9N1303dS3I %17'€9 pue %8'T6
9J9M 0l1BJ J3JSUBI} PUE 0Ol1BJ PapUN} UJDIUO0D U108 3yl ‘6TOT ‘TE J19qWaI9Q 1B SY o

snjels poapundg
'd2dIS 9431 yum aoueldwod ul sem (1IA) 1SnJL J91SEIA dY3 ‘TZ0T ‘TE YoJBIA 1B SY o
oJueljdwo)

Alewuwing aAIlN29X3



Z eo-uejduoisuaduwiy zo_-m,_-_u._mm_
WaH

%EE0-  %IV0 %S8°C %V6'T  %Cy'0-  %CE'S %€0°T %E6'E %687  %09°0- %00 %SS'€ %LEO %C0'T %€0°0 %C9°0 %LLO  RIET-  %ILO- %80°C %65°€ uIn}ay ss90x3
Jewyduag
%C6°L %80T %96°0 %16'8 %SS°S %LT'S %YL %10°L %L %IL'T %800T  %C6'0T %0T'ST-  %8S'T %S8TCT  %9L'TT %0S°6 %I6°ET %0S 7~ %9 %CT'L % Mu_ 10d

%6SL  %690T  %BIB'E  %SBOT  %ET'S  %6SOT  %LC6  %V6'0T  %IOTCT  %ITC  %CT'OT  %LVYT  %EBVI-  %09'C  %8BTT  %BETCT  %LCOT  %09TCT  %IT'S- %950~ %TL 0T uiniay pung

I R I e e e e I R I

0zoz 910¢ (4114 800¢ ¥00¢ 0002
- %091-

- %0'T1-

UIN12Y SSOIXTF el - %09

ylewyouag Adijod - %0°T-

UInay puny mm oy
- /0

- %06

- %011

(so3j Jo 12u)
suinlay Jepusje)d

'JU09) — Alewwing aAIlN29Xg



NUYld
¢ es uejduoisuaduwy NOISN3d

WaH

"S91391e41S 19yJ4ew SulSiaWa pue uelpeue) aAllde
0} UOI1eJ0||e 9SeaJdaul 03 spaad0id pasn pue ‘ASa3es1s 09XSL UWZ 'S AVD PISO|D

‘uolledo||e 343 aAissed
Yim papunj 4adeuew A}nba jeuoijeutaljul Mau 0} UWSG 8/ AVYD Pa1eI0||Y

'$10329S JOWNSUOD pue SIJIAIDS |eldueul} ‘DJedayljeay ayl uo pasndoy
wJiy AJinba a1eAlud 19yJew-a|pplw ueipeue) Mau e 0] UWGT VYD PaRIWWO) .

'S10123S

Alijigow pue uoiyisuedl Adiaua ‘@anjonJisedul [eldip ayl uo pasndoj Jadeuew
9JnjonJiseljul ueadoiny 1dJew-a|ppiw e 0] UG zZ ¥N3J Jo dn-au e palrs|dwo) .
se1epdn TO
04 /T °0- UJN1ay 198J4e] WNWIUIA
pue ‘%1 0- Aunb3 3uidisw3 ‘%€ 0- AMnb3 ueipeue) ‘%¢0°0- Aynb3 34v3
‘%90°0+ A1Inb3 SN “%9T 0+ ANINb3 PlJOM ‘%S8°0+ SPUOG BSJDAIUN (UOIINGLIIIY
"%0/°0 Aq y4ewyduaq Adijod si pawJaojsadino | |A 9l ‘TZ0Z JO TO Ul
aN|e\ Pappy

'JU09) — Alewiwing aAIlNd9X3




v eo-uejduoisuaduwiy zo_m_.ﬁm_

WdH

sesuadxa pue S8 JO JoU UMOYS 8Je suinjal pun4

‘uinjey jebie] WNWIUIN %8 /Z + 90UB}deddy sisxueq YIUO € %0'ZZ + Puog 8s1aniun epeued XINL 3S1d %691 + (NVO$) PHOM IDSIN %S 0L + (NVO$) siexen
Buibiewz 10SIN %P ¥ + (NVO$) Xopul 34V IOSIN %08 + (AvO$) xepu| pabpsH 005 d8S %9'G + XOpUl XSL/d8S %8 't S! yewyousag Ao1j0d 8y3 ‘120z ‘L€ UJBIN 8AIoayT |

%'l %EV'T %L0'T %9€°0 %0L°0 uJn1ay SS99X3
%LLS %LE9 %1E9 %8971 %680 ¥Jewyouag Adijod
%6T L %08’L %8¢ L %V0'ST %6S'T uJniay pung

(666T 120) pazilenuuy  pazijenuuy

uo13dasu| aduls IBIA-T Je9A-€

TZ0Z ‘TE Y248l JO SY

SuJINn}ay }9N pun4 |ejol



S eo-uejduoisuaduwy

NU1d
NOISN3d
WiH

‘uinyey

1ebie] wnwiuiN %8 /g + 80ue)deody sieyueg UIUOW € %0°ZZ + Puog 8sianiun epeued XINL ISLH %691 + (NVO$) PHOM IOSIN %S 0L + (NvD$) siexep Buibiswg
IOSN %t + (NVvO$) xepul 34v3 IDSIN %08 + (AvI$) xapul pebpeH 005 d®S %9°S + X8pul XSL/d8S %8t S! Mewyousg Aoljod 8y} ‘L20g ‘LE YoJep 8aosys .

%6°'8€
aW0dU| paxi4

%G'8¢C
Aunb3 |eqolo
%8°LC
uiniay
1984e] wnwiuln

%87
Aynb3 ueipeue)

120T ‘T€ Yd24e jo sy
Ad1jod xINl 19SSV

%L CE
aW0dU| paxi4

%9°€€

Aunb3 jeqo|o %6°8C
0

uiniay
1984e] wnwiulA

%EV

Aynb3 ueipeue) el

sjuajeninby
pue yse)

TZ0T ‘T€ Yd2JBN JO SY
XIIAl 19SSV

XI|N 19SSy



9 eo-uejduoisuaduwy

NU1d
NOISN3d
WiH

}sShi] UIBYHON :©2In0S,

‘S1oyJew pado|anap pagdse| uoijeuiulddeA se Jayienb
9Y3 Ul Jale| Ssaueam audsap TD Ul uiniad aARIsod e paJaisidal sanninba 19yJew 3uldiowy .

"SNINWI3S [BaSI} SN Jay1iny

JO SMau pue SaulddeA gT-PIAO) JO IN0-||0J 3yl Ag parioddns TD ul paulesd saninba |eqo|n

%VETT %98'TT %10°9¢€
%61°6 %85°S %98°6¢€
%959 %ET'S %99°LC
%LEVT %6L°ST %90°8¢€
%10'8 %6101 %ST VY

pazilenuuy  pazijenuuy

JBIA-1 JBIA-€

VR

%16°0

%60°¢C

%SL'Y

%S0'8

($2 PI4OM IDSIAI) Arinb3 pliom
($D N3 1DSIN) s1oJe SuiSiaw3
($234v3 1DSW) Avinb3 34v3

($2 006 d'8S) Avinb3 sn

(xopu| a11sodwo) XS1/d8S) Avinb3 ueipeue)d

T20T ‘T€ Y21\ Jo sy

suJanj}ay jayde Alinbg



eo-uejduoisuaduwiy zo_m_.ﬁm_

WdH

—

1202 ‘L1 Yyoie souls uondaouy,,
1SNJ] UIBYUON :824n0S,

%E6'€- %18 8€E %88'VE | %LEO- %0T't %EL'E !

VN VN VN %ST0 %E€S0 %8L°0 #+A¥INb3 Jeuoneusau|
%IV L %T0'9€ %09'8C  %6L0 %TS'€ %0€'v Ainb3 plaom
%SG T- %98'6€ %TEBE  %T9°C- %T6'0 %0L T~ Ayinb3 Bu18iawi3
%L1 0- %99°'LC %6v'LC  %VT0- %60'C %S6'T Ayinb3 34v3
%EL'T %ES VS %99S %00 %TT'9 %ET'9 Ainb3 sn
%LE9- %ST VY %88 LE  %ETO %S0'8 %318 A1inb3 ueipeue)

dJuew.019d | JJewyouag dJuew.01dd | Jewyouag 9lepueNl Axnb3
9A1e|9Y CY VTN

JedA auQ 116)

(suaniai $D) TZOT ‘TE Y2JBIN JO SY

'S9131INba SuiSiaw3 Jo ssuewJotadiapun 01 anp Ajuewiud
‘%0/€°0 AQ %0T ¥ 0 uinial y4ewyduaq Adijod Alinba ayi Suiwiojiadispun
7o14enb syl Sulnp %€/ € pauJniad oljojyiod Alinb3 S, 1IN 9yl

frewwng LD - A3inb3 211qnd



eo-uejduoisuaduwiy zo_m_.ﬁm_

WdH

—

1SNJL UJBYMON :89IN0S,

‘'Spolsad JeaA-y pue spoliad JeaA-¢ ‘spoliad JeaA-T ‘TD 9yl JOA0 3SIAIUN
J9peoJq ayl pue Sspuog JUsaWuJaN0 pawi0adino aney spuoq 91e4o0dio) .

(2140d40) 9SI9AIUN EPRUER)

%L8'€ %95t %09°L %05 €~
XINL 3S14) spuog @ietodio) ueipeue)
(3uswuaan0D BSIBAIUN BpEUER)

%T6'C %61 € %3810~ %65°G-
XINL 3S14) SpuUOg 1USWUISA0D ueipeue)
(puog asJaniun

%91 € %LLE %C9'T %Y0°G-

epeue) XL 3S14) Spuog asJaAlun ueipeue)

poazijenuuy pozijenuuy

JEIA-b IBIA-€

TZ0Z ‘TE Y24eNl JO SV

SuJIN}ay }9yJe\ puog



NU1d

eo-uejduoisuaduwiy zo_m_‘.ummn

—

1SNJL UJBYMON :89IN0S,

%607 %150 %09V %61°0- %110 %80°0- uiniay 21N |osqy 11paJj [eqo|9
%91°0 %810~ %00~ %1L0 %6G°S- %8817~ puog juswuJsn0D
%081 %09°L %L9°SC %68°9 %0G°¢- %6€°€ puog a1eJodio) ueipeue)

9JUBW.I0}Iad | }Jewyduag 9JUBW.I0}I3d | }Jewyduag
anne|dy annedy

JeaA aup 10

(suamai $2) TZ0T ‘TE Y24eN Jo SV

‘puog a3esodio) uelpeue) Jo aduewdopadino
01 anp Ajuewd ‘%490°z AQ % ST - 4O uinlad yJewyduaq S} pawJojiadino
Y21YyM ‘%60°0- pauJes 01]0j110d SWOodU| Paxi{ PAHSISAIP S, LIN QYL

Aewwwng LD — awo2u| paxi4 a1jqnd



0l eo-uejduoisuadway zo_m_.ﬁm_

WdH

‘Kloanoadsal %/ St 200 0} Joud pue %G/°9 S1 ZL0Z-2002 ‘%529 S! €L0Z ‘%G9 S! ¥10Z ‘%GS'9 S! GLOZ ‘%S9 S 9L0Z ‘%9 S! 2102
‘%29 S 8LOZ ‘%19 SI 6L0Z ‘%SZ'9 S! 91eI 0Z0Z ‘%G9 S! 9jed LZ0Z SYL "9)el Junoosiq u1souoD Bulon ay) si oljojuod Jusw)saau ajeaud ay) 1oy siewyouad Aoijod ay

%€9°S %CT'V %06°¢C %90'¢- %990~ uJniay $S99x3
%LV'9 %EC9 %619 %SC'9 %9G°'T Jdewyouag Adljod
%0T°¢T %S€0T %606 %6T'€ %060 uJinisy 41N

(666T 320) pazilenuuy  pazijenuuy

uo1ndasuj aduig JedA-v JEIA-€

(suamaa $) T20T ‘TE Yo JO sy

'%699°'0 Aq SulwJojiadiapun ‘949G T JO YJewyduaq e SNSIaA ‘TD Ul %06°0
pauJniaJ (01j0j110d Juawisanul 1eAlid) oijoj1iod uinlay 193848] WNWIUIA 9YL

Aewwng LO — }J9)Je|\ 9leAlld



Ll eo'uejduoisuaduway zo_m_.ﬁm_

WdH

slequinu QZ0Z UO paseq pa)Sedslod,,,
Jeak ||ny Joy pazijenuue ‘0z0gz YoJel\ 0} Alenuer woJj sjunowe [enjoe Uo pased sajew}se asuadxa pue ‘awoou] ‘sjuswAhed jiysuag ‘suonnguuod .
SJUBWISBAUI BWODUI paxly pue Alinba papedy Ajolgnd |je sepnjoul "1.Z0zZ ‘21 AelA Je se sjuswisaaul pinbiT

6TY9'T S s||ed [exde) — s9jes 91eAlld + SJUSaWISaAU| pInbIT + ) [e30L
0'SL S- «xxS||ED [eude) 19N paroaloud

0°LT S- s|jed jexde) 19N BNy
S'6L S +%%5U01INQLISIQ 19N pa1dafoid

0'9¢ S suoiNguasIa 13N [enidy
6'0C9T S LSIUBWISAAU| pInbr
¥ 4 $- 4D 19N [enuuy |ejol
8'¢ S- 4« xS9SUAX]
414} S- «xSIUBWARJ 11joUdg
€0 S +x9WOdU| J3Y10
8'TT S % x9WOOU| 153U
() S #%9WOdU| UOIINQLIASIQ '3 PUSPIAIQ
00T S xxSUOIINQIIIUO)

(ujw §) syunowy

T<C0¢ paiewl}sy




	Agenda-17June2021-APPROVED
	Item 4.1 Financial Statements
	Item 4.2 pdf
	Item 5.1
	Item 6-2020-21 CBS Results -APPROVED
	Item 7-NSUARB 2020-21 Cost Containment Report-APPROVED-V2
	Item 8-NSUARB 2020-2021 Lead Service Line Replacement Program-APPROVED
	Item 9-NSUARB CCC Financial Status Report for Fiscal Year ended March 31 2021-APPROVED
	Item 1-I-Operational Performance Information Report-APPROVED
	Item 2-I-Halifax Water Collection Processes-APPROVED
	Item 3-I-APPENDIX I and II-Quarterly Remittance Certification-APPROVED
	Item 4-I HRWC EPP 2021 Q1 Financial Report-APPROVED
	Item 5-I-2020 Annual Report - Pension  Benefits Advisory Committee-APPROVED
	Item 6-I-2021 2022 Communications Plan and Approach-APPROVED
	Item 7-I-Diversity Equity and Inclusion-APPROVED
	Item 8-I-HRM Pension Plan Investment Report Q1 2021-APPROVED

